DOHERTY





# PAYMENTS TO OR FOR THE STATES AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES 1976-77

PRESENTED BY
THE HONOURABLE PHILLIP LYNCH, M.P.,
TREASURER OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF AUSTRALIA
FOR THE INFORMATION OF
HONOURABLE MEMBERS ON THE OCCASION
OF THE BUDGET 1976-77

1976-77 BUDGET PAPER No. 7

#### 1976-77 BUDGET PAPERS

- No. 1 Budget Speech and Statements (\$2.25)
- No. 2 Appropriation Bill (No. 1) (\$2.15)
- No. 3 Appropriation Bill (No. 2) (55c)
- No. 4 Estimates of Receipts and Summary of Estimated Expenditure 1976-77 (\$2.95)
- No. 5 Civil Works Program 1976-77 (\$2.00)
- No. 6 Government Securities on Issue at 30 June 1976 (95c)
- No. 7 Payments to or for the States and Local Government Authorities 1976-77 (\$3.35)
- No. 8 Australia's Official Development Assistance to Developing Countries 1976-77 (40c)
- No. 9 National Income and Expenditure 1975-76 (55c)
- No. 10 National Accounting Estimates of Receipts and Outlays of Commonwealth Government Authorities (55c)
- No. 11 Income Tax Statistics (40c)

# PAYMENTS TO OR FOR THE STATES AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES 1976-77

PRESENTED BY
THE HONOURABLE PHILLIP LYNCH, M.P.,
TREASURER OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF AUSTRALIA
FOR THE INFORMATION OF
HONOURABLE MEMBERS ON THE OCCASION
OF THE BUDGET 1976-77

AUSTRALIAN GOVERNMENT PUBLISHING SERVICE

CANBERRA 1976

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

	·	PAGE
Chapter I	Introduction	1
Chapter II	General Revenue Assistance to the States— Summary of Previous Arrangements	10
•	Personal Income Tax Sharing with the States	13
	The Special Grants	21
	Other General Revenue Assistance	23
	Payments of General Revenue Funds to the States	24
	Other Aspects of the Government's Federalism Policies .	24
	•	24
Chapter III	General Purpose Capital Funds—	
	State Government Loan Council Programs	26
	Borrowing Programs for State Authorities	28
	Treatment of Loan Council Programs in this and other	
	Budget Documents	29
Chapter IV	Specific Purpose Payments to the States—	
	General Views of Commonwealth Governments on Specific	
	Purpose Payments	31
	Assistance Related to State Debts	32
	Defence	34
	Education	37
	Health	47
	Social Security and Welfare	56
	Aboriginal Advancement	60
	Housing	61
	Urban and Regional Development n.e.c. and the Environ-	
	ment	62
	Culture and Recreation	69
	Economic Services—	
	—Transport	73
	—Water Supply and Electricity	81
	—Industry Assistance and Development	81
	—Labour and Employment	92
	General Public Services	93
	Assistance for Local Government	95
	Natural Disaster Relief	95
Chapter V	Payments to or for Local Government Authorities	98
Appendix I	Summary Tables	125
Appendix II	Tables of General Purpose Capital Funds	137
Appendix III	Tables of Specific Purpose Payments	143
Appendix IV	Tables Relating to Advances to the States and Net Payments to the States and Local Government Authorities	155
Appendix V	Tables of Payments and Loan Council Borrowings for each State	175
Index		205

Notes: Any discrepancies in tables between totals and sums of components are due to rounding.

n.a.-not yet available.

#### CHAPTER I—INTRODUCTION

Since 1960-61 there has been published annually among the budget documents a paper on Commonwealth payments to the States (and more recently local government authorities). These documents have served two purposes: they have provided a history of the various forms of Commonwealth assistance to the States and outlined, in more detail, the current arrangements governing such assistance. With the increasing range and complexity of programs the document became increasingly lengthy to the point where it was not practicable to continue to provide a comprehensive coverage of both previous and current arrangements in the one document.

Accordingly, this document concentrates on providing information on current forms of assistance. The tabular information, for example, generally covers only five years. Earlier information in relation to the matters covered in this document may be found in last year's issue ('Payments to or for the States and Local Government Authorities 1975-76').

Relationship With Statements Attached to the Budget Speech and Terminology In the statements attached to the Budget Speech Commonwealth Government outlays are classified, inter alia, in terms of economic type—that is, as to whether they take the form of expenditure on goods and services, cash benefits to persons, payments to other levels of government or transfers to other sectors in the economy. The purpose of this document can be regarded as being to provide details of those outlays included in the economic type category of payments to other levels of government.

This category is known as 'grants and net advances to the States and local government authorities' and is comprised of payments to the States, payments made direct to local government authorities and the State Governments' Loan Council borrowing programs. It is to be noted that, in addition to various Commonwealth Government payments made direct to local government authorities, a considerable amount of Commonwealth assistance is provided for local government authorities by way of payments which are made, in the first instance, to the States. Payments of this kind are included in the totals of payments to the States shown in this document. Details of both forms of assistance for local government authorities are given in Chapter V of this document.

In the statements attached to the Budget Speech outlays are also classified according to function—that is, outlays having like purposes or objectives are brought together under the one functional heading, with certain outlays classified under 'Not Allocated to Function'. One of the main distinctions used in this document is between funds provided to the States for general purposes (that is, 'untied' funds) and those provided for specific purposes (that is, 'tied' funds). All general purpose funds provided to the States are classified under the 'Not Allocated to Function' heading. Several forms of specific purpose payments to the States are also classified under that heading, but most of these payments, and all payments made direct to local government authorities, are classified

under specific functional headings. Tables 4 and 107 show a functional classification of outlays included in this document. Details of specific purpose payments provided in this document are, with a few exceptions, grouped and ordered on a functional basis.

Reference should be made here to the treatment in this and other budget documents of the State Governments' Loan Council borrowing programs, which are financed by the issue of Commonwealth Government securities and to which that Government itself subscribes from its own revenue sources, as necessary, to fill the programs approved by the Loan Council. The national accounting item 'grants and net advances to the States and local government authorities' used in the statements attached to the Budget Speech and in certain other documents includes these programs. In this document, the term 'payments to the States' does not include these programs; however, totals of payments to the States and their Loan Council borrowing programs are also given and, subject to the point referred to in the next paragraph, these totals are comparable with the totals of grants and net advances to the States included in other budget documents. The treatment of the States' Loan Council programs in this document is explained in more detail in Chapter III.

As the term implies, the national accounting aggregate 'grants and net advances to the States and local government authorities' includes Commonwealth Government advances (that is, loans) to the States and local government authorities on a net basis—that is, after subtracting repayments by the States and by local government authorities of advances they have received from the Commonwealth Government in earlier years. The national accounting aggregate also includes the States' Loan Council programs net of sinking fund contributions. The figures for individual items and many of the aggregates referred to in the text or shown in the tables in this document are on a gross basis—that is, before deducting repayments of Commonwealth Government loans or sinking fund contributions on State Loan Council borrowings. Where amounts are on a net basis this is specifically indicated. The grand totals in the summary tables in this Chapter and, for example, Tables 102 and 103 in Appendix I are on a net basis and are therefore consistent with the national accounting aggregate 'grants and net advances to the States and local government authorities' appearing in other budget documents.

Outline of Commonwealth Government Payments to the States and Format of this

Document

Payments of various descriptions have been made to the States continuously since Federation. Prior to World War II, these payments were mainly of a marginal character and were confined, for the most part, to special grants to assist the financially weaker States and to certain specific purpose grants such as assistance for roads and for debt charges.

Since World War II and the immediate post-war period there has been a marked increase in the amount and scope of assistance to the States. This has reflected, among other things, increases in the range and variety of governmental activities that have accompanied economic and social developments in this period

of rapid growth of the Australian economy; greater participation by the national Government in matters that were previously considered to be the sole responsibility of the States; and the effects of the introduction and continuation of uniform income tax.

In this document payments to the States are classified in two main ways—first, in terms of whether they are for general or specific purposes (that is, whether they are 'untied' or 'tied') and, secondly, in terms of whether they are for the purpose of financing recurrent or capital expenditures by the States.

The arrangements under which the Commonwealth makes payments to the States for general recurrent purposes (referred to henceforth as 'general revenue funds') are described in Chapter II. These funds comprise the largest element in Commonwealth payments to the States and are provided as general subventions to the States' budgets. They have no conditions attached as to how they may be used, but are intended to finance recurrent expenditures.

Up to the end of 1975-76 the bulk of the general revenue funds was made up of the financial assistance grants. These grants were determined annually on the basis of a formula that was normally subject to review at five-year intervals. In most years, however, special assistance was provided in various ways to supplement the amounts produced by the formula.

Commencing in 1976-77, the financial assistance grants are being replaced by arrangements under which State Governments will be entitled to a specified share of Commonwealth personal income tax collections.

General revenue funds also encompass the special grants paid to certain States (currently only Queensland) on the recommendation of the Grants Commission.

Chapter III provides information on the general purpose capital funds available to the States and their authorities under the Loan Council arrangements. These comprise borrowings made on behalf of the State Governments (to which the Commonwealth Government has contributed from its own resources in most years), interest-free grants made to the States and borrowings by State authorities. Further statistical material on these funds is presented in Appendix II.

Specific purpose payments, for both recurrent and capital purposes, are described in Chapter IV. Some further statistical details related to these payments are given in Appendix III. These payments finance a wide variety of expenditures.

As noted above, Chapter V brings together information on payments to or for local government authorities.

Appendix I provides figures, in detail and in aggregate, of payments to the States and the State Governments' Loan Council programs in 1975-76 and 1976-77 (estimated), and gives aggregate figures of these funds and of payments made direct to local government authorities for the period 1972-73 to 1976-77 (estimated). Appendix IV provides information on Commonwealth advances to the States and debt charges paid by the States thereon and Appendix V gives figures, in detail and in aggregate, of payments to the six States combined and to each individual State for the years 1972-73 to 1976-77 (estimated).

## Recent Trends in the Level of Commonwealth Assistance to the States and Local Authorities

Like other forms of Commonwealth budget outlays, assistance to the States and local authorities has increased rapidly over recent years. In examining year to year movements, however—either in total assistance or in components thereof—account needs to be taken of certain changes in the way funds have become available to the States. The following factors are relevant in this connection:

- (i) pay-roll tax was transferred to the States in September 1971 with corresponding reductions in the level of general revenue grants (this affected the increases in 1972-73 as well as in 1971-72 because of the 'full year effects');
- (ii) from January 1974 the Commonwealth assumed full responsibility for financing tertiary education (previously shared with the States), thus increasing specific purpose payments to the States; at the same time offsetting reductions were made in the level of general purpose funds (this affected the increases for 1973-74 and 1974-75);
- (iii) as from and including 1973-74 the Commonwealth has made specific purpose advances to the States for welfare housing; in the previous two years the States had met expenditures for this purpose from general purpose capital funds and permanent, offsetting reductions were therefore made in those funds in 1973-74;
- (iv) over the five years to 1974-75 the Commonwealth made grants to the States to meet an increasing proportion of the debt charges on a \$1000 million parcel of State debt; this debt was formally transferred to the Commonwealth from 30 June 1975 which has since met the debt charges directly;
- (v) in 1975-76 the Tasmanian railway system and the non-metropolitan system in South Australia were transferred to the Commonwealth, with the consequent financial gains to the States partly offset by reductions in the levels of general purpose funds provided to them;
- (vi) the Medibank payments to the States for hospital running costs which began in 1975-76 subsumed various forms of payments for public hospitals which had not been classified as payments to the States.

The figures in the final column of the following table show the annual percentage increases after adjusting for the six factors listed above. The figures in this table are not adjusted for other 'abnormal' or fluctuating factors, such as payments for natural disaster and unemployment relief and the early payment of Medibank hospital payments in 1975-76 (see text following table).

# TABLE 1—PAYMENTS TO OR FOR THE STATES, STATE GOVERNMENT LOAN COUNCIL PROGRAMS AND PAYMENTS MADE DIRECT TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES 1972-73 TO 1976-77

			_						Actual Amount	Actual Percentage Increase	'Adjusted Percentag Increase(a
	<u>.</u>								\$ million	%	%
		:	Fund	s to	State	s For	Rect	JRREN	T PURPOSES		
General Reveni	ue Funds—								1.700.0	10.7	17.0
1972–73 1973–74	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	1 700.9 1 923.5	10.7 13.1	17.0
1973-74 197475		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	2 513.5	30.7	34.8
197473		•	•	•	•	•	•		3 111.6	23.8	25.9
1975-70 1976-77 (est	imate)	•			:	•	:		3 743.2	20.3	20.3
Specific Purpos	e Payment	s for	Recur	rent F	urpos	es—					
1972-73		•			•				390.0	56.6	56.6
1973-74									609.9	56.4	27.7
1974–75									1 221.5	100.3	99.1
									2 316.2	89.6	83.0
1976-77 (est	imate)	•		•	•	•			2 483.9	7.2	3.:
Total Funds fo			poses							1	200
		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	2 090.9	17.1	22.
1973-74		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	2 533.4	21.2	21. 47.
1974–75		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	3 735.0	47.4	47.
1975–76		•	•	•	•	•	•	•	5 427.8	45.3	12.
1976-77 (est	timate)	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	6 227.1	14.7	1 12.
•			Fu	NDS T	o Sta	TES F	or C	PITAI	Purposes		
General Purpo	se Canital	Fund				-			1	1	1
1972-73	se Cupitui	I unus	(0)						982.0	10.1	10.
1973-74		•	·	•			·		867.0	-11.7	10.
1974-75		·			-		·		1 087.4	25.4	28.
1975-76		•	•	•		•			1 291.0	18.7	19.
1976-77(c)				•		•	•		1 356.0	5.0	5.
Specific Purpo	se Paymen	ts for	Capi	tal Pu	rposes						
1972–73		٠,	•		٠.				541.5	18.0	18.
1973-74									960.2	77.3	30.
1974-75									1 745.4	81.8	81.
1975-76									1 836.6	5.2	5.
1976–77 (es	timate)			•	•	•	•	•	1 709.2	-6.9	-6.
Total Funds fo	or Capital I	Purpo	ses								
1972-73				•	•	•	•	•	1 523.5	12.8	12
1973-74					•	٠	•	•	1 827.2	19.9	19
1974–75					•	•	•	•	2 832.9	55.0	55.
1975–76				•	•	•	•	•	3 127.6	10.4	10
1976–77 (es	stimate)	•	٠	•	٠	•	•	•	3 065.2	-2.0	-2
	Тот	.γ 1⊑τ	INDe '	TO ST	ATPC 1	FOR D	ECTIO.	PENT	AND CAPITAL	PURPOSES	
General Purpo			פעריי	51		. OR IN	LCUK			1	Ė
1972–73	I unus—								2 682.9	10.4	14
1973-74	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	2 790.5	4.0	16
1974-75	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	3 600.9	29.0	32
1975-76		•	•	•	•	•	•	:	4 402.6	22.3	24
1976-77 (es	stimate)	·	:	·	·	·		·	5 099.2	15.8	15
Specific Purpe	ose Funds-	_									
1972–73									931.5	31.6	31
1973-74									1 570.1	68.6	29
1974-75									2 966.9	89.0	87
1975-76					•				4 152.8	40.0	38
1712 10									4 193.1	1.0	-1

# TABLE 1—PAYMENTS TO OR FOR THE STATES, STATE GOVERNMENT LOAN COUNCIL PROGRAMS AND PAYMENTS MADE DIRECT TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES 1972–73 TO 1976–77—continued

			_							Actual Amount	Actual Percentage Increase	'Adjusted' Percentage Increase(a)
										\$ million	%	%
Total Funds									1		1	I
1972-73				_						3 614.4	15.2	18.4
1973-74		_		Ī	•	•	•	•	.	4 360.6	20.6	20.6
1974-75		•	•	•	•	•		•	•	6 567.8	50.6	50.6
1975-76		•	•	•	•	•	•	•		8 555.4	30.3	30.9
1976-77 (	estima	ate)	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	9 292.3	8.6	7.5
	, •••••••	,	•	•	•	•	•	•	• '	7 292.3	0.0	7.5
		P.	AYMEN	тѕ М	ADE [	DIRECT	то І	COCAI	Gov	ERNMENT AUT	HORITIES	
1972-73					_	_			. 1	2.2	15.7	15.7
1973-74					-			•	.	6.0	170.4	170.4
1974-75				Ċ		·	•	•	• 1	53.9	803.1	803.1
1975-76		·	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	109.4	103.1	103.1
1976-77 (	estima	ate)		·		•	•	•••	•	17.4	-84.1	-84.1
,		,			-	-	• •	•	• '		01.1	01.1
			Less	REPAY	MENT	S AND	SINK	ING ]	Fund	Contribution	NS(d)	
1972-73										164.8	8.1	8.1
1973-74										180.1	9.3	9.3
1974–75									.	198.2	10.1	10.1
1975-76										198.3	0.0	0.0
1976-77 (	estima	ite)					·		`	232.5	17.3	17.3
`		,			-	•	•	•	•	232.5	111.5	1,.5
Gr	AND ]	TOTAL.	–Fu≀	IDS TO	STAT	res an	D Lo	CAL (	Gover	NMENT AUTHO	ORITIES (NET BA	ASIS)
1972-73									. 1	3 451.8	15.6	18.9
1973-74										4 186.5	21.3	21.3
1974-75						-				6 423.5	53.4	53.4
1975-76						-		•		8 466.5	31.8	32.5
1976-77 (	estima	ıte)	•	-	•	•	•	•		9 077.2	7.2	6.1
`		,	-	•	•	•	•	•	• (	2011.2	7.2	0.1

<sup>(</sup>a) See text above.

(c) Programs agreed to at the June 1976 Loan Council meeting.

There are two factors, of a kind not adjusted for in the final column of the table above, which have a particular effect on the comparison between 1975-76 and 1976-77. First, payments totalling \$215.6 million were made to the States in June 1976 (under arrangements for the financing of public hospital operating costs—see Chapter IV) which in normal circumstances would have been made in 1976-77. Secondly, the 1975-76 figures include non-recurring amounts totalling \$144.6 million for unemployment relief, including under the Regional Employment Development Scheme. Both these factors have the effect of depressing the percentage increase between 1975-76 and 1976-77 below what it would otherwise be. The following table shows the effects of adjusting for these two factors:

<sup>(</sup>b) Comprising the State Governments' Loan Council borrowing programs and capital grants.

<sup>(</sup>d) That is, repayments of Commonwealth advances to the States and local government authorities and sinking fund contributions on State Government Loan Council borrowings.

## TABLE 2—FUNDS AVAILABLE TO THE STATES AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES—COMPARISONS BETWEEN 1975-76 AND 1976-77(a)

Percentage Increases 1976-77 Over 1975-76

	Actual Figures	Figures Adjusted for Early Hospital Payments(b)	Figures Also Adjusted for Employment Grants(c)
	%	%	%
General Purpose Funds— General Revenue Funds General Purpose Capital Funds Sub-total	20.3 5.0 15.8	20.3 5.0 15.8	20.3 5.0 15.8
Specific Purpose Funds— Payments of a Revenue Nature(d) Payments of a Capital Nature Payments made Direct to Local Authorities	7.2 -6.9 -84.1	28.5 6.9 84.1	31.3 -6.9 11.0
Sub-total	-1.2	9.4	13.3
TOTAL OF ABOVE (Gross)	7.4	12.7	14.6
Less Repayments of Commonwealth Advances and Sinking Fund Contributions on State Government Loan Council Borrowings	17.3	17.3	17.3
Total (Net)	7.2	12.6	14.6

(a) Items covered in this table are the same as in Table 1.

(b) That is, hypothetical increases calculated as if hospital payments made in June 1976 which would normally have been paid in 1976-77 (totalling \$215.6 million) were made in 1976-77.

(c) Figures adjusted as outlined in footnote (b) but also excluding from the figures the non-recurring grants to the States and local government authorities for unemployment relief (including under the REDS); these payments totalled \$139.0 million in 1975-76 and are estimated to total \$0.3 million in 1976-77.

(d) Includes payments to the States for on-passing as general purpose assistance to local government authorities.

The figures in the foregoing tables include the State Governments' Loan Council programs but do not include the borrowing programs of State semi-government and local authorities. That reflects the fact that the States' Loan Council programs are 'underwritten' by the Commonwealth and represent an effective charge on the Commonwealth's budget while the authorities' programs do not affect the Commonwealth's budget. It is of interest, however, to show how the magnitudes given in the previous tables are affected if the authorities' programs are included. The following table is designed for that purpose.

TABLE 3—FUNDS AVAILABLE TO THE STATES AND THEIR AUTHORITIES AS COMMONWEALTH ASSISTANCE AND AS BORROWING PROGRAMS (GROSS BASIS)

·	1976–77	Percentage Increase Over 1975-76		
		Actual	Adjusted(a)	
General Purpose Funds—	\$ million	%	%	
General Revenue Funds	3 743.2	20.3	20.3	
General Purpose Capital Funds— State Government Loan Council Programs(b) Borrowing Programs of Larger State Authorities(c) (d) Borrowings of Smaller State Authorities (c) (e)	1 356.0 960.0 299.1	5.0 18.6 22.3	5.0 18.6 22.3	
Sub-total	2 615.1	11.5	11.5	
Total General Purpose Funds	6 358.3	16.5	16.5	
Specific Purpose Payments (f)	4 210.5	-1.2	13.3	
Total ( <i>Gross</i> )	10 568.9	8.7	15.2	

<sup>(</sup>a) As set out in previous tables and accompanying text.

(b) Borrowing programs plus capital grants.

<sup>(</sup>c) See Chapter III for explanations of terms "larger" and "smaller" authorities and of Loan Council arrangements in relation thereto.
(d) Program approved at the June 1976 meeting of the Loan Council.
(e) Estimate on basis of advice from State Treasuries.

<sup>(</sup>f) Includes payments made direct to local government authorities.

#### Functional Breakdown of Payments to States and Local Authorities and State Governments' Loan Council Programs

The following table shows total payments to the States, State Government Loan Council programs and payments made direct to local authorities in 1974-75 and 1975-76 and the estimated amounts for 1976-77 included under each of the relevant functional headings and sub-headings and also the estimated increases in 1976-77 over 1975-76. The figures given in this table are directly comparable with the functional statements of outlays given in the attachments to the Budget Speech, with a qualification relating to 1974-75 (see page 23).

TABLE 4—FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION OF PAYMENTS TO OR FOR THE STATES, STATE GOVERNMENT LOAN COUNCIL PROGRAMS AND PAYMENTS MADE DIRECT TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES (NET BASIS(a))

(\$	thousand	ls)
-----	----------	-----

Functional Classification	1974–75	1975–76	1976–77 (Estimate)	Increase 1976–77 over 1975–76 (Estimate)
2.0	26.400	24.206	26.670	
Defence	26 499	34 386	36 670	6.6
Education	1 328 754	1 461 159	1 738 459	
Health	107 794	1 082 786	956 482	(b)-11.7
Social Security and Welfare	119 979	182 431	43 689	(c)-76.1
Housing	390 868	362 882	363 128	0.1
Urban and Regional Development n.e.c. and	224 772	2/2 204	122 511	
the Environment	234 778	263 284	123 511	-53.1
Culture and Recreation	12 759	11 974	14 840	23.9
Economic Services—	440.000	101 70		
Transport	418 523	494 762	518 177	4.7
Water Supply and Electricity	38 691	46 260	33 965	-26.6
Industry Assistance and Development	83 021	109 559	100 181	-8.6
Labour and Employment	4 052	6 180	8 530	38.0
Other Economic Services	65		• •	
Total Economic Services	544 352	656 761	660 853	0.6
General Public Services	8 955	7 910	13 324	68.4
General Revenue Funds	2 503 495	3 111 580	3 722 700	19.6
State Government Loan Council Borrowing	2 303 473	3 111 300	3 122 100	
Programs	592 141	708 668	744 450	5.0
	345 878	430 333	452 000	5.0
Assistance Related to State Debt	103 612	47 338	46 770	-1.2
Assistance for Local Government(d)	56 657	80 046	140 000	74.9
Natural Disaster Relief	46 956	24 961	20 332	-18.5
ratural Disaster Relief	-70 730			
Total Not Allocated to Function	3 648 739	4 402 926	5 126 252	16.4
GRAND TOTAL (net basis)	6 423 477	8 466 499	9 077 208	(b)(c)7.2

<sup>(</sup>a) That is, net of repayments of Commonwealth advances and sinking fund contributions on State Government Loan Council borrowings.

<sup>(</sup>b) Comparisons affected by early payment of assistance for hospitals running costs.

<sup>(</sup>c) Comparisons affected by unemployment relief grants.

<sup>(</sup>d) Comprising grants to the States for local government authorities (recommended by the Grants Commission) and for regional organisations of local government in 1974-75 and 1975-76, and general purpose assistance for local government authorities under the personal income tax sharing arrangements in 1976-77.

#### CHAPTER II—GENERAL REVENUE FUNDS

General revenue grants have, in one form or another, been paid by the Commonwealth to the States since Federation. Their purpose has been to assist the States, by way of subventions to their annual budgets, in the financing of their recurrent expenditures. They are subject to no conditions as to the purposes for which they may be spent; that is, they are completely 'untied'.

A detailed history of successive arrangements governing this form of assistance is to be found in Chapter II and Appendix II of last year's document. The purpose of this Chapter is to provide a very brief summary of the arrangements which applied up to and including 1975-76, followed by a more detailed description of the new tax sharing arrangements between the Commonwealth and State Governments which are to commence in this financial year.

#### SUMMARY OF PREVIOUS ARRANGEMENTS

Payments of general revenue assistance to the States in the early years of Federation were governed by provisions in the Constitution relating to the allocation to the States of a portion of customs and excise revenue and of 'surplus revenue'. These were replaced after about 10 years by per capita payments which were in turn replaced, under the Financial Agreement of 1927, by contributions by the Commonwealth to interest and sinking fund on State debt. Although the assistance in respect of State debt charges has the effect of providing general relief to the States' budgets, the assistance is classified in this document as a form of specific purpose payment.

Since 1910-11 the payments referred to above were supplemented by special grants to Western Australia and then later to Tasmania and South Australia; from 1934-35 these grants were paid on the recommendation of the Grants Commission.

In 1942, when uniform income tax arrangements were adopted, the Commonwealth became the sole Government imposing taxes on income. To compensate the States for revenue foregone as a result of their ceasing to impose such taxes, the Commonwealth began paying what were known as 'tax reimbursement grants' to the States. These grants continued until 1958-59, after which they were replaced by what have been termed 'financial assistance grants'. As noted above, and explained in more detail below, the grants are to be replaced, as from and including 1976-77, by new personal income tax sharing arrangements.

In very abbreviated terms, the arrangements which applied over the period 1942-43 to 1975-76 may be summarised as follows:

- When the tax reimbursement grants commenced, both the total grants, and their distribution between States, were mainly related to the amounts of income tax previously being collected by the States.
- From 1948-49, however, a formula applied under which a total grant for each year was determined by increasing the amount payable in the preceding year by reference to increases in the population of the six States and to the increase in average wages.

- Over the period 1948-49 to 1956-57 a proportion of the grants was distributed between the States by reference to the previous income tax collections of the States and a proportion by reference to the respective populations of the States as adjusted for density and numbers of children aged between 5 and 15 years of age (they being factors considered to affect the relative needs of the States); the proportion allocated in the latter manner was gradually increased over the period, and in 1957-58 and 1958-59 the distribution between States was wholly on that basis.
- In every year from 1949-50 to 1958-59 supplementary grants, in addition to those yielded by the formulae, were paid.
- The legislation authorising payment of the tax reimbursement grants made those grants conditional on the States refraining from levying income tax, and permitted reductions to be made in the grants payable to any State which did levy such a tax; this element of the legislation was unsuccessfully challenged before the High Court in 1955-56.
- Over the whole of the period of the tax reimbursement grants the three least populous States continued to receive special grants annually on the recommendation of the Grants Commission.
- The financial assistance grants arrangements were instituted in 1959, and reviewed and amended (in each case so as to increase the grants payable to the States) in 1965, 1970 and 1975.
- The main change compared with the previous arrangements was that the grants each year increased not only in proportion to increases in State populations and in average wages, but by a further, so-called 'betterment', factor; until 1964-65 this factor was calculated as 10 per cent of the average wages increase in the year concerned; it was then fixed at 1.2 per cent, independent of the average wages increase, for the years 1965-66 to 1970-71; at 1.8 per cent for the years 1971-72 to 1975-76 and was to have been increased to 3.0 per cent in 1976-77.
- The grants arrangements have been adjusted from time to time apart from the periodic reviews referred to above; for example, adjustments were made to compensate the States for loss of receipts duty following a High Court decision in 1970-71 and to reduce the grants when pay-roll tax was transferred from the Commonwealth to the States in 1971, when the Commonwealth assumed full responsibility for financing tertiary education from January 1974 and on account of transfers of railways from South Australia and Tasmania to the Commonwealth in 1975.
- Additions were made to the financial assistance grants following withdrawals from the Grants Commission system of South Australia, Western Australia and Tasmania.
- Special revenue assistance, either for particular States or all States, was paid in each of the years 1966-67 to 1974-75 to supplement the financial assistance grants; on some occasions, this was 'built in' to the formula grants.
- In terms of the distribution of the grants between States, the effect of the formula—under which each State's grant has increased in proportion to its population increase each year and by the average wages and betterment

factors which have been common to all States—was, abstracting from other factors, to maintain the relationships between the grants of the States in per capita terms. However, these relationships have also been affected by various adjustments made in the arrangements from time to time, including those referred to above.

- The grants arrangements, as revised following the June 1975 Premiers' Conference and incorporating an increase in the betterment factor in 1976-77 to 3.0 per cent, were to have applied over the five years 1975-76 to 1979-80, with a review before the end of that period.
- The legislation authorising the financial assistance grants—namely, successive States Grants Acts—has not specifically stated that the grants were conditional on the States not levying taxes on income; however, it was made clear by the Commonwealth at the time of each review that the grants were so conditional.
- The State Governments consistently expressed the view, over the whole of the period covered by the foregoing summary, that the arrangements were unsatisfactory from their point of view. In 1970 the six States unanimously proposed that they be given direct access to income tax broadly along the lines of the scheme operating in Canada. In 1975 they proposed—again unanimously—that the general revenue grants arrangements should be based, in effect, on the principle that they should compensate the States for their lack of access to income tax and that, to put that principle into effect, the average wages element in the formula should be replaced by a new 'progression' factor equal to 1.5 times the increase in average wages each year.

The following table shows details of the calculation of the financial assistance grants paid to the States in 1975-76.

TABLE 5—CALCULATION OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE GRANTS FOR 1975-76 (\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tas- mania	Total
1974-75 GRANTS	737 522	548 405	414 446	261 737	(a)273 330	( <i>b</i> )131 871	2 367 311
Plus additions to base grants. Less subtraction from base grants.				(c)21 000	(d)5 000	( <i>c</i> )10 700	26 000 10 700
TOTAL BASE GRANTS	737 522	548 405	414 446	282 737	278 330	121 171	2 382 611
Plus additions under formula(e) .	141 361	107 409	83 914	54 359	58 709	24 418	470 169
SUB-TOTALS	878 883	655 814	498 360	337 095	337 039	145 589	2 852 780
Additional grants(d)	67 777	50 575	38 432	25 996	25 992	11 227	220 000
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE GRANTS	946 660	706 389	536 792	363 091	363 031	156 816	3 072 780

(a) Excluding 'temporary' addition of \$6.5 million in 1974-75.

(b) Including additional \$15 million paid in 1974-75 and included in 'base' for purposes of calculating grants for 1975-76 and later years.

(c) Net amounts agreed to in relation to railway transfers in South Australia and Tasmania and to the withdrawal of the former State from the Grants Commission system. For details see Table 4, page 14 of last year's document.

(d) Agreed to at June 1975 Premiers' Conference as part of revised grants arrangements—see pages 15 and 16 of last year's document.

(e) Calculated from the Statistician's estimates of increases in State populations in the year ended 31 December 1975 (New South Wales 0.16 per cent, Victoria 0.51 per cent, Queensland 1.07 per cent, South Australia 0.21 per cent, Western Australia 1.78 per cent and Tasmania 0.99 per cent, giving a weighted average of 0.64 per cent for all States combined), the Statistician's estimate of the increase in average wages for Australia as a whole in the year ended 31 March 1976 of 16.87 per cent and the betterment factor of 1.8 per cent.

The financial assistance grants paid to each State in each of the last four years is shown in Table 8.

#### PERSONAL INCOME TAX SHARING WITH THE STATES

As mentioned above, personal income tax sharing arrangements between the Commonwealth and the States are being introduced and will replace the financial assistance grants.

The tax sharing arrangements with the States represent a central element in the Government's Federalism policy, that policy being based largely on a statement on the matter issued by the Coalition Parties in September 1975. Some of the other main elements in the policy are:

- (i) sharing by local government in the proceeds of personal income tax;
- (ii) a more selective use of specific purpose payments to the States with the absorption of such payments, where appropriate, into general purpose funds;

- (iii) the establishment of an Advisory Council for Inter-Government Relations; and
- (iv) a review of the functions of the different levels of Government and the elimination of unnecessary overlapping, waste and interference.

The way in which a share of Commonwealth personal income tax revenue is to be provided as assistance for local government is explained in Chapter V. At the end of this Chapter there is a brief outline of developments in relation to other aspects of the Government's Federalism policy.

The arrangements for tax sharing, together with other aspects of the Commonwealth Government's Federalism policy, were discussed at Premiers' Conferences in February, April and June 1976.

At the February 1976 Premiers' Conference the Commonwealth set down certain broad elements which it regarded as essential to the successful implementation of its tax sharing proposals, put forward more detailed suggestions on some matters (particularly in regard to 'equalisation' aspects) and raised a number of other important issues to which it believed consideration needed to be given before arrangements could be settled. The States gave their preliminary reactions to the general principles and agreed to set down in more detail their views on the matters raised to facilitate further consideration of the proposed arrangements. It was also agreed that a working group of Commonwealth and State Treasury officers should examine and report on technical and other issues related to the scheme.

The further consideration given to the issues at the April 1976 Conference was on the basis of the joint report submitted by Commonwealth and State Treasury officers in March. Most of the main issues were settled at that Conference, outstanding matters being mainly of a subsidiary kind. These outstanding matters were the subject of a second joint report by Treasury officers, which was discussed at the Premiers' Conference in June 1976.

The tax sharing arrangements are to be introduced in two stages. Under Stage 1, to commence in 1976-77, the Commonwealth will continue to be the sole Government imposing taxes on income but the States will receive a specified proportion of the personal income tax collections made under Commonwealth legislation. Under Stage 2, for which it is expected arrangements will be settled so that it may commence in 1977-78, the Stage 1 arrangement will continue but, in addition, each State will have the right to impose a surcharge or grant a rebate on personal income tax in its State. Any State surcharges or rebates will be collected or paid by the Commonwealth on behalf of the States.

Set out below is a list of points representing the understandings which have been reached between the Commonwealth and State Governments in connection with the scheme as it relates to the State Governments (local government aspects are dealt with in Chapter V). With the exception of point (6)—on which see the discussion following the list—these points were settled at the three Premiers' Conferences.

# Personal Income Tax Sharing Between the Commonwealth and State Governments: Points of Understanding

- (1) The scheme will be related to personal income tax—not company tax and not including withholding taxes on interest and dividends.
- (2) The scheme will be introduced in two Stages; referred to below as Stage 1 and Stage 2.

#### Stage 1

- (3) Stage 1 will apply as from the beginning of 1976-77. (Commonwealth legislation for Stage 1 is to be introduced during the 1976 Budget session of Parliament.)
- (4) The States' entitlements under Stage 1 will represent a specified percentage of Commonwealth imposed personal income tax. (State legislation will thus not be required in regard to Stage 1.)
- (5) The 'base' to which the percentage will be applied each year will be net personal income tax collected in the year.
- (6) The percentage figure for 1976-77, and for subsequent years, subject to any decisions made given relevant points recorded below, will be 33.6.
- (7) Personal income tax collections in the Territories will be included in the base figure but with this subject to review in the light of the developments in public finances in the Territories.
- (8) The yield or costs of special surcharges or rebates applied, in appropriate circumstances, by the Commonwealth will not be included in the base figure from which the States' entitlements will be calculated.
- (9) In regard to the possible effects on the States' Stage 1 entitlements of changes by the Commonwealth in its personal income tax legislation, the Commonwealth Government has given a firm assurance to the States that:
  - (a) it will ensure that the States are fully informed of relevant tax changes made by the Commonwealth and of their estimated effects on the States' entitlements;
  - (b) it will participate in a review of the arrangements when there are changes in Commonwealth tax legislation which have effects on the States' entitlements of such significance as to warrant such a review;
  - (c) when post-budget changes in Commonwealth personal income tax legislation with substantial effects on the States' entitlements are made, the Commonwealth will consider, in consultation with the States, appropriate adjustments in the arrangements to offset the effects on the States' entitlements in that particular financial year having regard to other relevant factors impinging on the States' budgetary positions; any necessary consultations with the States on this matter will be arranged at the earliest practicable stage; and
  - (d) longer-term trends in regard to such matters as changes in the relative importance of personal income tax viz-a-viz other taxes will be kept under notice between the Commonwealth and State Governments.

- (10) However, it is agreed that it would not be practicable to devise in advance an automatic formula for defining how changes in Commonwealth tax laws should be reflected in the Stage 1 arrangements.
- (11) There will be a 'guarantee' arrangement to ensure that the States' Stage 1 entitlements in any year are not less, in absolute terms, than in the previous year. This arrangement will be supplemented in the first four years of the new scheme (that is, in the years 1976-77 to 1979-80) by a further undertaking that the entitlements will not be less in a year than the amount which would have been yielded in that year by the financial assistance grants formula as laid down in the States Grants Act 1973-75.
- (12) A total entitlement for all States will first be determined, to be then divided between the States.
- (13) The initial per capita relativities between the States in their Stage 1 entitlements will be the relativities in the financial assistance grants in 1975-76.
- (14) Subject to (16) and (17) below, and to any absorption of specific purpose payments, these relativities will be carried forward into subsequent years in such a way as to maintain the proportionate relationships between the per capita entitlements of the States.
- (15) The four less populous States will continue to be free to apply for grants on the recommendation of the Grants Commission in addition to their basic entitlements as yielded under the arrangements summarised above.
- (16) The matter of the relationship between the special grant which Queensland is at present receiving on the recommendation of the Grants Commission and the tax sharing arrangements is regarded as essentially one between the Commonwealth and Queensland Governments and will be considered by those Governments as necessary.
- (17) There will be a periodic review of relativities between all States, advice in relation to this review being sought from an independent review body; the first review will be made before the end of 1980-81 (the same timing as applies to the review of the tax sharing arrangements as a whole—see (35) below).
- (18) Arrangements will be made for the States to be regularly informed, as early as practicable and in confidence as necessary, of relevant estimates in relation to their entitlements.
- (19) In relation to the processes referred to in (9) and (18) as they may be affected by matters which are confidential as a result of their association with the Commonwealth's budget consideration and formulation, the Commonwealth will provide to the States the maximum possible relevant information as is consistent with the security and integrity of its own budget.
- (20) The States will be paid their Stage 1 entitlements on a monthly pro-rata basis, with adjustments during the financial year as necessary as estimates of personal income tax collections in the year are varied (this being similar to the arrangements under which the financial assistance grants are paid).

(21) There will be full and precise documentation to record the understandings between Governments in relation to Stage 1 but this will not take the form of a formal Agreement.

#### Stage 2

- (22) Under Stage 2 each State will be able to legislate to impose a surcharge on personal income tax in the State (but not company taxation or withholding tax on dividends and interest) additional to that imposed by the Commonwealth, or to give (at cost to the State) a rebate on personal income tax payable under Commonwealth law and to authorise the Commonwealth to collect the surcharge or grant the rebate as its agent.
- (23) Any State surcharges or rebates will be expressed in percentage terms.
- (24) Assessment provisions, and the basic income tax rate structure, will continue to be uniform throughout Australia, these being matters for the Commonwealth to determine.
- (25) The Commonwealth will at all times remain the sole collecting and administrative agency in the income tax field.
- (26) The level of any State surcharges or rebates will be a matter for consideration by each State; relevant decisions will be taken within an appropriate framework of consultation with the Commonwealth and, as considered appropriate by the surcharging or rebating State, with other States, but ultimately the level of surcharge or rebate will be a decision for each individual State. In exercising these powers the States will accept responsibility to work in parallel with and not in negation of the overall economic management policies of the Commonwealth.
- (27) Equalisation arrangements will be made so that less populous States will be enabled to obtain the same relative advantage from a surcharge as the States with a broader tax base.
- (28) The Grants Commission will be responsible for assessing amounts payable under the arrangements referred to under (27).
- (29) The basis for assessment of equalisation assistance to the less populous States in regard to the yield of State surcharges levied under Stage 2 (see points (27) and (28) above) will be that supplementary assistance will be provided to a less populous State levying a surcharge to bring the per capita yield from the surcharge up to the average per capita amount which would be yielded if New South Wales and Victoria levied a surcharge on the same basis. The assessment will be independent of any examination of the overall financial position of the State concerned viz-a-viz other States.
- (30) Detailed proposals to implement Stage 2 will be formulated by an officers' working party. The firm target is to have an appropriate framework established, relevant matters agreed and any necessary legislation or other material prepared in time for Stage 2 to commence from the beginning of 1977-78.

- (31) At an appropriate time the Commonwealth will consider what implications Stage 2 might have in relation to the Territories.
- (32) Interest on future issues of Commonwealth securities will be subject to State income tax surcharges under Stage 2 of the tax sharing scheme; this change will not apply retrospectively to interest on securities already issued.

#### Implications for Tax Forms and Assessment Notices

- (33) In relation to tax forms, changes will be minimal apart from necessary changes to take account of surcharges or rebates.
- (34) Assessment notices will be changed only to accommodate State surcharges or rebates (any Commonwealth surcharge or rebate would, of course, also be shown), with information on the disposition of Commonwealth tax to States (and local government) provided to taxpayers separately but in conjunction with assessment notices.

#### Review of Total Tax Sharing Arrangements

(35) There will be a review of the tax sharing arrangements as a whole periodically, with the first review being made at some time before the end of 1980-81 with any revisions applying as from the beginning of the next financial year after the review; arrangements will be made for the Commonwealth and State Governments to agree, well in advance of the review, on the procedures which are to be followed in connection with it.

Point (6) in the foregoing list records that the States' Stage 1 entitlements will be determined as 33.6 per cent of Commonwealth personal income tax collections each year. It had originally been proposed by the States, and agreed by the Commonwealth at the April 1976 Conference, that the percentage should be determined by reference to the relationship between the financial assistance grants in 1975-76 and personal income tax collections in the same year. An estimate of 33.6 per cent was used at the Premiers' Conference held on 10 June, based on an actual grants figure of \$3072.8 million and an estimate of personal income tax collections of \$9150.0 million. In the event, collections totalled \$9219.4 million, giving a percentage figure of 33.3295. Following representations by the States, the Commonwealth agreed to the adoption of 33.6 per cent, the estimated effect being to add approximately \$30 million to the 1976-77 entitlements as they would have been on the previously agreed basis.

At the time this document was prepared, there were four matters still under examination in relation to the scheme.

First, at the June 1976 Conference the particular needs of the States for information on the possible levels of their entitlements in the period leading up to the presentation of their budgets were noted. The fact that the States' entitlements for a financial year could be affected by decisions made by the Commonwealth Government as part of its budget and that the question of the provision of relevant information to the States before the Commonwealth's budget was brought down raised particularly important and difficult issues was also noted. As noted in

point (19) above, the Commonwealth has agreed to provide to the States the maximum possible information as is consistent with the security and integrity of its own budget. Secondly, it was noted in the discussions on tax sharing that it is possible that, as experience is gained with the scheme, and apart from any implications for State budgetary procedures, changes in some aspects of Commonwealth/State financial arrangements may become necessary or desirable to cope with greater uncertainly and greater variations from year to year in the States' revenues. These two matters are being further examined at officer level.

Thirdly, point (17) in the foregoing list records that there will be a periodic review of relativities between all States in their Stage 1 entitlements and that advice in relation to this review will be sought from an independent review body. Aspects of this matter are being further considered between the Commonwealth and the States. Officers are drawing up guidelines, for consideration by Governments, which might form a basis for the independent review. One matter still to be settled is whether the independent review body should be the Grants Commission or some other body.

Fourthly, the working party on Stage 2 arrangements (see point (30)) is continuing its work. It consists of Commonwealth and State Treasury, taxation and legal officers. It is expected to remain in operation at least until draft legislation and any other necessary documentation has been prepared. It will be reporting periodically to the heads of the Commonwealth and State Treasuries who will in turn be reporting, as appropriate, to Governments and seeking any necessary guidance from them. Consistent with decisions taken by Governments, officers' work is proceeding with the aim of enabling Stage 2 to come into operation from the beginning of 1977-78—that is, to enable a State Government, if it so wishes, to apply a surcharge or rebate on tax payable in respect of incomes earned on or after 1 July 1977.

#### Estimates of the States' Entitlements in 1976-77

As noted above, the States' 1976-77 entitlements are to be calculated as 33.6 per cent of personal income tax collections in that year, excluding the effects of any special surcharges or rebates. The Medibank levy to be introduced from 1 October 1976 is in the nature of a special surcharge applied by the Commonwealth and is thus to be excluded from the figures from which the States' entitlements are to be calculated.

Personal income tax collections in 1976-77 will be considerably affected by the Commonwealth Government's decisions to introduce full indexation of the personal income tax system and to abolish the rebates for dependent children as from the beginning of 1976-77; these changes will be reflected in the States' entitlements. The abolition of the rebates for dependent children represents a switching from one form of 'expenditure' (tax rebates) to another form (child endowment) and does not result in additional funds being available to the Commonwealth. At the June 1976 Conference the Prime Minister indicated that, on these grounds, there would be a good case in principle for proposing adjustments to a tax sharing arrangements so that the States would not receive a share of this additional revenue. However, the Commonwealth Government did not seek

such adjustments, and hence the level of the States' entitlements was effectively increased by the change in Commonwealth arrangements for assistance in respect of dependent children.

The estimate of personal income tax collections in 1976-77 (excluding the effects of the Medibank levy) incorporated in the Budget is \$11 060 million, giving, on application of the percentage of 33.6, an estimate of the States' entitlements in 1976-77 of \$3 716.2 million. It is to be emphasised that these and associated figures quoted in this and other budget documents are no more than estimates dependent on assumptions and forecasts, including forecasts of increases in employment, average wages and so on in the year ahead, employed at the time they were made and hence must necessarily be subject to a very substantial margin of uncertainty.

The method of distribution of the total figure between States is in accordance with points (13) and (14) on page 16. In practice, the procedure will be to divide each year's total figure in proportion to the States' estimated populations at 31 December in the financial year concerned but after 'weighting' the populations in terms of the proportionate relationships between the per capita financial assistance grants in 1975-76.

On assumptions concerning increases in State populations and average wages consistent with those used in estimating the States' tax sharing entitlements, the financial assistance grants formula would have yielded an estimated \$3626.8 million in 1976-77—that is, approximately \$89 million less than the amount estimated to be paid under the tax sharing arrangements.

The following table shows the calculations underlying the State by State estimates of their tax sharing entitlements in 1976-77.

TABLE 6—ESTIMATED DISTRIBUTION OF STATES' PERSONAL INCOME TAX SHARING ENTITLEMENTS IN 1976-77

#### DATA RELATING TO 1975-76

				(1)	(2)	(3)	(4)
				Financial Assistance Grants(a)	Population 31 December 1975(b)	Financial Assistance Grants per Capita(c)	(3) Expressed as Multiple of Figure for Victoria
New South Wales				\$ 946 660 152	4 810 900	\$	%
Victoria	•	•	•	706 389 337	3 688 200	196.774	1.02740
Queensland .	•	•	•	536 791 799	2 015 100	191.527 266.385	1.00000
South Australia	•	•	•	363 091 278	1 241 700	292.415	1.39085
Western Australia	•	•	•	363 030 612	1 138 300	318.923	1.66516
Tasmania	•	:		156 816 460	409 000	383.414	2.00188
Total .				3 072 779 638	13 303 200	230.980	

#### **ESTIMATED DATA RELATING TO 1976-77**

			(5)	(6)	(7)	(8)
		Population 31 December 1976(d) (5) Weighted by (4)		Percentage Distribution of (6) between States	Estimated States' Entitlements Distributed According to (7)	
					%	\$ million
New South Wales			4 880 700	5 014 431	30.824	1 145.5
Victoria			3 731 800	3 731 800	22.940	852.5
Queensland .		.	2 034 700	2 829 962	17.396	646.5
South Australia			1 256 600	1 918 527	11.794	438.3
Western Australia		/	1 167 300	1 943 741	11.948	444.0
Tasmania			414 300	829 379	5.098	189.4
Total .			13 485 400	16 267 840	100.000	(e)3 716.2

<sup>(</sup>a) As calculated by the Statistician in accordance with the provisions of the States Grants Act 1973-75.

#### THE SPECIAL GRANTS

Special grants have been paid to the States on the recommendation of the Grants Commission since 1934-35. The Grants Commission was established under the Commonwealth Grants Commission Act 1933 and functioned under that Act, to which only minor amendments were made, until September 1973. New legislation, the Grants Commission Act 1973, was passed by Parliament in the Autumn 1973 sittings and amendments to that Act were passed in the Autumn sittings of

<sup>(</sup>b) Estimates of population used by Statistician in calculating the financial assistance grants for 1975-76.

<sup>(</sup>c) Column (1) divided by column (2).

<sup>(</sup>d) Forward estimates of populations at 31 December 1976 supplied by the Bureau of Statistics.

<sup>(</sup>e) For derivation of the States' total entitlement see text. Individual States' entitlements rounded to nearest \$100 000.

1975 and 1976. These various changes were mainly related to the Commonwealth's role in the matter of assistance for local government and are therefore dealt with in Chapter V of this document.

Under the legislation as it now stands, the Commission is required to inquire into and report upon:—

- any application made by a State for financial assistance 'for the purpose
  of making it possible for the State, by reasonable effort, to function at a
  standard not appreciably below the standards of other States'.
- any other matters related to Commonwealth financial assistance to the States which may be referred to it by the Government.

The Commission's inquiries and reports in relation to special grants are made under the first of these provisions; the wording quoted is based on the principle of financial need as set out by the Commission in its Third Report (1936).

As noted above, the tax sharing arrangements are on the basis that each of the four least populous States may apply for special grants. Queensland is the only applicant State at present. Arrangements under which the other three States concerned have ceased receiving special grants are set out in last year's document.

In arriving at its recommendations, the Commission each year makes a detailed comparison between the financial positions of the claimant States and those of the 'standard' States. Prior to 1959-60 the Commission used a standard derived from the experience of New South Wales, Victoria and Queensland. From 1959-60 the standard States have been New South Wales and Victoria.

Since 1949 each recommendation by the Commission for payment of a special grant has consisted of two parts. One part is based on an estimate of the claimant State's financial need in the current financial year, and is treated as an advance payment subject to adjustment two years later when the Commission has compared in detail the financial positions in that year of the claimant and standard States. The other part represents the final adjustment to the advance payment made two years earlier and is known as the completion payment.

In 1975-76 special grants totalling \$38.8 million were paid on the recommendations of the Grants Commission, consisting of an advance payment of \$25.0 million to Queensland for 1975-76 plus completion grants of \$11.3 million for Queensland and \$2.5 million for South Australia in respect of 1973-74. The grants were recommended by the Commission in its Forty-second Report presented to Parliament in the Budget Session in 1975, and were authorised by the States Grants (Special Assistance) Act 1975.

The Commission has recommended for payment to Queensland in 1976-77 an advance grant for 1976-77 of \$18.0 million and a completion grant in respect of 1974-75 of \$9.0 million. The Commonwealth Government has accepted these recommendations and it is expected that legislation to authorise payment of the grants will be introduced in the Budget sittings of Parliament following tabling of the Commission's Forty-third Report.

The table below shows the *final* amount of special grants paid in respect of each of the years 1972-73 to 1974-75 inclusive—that is, the advance grant paid in the year concerned plus the completion grant normally paid two years later. The table also shows the advance payments for 1975-76 and 1976-77. Table 8 shows the grants in terms of amounts actually paid each year.

TABLE 7—SPECIAL GRANTS
(\$ thousands)

į	Queensland			Sc 	outh Austral	lia	Tasmania			
	Advance Paymer t	Com- pletion Pay- ment(a)	Total	Advance Payment	Completion Payment(a)	Total	Advance Payment	Com- pletion Pay- ment(a)	Total	
1972-73	10 000	9 750	19 750	13 500	8 500	22 000	10 000	(b)	10 000	
1973-74	10 000	11 300	21 300	15 000	2 500	17 500	10 000	(b)	10 000	
1974-75	15 000	9 000	24 000	15 000	(c)10 000	25 000				
1975-76	25 000	(d)	(d)						• • •	
1976-77	18 000	(d)	(d)	::	::		::		• •	

<sup>(</sup>a) Actually paid two years subsequent to year shown, with exception of amount of \$10 million referred to in footnote (c).

(b) No completion grants were or are to be paid to Tasmania in respect of these years.

(d) Not yet determined—see text above.

#### OTHER GENERAL REVENUE ASSISTANCE

As noted above the Commonwealth Government has from time to time provided general revenue assistance to the States additional to that payable under the tax reimbursement and financial assistance grants arrangements or by way of special grants recommended by the Grants Commission. Between 1949-50 and 1958-59, for instance, the Commonwealth Government made ad hoc grants to each State to supplement the amount yielded by the formula then operating; and additional assistance grants, partly used for general revenue purposes, were paid in the years 1957-58 and 1961-62 to 1963-64. Special revenue assistance of one kind or another was also paid in every year from 1966-67 to 1974-75. The amounts provided in the last three of these years are shown in the table below.

As part of arrangements for the transfer of the non-metropolitan railway system of South Australia and the railway system of Tasmania to the Commonwealth Government (see last year's document for further details) the Commonwealth agreed to make special payments of \$10 million and \$5 million respectively to the two States in 1974-75. These payments have been classified as special revenue assistance to the States for purposes of this document and in publications of the Australian Bureau of Statistics. They have, however, not been classified as payments to the States in the statements attached to the Budget Speech, being regarded, for purposes of those statements, as expenditures on the purchase of existing assets and, for this reason, relevant aggregates in this document differ, for 1974-75, from those shown in the statements attached to the Budget Speech.

<sup>(</sup>c) Amount paid in 1974-75 in accordance with agreement between the Commonwealth and South Australian Governments; represents agreed estimate of completion grant which could have been expected to be recommended by the Grants Commission in respect of 1974-75 if the State had remained claimant. This amount was not, and is not to be, reviewed by the Commission. An additional amount of \$6 434 000, not included in this table, was paid in 1974-75—see page 21 of last year's document.

#### PAYMENTS OF GENERAL REVENUE FUNDS TO THE STATES

The following table shows payments of general revenue funds to the States from 1972-73 and estimates for 1976-77.

TABLE 8—GENERAL REVENUE FUNDS
(\$ thousands)

						1 1	
<del></del>	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
							1
T	INANCIAL AS	COLOTANICE G	DANTS/TAY	SHARING EN	ITITLEMENTS	(a)	
			271 946	181 430	196 369	79 498	1 647 293
1972–73	521 963	396 087	318 245	204 918	222 388	91 243	1 859 905
1973–74	585 507	437 604		261 737	279 830	131 871	2 373 811
1974–75	737 522	548 405	414 446	363 091	363 031	156 816	3 072 780
1975–76	946 660	706 389	536 792	438 300		189 400	3 716 200
1976–77 (estimate)	1 145 500	852 500	646 500	438 300	444 000	167 400	5 710 200
•		Spi	CIAL GRAN	rs(b)			
1972–73	1	l	10 000	21 000	١	7 600	38 600
1000 51	1		10 000	19 900		8 650	38 550
	• • •		24 750	39 934			64 684
			36 300	2 500		1	38 800
1975–76		İ	27 000			1	27 000
1976–77	'	1		'		•	
		SPECIAL	REVENUE A	SSISTANCE			
1972-73	15 000	1	1			1	15 000
1973–74	7 926	6 020	4 228	2 764	2 855	1 207	25 000
1974–75	18 641	13 861	10 475	16 616	7 073	8 333	75 000
17/1 /5		'	·	· ······ Erning			
		TOTAL GE	NERAL REV				. 1 700 002
1972–73	536 963	396 087	281 946		196 369		1 700 893
1973-74	593 433	443 624	332 472	227 582	225 243	101 101	1 923 455
1974–75	756 163	562 266	449 671	318 287	286 903	140 204	2 513 495
1975–76	946 660	706 389	573 092	365 591	363 031	156 816	3 111 580
1976-77 (estimate)	1 145 500	852 500	673 500	438 300	444 000	189 400	3 743 200
				1	1	<u> </u>	1

<sup>(</sup>a) Estimated State Government entitlements to a share of Commonwealth personal income tax collections in 1976-77; financial assistance grants in earlier years. For further details concerning the grants in 1975-76 and earlier years see last year's document.

#### OTHER ASPECTS OF THE GOVERNMENT'S FEDERALISM POLICIES

The purpose of this section is to briefly outline developments on three other aspects of the present Government's Federalism policies which have implications, or potential implications, for Commonwealth/State finances.

First there is the 'absorption' of specific purpose programs, by which is meant the replacement of a specific purpose program of assistance to the States, or part thereof, by additions to the States' general purpose funds (either recurrent or capital). A statement on this matter included in a paper circulated by the Commonwealth at the February 1976 Premiers' Conference is quoted on page 32 below.

It was agreed at the April Premiers' Conference that absorption was, as a matter of principle, acceptable as an objective. It was also agreed at that Conference that absorption would not commence before 1977-78 but that any necessary joint work by Commonwealth and State officers would take place over the course of 1976-77.

<sup>(</sup>b) Special grants actually paid to the States in the years shown, including additional amount of \$6 434 000 paid to South Australia in 1974-75. See text and Table 7 for amounts of special grants paid in respect of each year.

Secondly, there is the Commonwealth's policy that unnecessary duplication of functions at the Commonwealth and the State levels should be eliminated. One of the matters on which the Administrative Review Committee headed by Sir Henry Bland was asked to report was 'possible means of improving Commonwealth/State administrative arrangements with particular reference to the degree of Commonwealth involvement in the supervision of State expenditure of Commonwealth financial assistance, and to the avoidance of duplication and overlapping of activities'. Decisions made as a result of this and other review procedures are being or will be announced in the context of statements concerning the particular areas to which they relate.

Thirdly, there were discussions at the three Premiers' Conferences this year on the Commonwealth's proposals for an Advisory Council for Inter-Government Relations. It has been agreed that such a Council will be established (with appropriate Commonwealth legislation being passed if necessary). It will comprise members of the Commonwealth and State Parliaments, representatives from local government and private citizens. Costs will be shared between the Commonwealth (45 per cent), the States (45 per cent) and local government (10 per cent). Subjects for investigation and advice by the Council will be referred to it by Premiers' Conferences; subjects so referred may include matters raised initially at the initiative either of local government or the Council itself.

#### CHAPTER III—GENERAL PURPOSE CAPITAL FUNDS

This Chapter provides information on the general purpose capital funds available to the States and their authorities under the Loan Council arrangements. These comprise borrowings made on behalf of the State Governments (to which the Commonwealth has contributed from its own resources in recent years), interest-free grants made by the Commonwealth to the States and borrowings by State authorities. Relevant statistical material for the period from 1972-73 is presented in Appendix II; statistical information for earlier years is available in Appendix III of 'Payments to or for the States and Local Government Authorities 1975-76'.

The Loan Council, which is constituted under the Financial Agreement, is composed of representatives of the Commonwealth and each State Government. Under the terms of the Financial Agreement borrowings by the Commonwealth and State Governments (except for temporary borrowings and defence borrowings) are subject to approval by the Loan Council. Accordingly, the Loan Council determines annual borrowing programs for the Commonwealth and the States, together with the terms and conditions of loans to finance these programs. Subject to the decisions of the Loan Council, borrowings for and on behalf of the State Governments and conversions, renewals, redemptions and consolidations of the public debt of the States are, with limited exceptions, arranged by the Commonwealth.

#### STATE GOVERNMENT LOAN COUNCIL PROGRAMS

The Loan Council program for State Governments represents the major source of funds available to the States for capital works. Each State determines the application of its share of the program. A proportion of the total program for State Governments agreed to in the Loan Council is provided as a capital grant by the Commonwealth, which also undertakes to complete the financing of the States' works program by subscribing any shortfall from its own resources.

The capital grants now constitute one-third of each State's total program. Background material on these grants, together with a summary of changes in the proportion of the total program provided as grants, is to be found on page 27 of 'Payments to or for the States and Local Government Authorities 1975-76'; on pages 24 and 25 of that document there is an account of the way in which Commonwealth assistance to the States for housing has in the past been related to the Loan Council arrangements.

For 1975-76, the Loan Council approved a total State Government program of \$1 291 000 000 made up of a basic program of \$1 281 000 000 and a special permanent addition of \$10 million for New South Wales in recognition of the State's relatively low per head share of Loan Council programs compared with other States. (A further special permanent addition was also made for this reason to New South Wales' share of the larger authorities' program for 1975-76.) Of the total program of \$1 291 000 000, \$860 667 000 represented borrowings and \$430 333 000 capital grants provided by the Commonwealth.

The programs agreed to for both South Australia and Tasmania were \$6 million lower than they would otherwise have been to take account of savings

to the States' capital works programs as a result of the transfer to the Commonwealth on 1 July 1975 of Tasmania's railway system and South Australia's non-metropolitan railways.

A total State Government program for 1976-77 of \$1 356 000 000 was approved by the Loan Council at its June 1976 meeting; this represents an increase of 5 per cent in money terms over the 1975-76 program. Of this total, two-thirds, or \$904 000 000, will be represented by borrowings and one-third, or \$452 000 000, will be provided as capital grants to the States. The following table shows the distribution between the States of the 1975-76 and 1976-77 programs.

TABLE 9—STATE GOVERNMENT LOAN COUNCIL PROGRAMS, 1975-76 AND 1976-77— STATE BY STATE ALLOCATIONS

		1975–76		1976–77				
						Total		
	Borrowings	Capital Grants(a)	Total	Borrowings	Capital Grants(a)	Amount	Percentage of Six State Total(d)	
New South Wales Victoria Queensland South Australia Western Australia Tasmania	oria 217 744 ensland 114 919 th Australia . 112 950 tern Australia . 80 197	\$'000 137 057 108 871 57 459 56 475 40 099 30 372	\$'000 (b)411 171 326 615 172 378 (c)169 425 120 296 (c) 91 115	\$'000 287 915 228 706 120 705 118 637 84 235 63 802	\$'000 143 958 114 354 60 352 59 318 42 117 31 901	\$'000 431 873 343 060 181 057 177 955 126 352 95 703	% 31.85 25.30 13.35 13.12 9.32 7.06	
Total	860 667	430 333	1 291 000	904 000	452 000	1 356 000	100.00	

(a) Capital grants represent one-third of each State's total program.

(b) Includes special permanent allocation of \$10 million to New South Wales' share of the program agreed at the June 1975 Loan Council meeting.

(c) Reduced in connection with railway transfer arrangements—see text above.

(d) The same percentage allocation applied in 1975-76.

## Financing of States' Borrowing Programs and the Capital Grants

As previously mentioned, all borrowings on behalf of the State Governments are, with limited exceptions, arranged by the Commonwealth.

When the proceeds of public borrowings available for this purpose are insufficient to finance the States' programs the Commonwealth makes up the shortfall by subscribing the appropriate amount to a special loan, proceeds of which are allocated to the States. The amounts made available in this way represent State debt. These special loans are raised on terms and conditions similar to those offered in the previous public loan raised in Australia. The effect of this arrangement is that, as necessary, the Commonwealth contributes amounts from its own resources to help finance the Loan Council program of the State Governments.

The borrowing program for the Commonwealth approved by the Loan Council includes an amount equal to the capital grants. The legislation authorising the payment of the capital grants authorises the Treasurer to borrow the amount concerned, or to meet it wholly or in part from Consolidated Revenue Fund.

A summary of the financing of the States' Loan Council programs since 1971-72 is given in Table 114 in Appendix II; Table 115 shows further details of the financing of the programs since 1971-72.

Following previous practice, the Commonwealth has undertaken to support the total States' Loan Council programs of \$1 356 000 000 agreed for 1976-77, conditional on the States agreeing to certain arrangements designed to promote the raising of loans to finance the programs. On this basis, the Commonwealth will support the programs in the following ways:—

- (a) by leaving to the States, to the extent necessary to complete their governmental borrowing programs, the whole of the proceeds derived from public loan raisings by the Commonwealth in Australia (other than the net proceeds of Drought Bonds, Treasury Notes and other borrowings for temporary purposes; amounts required to meet encashments of Special Bonds; and amounts applied to redemption of public securities that cannot be financed out of the National Debt Sinking Fund);
- (b) by arranging, to the maximum possible extent, for the redemption of maturing but unconverted State debt that cannot be met from State sinking funds; and
- (c) by making monthly advances to the States for the first eight months of the financial year against the borrowing component of the program at an annual rate not exceeding \$904 000 000, the position then to be reviewed and a tentative determination made, not later than February 1977, of the amount of any special loan assistance the Commonwealth may provide from its own resources. (The amount of the capital grants component of the program is paid to the States by equal monthly instalments.)

#### BORROWING PROGRAMS FOR STATE AUTHORITIES

Under the 'Gentlemen's Agreement', originating in 1936, the Loan Council approves an aggregate annual borrowing program for State larger semi-government and local authorities. For 1976-77 larger authorities are defined as those borrowing more than \$800 000 in the financial year, the Loan Council having decided at its June 1976 meeting to increase the limit from the figure of \$700 000 which applied in 1975-76; for information on the limits applying in previous years, see page 29 of 'Payments to or for the States and Local Government Authorities 1975-76'. From 1962-63 no overall limit has been set by the Loan Council on borrowings by smaller authorities, that is, authorities borrowing within the financial year up to the amounts mentioned above.

The total program approved is distributed by the Loan Council between the States. Each State determines the distribution between individual larger authorities of its share of the overall borrowing program approved for such authorities. The terms and conditions of loans raised by such authorities are subject to Loan Council approval.

Borrowings by State smaller authorities are also subject to the terms and conditions applying under the 'Gentlemen's Agreement' and it is the responsibility

of the States to ensure that the smaller authorities conform with these terms and conditions.

For 1975-76 the Loan Council approved a total borrowing program for larger State authorities of \$809 675 000. This included a basic program of \$792 600 000 and special permanent additions of:—

- \$10 000 000 for New South Wales on the same basis as the equivalent permanent addition referred to above to its State Government program; and
- \$7 075 000 for Queensland under arrangements agreed at the June 1968 Loan Council meeting in respect of the termination at 30 June 1975 of the issue of variable interest stock by the State's Southern Electric Authority.

At its June 1976 meeting the Loan Council approved a total borrowing program for larger State authorities for 1976-77 of \$960 000 000. This represents an increase of \$150 325 000, or 18.6 per cent, over the 1975-76 programs.

The borrowings of both larger and smaller authorities in each State in 1975-76 and previous years, the shares of the program for larger authorities in each State in 1976-77, and estimated borrowings by smaller authorities in 1976-77, are shown in Table 109 in Appendix II. Table 113 in that Appendix shows the amounts that have been borrowed by local government authorities from within the total borrowings of both larger and smaller authorities. Further reference to the borrowing arrangements for local government authorities is made in Chapter V.

Details of the larger State authorities' programs for 1975-76 and 1976-77 are set out in the following table:—

TABLE 10—LARGER AUTHORITIES' PROGRAMS, 1975-76 AND 1976-77—STATE BY STATE DISTRIBUTION

	<del></del>							1975–76 Total	1976-77	
· .									Total	Percentage of Six State Total(b)
								\$'000	\$'000	%
New South Wales		•	•					(a)303 720	360 108	37.51
Victoria .			•		•		.	256 693	304 351	31.70
Queensland .	•		•		•		.	(a)149 769	177 575	18.50
South Australia							.	38 122	45 200	4.71
Western Australia							.	38 264	45 369	4.73
Tasmania .				•		٠	.	23 107	27 397	2.85
Total .							.	809 675	960 000	100.00

<sup>(</sup>a) Includes permanent additions of \$10 million to New South Wales and \$7 075 000 to Queensland. See text above.

## TREATMENT OF LOAN COUNCIL PROGRAMS IN THIS AND OTHER BUDGET DOCUMENTS

The advances for housing (to 1970-71) and capital grants (beginning in that year) which have been agreed to in the context of Loan Council discussions represent Commonwealth payments to the States and are so categorised for purposes of this and other Budget documents concerned.

<sup>(</sup>b) The distribution of the program between the States is based on the distribution of the 1975-76 program.

The State Governments' Loan Council borrowing programs are not included in the totals of payments to the States shown in this document. However, as mentioned in Chapter I, the national accounting item 'grants and net advances to the States and Local Government Authorities' used in the statements attached to the Budget Speech and other documents does include these programs. The equivalent aggregate is described in this document as the total of Commonwealth payments to the States, the State Governments' Loan Council borrowing programs and payments to local authorities.

#### CHAPTER IV—SPECIFIC PURPOSE PAYMENTS TO THE STATES

The Commonwealth has provided financial assistance for certain specific types of expenditure by the States for many years. This Chapter outlines specific purpose payments recently made, presently being made or proposed to be made, to the States. Chapter IV and Appendix IV of last year's document outlined some of the history of such payments, summarised the programs which had been completed in recent years and gave detailed statistical material generally back to the commencement of each program. Table 102 in Appendix I of this document shows aggregate specific purpose payments to each State since 1972-73 classified as to whether they were for recurrent or capital purposes and Table 107 in that Appendix classifies these and other payments by function.

The various payments in this Chapter are grouped under the functional headings used in the Statements attached to the Budget Speech—the only exceptions being that payments included in the 'Not Allocated to Function' category (namely assistance related to State debts, assistance for local government and natural disaster relief) are shown under specific headings in appropriate places in the Chapter and that payments for Aboriginal Advancement are outlined together (in the functional statements these are distributed over a number of functions).

Details further to those provided in this Chapter on specific purpose payments made to the States for 'on-passing' to local government authorities are given in Chapter V.

# GENERAL VIEWS OF COMMONWEALTH GOVERNMENTS ON SPECIFIC PURPOSE PAYMENTS

In its financial relations with the States the Labor Government (1972-75) put particular emphasis on this form of assistance. Its attitude is summarised in the following statement made by the then Prime Minister at the June 1973 Premiers' Conference:—

'From now on, we will expect to be involved in the planning of the function in which we are financially involved. We believe that it would be irresponsible for the national Government to content itself with simply providing funds without being involved in the process by which priorities are met, and by which expenditures are planned and by which standards are met.'

The approach of the present Government was set out as follows by the Prime Minister in a document circulated at the February 1976 Premiers' Conference:—

'I turn now to the area of specific purpose payments; a central element in our Federalism Policy.

Our policies in this regard are closely integrated, but there are several particular aspects which warrant separate mention.

Specific purpose assistance has been an area of very rapid growth in recent years. It would accordingly be surprising if, given the overriding need for expenditure restraint, it were not found that there are some programs which are not a justifiable charge on the taxpayer—if they ever were—or in respect of which some savings are possible either in the short or longer term. We have been, and will continue to be, examining this area carefully in close consultation with the States.

Secondly, there are some programs—or parts of programs—which represent areas of expenditure which clearly deserve continuing Commonwealth support but in which there is no obvious need that my Government can see for the Commonwealth to be involved in a *specific* way. These are matters in respect of which priorities should appropriately be left to the States and their authorities to determine.

In such cases, some form of absorption of specific purpose funds into general

purpose funds would be appropriate.

This matter will be given the most careful examination in close consultation with the States. Without in any way wishing to prejudice the outcome of that examination, I mention the Sewerage Program and that portion of roads assistance which relates to minor local urban and rural roads as examples of the kind of program at which we are looking closely.

The same principle of absorption could apply in the local government area. Again we would welcome the Premiers' views on the scope of absorption of specific purpose assistance into the general revenue assistance to be provided for local government.

Thirdly, we believe, there will be some areas in respect of which a continuing and specific involvement of the Commonwealth will be appropriate. In some of these, however, there is likely to be scope for rationalising the detailed arrangements under which funds are made available to the States.'

#### Assistance Related to State Debts

# Payments Under the Financial Agreement

#### Contributions to Interest on State Debts

Under the Financial Agreement entered into by the Commonwealth and the States in 1927, the Commonwealth makes payments to the States expressed as a contribution towards interest payable on State debts. They are therefore treated here as specific purpose grants, although they have some of the characteristics of grants for general purposes. In fact, the payments superseded the general revenue grants of \$2.50 per head of the population of each State made in the period 1910-11 to 1926-27 under the Surplus Revenue Act 1910. (See Appendix II of last year's document.)

Each year the total contribution is \$15 170 000, the amount that was payable in 1926-27 under that Act. The contribution is apportioned between the States in the same way as the 1926-27 per capita grant and is to continue for fifty-eight years from 1 July 1927 (that is, until 1985). It is distributed among the States as shown in the following table:—

# TABLE 11—INTEREST PAYMENTS ON STATE DEBTS (\$ thousands)

New South	Wales						5 835
Victoria			•			•	4 254
Queensland			•		•		2 192
South Austr	alia			•	•	•	1 408
Western Au	stralia		•	•	•	•	947
Tasmania		•	•	•	•		534
Total	•			•	•	•	15 170

# Sinking Fund Contributions

The Financial Agreement of 1927 established arrangements for the payment of sinking fund contributions, by both the Commonwealth and State Governments, in respect of State debt or debt incurred on behalf of the States. These arrangements, with relatively minor amendments, applied from 1927-28 to 1974-75 and are summarised on page 36 of 'Payments to or for the States and Local Government Authorities 1974-75'. Basically, both the States and the Commonwealth Government made contributions of 0.25 per cent on loans raised by or for the States (although different arrangements applied in respect of some particular kinds of debts or loans) and the States made additional contributions of 4.5 per cent on cancelled debt.

Amendments to the Financial Agreement which were ratified by the Parliaments of the Commonwealth and the States over the course of 1975-76 (the relevant Commonwealth legislation being the *Financial Agreement Act* 1976), and which had retrospective effect to 30 June 1975, provide for new sinking fund arrangements in respect of State debt which may be briefly summarised as follows:—

- (i) Specified contributions were made by the States (\$121.5 million) and by the Commonwealth (\$30.2 million) in 1975-76.
- (ii) For the next nine years (ten in the case of New South Wales) the contributions will equal the amounts referred to in (i) adjusted by a percentage of the difference between each State's net debt at 30 June 1975 and the net debt at 30 June immediately preceding the year of contribution; the percentage is 1.20 for State contributions and 0.28 per cent for Commonwealth contributions.
- (iii) As from and including 1985-86 (1986-87 in the case of New South Wales) the contributions by each State will equal 0.85 per cent of its net debt at the preceding 30 June and the Commonwealth's contributions will be 0.28 per cent.

The Financial Agreement amendments also gave effect to the transfer of \$1 000 million of State debt to the Commonwealth from 30 June 1975 (see page 34 of last year's document).

Further details of sinking fund arrangements may be found in the annual reports of the National Debt Commission.

The following table shows the Commonwealth's contributions to the sinking fund on States' debts from 1972-73, including estimated contributions to be made in 1976-77.

TABLE 12—SINKING FUND PAYMENTS UNDER THE FINANCIAL AGREEMENT 1972-73 TO 1976-77

(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1972–73	9 197	6 809	3 636	3 689	2 715	1 934	27 979
1973-74	9 675	7 195	3 844	3 896	2 855	2 044	29 509
197475	10 079	7 525	4 012	4 072	2 976	2 141	30 80 <b>5</b>
1975–76	9 900	7 500	3 900	4 000	2 800	2 100	30 200
1976-77 (estimate) .	10 500	8 000	4 200	3 900	3 000	2 000	31 600

Reimbursement to South Australia and Tasmania of Sinking Fund Contributions in 1975-76 in connection with Railway Transfers in those States

Formal agreements with South Australia and Tasmania for the transfer of railways to the Commonwealth were signed, and ratified by the Parliaments concerned, in 1975. As part of the agreements, State debt associated with the railways being transferred was taken over by the Commonwealth. Because of technicalities associated with the revised Financial Agreement (which sets out, inter alia, new arrangements for sinking fund payments) it was not practicable to relieve South Australia and Tasmania of sinking fund payments in 1975-76 on the debt transferred in connection with the railway transfers. (The revised Financial Agreement does, however, provide for adjustment to the States' sinking fund contributions in later years.)

The Commonwealth Government therefore undertook to reimburse the two States for the railway portion of their 1975-76 sinking fund contributions. Payments totalling \$1 968 052 were made in 1975-76, of which South Australia received \$1 488 000 and Tasmania \$480 052.

#### DEFENCE

## Housing for Servicemen

Under successive Commonwealth-State Housing Agreements provision was made from 1956-57 to 1970-71 for certain of the funds advanced annually to the States for housing to be devoted to the erection of dwellings for serving members of the Defence Force. (For further details *see* page 35 of last year's document.)

Present arrangements are governed by an agreement reached between the Commonwealth and States in 1972 and embodied in the Commonwealth-State Housing Agreement (Servicemen) 1972. Funds for erection of housing for servicemen in the States are provided under these arrangements by way of advances repayable over 53 years and attracting an interest rate equal to the long-term bond rate when the advances are made.

Amounts advanced to the States under the Commonwealth-State Housing Agreement (Servicemen) 1972 and estimated advances in 1976-77 are shown in the table below:—

TABLE 13—ADVANCES FOR HOUSING FOR SERVICEMEN 1972-73 to 1976-77 (\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1972–73 1973–74 1974–75 1975–76 1976–77 (estimate)	3 539 4 539 16 350 18 005 15 280	2 019 2 691 4 193 6 082 4 270	400 200 5 200 7 500 13 300	130 1 725 2 107	161 191 784 698 1 230	145 149 160 13	6 163 7 766 26 805 34 170 36 200

# Assistance to State Emergency Services

The Natural Disasters Organisation, which was formally established on 2 July 1974, is responsible for coordinating physical assistance provided by the Commonwealth Government (including that provided by the armed services) with the efforts made by State emergency services and local and voluntary organisations to cope with major natural disasters.

The Organisation also has the function of supervising the provision of assistance to State Emergency Services, for the purpose of strengthening those services. Following is a summary of assistance which is being provided by the Commonwealth:—

- (i) grants are made to the States to meet the cost of salaries of an agreed number of State Emergency Services' personnel at Division or District headquarters (this assistance was first provided in 1974-75);
- (ii) grants are made to subsidise disaster protection—specifically, levee banks, drains and firebreaks—and to provide depots for emergency service units at the local level:
- (iii) under a practice of some years' standing, capital equipment is provided to the State organisations. Equipment valued at \$979 664 was provided in 1975-76 and the estimated value of equipment to be provided in 1976-77 is \$1.305 million;
- (iv) the Commonwealth Government meets the costs of State Government personnel travelling to attend courses at the Civil Defence School at Mt Macedon; and
- (v) other forms of assistance are provided from time to time (for example, \$17 606 was paid by the Commonwealth Government in 1974-75 in respect of the cost of installing telephones at the Queensland State Disaster Headquarters).

Of these forms of assistance, those summarised as (i) and (ii) above are classified as payments to or for the States for purposes of this and other documents; they are both regarded as being recurrent payments for purposes of this

document. The following table shows payments made for these purposes and estimated payments in 1976-77:—

TABLE 14—GRANTS FOR STATE EMERGENCY SERVICES
(\$ thousands)

			` "				
	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
,,	ı	Sala	ries of Per	SONNEL	•	, ,	
1974–75	188 278 314	119 244	114 203 243	22	  44	23 53 53	325 653 920
		Protecti	on and Ot	HER WORKS			
1975-76 1976-77 (estimate) .	20	30	66 30	8 5	20	25	94 150
			TOTAL				
1974-75	188 298 354	119 274		8	64	23 53 78	325 747 1 070

# Special Assistance to Exmouth Shire

In January 1975, the Western Australian Government sought assistance towards the operational costs of the Exmouth Shire, which provides support to the United States Communications Station at North West Cape.

An amount of \$150 000 was paid to Western Australia for the Exmouth Shire in 1975-76 from Department of Defence appropriations. An amount of \$140 000 is being provided against the requirement for further assistance in 1976-77.

#### **EDUCATION**

Grants to the States for education began with assistance for the recurrent expenditures of universities in 1951-52. The area of assistance was progressively extended, and the magnitude of Commonwealth assistance in particular areas has also been increased, the most notable example being the assumption by the Commonwealth of full financial responsibility for tertiary education in 1973-74 (previously expenditure in this area had been shared between the Commonwealth and State Governments). As a result of these various developments, payments to the States for education have grown rapidly—for example, from \$259.4 million in 1972-73 to \$1454.8 million in 1975-76, and an estimated \$1730.5 million in 1976-77.

For details of assistance under the various programs since their inception see last year's document, pages 37 through 48, 189 through 198 and 216 through 219.

Recent developments in relation to the four main areas of payments to the States for education—namely for universities, colleges of advanced education, technical and further education and primary and secondary schools—have followed similar lines and those developments are therefore first discussed below in general terms, followed by some more specific details on each of the four individual areas.

Recommendations covering the three calendar years 1976, 1977 and 1978 were received by the then Government from the education Commissions and the Australian Committee on Technical and Further Education in the first half of 1975. It was decided, however, that, for compelling budget reasons, the 1976 calendar year should be treated as a year outside the triennial progression. Programs of assistance for the 1976 calendar year for universities, colleges of advanced education, technical and further education and schools were thus announced in the 1975-76 Budget, the emphasis being on consolidation of improvements which had already been achieved. The main implication was a slowing of new capital expenditure in 1976. The Government decided in November 1975 that the 1976 programs would be continued.

In his statement made on 20 May 1976 on fiscal policy decisions the Treasurer announced that:—

(1) there would be increases in real terms in the Commonwealth's allocations in each of the four areas in 1977 compared with the approved programs for 1976; the increases were specified as 2 per cent for universities (plus an additional \$2 million for capital expenditure), 5 per cent for colleges of advanced education, 7.5 per cent for technical and further education and 2 per cent for schools. These percentages and others cited below relate to the total programs which are the subject of recommendations by the four education Commissions. In the case of universities and colleges of advanced education these programs relate to institutions in the Territories as well as the States but in the case of technical and further education and schools they relate to the States only;

- (2) the Government had decided to convert the fixed triennial system of the past to a three-year rolling system as from 1977;
- (3) the four education Commissions would be given minimum figures, for planning guidance only, for the second and third years of the initial rolling program (that is, 1978 and 1979)—for universities, colleges and schools the guidance is in terms of 2 per cent growth in real terms per annum; for technical and further education it is in terms of 5 per cent growth in real terms per annum; and
- (4) concurrent with the introduction of the new rolling program system the Government has decided to replace the existing cost supplementation arrangements for universities, colleges, technical and further education institutions and schools with less automatic arrangements in relation to increases in costs.

In relation to (2) and (3) the rolling program system is designed to provide flexibility in budgetary formulation and financial management while at the same time recognising the need for a proper planning framework for the education Commissions and the institutions for which they make recommendations; under a three-year rolling program a firm allocation is determined in the Budget context for the first year of the period and planning guidelines are given for the second and third years of the period. There is, however, no firm financial commitment to the latter two years until each, in turn, becomes 'Year One' of the rolling programs.

In relation to (4) the precise form of the new arrangements to take account of increases in costs has yet to be determined. It is, therefore, not possible to give precise estimates, for the four programs, of total grants in 1976-77 including amounts for cost increases beyond 30 June 1976. The figures in respect of the four areas for 1976-77 given in Tables 15 through 18 below are therefore generally on the basis of estimated June 1976 cost levels and there will be additions to the amounts shown in those tables on account of cost supplementation. An amount of \$60 million has been allowed for in the budget figures in respect of cost supplementation under the four programs concerned. This is a broadly determined figure and it is not possible to give a break-down of it as between the programs concerned or as between States; for purposes of this document, however, an arbitrary allocation of \$45 million to recurrent grants and \$15 million to capital grants has been made.

#### Universities

Assistance to the States for the recurrent expenditures of universities dates from 1951-52; in 1957-58 assistance was first given for expenditure on capital programs. In 1973-74 the Commonwealth assumed full financial responsibility in this area. The programs of assistance for universities are administered by the Universities Commission, which was established by the *Universities Commission Act* 1959.

Because of the then Government's decision to treat the 1976 calendar year outside the normal triennial progression (see above) the Universities Commission submitted a program for the 1976 academic year that was based on guidelines determined by the Government. The assistance to the States under that program was authorised by the States Grants (Universities) Act 1976.

As noted above, the Government announced in May that it would provide universities in 1977 with a 2 per cent growth in real terms compared with the program approved for 1976. An additional \$2 million is being provided for capital expenditure. The Universities Commission subsequently presented a Report in respect of a rolling program for the three years 1977-79. The Report takes into account planning guidance provided for universities for 1978 and 1979 under the new rolling program planning arrangements, on the basis of a 2 per cent per annum growth in real terms.

The program as referred to above involves an allocation of financial assistance to the States for universities in 1977 of \$531.7 million at estimated June 1976 price levels. The allocation for 1976-77 is \$540.3 million, again at estimated June 1976 prices.

The following table shows grants to the States for universities since 1972-73 and the estimated grants for 1976-77 at estimated June 1976 prices:—

TABLE 15—GRANTS FOR UNIVERSITIES (\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
	'		RECURRENT	•		,	
1972-73	32 155	21 896	10 664	7 898	5 683	2 530	80 826
1973–74	79 572	53 468	26 169	19 808	14 610	6 415	200 042
1974–75	149 997	99 798	49 876	38 067	27 978	12 274	377 990
1975–76	168 831	110 717	57 185	43 107	32 891	13 658	426 389
1976–77 (estimate)(a)	196 639	132 538	69 626	50 665	40 946	15 666	506 080
			Capital				
1972–73	10 522	7 327	2 545	2 697	2 531	842	26 464
1973–74	16 889	14 128	5 624	7 050	4 581	694	48 966
1974–75 1975–76	22 526	17 330	9 821	7 320	7 714	1 279	65 990
1976–77 (estimate)(a)	21 754 11 060	9 516 4 980	6 453 6 115	3 421 4 855	5 094 6 245	2 589 1 007	48 827 34 262
15:0 // (estimate)(u)	11 000	7 700	0 113	4 033 1	0 243	1 007 [	34 202
			TOTAL				
1972–73	42 677	29 223	13 209	10 595	8 2 1 4	3 372	107 290
1973–74	96 461	67 596	31 793	26 858	19 191	7 109	249 008
1974–75	172 523	117 128	59 697	45 387	35 692	13 553	443 980
1975–76	190 585	120 233	63 638	46 528	37 985	16 247	475 216
1976–77 (estimate)(a)	207 699	137 518	75 741	55 520	47 191	16 673	540 342

<sup>(</sup>a) Amounts additional to those shown will be paid on account of cost supplementation. See second full paragraph on page 38.

# Colleges of Advanced Education (Including Teachers Colleges)

Grants to the States for colleges of advanced education began in March 1965 when the Commonwealth Government agreed, as an interim measure, to pay capital grants to the States for colleges of advanced education during the remainder of the 1964-66 period. From the start of the 1967-69 triennium assistance was extended to recurrent grants for such colleges. Grants to the States have been made since 1967-68 for teachers colleges and since 1968-69 for pre-school teachers colleges. Prior to July 1973 these grants were provided under separate programs, but since then they have been absorbed into the program of grants for colleges of advanced education and are subject to the recommendations of the Commission on Advanced Education.

The programs of assistance to the States for colleges are administered by the Commission on Advanced Education, which was established by the Commission on Advanced Education Act 1971.

Because of the former Government's decision to treat the 1976 calendar year as a year outside the triennial progression and as a period for consolidating improvements already achieved, the Commission on Advanced Education submitted a program for the 1976 academic year based on guidelines determined by the Government. Funds for the program are appropriated under the States Grants (Advanced Education) Act 1976.

The Commission has presented a Report for the 1977-79 three-year rolling program in accordance with the Government's decision to provide the colleges in 1977 with a 5 per cent growth in real terms compared with the program approved for 1976. This provides an allocation of financial assistance for the colleges in 1977 of \$406.9 million at estimated June 1976 price levels. The allocation for 1976-77 is \$441.0 million also at estimated June 1976 price levels.

The Report also takes into account the planning guidance provided for colleges for 1978 and 1979 under the new rolling program planning arrangements, and is based on a 2 per cent per annum growth in real terms.

The following table shows grants to the States for colleges since 1972-73 and estimated grants in 1976-77:—

TABLE 16—GRANTS FOR COLLEGES OF ADVANCED EDUCATION AND TEACHERS COLLEGES

(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
·	·		RECURRENT	г		,	
1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 (estimate)(a)	5 525   28 935   62 122   69 089   86 805	10 443 46 711 86 119 111 307 136 310	2 906 14 438 27 230 33 999 46 644	2 638 13 518 24 531 28 838 36 859	4 015 17 247 32 359 36 522 44 379	1 128 3 959 6 888 7 011 8 251	26 655 124 808 239 249 286 766 359 248
			CAPITAL				
1972–73 1973–74 1974–75 1975–76 1976–77 (estimate)(a)	9 691 7 644 41 197 23 716 25 089	9 275 13 680 32 452 34 313 31 341	3 806 5 078 13 438 9 181 10 814	3 639 6 196 12 579 6 886 7 354	3 554 7 222 7 281 7 344 5 731	1 425 292 2 969 5 313 1 406	31 390 40 112 109 916 86 753 81 735
			TOTAL				
1972–73	15 216 36 579 103 319 92 805 111 894	19 718 60 391 118 571 145 620 167 651	6 712 19 516 40 668 43 180 57 458	6 277 19 714 37 110 35 724 44 213	7 569 24 469 39 640 43 866 50 110	2 553 4 251 9 857 12 324 9 657	58 045 164 920 349 165 373 519 440 983

<sup>(</sup>a) Amounts additional to those shown will be paid on account of cost supplementation. See second full paragraph on page 38.

#### Technical and Further Education

Assistance to the States for technical and further education was first provided in 1964-65. The programs of assistance to the States for institutions of technical and further education are now administered by the Technical and Further Education Commission, established by the Technical and Further Education Commission Act 1975, which came into effect in May 1975.

Grants to the States under the technical and further education program are made on the understanding that the States do not reduce the levels of activity financed from their own resources.

Financial assistance to the States for the biennium to June 1976 was provided under a Commonwealth program of \$100 million. That program, later extended to December 1976 and increased to \$131 million, is directed towards enhancing the quality and extending the availability of technical and further education. Funds for the program are appropriated under the States Grants (Technical and Further Education) Act 1974.

Under the three-year rolling program arrangements, the Government has decided on an allocation of \$79.6 million (at estimated June 1976 price levels) for 1977 for technical and further education. This represents a growth of 7.5 per cent in real terms compared with 1976.

Planning guidance provided for technical and further education for 1978 and 1979 under the new rolling program planning arrangement is based on 5 per cent per annum growth in real terms. The Technical and Further Education Commission has presented a Report for the 1977-79 three-year period based on the allocation for 1977 and the planning guidelines for 1978 and 1979.

The following table shows actual grants to the States from 1972-73 to 1975-76 and estimated grants in 1976-77:—

TABLE 17—GRANTS FOR TECHNICAL AND FURTHER EDUCATION (\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
			RECURREN	r	'		
1973-74	5 801 10 333 17 652 15 593	1 772 6 794 9 653 12 830	715 2 262 4 643 4 523	889 2 639 3 770 4 663	974 2 168 3 322 3 647	117 426 1 087 1 087	10 268 24 622 40 127 42 343
			CAPITAL				
1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 (estimate)(a)	5 040 6 873 5 859 8 919 12 767	3 350 5 500 6 585 7 376 8 820	1 910 1 945 4 073 3 334 4 071	1 130 2 063 2 800 1 208 3 723	1 166 1 311 587 2 876 4 023	380 689 471 887 2 257	12 976 18 381 20 375 24 600 35 661
			TOTAL				
1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 (estimate)(a)	5 040 12 674 16 192 26 571 28 360	3 350 7 272 13 379 17 029 21 650	1 910 2 660 6 335 7 977 8 594	1 130 2 952 5 439 4 978 8 386	1 166 2 285 2 755 6 198 7 670	380 806 897 1 974 3 344	12 976 28 649 44 997 64 727 78 004

<sup>(</sup>a) Amounts additional to those shown will be paid on account of cost supplementation. See second full paragraph on page 38.

#### Schools

The Commonwealth Government has been providing assistance for schools in the States since 1964-65 when it provided grants for science laboratories and equipment. The range of assistance was progressively extended and by 1975-76 it was providing grants for both government and non-government schools in a number of categories: general recurrent grants, general building grants and grants for science laboratories and equipment, primary and secondary school libraries, schools for handicapped children, disadvantaged schools, teacher development, innovatory projects and information programs.

Programs of assistance to the States for schools are administered by the Schools Commission, established by the Schools Commission Act 1973. In the 1974-75 biennium, the Commission administered programs approved by the then Government on the recommendation of the Interim Committee for the Australian Schools Commission in its Report entitled 'Schools in Australia'.

Consistent with its policy of budgetary restraint for 1975-76, the Government was unable to support the recommendations of the Schools Commission presented in its Report for the 1976-78 triennium and provided instead in 1976 for a year outside a triennial progression with the aim of consolidating improvements already achieved and slowing new capital expenditure.

The three year rolling program arrangements referred to above apply also to schools in the States as from 1977. Under these arrangements a total of \$545.6 million (at estimated June 1976 prices) is expected to be provided in 1977 as programs of assistance to the States for schools. This represents a 2 per cent growth in real terms over the approved program for 1976.

Planning guidance provided for schools in the States for 1978 and 1979 under the new rolling program planning arrangement is based on a 2 per cent per annum growth in real terms. The Schools Commission has presented a Report for the 1977-79 period based on the allocation for 1977 and the planning guidelines for 1978 and 1979.

The following table shows grants paid to the States for schools since 1972-73 and estimates for 1976-77:—

TABLE 18—GRANTS FOR GOVERNMENT AND NON-GOVERNMENT SCHOOLS—
1972-73 TO 1976-77
(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
·			RECURRENT				
1972–73 1973–74 1974–75 1975–76 1976–77 (estimate)(a)	15 046 28 147 84 749 125 395 143 487	13 337 29 125 72 113 100 354 121 896	6 250 13 578 35 604 46 162 54 801	2 529 6 464 19 017 27 452 32 722	2 903 6 389 17 184 23 194 31 183	914 1 958 5 912 9 327 10 304	40 979 85 661 234 579 331 884 394 393
1070			CAPITAL				
1972–73 1973–74 1974–75 1975–76 1976–77 (estimate)(a)	10 637 30 208 71 707 45 886 53 525	9 486 18 011 58 652 49 285 45 139	4 366   8 990   27 970   22 363   24 079	3 805 9 430 19 159 11 056 14 323	3 017 6 810 15 789 10 564 13 550	1 708 2 527 6 091 4 477 4 238	33 019 75 976 199 368 143 631 154 854
1000			TOTAL				
1972–73 1973–74 1974–75 1975–76 1976–77 (estimate)(a)	25 683 58 355 156 456 171 281 197 012	22 823 47 136 130 765 149 639 167 035	10 616 22 568 63 574 68 525 78 880	6 334 15 894 38 176 38 508 47 045	5 920 13 199 32 973 33 758 44 733	2 622 4 485 12 003 13 804 14 542	73 998 161 637 433 947 475 515 549 247

<sup>(</sup>a) Amounts additional to those shown will be paid on account of cost supplementation. See second full paragraph on page 38.

# Pre Schools and Child Care

Services for children provided in the States began attracting Commonwealth financial support in 1972-73 under the Child Care Act 1972. Under that Act payments were made direct to non-profit organisations and local government bodies—that

is, not by way of payments to the States. Payments to the States commenced in 1973-74 under a broader scheme of assistance introduced in that year and have continued since then, as have the direct forms of payment.

In February 1973 the Commonwealth announced the appointment of an Australian Pre-school Committee to examine and make recommendations on the establishment and operation of pre-schools and child care centres throughout Australia and it reported in November of the same year. The assistance provided in 1974-75 and in 1975-76, took into account the recommendations of that body, as well as comments on them from the Social Welfare Commission, the Priorities Review Staff and other interested persons and bodies.

Legislation to establish a Children's Commission as an independent statutory body was passed in June 1975 but the Commonwealth Government decided not to proceed with its establishment. Instead, an Office of Child Care has been set up under the Minister for Social Security to advise on, and administer, programs providing for capital and recurrent assistance for pre-school and child care projects including home care, vacation and after school care projects and various other community initiated projects.

The Government has decided that up to \$73.3 million will be provided in 1976-77 for services for children in the States and it is tentatively estimated that, of that total, approximately \$54.3 million could take the form of payments to the States.

The following table shows payments to the States that have been made and approximate estimates for 1976-77. No commitment as to the provision of the amounts shown for 1976-77 is implied.

TABLE 19—PRE-SCHOOLS AND CHILD CARE (\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
		•	RECURREN	г		,	,
1973-74	1 281 5 417 9 030 n.a.	1 226 6 660 11 452 n.a.	436 1 734 5 356 n.a.	690 3 233 5 025 n.a	385 2 316 4 390 n.a.	78 1 017 1 720 n.a.	4 096 20 377 36 973 44 000
			Capital				
1973-74	160 4 819 3 165 n.a.	288 2 637 1 345 n.a.	1 003 3 806 2 584 n.a.	514 2 773 1 498 n.a.	166 1 911 1 441 n.a.	285 1 177 1 764 n.a.	2 416 17 123 11 797 10 300
			TOTAL				
1973-74	1 441 10 236 12 195 n.a.	1 514 9 297 12 797 n.a.	1 439 5 540 7 940 n.a.	1 204 6 006 6 523 n.a.	551 4 227 5 831 n.a.	363 2 194 3 484 n.a.	6 512 37 500 48 770 54 300

# Child Migrant Education

The Immigration (Education) Act 1971 authorises payments for the provision of special instruction to migrant children designed to assist those children with English language difficulties to achieve a sufficient command of English to enable them to take part fully in normal classes. Under the Act, funds are provided to State Education Authorities (and also to non-government educational authorities) to pay the salaries of special teachers and to purchase special language teaching equipment. Provision is also made for materials and the in-service training of teachers.

The Commonwealth Government decided that from 1 January 1976 the portion of the program which comes within the ambit of the Schools Commission should be financed from the general recurrent grants program administered by the Commission. Payment of the salaries of special teachers, purchases of special language teaching equipment and the cost of in-service training of teachers have been provided from the Schools Commission general recurrent grants program. Funds provided for materials, teacher exchanges and for the initial special instruction of refugee children continue to be paid under the *Immigration (Education) Act* 1971 as part of the Child Migrant Education program.

Since 1973 the Commonwealth Government has also been providing funds for the construction of portable supplementary classrooms to accommodate the increase in the number of students requiring special language instruction in State and independent schools. This program will cease in 1976-77.

Financial assistance is also provided to the States to reimburse them for the costs of certain adult migrant education services. These are regarded as payments for services rendered and are not, therefore, classified as payments to the States.

Annual figures of payments to the States under the Child Migrant Education Program since 1972-73 and estimated payments in respect of 1976-77 are shown in the following table:—

TABLE 20—GRANTS FOR CHILD MIGRANT EDUCATION
(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
	·		Recurren	т			
1972-73	1 521 2 238 3 890 2 720 90	1 819 2 732 4 482 3 559 44	98 165 255 195 2	326 587 810 514 7	138 157 229 233 2	53 135 179 149 2	3 956 6 014 9 845 7 370 147
			CAPITAL			•	
1973-74	90 475 405 7	550 709 943 5	50 106 11	165 92 275 31	100 89 -9	40 6 45	995 1 478 1 670 43
			TOTAL				
1972-73	1 521 2 328 4 365 3 125 97	1 819 3 282 5 191 4 502 49	98 215 361 206 2	326 752 902 789 38	138 257 318 224 2	53 175 185 194 2	3 956 7 009 11 323 9 040 190

#### Educational Research

The Education Research and Development Committee was established in April 1970 to advise the Minister for Education on priorities in educational research, to make recommendations for the financial support of educational research projects proposed to it and to commission research. The Committee is also required to advise the Minister on any other means for the improvement of educational research, its development and the application of results in Australia. Grants to the States for these purposes are made under the *Education Research Act* 1970.

The Government has decided to convert the fixed triennial system of the past to a three year rolling system as from 1977 and, on this basis, \$1.1 million has been allocated to the Committee for 1976-77. Of this, it is estimated that \$960,000 will be made available to the States.

Under the Education Research Act 1970 payments are also being made to the States for research commissioned by the Minister for Education. In addition, grants are provided for fellowships tenable overseas, and payments are made in the Australian Capital Territory. These payments are in addition to the activities of the Education Research and Development Committee.

The following table shows grants to the States for educational research since 1972-73 and estimated grants in 1976-77:—

TABLE 21—GRANTS FOR RECURRENT EXPENDITURES ON EDUCATIONAL RESEARCH (\$ thousands)

		New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1972–73.	. 1	91	87	60	13	17	7 !	275
1973-74.	.	97	142	109	18	26	14	406
1974–75.	.	151	227	296	58	33	21	786
1975–76	.	253	431	190	116	59	14	1 062
1976-77 (estimate)	.	314	359	192	135	48	28	1 076

#### HEALTH

The Commonwealth has been providing assistance to the States for health services and facilities since 1949-50, when it began providing grants for the control of tuberculosis. Grants of relatively minor amounts have also been made for blood transfusion services since 1953-54, for the disposal of ships' garbage since 1966-67 and for nursing homes and certain health education services since 1970-71.

In recent years, however, the level and extent of Commonwealth assistance to the States for health have increased dramatically, with a number of new continuing programs being initiated. The most significant of these is the Medibank scheme for sharing net operating costs of recognised hospitals in the States.

Payments to the States for health purposes have consequently risen rapidly—from \$20.9 million in 1972-73 to \$1082.5 million in 1975-76. The estimated payments in 1976-77 are \$956.1 million. However, payments made in 1975-76 included prepayments of \$215.6 million, under interim arrangements for financing hospital operating costs attributable to the first three months of 1976-77 (see below). Adjusted for these prepayments the payments to the States would have amounted to \$867.0 million in 1975-76 in the normal course of events and the estimated payments in 1976-77 would have been \$1171.7 million.

## Health Insurance Program ('Medibank')

Section 30 of the *Health Insurance Act* 1973 authorised the Government to enter into agreements with State Governments 'for the provision of hospital services' by the States.

South Australia and Tasmania entered into such agreements with effect from 1 July 1975, Victoria and Western Australia from 1 August 1975, Queensland from 1 September 1975 and New South Wales from 1 October 1975.

Under these arrangements the States provide free standard ward public hospital treatment without means test and free public hospital outpatient services. There are agreed arrangements in respect of charges in wards other than standard wards.

In very much abbreviated terms, the agreements provided that the Commonwealth meet 50 per cent of the net recurrent costs of hospitals referred to as 'recognised' hospitals in the agreements.

On 25 May 1976, the Commonwealth suspended hospital payments to the States under the *Health Insurance Act* following legal advice that the agreements that had been negotiated with the States were invalid. Up to that date, the Commonwealth had made payments totalling \$575.2 million in respect of the operating costs of hospitals covered by the agreements.

As an interim measure until new cost-sharing arrangements are negotiated with the States, Parliament passed the States Grants (Hospital Operating Costs) Act 1976 which authorised the payment of up to \$315 million to the States to meet 50 per cent of net operating costs of hospitals incurred before 1 October 1976.

As a special measure of help to the States in the light of the total situation in regard to the Medibank arrangements, the Treasurer authorised the payment in 1975-76 of \$294.5 million to the States. This payment represented an estimate of the amount that would have been paid to the States from 25 May 1976 to 30 September 1976 had the former agreements not been declared invalid. Of the payment, an estimated \$215.6 million would have been paid in ordinary circumstances in 1976-77.

It is expected that new cost-sharing arrangements will operate from 1 October 1976. On that assumption, and having regard to the effects on the net operating costs of recognised hospitals of other announced changes to Medibank, it is estimated that payments to the States under this item in 1976-77 will amount to \$730 million.

The following table shows payments made to the States in 1975-76, under both the *Health Insurance Act* and the *States Grants* (Hospital Operating Costs) Act taken together, and the estimated payments to be made in 1976-77, from 1 October 1976, under new arrangements.

TABLE 22—PAYMENTS FOR RECURRENT COSTS OF STATE PUBLIC HOSPITALS (\$ million)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1975-76 .	317	230	103	92	97	31	870(a)
1976-77 (estimate) .	278	180	97	69	84	22	730

<sup>(</sup>a) Includes prepayments of \$215.6 million; see above.

#### Hospitals Development Program

The Commonwealth is continuing to provide assistance to the States under the Hospitals Development Program. It is expected that \$108 million will be made available to the States in 1976-77.

The program, which commenced in 1973-74 with an initial allocation of funds for capital grants to the States towards the cost of hospital projects in capital cities, provides Commonwealth assistance towards an approved program of construction of public hospitals, mental hospital facilities, public nursing homes and health hostels.

The following table shows grants made for these purposes since the program's inception in 1973-74 and estimated grants in 1976-77:—

TABLE 23—CAPITAL GRANTS FOR DEVELOPMENT OF PUBLIC HOSPITALS AND OTHER HEALTH INSTITUTIONS

(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1973–74	689	150	250	441	695	140	2 365
1974–75	8 830	7 330	5 084	3 236	4 326	1 500	30 306
1975-76	37 700	27 280	15 280	12 900	11 900	2 090	107 150
1976-77 (estimate) .	36 000	27 000	17 000	13 000	12 000	3 000	108 000

## Nursing Homes

The States Grants (Nursing Homes) Act 1969 provided for the Commonwealth Government to share on a \$1 for \$1 basis with the States capital costs incurred over the five-year period 1969-70 to 1973-74 on approved nursing homes wholly or mainly for aged persons of limited means, with the Commonwealth's contribution being limited to a maximum of \$5 million. The final grants under this Act were paid in 1974-75.

Because of an urgent need for additional public nursing home accommodation in Brisbane, the former Government decided in August 1975 to make a special grant of \$1 725 000, on a \$1 for \$1 basis, to Queensland towards the cost of Stage 2 of the Wynnum public nursing home. Payments to the end of 1975-76 for this project amounted to \$1 073 000. Provision has been made in the 1976-77 Budget for an estimated final payment of \$652 000.

Grants paid to the States since 1972-73 towards the construction of nursing homes and the estimated payment to Queensland in 1976-77 are shown in the following table:—

TABLE 24—GRANTS FOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURES ON NURSING HOMES
(Sthousands)

			New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1972-73	- <del></del> -	.	•••	149	240	465		166	1 019
1973-74				512	145				658
1974–75			108	112	148			l {	368
1975–76					925				925
1976-77 (es	timate)	.			652				652

# Community Health Facilities and Services

The Government is continuing to provide grants in 1976-77 to the States and other eligible organisations under the Community Health Program which commenced in 1973.

Under this scheme, the Commonwealth meets 75 per cent of capital costs and 90 per cent of operating costs of approved projects administered by the States. In addition, the Commonwealth meets the full cost of those community health projects that have an Australia-wide application.

Grants were also paid to the States under the Mental Health and Related Services Assistance Act 1973, for the period 1973-74 to 1975-76. Assistance for projects encompassed by that Act has now been subsumed within the Community Health Program.

The following table shows payments that have been made to the States under both programs taken together since 1973-74 and estimated payments in 1976-77:—

TABLE 25—GRANTS FOR COMMUNITY HEALTH FACILITIES
(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
ı	!		RECURRENT	•		1	
1973–74	1 808	1 462	734	597	548	121	5 270
1974-75	9 371	2 883	1 891	820	697	528	16 190
1975–76	19 284	7 712	3 643	1 976	1 738	1 265	35 618
1976-77 (estimate) .	26 460	9 380	4 300	4 200	2 900	1900	49 140
			CAPITAL				
1973-74	3 616	2 924	1 468	1 195	1 096	242	10 541
1974–75	4 916	2 093	1 282	1 597	3 306	498	13 692
1975–76	5 146	3 151	1 778	1 864	1 139	689	13 767
1976-77 (estimate) .	2 940	5 820	3 100	900	2 400	600	15 760
			Total		•		
1973-74	5 424	4 386	2 202	1 792	1 644	363	15 811
1974–75	14 287	4 976	3 173	2 417	4 003	1 026	29 882
1975–76	24 430	10 863	5 421	3 840	2 877	1 954	49 385
1976-77 (estimate) .	29 400	15 200	7 400	5 100	5 300	2 500	64 900

### Tuberculosis Control

Under the *Tuberculosis Act* 1948, the States have been reimbursed, since 1949-50, for approved expenditures they incurred in the diagnosis, treatment and control of tuberculosis. The Government has decided that, as the incidence of tuberculosis has been brought under control in Australia, there is no longer a need for Commonwealth assistance. The States have been notified that reimbursement of their capital and maintenance expenditure on tuberculosis control will cease as from 31 December 1976. (Costs incurred by recognised hospitals in treating tuberculosis patients were subsumed within the Medibank hospital arrangements.)

The following table shows payments from 1972-73 and estimated payments in 1976-77. (This estimate includes provision to reimburse the States for the approved expenditures they incur up to 31 December 1976.)

TABLE 26—GRANTS FOR TUBERCULOSIS CONTROL (\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
			RECURRENT				
1072 72	2 (00						
1972–73	3 609	3 322	1 932	811	797	334	10 805
1973–74	3 347	3 628	2 247	988	785	252	11 247
1974–75	3 923	4 128	2 979	1 314	992	434	13 570
1975–76	3 030	4 604	1 822	685	647	548	11 335
1976-77 (estimate) .	1 362	2 111	1 161	344	356	530	5 864
			CAPITAL				
1972–73	50	16	27	243	20	32	388
1973–74	22		22	395		2	441
1974–75	34	10	56	31		~	131
1975–76	2	2	203	30	• • •	4	241
1976-77 (estimate) .	17	140			• • •	4	157
`						' '	157
			Total				
1972–73	3 659	3 338	1 959	1 054	817	366	11 193
1973–74	3 369	3 628	2 269	1 383	785	254	11 688
1974–75	3 957	4 138	3 035	1 145	992	434	13 701
1975–76	3 032	4 606	2 025	714	647	551	
1976-77 (estimate) .	1 379	2 251	1 161	344	356	530	11 575
	. 5,7	2 231	7 101	277	330	330	6 021

## School Dental Scheme

The Commonwealth has been co-operating with the States since 1973 in an Australia-wide School Dental Service for all primary school children.

The State Governments are responsible for administering the scheme. Since the scheme's inception the Commonwealth has been meeting the full capital and operating costs of training facilities for dental therapists, as well as the full capital costs and 75 per cent of operating costs of school dental clinics. From 1 July 1976, however, the Commonwealth's contribution will be 90 per cent of the capital cost of new facilities. Capital facilities commenced before that date will continue to be fully funded by the Commonwealth. Also from 1 July 1976, the Commonwealth will meet 90 per cent of the operating costs of training facilities and 65 per cent of the operating costs of clinics.

The amounts paid to the States under the scheme since its commencement in 1973-74 and the estimated payments for 1976-77 are shown in the following table:—

TABLE 27—GRANTS FOR SCHOOL DENTAL SCHEME (\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
•		l	RECURRENT	!		. ,	
1973–74	658	550	278	1 066	1 391	818	3 761
1974–75.	979	916	629	1 700	758	1 239	6 221
1975-76.	1 845	1 351	998	2 549	2 271	1 547	10 561
1976-77 (estimate) .	2 117	2 285	2 159	2 268	2 745	1 458	13 032
			CAPITAL				
1973–74.	685	794	192	895	661	549	3 776
1974-75.	3 214	3 181	2 352	2 247	1 309	69	12 372
1975–76.	2 115	2 044	5 299	825	2 855	317	13 455
1976-77 (estimate) .	3 878	986	2 429	3 044	1 241	479	12 056
			TOTAL				
1973–74.	1 343	1 344	1 470	1 961	1 052	1 367	7 537
1974–75.	4 193	4 097	2 981	3 947	2 067	1 308	18 593
1975–76.	3 961	3 395	6 297	3 373	5 126	1 864	24 016
1976-77 (estimate) .	5 995	3 271	4 588	5 312	3 986	1 937	25 088
				5 312	3 986	1 937	25 0

## Health Education Campaigns

The Commonwealth is continuing to sponsor, in conjunction with the States, the National Drug Education Program. Funds have been provided to support State and national projects of drug education since 1970-71. It is estimated that \$675 000 will be made available to the States for this purpose in 1976-77.

Grants to the States for health education campaigns between 1972-73 and 1975-76 also include expenditure relating to a five-year program of national anti-smoking education which ceased in the latter year. The grants made to the States under both programs since 1972-73 and the estimated grants for drug education in 1976-77 are shown in the following table:—

TABLE 28—GRANTS FOR HEALTH EDUCATION CAMPAIGNS (\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1972-73	163	100	75	52	49	30	469
	227	125	155	76	99	60	742
	284	174	118	88	106	64	834
	222	160	132	69	88	23	695
	208	148	128	65	81	45	675

## Blood Transfusion Service

Grants have been made to the States since 1953-54 for the purpose of assisting Blood Transfusion Services conducted by the Australian Red Cross Society.

Since 1973-74 the annual operating costs of the Service in the States have been met with the Commonwealth agreeing to reimburse each State 35 per cent of the Society's costs, conditional upon the State meeting, in the first place, 95 per cent of those costs. It was agreed in 1975-76 that approved capital expenditure for the Service be shared between the Commonwealth and the States on a \$1 for \$1 basis.

As announced in the Budget Speech, beginning in 1976-77, the basis of the Commonwealth's contribution will change. The Society will contribute, within each State Division, the lower of 5 per cent of operating costs of the Service or 10 per cent of its previous year's income from donations. Any reduction in the Society's previous share will be taken up by the Commonwealth. Approved capital costs in the States will continue to be shared equally by the Commonwealth and the States.

Grants paid since 1972-73 and estimates for 1976-77 are shown in the following table:—

TABLE 29—GRANTS FOR EXPENDITURES ON BLOOD TRANSFUSION SERVICES (\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
· [			Recurrent				
1972–73	267 588 590 1 357 1 659	367 506 642 1 009 1 176	212 304 416 547 734	160 252 365 567 662	134 183 358 330 398	30 37 57 94 100	1 170 1 870 2 423 3 90 4 730
			CAPITAL				
1975-76 1976-77 (estimate) .	34 134	75 68	29 36	6 23	12 23	5 5	16 28
			TOTAL		,		
1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 (estimate)	267 588 590 1 391 1 793	367 506 642 1 084 1 244	212 304 416 576 770	160 252 365 573 685	134 183 358 342 421	30 37 57 99 105	1 17/ 1 87/ 2 42 4 06 5 01

## Health Planning Agencies

The Government has decided to continue, in 1976-77, the provision of grants, for the support of State health planning agencies, which commenced in 1973-74. As in previous years, these grants will be provided on a \$2 for \$1 basis. The maximum amount available for this purpose in 1976-77 has been increased by \$60 000 to \$560 000. The grants will be paid by the Hospitals and Health Services Commission out of funds allocated to it from the Budget.

Payments to the States under this program and estimated grants in 1976-77 are shown in the following table:—

TABLE 30—GRANTS FOR RECURRENT EXPENDITURES BY HEALTH PLANNING AGENCIES

(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1973-74	180 116 200 230	52 20 24	65 53 70 84	50 87 75 62	81 127 110 120	25 40	376 435 500 560

# Home Dialysis Scheme

Since 1974-75 the Commonwealth has undertaken to make available, to all who need them, home dialysis equipment and supplies. They are provided through State public hospital dialysis and transplantation centres. As from 1 October 1976 the cost of the scheme is to be shared equally with the States as part of Medibank hospital arrangements.

The following table shows the grants that have been made available for home dialysis under the scheme and the estimated payments that will be made in 1976-77 to meet those commitments entered into by the Commonwealth up to 30 September 1976. The estimated payments in 1976-77 are tentative and no commitment to the provision of the amounts shown is implied.

TABLE 31—GRANTS FOR THE PROVISION OF HOME DIALYSIS SUPPLIES AND EQUIPMENT
(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1974-75	75 187 804	140 29 784	30 48 156	30 40 85	30 23 75	15	310 327 1·918

# Control of Arboencephalitis

Following the outbreak of Australian Arboencephalitis (formerly known as Murray Valley Encephalitis) early in 1974, the Commonwealth has provided funds to New South Wales, Victoria and South Australia to assist in a mosquito eradication campaign along the Murray Valley Basin. As previously announced, the Government has decided to continue providing funds in 1976-77 to combat the disease, not only for mosquito abatement programs, but also for co-ordination, research and teaching purposes.

Grants paid to the States under these arrangements and estimated grants in 1976-77 are set out in the following table:—

TABLE 32—GRANTS FOR THE CONTROL OF AUSTRALIAN ARBOENCEPHALITIS
(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 (estimate) .	16 3 10	120 55 55		15			151 58 70

# Disposal of Ships' Garbage

Financial assistance has been offered to each State for the provision of facilities for the disposal of overseas ships' garbage with a view to improving existing measures against the entry of exotic diseases into Australia. The offer provides for the Commonwealth to meet the full capital cost of incinerators and ancillary structures and half the cost of access roads, excluding land costs, at selected ports. The cost of maintaining and operating the incinerators and transporting garbage is, however, met by the States. Grants paid since 1972-73 and estimated grants in 1976-77 are shown in the following table:—

TABLE 33—GRANTS FOR CAPITAL EXPENDITURES ON THE DISPOSAL OF SHIPS' GARBAGE
(\$ thousands)

	1		Australia	Tasmania	Total
765			10		703
				<b>'</b>	782
_					31
	1	ļ.			85
		l		• • •	76
.			ı °		8
	765 6 15 29	6 15 18	6 15 18	6 25 15 18 52 29 47	6 25 25 25 29 47

## SOCIAL SECURITY AND WELFARE

# Welfare Services for the Aged

Under two Acts effective from June 1969—the States Grants (Home Care) Act 1969 and the States Grants (Paramedical Services) Act 1969—the Commonwealth is making grants to the States for certain services provided wholly or mainly to aged persons—specifically for home care services, senior citizens centres and paramedical services.

#### Home Care Services

Under the States Grants (Home Care) Act 1969 the Commonwealth shares with participating States the cost of approved house-keeping or other domestic assistance provided wholly or mainly for aged persons in their homes. Until July 1973 the Commonwealth's grants were on a \$1 for \$1 basis with the States, but they have been on a \$2 for \$1 basis since then. Grants provided for this purpose from 1972-73 and estimates for 1976-77 are shown in the following table:—

TABLE 34—GRANTS FOR HOME CARE SERVICES
(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1972–73	212	390	248	41	13	12	916
	296	370	312	169	23	49	1 218
	611	441	1 245	563	116	124	3 100
	717	2 178	1 693	653	87	340	5 668
	1 200	1 700	1 900	1 800	200	200	7 000

### Senior Citizens Centres

Under the States Grants (Home Care) Act 1969, the Commonwealth also shares with participating States up to a maximum of two-thirds of the capital cost of approved senior citizens centres and the cost of the salaries of welfare officers employed by such centres. The basis of sharing capital costs with the States was altered in August 1973, from a \$1 for \$1 basis up to one-third of the capital cost to a \$2 for \$1 basis up to two-thirds of the capital cost.

Grants provided for this purpose since 1972-73 and estimates for 1976-77 are shown in the following table:—

TABLE 35—GRANTS FOR SENIOR CITIZENS CENTRES
(\$ thousands)

				<u> </u>			
	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
·			RECURREN	г			
1972-73	1 /	16	3 1		-		
1973-74	<u> </u>	36	18	9 2	5		34
1974-75	226	51	11	16	15		74
1975–76	369	222	i	30	15		319
1976-77 (estimate) .	327	258	28		27	• • •	648
is a commute, . )	327	236	20 1	38	49	1	700
			CAPITAL				
1972–73	102	223	184	132	67	28	736
1973–74	242	163	55	55	123	13	651
1974–75	349	150	153	363	28	154	1 197
1975–76	964	1 292	392	566	344	3	3 561
1976-77 (estimate) .	1 100	1 400	700	300	470	30	4 000
			,,,,	300	470	30	4 000
			Total				
1972–73	103	239	187	140	73	28	771
1973–74	245	198	72	57	138	13	725
1974–75	575	201	164	379	43	154	1 516
1975–76	1 333	1 514	392	596	371	3	4 209
1976-77 (estimate) .	1 427	1 658	728	338	519	30	4 700
				338	319	30	4 /00
				<u> </u>			

#### Paramedical Services

The Commonwealth shares on a \$1 for \$1 basis with participating States the cost of approved paramedical services, such as chiropody, occupational therapy, physiotherapy and speech therapy, provided wholly or mainly for aged persons in their homes. All States have indicated their willingness to participate, but to date only Victoria, South Australia and Tasmania have provided paramedical services in circumstances which qualify for assistance under the arrangement. Grants up to specified amounts are made in the first instance through the States Grants (Paramedical Services) Act 1969. However, where a State has an approved requirement for funds in excess of the limits prescribed by that Act, provision may be made for a supplementary grant through an Appropriation Act.

Annual figures of grants paid to the States for paramedical services since 1972-73 and estimates for 1976-77 are shown in the following table:—

TABLE 36—GRANTS FOR PARAMEDICAL SERVICES
(\$ thousands)

<del></del>	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1972-73		61 131 242 233 270	  	14 30 112 167 290	  	2 3 8 10 13	77 164 362 410 573

## Dwellings for Pensioners

Since 1969-70 the Commonwealth has made grants to the States for the purpose of providing self-contained dwelling units at reasonable rentals to be let to single persons who were receiving an aged pension or a Service pension by reason of age and who were eligible for supplementary assistance. The grants were apportioned among the States according to the numbers of aged pensioners receiving supplementary assistance in 1969.

The States Grants (Dwellings for Pensioners) Act 1974 continued the scheme but with the eligibility conditions widened to include single invalid and Class B widow pensioners and single repatriation pensioners who are permanently unemployable or suffering from tuberculosis. Grants totalling \$30 million are being made available over the three year period commencing July 1974 and allocated among the States in proportion to the total number of age, invalid and Class B widow pensioners in receipt of supplementary assistance in each State. Rents of units provided under the extended scheme are to be not less than the maximum rate of supplementary assistance paid to pensioners. The final payments under this scheme are to be paid in 1976-77.

Payments made to the States under the scheme since 1972-73 and estimated payments for 1976-77 are shown in the following table:—

TABLE 37—GRANTS FOR CAPITAL	<b>EXPENDITURES</b>	ON	PENSIONERS'	DWELLINGS
	(\$ thousands)			

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1972–73 .	2 705	1 478	1 250	380	519	138	6 470
1973–74 .	2 546	650	1 331	146	307	22	5 002
1974–75 .	3 000	1 343	1 314	193	198		6 048
1975–76 .	6 858	2 827	1 133	1 124	614	560	13 117
1976–77 (estimate)	2 352	3 419	2 023	1 473	1 288	280	10 835

## Assistance for Deserted Wives

Under the States Grants (Deserted Wives) Act 1968, which became effective from 1 January 1968, the Commonwealth has been sharing on a \$1 for \$1 basis with the States the cost of helping certain mothers of families without a breadwinner where the mothers are ineligible for a Class A widows pension or, as from 3 July 1973, a supporting mothers' benefit.

Assistance is provided during the first six months after the date of the event which gives rise to eligibility (e.g. the birth of a child or separation) and the main groups of mothers assisted under the Act are deserted wives, deserted defacto wives, deserting wives, wives of prisoners, and unmarried mothers. After the first six months these groups of mothers may qualify for either a Class A widows pension or a supporting mothers benefit.

The grant to a State is equal to half the cost of the approved assistance paid by the State to each eligible person but is not to exceed half the amount that would have been payable to such a person under the Social Services Act had she been eligible for a Class A widows pension or a supporting mothers' benefit.

The following table shows payments made to the States from 1972-73 and estimated payments for 1976-77:—

TABLE 38—GRANTS FOR DESERTED WIVES (\$ thousands)

·\*· :-.

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 (estimate)	1 879 2 344	2 861 1 574 1 256 2 016 2 400	1 736 1 346 1 179 1 935 2 300	776 1 534 1 045 1 509 1 700	1 746 1 171 1 152 1 459 1 300	338 260 421 458 400	9 748 7 654 6 932 9 721 10 700

# Employment Grants

Grants to the States totalling \$30 million were paid to the States in 1975-76 under a scheme of unemployment relief which commenced in March 1975 and ended in November of that year. There is no provision in the 1976-77 Budget for similar payments to be made to the States this year.

For further details see page 63 of last year's document.

# Regional Employment Development Scheme

This scheme, which was initiated in 1974-75 and for which no new projects have been approved since September 1975 provided grants to various bodies, including State Government Departments, State semi-government bodies and local government authorities. For purposes of this document grants to State departments and State semi-government authorities are classified as payments to the States.

Such payments totalled \$15.0 million in 1975-76 and are estimated to total approximately \$4000 in 1976-77. Further details, both on the scheme generally and the amounts of grants, are given in Chapter V.

#### Rehabilitation Centre—Hobart

The Commonwealth and Tasmanian Governments agreed in 1974 to share the costs of establishing and operating a joint rehabilitation centre for handicapped persons in Hobart. The arrangement provides for the Commonwealth Government to meet up to half the capital cost of building and equipping the centre and to contribute 40 per cent of the annual running costs. Construction commenced in 1975-76 and the Commonwealth's contribution in that year was \$214 000. The Commonwealth Government is expected to contribute \$600 000 in 1976-77.

## ABORIGINAL ADVANCEMENT

Since 1968-69 the Commonwealth Government has provided assistance to the States for Aboriginal advancement, particularly in the fields of housing, education and health. Details of the payments are included in the statements attached to the Budget Speech and in Tables 4 and 107 in this document under the various functional headings appropriate to the specific kinds of assistance involved. In other relevant tables in this document, however, all payments for this purpose are grouped together.

Payments to the States for Aboriginal programs rose from \$3.7 million in 1968-69 to over \$39 million in 1975-76. In 1976-77 the estimate is for \$29.4 million reflecting a year of consolidation and re-assessment of the schemes for providing assistance to Aboriginals, particularly in housing.

The Commonwealth Government also provides considerable assistance for Aboriginal advancement in the States, by way of direct assistance to Aboriginal organisations, local government authorities (see Chapter V) and other bodies.

It is also relevant to mention that progressively the States have been invited to transfer certain of their Aboriginal advancement functions to the Commonwealth Government. These transfers have been completed in all States except Oueensland.

The following table shows payments made to the States since 1972-73 and estimated payments in 1976-77:—

TABLE 39—PAYMENTS FOR ABORIGINAL ADVANCEMENT (\$ thousands)

·	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
,	'		RECURRENT	Г	•	•	
1972–73. 1973–74. 1974–75. 1975–76. 1976–77 (estimate)	1 929 1 678 2 316 2 860 2 778	331 358 494 875 1 236	2 269 975 1 701 2 952 3 533	694 1 003 1 501 2 167 .2 722	1 377 2 634 7 096 8 034 8 166	49 23 34 61 69	6 649 6 670 13 142 16 949 18 504
1972–73.	2 821	439	CAPITAL 5 431	1 046	5 509	105	15 35
1973-74	3 725 5 474 5 321 3 330	590 1 636 482 165	8 982 8 661 7 205 3 455		8 457 3 874 5 273 3 145	131 204 216 75	25 586 23 90 22 05: 10 89:
•		•	Total				
1972-73	4 750 5 403 7 791 8 180 6 108	770 948 2 130 1 358 1 401	9 957	4 699 5 558	6 886 11 091 10 970 13 307 11 310	154 238 277	22 00 32 25 37 04 39 00 29 39

#### Housing

Under successive arrangements between the Commonwealth and the States, assistance has been made available to the States in one form or another since 1945-46 for the provision of housing for families of low or moderate means. A detailed account of successive arrangements, together with statistics covering the whole period, is to be found on pages 66 through 68, 200, 201 and 224 of last year's document. Following is a very brief outline:—

- The Loan Council in each year from 1945-46 to 1970-71 agreed to a total ('works and housing') program for each State from which each State nominated the amount it would receive as advances from the Commonwealth Government under successive Commonwealth-State Housing Agreements.
- These advances were repayable over 53 years and over most of the period they were provided at concessional rates of interest.
- The 1945 Agreement included provision for the Commonwealth Government to contribute three-fifths of any loss incurred in a financial year by the State in connection with the administration of its housing projects.
   Queensland is the only State at present receiving such contributions.
- In 1971-72 and 1972-73 there were no specific advances for housing, the States meeting these expenditures from within their ordinary Loan Council borrowing programs in the same way as they met other expenditures.
- In lieu of the former interest subsidy on housing advances, the Commonwealth provided from 1971-72 specific revenue grants under the *States Grants (Housing) Act* 1971 (amended in 1973 to take account of the new arrangements—see below).
- In 1972-73 the States were advanced \$6.55 million under the Housing Assistance Act 1973, specifically for additional rental dwellings, to supplement the programs they had undertaken and financed from their normal Loan Council borrowings. These advances were provided at an interest rate of 4 per cent per annum and are repayable over 53 years.
- Since 1973-74 the Commonwealth has, under a new Agreement applying for the five years 1973-74 to 1977-78, advanced funds to the States for welfare housing outside, and in addition to, Loan Council arrangements. The State Government Loan Council programs since 1973-74 have been, as a result, lower than they would otherwise have been (that is, 'offsets' were made).

Advances made under the 1973 Agreement are being repaid, with interest, over fifty-three years. The rate of interest on advances allocated to a State housing authority is 4 per cent per annum and on advances allocated to Home Builders' Accounts the interest rate is  $4\frac{1}{2}$  per cent per annum.

The Agreement contains conditions to ensure that the assistance provided by the Commonwealth Government will be used for the benefit of those families and persons most in need.

The Housing Agreement Act 1974, passed by Parliament in the Budget sittings in 1974, amended the 1973 Act to permit the allocation to a State's Home

Builders' Account, in special circumstances, of more than 30 per cent of the total amount advanced to that State, to liberalise an aspect of the means test provision in relation to loans financed from Home Builders' Accounts and to permit the determination of supplementary advances to a State during a financial year.

The following table shows payments made to the States for housing from 1972-73 and approved payments for 1976-77:—

TABLE 40—PAYMENTS TO THE STATES FOR HOUSING 1972-73 TO 1976-77 (\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
÷	•	Rec	URRENT GRA	ants(a)		,	
1972-73	2 292 2 292 2 292 2 292 1 848	1 679 1 679 1 679 1 679 1 347	669 651 766 753 1 318	1 093 1 093 1 093 1 093 941	771 771 771 771 771 627	388 388 388 388 314	6 892 6 874 6 989 6 976 6 395
			Advances	5			
1972-73	3 500 86 000 123 411 123 411 123 411	1 500 53 500 98 159 98 159 98 159	350 17 400 43 810 31 010 37 410	500 32 750 56 360 56 360 56 360	400 13 000 37 440 33 440 35 440	16 000 26 220 22 220	6 550 218 650 385 400 364 600 375 000
		Т	OTAL PAYM	ENTS			
1972–73	5 792 88 292 125 703 125 703 125 259	3 179 55 179 99 838 99 838 99 506	1 019 18 051 44 576 31 763 38 728	1 593 33 843 57 453 57 453 57 301	1 171 13 771 38 211 34 211 36 067	688 16 388 26 608 22 608 24 534	13 442 225 524 392 389 371 576 381 395

<sup>(</sup>a) Includes contributions towards rental losses under the Commonwealth-State Housing Agreement 1945.

#### URBAN AND REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT NEC AND THE ENVIRONMENT

Payments to the States included under this functional heading comprise mainly those being made under programs initiated in 1973-74 and for which the Minister for Environment, Housing and Community Development is responsible; however, several other amounts are included, including some for Aboriginal advancement.

Payments under this functional heading grew from \$55.8 million in 1973-74 to \$234.8 million in 1974-75 and \$263.3 million in 1975-76. Payments in 1976-77 are expected to total approximately \$123.5 million. (These figures are net of repayments.)

Payments in 1975-76 for most of the urban and regional development programs and for certain programs falling within other functional headings were made mainly under the authority of the *Urban and Regional Development (Financial Assistance)* Act 1974.

For details of the purposes of this Act and of payments made in previous years see page 69 of last year's document.

## Growth Centres and Related Projects

A total of \$60.8 million was paid to the States in 1975-76 for development of new metropolitan and regional growth centres and for other urban and regional development projects. The Commonwealth is reviewing policy in relation to growth centres. For the purpose of retaining the Commonwealth's options while this review is under way provision is made in the 1976-77 Budget for these purposes of \$19.1 million.

## Albury-Wodonga

Total payments to New South Wales and Victoria in 1975-76 for Albury-Wodonga amounted to \$35.1 million comprising \$34.3 million in the form of loans and \$0.8 million in the form of grants. The payments were mainly for land acquisition, land development and headworks, office and housing construction, studies and investigations, the running costs of the Albury-Wodonga Development Corporation and assistance to local councils.

An amount of \$15 million has been provided in the Budget for financial assistance towards expenditure on Albury-Wodonga during 1976-77.

## Other Growth Centres and Related Projects—General

Payments for growth centres other than Albury-Wodonga in 1975-76 amounted to \$25.7 million including final payments in respect of approved 1974-75 programs of \$3.5 million.

An amount of \$4.1 million has been provided in the Budget for 1976-77 for growth centres, other than Albury-Wodonga, and related projects.

Developments in respect of specific growth centres, in relation to which arrangements have been entered into with the States, are outlined below. These growth centres are among those specified in the Growth Centres (Financial Assistance) Act 1973.

# Macarthur (Sydney South-West Sector)

Arrangements were entered into with the New South Wales Government during 1974-75 for the provision of financial assistance towards the development of the Sydney South-West Sector of Campbelltown, Camden, Appin and Holsworthy. Payments in 1975-76 amounted to \$15.7 million, including \$3.3 million for the 1974-75 program. The payments comprised \$14.9 million in the form of loans and \$0.8 million by way of grants and were mainly for land acquisition and development works and running expenses of the Macarthur Development Board and departments and authorities implementing the development.

An amount of \$2 million has been provided in the Budget for financial assistance towards expenditure on the Macarthur growth centre in 1976-77.

#### Bathurst-Orange

Arrangements were also entered into with the New South Wales Government during 1974-75 for the provision of financial assistance towards the development of the Bathurst-Orange growth centre. Payments in 1975-76 amounted to \$8.3

million, comprising \$7.8 million in the form of loans and \$0.5 million by way of grants. The payments were mainly for land acquisition and development works by, and the running expenses of, the Bathurst-Orange Development Corporation and for assistance to local councils.

An amount of \$2 million has been included in the Budget for financial assistance towards expenditure on the Bathurst-Orange growth centre in 1976-77.

#### Monarto

Payments in 1975-76 under the *Urban and Regional Development* (Financial Assistance) Act 1974 amounted to \$0.7 million, including final payments of \$0.2 million in respect of the 1974-75 program. The payments in 1975-76 comprised \$0.6 million in the form of loans and \$0.1 million by way of grants and were mainly for investigations and design and land acquisition.

## Western Australia-Moore River Study

An agreement was negotiated with the State in 1974-75 under the *Urban and Regional Development* (Financial Assistance) Act 1974 for a study of the Moore River area near Perth as to its suitability for urban development. Payments in 1975-76 amounted to \$474 000, all by way of grant. An amount of \$26 000 has been included in the 1976-77 Budget for an estimated final payment in respect of the approved 1975-76 study program.

## Tasmania—Strategic Development Study

Payments in 1973-74 were \$35 000. An amount of \$315 265 was allocated under the *Urban and Regional Development (Financial Assistance) Act* 1974 in respect of expenditure during 1974-75 on Stage 2 of this study. Payments in 1974-75 totalled \$311 500 and were in the form of grants. Payments in 1975-76 totalled \$496 000 and were also in the form of grants.

# Tasmania—Tamar Open Space Land

A grant of \$88 000 was paid to Tasmania in 1974-75 under the *Urban and Regional Development* (Financial Assistance) Act 1974 for the acquisition of land for parks and reserves and a further grant of \$10 000 was paid in 1975-76. An amount of \$70 000 has been included in the Budget for financial assistance to the State in 1976-77 for this purpose.

## Summary of Payments

The following table shows the amounts provided to each State for growth centres and related projects and those proposed for 1976-77. Further details are given at Table 118 in Appendix III.

TABLE 41—PAYMENTS FOR GROWTH CENTRES AND RELATED PROJECTS(a)
(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1973-74 Grants	497	445		355		35	1 332
Loans	133	1 055		4 059	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •		5 247
Total	630	1 500		4 414		35	6 579
1974-75 Grants Loans	506 29 702	340 24 479		842 4 978		400	2 088 59 158
Total	30 208	24 819		5 819		400	61 246
1975-76— Grants Loans	1 774 42 736	245 22 296	· · ·	105 1 399	474	506	3 104 66 431
Total	44 510	22 541		1 504	474	506	69 535
1976-77 (estimate) Grants Loans	(b)7 758	 (b)	•• .		26	70	96 (b)32 801
Total	(b)7 758	(b)	••	9,82	26	70	(b)32 897

<sup>(</sup>a) Includes capitalised interest—See Appendix III. Amounts quoted in the text do not include capitalised interest.

# Area Improvement Program

This program commenced in 1973-74 with the provision of \$7.4 million in funds for expenditure on approved projects for alleviation of urban problems in certain local government areas of the western regions of Sydney and Melbourne. Further amounts of \$13.8 million and \$15.0 million were provided in 1974-75 and 1975-76 respectively for these two regions as well as an additional eleven regions in various States.

The Budget includes provision for \$0.6 million for Area Improvement Programs in 1976-77, this being the level of funds required for the Commonwealth to meet its formal commitment to projects commenced in previous years.

<sup>(</sup>b) Total estimated payments for 1976-77 amounting to \$32.897 million includes \$24.06 million for Albury-Wodonga (of which \$9.06 million represents capitalised interest) which cannot be split between New South Wales and Victoria. Figure shown for New South Wales represents assistance for other growth centres in the State.

The following table shows details of payments made under this program and estimates for 1976-77:—

TABLE 42—ASSISTANCE FOR AREA IMPROVEMENT(a)

(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
			RECURRENT	r			
1973–74	347 389 537	92 268 557	159 177	 44 51	272 113		439 1 132 1 436
			CAPITAL				
1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 (estimate)(b)	4 653 5 111 5 574 120	2 308 4 340 4 339 18	2 341 2 315 468	383 602	469 730		6 961 12 644 13 560 606
			TOTAL				
1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 (estimate)(b)	5 000 5 500 6 111 120	2 400 4 608 4 896 18	2 500 2 492 468	427 653	741 843		7 400 13 776 14 996 606

<sup>(</sup>a) The assistance provided in 1973-74, 1974-75 and 1975-76 was wholly by way of non-repayable grants and it is expected that the assistance in 1976-77 will be in the same form.

(b) For purposes of this document the 1976-77 estimates are assumed to be wholly capital.

# Urban Flood Mitigation

The Commonwealth Government agreed during 1974-75 to provide \$200 000 to Victoria for flood mitigation works at Seymour. An amount of \$100 000 was paid to the State in 1975-76, and it is estimated that the balance will be paid in 1976-77.

An amount of \$2.1 million was provided to Queensland in 1975-76 under the Urban and Regional Development (Financial Assistance) Act 1974 to assist with the construction of certain flood mitigation works on various creeks in the Brisbane metropolitan area. An amount of \$1.84 million is provided in the Budget for 1976-77 for these works.

# Assistance for Land Acquisition and Development in Urban Areas

The object of this program has been to make land available for residential and associated uses at fair prices and to facilitate the planning and development of new urban areas.

An amount of \$53.6 million was provided in the Budget for 1975-76. Total payments to the States in 1975-76, in respect of expenditure by land commissions/urban land councils on approved programs of land acquisition and development, amounted to \$48.6 million, including final payments of \$3.8 million in respect of the 1974-75 programs.

An amount of \$15.1 million is provided in the Budget for 1976-77 including \$0.8 million for estimated final payments in respect of approved 1975-76 programs.

The following table shows the amounts provided to each State for land acquisition and development and those proposed for 1976-77. Further details are given in Table 119 in Appendix III.

TABLE 43—PAYMENTS FOR LAND ACQUISITION AND DEVELOPMENT IN URBAN AREAS(a)

(\$ thousands)

		New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1973-74 Grants . Loans .	•		3 531		 8 000	 		11 531
Total .			3 531		8 000			11 531
1974-75- Grants . Loans .		820	993 8 010		1 933 17 620	1 886 9 833		4 813 36 282
Total .	•	820	9 003	••	19 553	11 720		41 095
1975-76 Grants . Loans .		27 11 727	3 417 12 237	••	500 19 435	956 6 133		4 900 49 <b>5</b> 31
Total .	.	11 754	15 654	٠.٠.	19 935	7 089		54 432
1976-77 (estima Grants . Loans .	te)—	4 361	5 230	••		4 923	263	25 503
Total .		4 361	5 230		10 725	4 923	263	25 503

<sup>(</sup>a) Includes capitalised interest—See table in Appendix III. Amounts quoted in the text do not include capitalised interest.

#### Woolloomooloo Redevelopment

An agreement was concluded in 1974-75 with the New South Wales Government under which up to \$17 million will be provided by way of grant for acquisition of 3.2 hectares of property and planning and site development in the Woolloomooloo basin in Sydney. Payments commenced in 1975-76 and a total amount of \$5.8 million was paid to the State in that financial year. An amount of \$10.3 million has been included in the Budget for estimated payments to the State in 1976-77.

In addition to the provision of financial assistance, the Commonwealth Government agreed to transfer at no cost to the State 2.6 hectares of Commonwealth Government property in the Woolloomooloo basin valued in excess of \$11 million.

## Air Quality Monitoring

Under the States Grants (Air Quality Monitoring) Act 1976 the Commonwealth Government provided \$200 000 to the States in 1975-76, on a \$1 for \$1 matching basis, for the purchase of equipment for air quality monitoring. Payments made to each State are shown in Appendix V.

# Captains Flat-Pollution Abatement Works

Under the Captains Flat (Abatement of Pollution) Agreement Act 1975 the Commonwealth Government is providing financial assistance to New South Wales for approved programs of works to abate the pollution of the Molonglo River from the mine waste dumps at Captains Flat. Financial assistance of up to \$2.5 million is being provided for expenditure on capital works and up to \$100 000 will be provided on a \$1 for \$1 matching basis for expenditure on maintenance of the works. The financial assistance for capital works is 80 per cent by way of grant and 20 per cent by way of loans, and for maintenance will be wholly by way of grant.

Payments amounting to \$890 000 were made in 1975-76 for capital works. An amount of \$1 200 000 has been included in the Budget for estimated payments in respect of capital works in 1976-77.

# National Sewerage Program

In 1973-74 the Commonwealth Government embarked upon a program of assistance to the States designed to eliminate the backlog of sewerage works in principal urban areas (defined as the six capital cities, together with Wollongong, Newcastle, the Gold Coast and Launceston). Payments made in 1973-74 for projects under this program totalled \$27.9 million.

Further funds were provided in 1974-75 and 1975-76 for this program, including amounts for extending the assistance to smaller cities and for research, training, monitoring and planning. Funds totalling \$117.7 million and \$113.2 million were disbursed to the States in 1974-75 and 1975-76 respectively. The Budget includes provision of \$50 million for the National Sewerage Program in 1976-77. Relevant figures are shown in the following table:—

TABLE 44—PAYMENTS UNDER NATIONAL SEWERAGE PROGRAM
(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total				
	·	GRANTS FO	RECURRE	nt Purpose	s						
1973-74	113 487 290	243 164 420	60 251 320	256 136 220	155 155 340	24 4 110	851 1 196 1 700				
		GRANTS	FOR CAPITA	AL WORKS							
1973-74	12 600 12 840 5 910	10 391 10 620 5 130	3 256 4 103 300	1 725 1 710 300	3 735 3 720 2 700	477 595 150	32 184 33 588 14 490				
		Advance	s for Capi	TAL WORKS							
1973-74	11 200 29 400 29 960 13 790	9 300 28 196 24 780 11 970	2 007 9 598 9 664 700	1 598 4 025 3 990 700	3 800 11 715 8 680 6 300	1 743 1 389 350	27 905 84 678 78 463 33 810				
	,	TOTAL PAYM	ients for C	CAPITAL WO	RKS						
1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 (estimate)(a)	11 200 42 000 42 800 19 700	9 300 38 587 35 400 17 100	2 007 12 854 13 767 1 000	1 598 5 750 5 700 1 000	3 800 15 450 12 400 9 000	2 221 1 984 500	27 905 116 862 112 051 48 300				
TOTAL PAYMENTS											
1973–74. 1974–75. 1975–76. 1976–77 (estimate)(a)	11 200 42 113 43 287 19 990	9 300 38 830 35 564 17 520	2 007 12 914 14 018 1 320	1 598 6 006 5 836 1 220	3 800 15 605 12 555 9 340	2 245 1 988 610	27 905 117 713 113 247 50 000				

<sup>(</sup>a) The figures shown for 1976-77 are approximate estimates only; the State by State figures of grants for recurrent purposes are notional only and no commitment as to the provision of these amounts is implied.

#### CULTURE AND RECREATION

The Commonwealth Government first provided grants to the States for cultural and recreational purposes in 1973-74. An estimated \$14.7 million will be made available for these purposes in 1976-77.

#### Assistance for Leisure, Recreation and Similar Purposes

#### National Fitness Program

From 1941 to 1974 the Commonwealth provided assistance for national fitness activities in the States under the *National Fitness Act* 1941; however, these expenditures were not classified as payments to the States. Payments being made under a new arrangement, which commenced in 1975-76 are, however, so classified. These payments, which totalled \$600 000 in 1975-76 and which will be maintained at the same level in 1976-77, assist in meeting operational expenses associated with national fitness activities.

# Capital Assistance for Leisure and Cultural Facilities

A program of capital assistance grants on a cost-sharing basis with State, local government and voluntary bodies for the development of community sporting and recreation complexes was commenced in 1973-74, and expanded in 1974-75 to cover a wider range of community leisure facilities including arts/cultural facilities. Grants estimated to total \$9.5 million will be made to the States in 1976-77; some will be for on-passing to local government authorities (see Chapter V) and voluntary bodies.

# Assistance for Current Expenditure on Community Recreation

Various payments under this heading were made over the period 1973-74 to 1975-76, on which see page 78 of last year's document.

# Summary of Payments

The following table shows grants to the States since 1973-74 for leisure, recreation and similar purposes and estimated grants, on a notional basis, for these purposes in 1976-77:—

TABLE 45—PAYMENTS FOR LEISURE, RECREATION AND SIMILAR PURPOSES (\$ thousands)

		(\$ 1110	ousanus)			·	
	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
	'	Reci	URRENT				
National Fitness—	1	1					<b></b>
1975–76	118	118	94	94	94	84	600
1976-77 (estimate)	118	118	94	94	94	84	. 600
Community Recreation—	1				**	20	205
1973–74	20	20	20	105	20	20	203
1974–75		20			1		237
1975–76	9	102	24	4	11.	86	237
Youth Affairs—				-	12		13
1973–74			٠. ر	٠٠ ا	13 10	7	49
1974–75	9	9	6	8		· 1	*-
1975–76	• • •	•••	• •		• • •		···
Total Recurrent Expenditure—							
1973–74.	20	20	20	105	33	20	218
1974–75.	9	29	6	8	10	7	70
1975–76.	127	219	118	98	104	170	837
1976-77 (estimate)	118	118	94	94	94	84	600
		CA	PITAL				
Leisure Facilities—	1	1	ı	1	1	ı i	
1973–74.		478	238	160	219	180	1 274
1974–75.	1 217	800	766	620	1 728	439	5 570
1975–76.	1 744	1 510	1 060	625	404	318	5 661
1976-77 (estimate)	2 570	1 730	870	2 750	788	650	9 358
Arts/Cultural Facilities—							
1974–75		10					10
1975–76.	18	50			40	112	220
1976-77 (estimate)	110				12		122
Tatal Canital Fundament		-	·	ļ			
Total Capital Expenditure— 1973-74		478	238	160	219	180	1 274
1973–74	1 217	810	766	620	1 728	439	5 580
1974–73.	1 762	1 560	1 060	625	445	430	5 881
1975–76	2 680	1	870	2 750	800	1	9 480
1770–77 (estimate)		•		•			
		al Recurr					1 400
1973–74	20	498	258	265	252	200	1 492
1974–75	1 227	839	772	628	1 738	446	5 649
1975–76	1 889	1 779	1 178	723	549	600	6718
1976–77 (estimate)	2 798	1 848	964	2 844	894	734	10 080
	1	1	1	1	1		

#### Grants For Nature Conservation Purposes

The 1973-74 and 1974-75 Budgets included provisions for payments to the States for the purchase of land for nature conservation purposes, but no such payments were in fact made. (It is noted, however, that an amount of \$4.3 million was expended in 1974-75 on the acquisition of land in the States by the Commonwealth Government itself.)

An amount of approximately \$1.3 million was paid to the States in 1975-76 under the States Grants (Nature Conservation) Act 1974 for the acquisition of land for nature conservation purposes and a further \$3.2 million will be provided for this purpose in 1976-77, to meet commitments given to the State Governments. In addition, an amount of \$75 000 will be provided to Tasmania in 1976-77 to assist the State in meeting some of the costs of work associated with a wilderness area.

Payments to the States in 1975-76 and estimated payments in 1976-77 are set out in the following table:—

TABLE 46—PAYMENTS FOR NATURE CONSERVATION PURPOSES (\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1975-76	445	35	88	579	35	86	1 268
197677 (estimate) .	600	1 250	400	300	250	510	3 310

#### National Estate

The Commonwealth Government established a Committee of Inquiry into the National Estate in May 1973; it presented its report to the Government in August 1974. It recommended, inter alia, the institution of a program of Commonwealth Government assistance for the restoration, preservation and improvement of landscapes and buildings of special significance and the establishment of an Australian Heritage Commission as a continuing body to provide advice in respect of these matters. The Commission was established by the Australian Heritage Commission Act 1975.

All grants under this program (other than in the Territories) take the form, in the first instance, of payments to the States. They are paid to the States in accordance with Agreements concluded under the *Urban and Regional Development* (Financial Assistance) Act 1974.

The following table shows the grants paid since the program commenced in 1973-74. The estimated payments for 1976-77 represent the provision of finance for projects in the 1975-76 program that were not completed in that year.

TABLE 47—GRANTS FOR EXPENDITURE ON THE NATIONAL ESTATE (\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 (estimate) .	1 612 946	150 1 471 550 687	33 791 567 183	45 981 506 246	60 1 156 523 215	1 032 795 19	288 7 043 3 887 1 350

#### ECONOMIC SERVICES—TRANSPORT

The Commonwealth has been making payments to the States for transport purposes continuously since 1923-24, when it began providing grants for roads. The estimated total payments, net of repayments, are \$516.6 million for this function in 1976-77 and, of this, \$456.1 million is for roads and bridges and \$64.6 million is provided for urban public transport. Payments being made in each of these areas, as well as for shipping and harbours and railway projects, are outlined below.

#### Roads

Commonwealth assistance for expenditure on roads has taken two main forms—general assistance and assistance for specific roads or specific road projects. Payments of the latter kind (such as those for beef roads and the sealing of the Eyre Highway) were subsumed in the general program of roads assistance introduced in 1974-75. (See page 81 and the relevant section of Appendix IV of last year's document for an historical description of the Commonwealth's assistance for roads.)

In November 1973 the Government received from the Commonwealth Bureau of Roads a 'Report on Roads in Australia 1973' which contained recommendations for a program of expenditure on roads in the States over the five years 1974-75 to 1978-79.

The Government, in formulating proposals for a new program, was guided to a considerable extent by the program laid down in the Bureau's report, although the program adopted differed significantly from that recommended by the Bureau. The Government's proposals, providing for \$1 126 million over the three year period 1974-75 to 1976-77, were embodied in three Acts—the National Roads Act 1974, the Roads Grants Act 1974 and the Transport (Planning and Research) Act 1974. Further details are given on pages 81 through 86 of last year's document.

However, actual advances under all three Acts over the last two years have varied from the amounts incorporated in schedules to the Acts for three reasons.

First, provision is made for transfer of grants, subject to the Commonwealth's approval, on request by the States. Such transfers, or schedule variations, can be between categories of expenditure within the *National Roads Act* 1974 or within the *Roads Grants Act* 1974, between these two Acts, and from one year to another. During 1974-75 and 1975-76 the Minister for Transport approved a number of applications for transfer.

Secondly, additional roads grants totalling \$30 million were provided in 1974-75 following the February 1975 Premiers' Conference as a short term measure to assist employment in the roads sector. The additional grants were authorised by the *Appropriation Act* (No. 4) 1974-75.

Finally, additional grants of \$64 million were announced in the context of the 1975-76 Budget in order to offset the higher than expected cost escalation effects on the 1975-76 road appropriations. These additional grants were authorised by the *Roads Acts Amendment Act* 1976.

The following table shows the distribution of road grants actually paid to the States in 1975-76:—

TABLE 48—PAYMENTS FOR ROADS IN 1975-76(a) (\$ thousands)

	New		Oueens-	South	Western		
	South Wales	Victoria	land	Australia	Australia	Tasmania	Total
National Highways—							
Construction .	39 530	16 800	22 100	18 993	11 695	7 140	116 258
Maintenance .	7 200	1 600	5 900	2 1 1 0	2 845	590	20 245
Export and Major							
Commercial Roads	2 470	4 800	2 405	1 058	900	470	12 103
Sub-total .	49 200	23 200	30 405	22 161	15 440	8 200	148 606
Rural Arterial and Developmental							
Roads	15 430	5 660	11 700	1 770	9 180	2 600	46 340
Rural Local Roads	16 480	11 750	16 340	5 300	10 855	4 230	64 955
MITERS(b)	4 254	2 710	2 555	1 956	1 640	600	13 715
Urban Arterial							
Roads	44 260	42 560	16 863	8 290	23 076	4'020	139 069
Urban Local Roads	3 880	3 200	1 947	1 287	1 094	250	11 658
Beef Roads			9 170				9 170
Sub-total .	84 304	65 880	58 575	18 603	45 845	11 700	284 907
Transport Planning							
and Research .	2 728	2 909	1 069	719	940	198	8 563
Total	136 232	91 989	90 049	41 484	62 225	20 097	442 076

<sup>(</sup>a) Payments made under the National Roads Act 1974 and the Roads Grants Act 1974 (as amended by the Appropriation Act (No. 4) 1974-75 and the Roads Acts Amendment Act 1976) and the Transport (Planning and Research) Act 1974.

For 1976-77, an additional grant of \$35.8 million (to offset cost escalation) has been announced. It is expected that enabling legislation to appropriate these additional funds will be enacted during the latter half of 1976. The Government has also decided, as a budgetary measure, that approvals for assistance to projects under the *Transport (Planning and Research) Act* 1974 will be held to an amount, including the carryover from 1975-76, of \$8 million in 1976-77.

<sup>(</sup>b) Minor Traffic Engineering and Road Safety Improvements.

The following table shows the estimated distribution of roads grants to the States in 1976-77:—

TABLE 49—ESTIMATED PAYMENTS FOR ROADS IN 1976–77(a)
(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia (c)	Tasmania	Total
National Roads Act 1974 . Roads Grants Act 1974	59 200 66 800	30 800 52 800	33 600 49 600	20 000 15 600	12 910 37 590	10 100 8 700	166 610 231 090
Transport (Planning and	00 800	32 800	49 600	13 600	37 390	8 700	231 090
Research) Act 1974(b) Proposed Additional 1975-76	3 000	2 100	1 200	600	800	300	8 000
Grant	11 300	7 500	7 500	3 200	4 600	1 700	35 800
Total(b)	140 300	93 200	91 900	39 400	55 900	20 800	441 500

<sup>(</sup>a) Includes an additional \$35.8 million to offset cost escalation which has not yet been allocated between road categories encompassed by the National Roads Act 1974 and Roads Grants Act 1974.

The Roads Grants Act 1974 also sets down annual quotas for expenditure by each State from its own resources; these were determined after consideration of estimates made by the Commonwealth Bureau of Roads of finance which might be available for roads from State Government sources. However, provision is made for the States to carry forward, annually, excesses or deficiencies in expenditure from their own resources so that in effect the States must meet only the three year total quota.

The Roads Acts Amendment Act 1976 increased the 1975-76 quotas commensurate with increases in Commonwealth assistance of \$64 million for that year. Similar increases are expected to be made to the 1976-77 quotas as a result of the proposed additional grant of \$35.8 million for this year (not included in Table 50). No quota increase was made in 1974-75 as a result of the additional \$30 million made available in that year.

The current quotas are as follows:—

TABLE 50—ROADS GRANTS 1974-75 TO 1976-77—QUOTAS TO BE MET FROM STATE SOURCES

(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales		Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1974–75 . 1975–76 . 1976–77(a) .		124 600 146 800 124 600	83 300 110 400 104 200	36 300 50 100 49 100	25 400 33 500 31 400	23 800 33 500 33 600	8 500 11 200 10 400	301 900 385 500 353 300
Total .		396 000	297 900	135 500	90 300	90 900	30 100	1 040 700

<sup>(</sup>a) Excludes a proposed increase which is expected to be commensurate with the additional \$35.8 million in grants for roads in 1976-77 to offset cost escalation.

<sup>(</sup>b) Includes a distribution of the unallocated amount payable on the same basis as the apportionment of the allocated amount under the Act. No commitment to the provision of these amounts is implied.

<sup>(</sup>c) Transfer of \$390 000 from National Roads Act 1974 to Roads Grants Act 1974 approved for 1976-77.

The following table shows the amounts paid to each State for roads under the Commonwealth Aid Roads Act 1969, and the amounts paid since 1974-75 under the National Roads Act 1974, the Roads Grants Act 1974, the Transport (Planning and Research) Act 1974, the Appropriation Act (No. 4) 1974-75 and the Roads Acts Amendment Act 1976, with estimated amounts for 1976-77:—

TABLE 51—GRANTS UNDER GENERAL ROADS ACTS(a)
(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales		South	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total	
1969-70				57 060	38 160	34 740	21 000	32 940	9 100	193 000
1970-71			. }	64 980	43 460	39 560	23 500	36 270	10 230	218 000
1971-72			. 1	74 500	49 820	45 360	25 500	39 250	10 820	245 250
1972-73				85 590	57 240	52 110	28 000	43 910	12 150	279 000
1973-74				98 270	65 720	59 830	31 000	48 030	13 950	316 800
1974-75			.	115 792	75 951	75 372	31 888	50 449	18 585	368 037
1975-76				136 232	91 989	90 049	41 484	62 225	20 097	442 076
1976–77	(esti	mate	e)(b)	140 300	93 200	91 900	39 400	55 900	20 800	441 500

<sup>(</sup>a) That is, under the Commonwealth Aid Roads Act 1969; National Roads Act 1974; Roads Grants Act 1974; and the Transport (Planning and Research) Act 1974 (with supplementation under the Appropriation Act (No. 4) 1974-75 and the Roads Acts Amendment Act 1976).

(b) See footnotes (a) and (b) to Table 49.

#### Second Hobart Bridge

Following agreement in 1975 between the Commonwealth and Tasmanian Governments, a Joint Committee on the Second Hobart Bridge was established. The first stage of the Committee's work is to carry out the technical investigations associated with the bridge. In relation to these studies, the Commonwealth provided an amount of \$63 000 in 1975-76, and a further \$650 000 will be provided for in the 1976-77 Budget.

#### Railway Construction Projects

For many years the Commonwealth has been providing financial assistance to various States for expenditure on specific major rail standardisation and other railway projects; South Australia and Western Australia are currently receiving financial assistance for such projects. Under the program of assistance for urban public transport initiated in 1973-74 the Commonwealth Government is providing grants to the States for urban railway projects (see below under 'Urban Public Transport').

Following is a summary of assistance being provided to South Australia and Western Australia.

#### (a) South Australia

Under the Adelaide to Crystal Brook Railway Act 1974 the Commonwealth is continuing to provide financial assistance to the State for the construction of a standard gauge railway to link Adelaide with the east-west railway at Crystal

Brook, pending legislation to enable the Australian National Railways to replace the State as the constructing authority for the project, following the transfer of the non-metropolitan South Australian railways to the Commonwealth. Under the Act, the Commonwealth is providing initially all the finance for the project with the State to repay 30 per cent of this by equal annual instalments of capital and interest over a period of fifty years.

#### (b) Western Australia

Under the Railway Agreement (Western Australia) Act 1961-1971 financial assistance is being provided to Western Australia for the construction of a standard gauge railway from Kwinana to Koolyanobbing, with an extension to Kalgoorlie, and for the purchase of rolling stock for the railway. While the project is associated with the development of an iron and steel industry at Kwinana using iron ore from Koolyanobbing, the extension of the railway eastward to Kalgoorlie also provides a standard gauge link between Perth and the Trans-Australian Railway. Details of the assistance are given on page 87 of last year's document.

The table below shows payments to the States for railway projects from 1972-73 including estimated payments in 1976-77:—

TABLE 52—PAYMENTS	FOR	RAILWAY	CONSTRUCTION	PROJECTS
	(	(\$ thousands)		

			New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1972-73		.				556	1 250	1 156	2 962
197374		.				319	508		827
1974-75(a)		.		1		909	151		1 060
1975-76(a)		. [				4 960			4 960
1976-77 (estin	mate)			l		2 000	225		2 225
		ì		1					

<sup>(</sup>a) Excludes payments for railway projects under the program of assistance for urban public transport. (See below.)

#### Railway Intersystem Passenger Vehicles

A common 'pool' of passenger vehicles was formed for the operation of the direct standard gauge passenger service between Sydney and Perth (the 'Indian Pacific' service) and the 'Trans-Australian' service between Perth and Port Pirie. The purchase of these vehicles was initially financed by the Australian National Railways. The other railway authorities involved (New South Wales, South Australia and Western Australia) are repaying a share of the cost of the rolling stock, with interest on outstanding balances, over a period of 35 years. The total debt has been divided between the three State systems and the ANR in proportion to operating distances. Following the transfer of the non-metropolitan South Australian railways to the Commonwealth on 1 July 1975, the South Australian portion of the debt has been taken over by the Australian National Railways. It is expected, however, that there will be no advances made to the States for this purpose in 1976-77.

The following table shows advances made from 1972-73 to 1974-75 and estimates for 1975-76:—

TABLE 53—ADVANCES FOR RAILWAY INTERSYSTEM PASSENGER VEHICLES
(\$ thousands)

	-	 	New South Wales	South Australia	Western Australia	Total
1972–73					784	784
1973–74		.	267	94	720	1 081
197475			580	205	459	1 244
1975-76 (estimate)		.	12		66	78

## Urban Public Transport

Under an agreement concluded with all States in 1974 the Commonwealth is meeting two-thirds of the cost of approved urban public transport projects in the States. The program is for five years until 1977-78 and the purpose is to assist in the upgrading of urban public transport, including railways.

The States Grants (Urban Public Transport) Act 1974 and the Urban Public Transport (Research and Planning) Act 1974 were enacted to give effect to this agreement and together authorised payments of grants of \$72.91 million to the States for projects approved in 1973-74. However, owing to a lack of legislative authority, funds could not be disbursed until 1974-75. The Appropriation (Urban Public Transport) Act 1974 appropriated a further \$66.11 million for projects approved to commence in 1974-75.

No new projects have been approved for commencement either in 1975-76 or 1976-77.

Under the terms of the Urban Public Transport Agreement (incorporated as a Schedule to the States Grants (Urban Public Transport) Act 1974), the Commonwealth is also committed to meet two-thirds of approved cost increases due to cost escalation but is not committed to meeting cost increases caused through faulty planning or faulty cost estimation. In addition to estimated assistance of \$44.6 million on approved projects in 1976-77, a further \$20 million is provided in the Budget to meet the Commonwealth's share of approved cost increases on those projects approved in the 1973-74 and 1974-75 programs.

The following table shows payments made to the States since 1974-75 and estimated payments in 1976-77:—

TABLE 54—GRANTS UNDER URBAN PUBLIC TRANSPORT ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1974-75	14 863	18 867	2 126	6 215	2 829	359	45 259
	5 694	9 529	8 986	6 757	750	2 380	34 096
	29 432	16 056	11 040	5 580	1 692	800	64 600

<sup>(</sup>a) Includes provision for \$20 million to be made available to meet the Commonwealth's share in 1976-77 of approved cost escalation increases on previously approved projects; this amount is apportioned between the States on the basis of expenditures to 30 June 1976. No commitment to the payment of these apportioned amounts is implied.

### Shipping and Harbours

## Construction of a Dry Dock at Newcastle

It was announced on 13 March 1973 that the Commonwealth would negotiate with the New South Wales Government for the construction of a graving dock at Newcastle. Expenditure in 1975-76, on a feasibility study and preliminary works associated with the construction of the dock, totalled \$1 164 000. A further \$350 000 is included in the Budget to meet expenditure commitments incurred by New South Wales, as constructing authority for the project.

# King Island Harbour Works

Under the King Island Harbour Agreement Act 1973 the Commonwealth Government provided financial assistance to Tasmania of \$1 355 000 towards the cost of constructing port facilities at Grassy Harbour, King Island. The financial assistance comprised \$677 500 by way of a grant and \$677 500 in the form of a loan repayable over fifteen years.

An initial payment of \$1 113 000 was made to the State in 1972-73. No payments were made in 1973-74 or 1974-75. Final payments of \$121 000 by way of grants and \$121 000 as loans were made in 1975-76.

# Tasman Bridge Disaster

Following this disaster, which occurred in Hobart on 5 January 1975 when the Australian National Line's vessel, the 'Lake Illawarra', hit the Tasman Bridge with consequent loss of life and serious damage to the Bridge, the Commonwealth Government undertook to reimburse the State for the full amounts of expenditures incurred by it and its authorities, subject to the various expenditures being accepted by the Commonwealth as attributable to the bridge collapse and reasonable and subject to certain procedures for consultation between the

Commonwealth and State Governments. As well as the reconstruction of the Tasman Bridge the agreed measures include:—

- emergency services provided immediately after the disaster;
- the provision of temporary bridging across the river;
- the maintenance and upgrading of roads to cope with additional traffic caused by the loss of the use of the Tasman Bridge;
- the obtaining of ferries, the building of ferry terminals and the construction of additional facilities in connection with bus services on the eastern shore;
- contributions towards the recurrent costs of ferry and bus operations; and
- the provision of additional State Government services on the eastern shore.

The Tasman Bridge Restoration Act 1975 and the Tasman Bridge Restoration Act (No. 2) 1975, in conjunction with complementary legislation passed by the Tasmanian Parliament, ratified the Joint Tasman Bridge Restoration Agreement between the Commonwealth and Tasmanian Governments which provides, inter alia, for a Joint Tasman Bridge Restoration Commission, the functions of which include the restoration of the Tasman Bridge. The administrative costs of the Commission are being met by the Commonwealth Government.

In June 1975 the then Commonwealth Government, following an investigation of, and report on, proposals for a further permanent bridge across the Derwent River by a Joint Commonwealth/State Government expert advisory Committee, undertook to provide financial assistance for the construction of a new permanent bridge at Dowsing Point and for the restructuring of the Tasman Bridge so as to provide an additional traffic lane.

Assistance for these various purposes, other than the new permanent bridge, is classified in this document under the heading 'Tasman Bridge Disaster'. With regard to the new bridge see elsewhere in this Chapter under the heading 'Second Hobart Bridge'.

Assistance provided for these purposes in 1974-75 and 1975-76, and estimates for 1976-77, are as follows:—

TABLE 55—GRANTS FOR TASMAN BRIDGE DISASTER (\$ thousands)

	1974–75	1975–76	1976-77 (estimate)
State Expenditures Eligible for Reimbursement— Restoration of the Tasman Bridge Widening of the Bridge Temporary Bridge Government Services on the Eastern Shore Roads Other Transport Services and Facilities(a) Other(b)	. 156 . 336 . 294 . 1 559 . 2 212 . 101	5 838 506 2 760 713 6 078 2 672 206	6 800 4 000 500 400 1 900 1 100 100
Total	4 658	18 775	14 800
Payment by Commonwealth to the State(c)	. 6 000	17 700	14 500

<sup>(</sup>a) Comprises capital expenditure on ferry and bus terminals, the operating costs of landing barges provided by the Defence Force and assistance for the operation of ferry and additional bus services.

<sup>(</sup>b) Includes assistance for original investigations of proposal for second bridge across the Derwent River and other miscellaneous items, including emergency expenditures.

<sup>(</sup>c) Differs from State expenditure because of 'leads and lags' and unavoidable estimating errors involved in payment arrangements.

# ECONOMIC SERVICES—WATER SUPPLY AND ELECTRICITY

#### Ross River Dam

Under the Queensland Grant (Ross River Dam) Act 1974 the Commonwealth Government is to provide grants of up to \$2.56 million to Queensland towards the cost of construction of Stage 2 of the Ross River Dam, which will augment the supply of water to Townsville. An amount of \$1.4 million was paid to the State in 1975-76 and it is estimated that the balance of \$1.16 million will be paid in 1976-77. Details of the assistance provided for Stage 1 of this project are given in last year's document at page 208.

# Urban Water Supply

Amounts of \$4.4 million and \$8.9 million were provided to South Australia in 1974-75 and 1975-76 respectively under the *Urban and Regional Development* (Financial Assistance) Act 1974 to assist with the construction of water treatment plants in the Adelaide metropolitan area. Further assistance totalling \$9.42 million is provided in the Budget for 1976-77 for these works.

# Gladstone Power Station

Under the Gladstone Power Station Agreement Act 1970 financial assistance is being provided to Queensland by way of loans to help finance the construction of a thermal power station at Gladstone in Central Queensland. The amount to be provided for the project is proportionate to the total cost of the power station in the ratio of 80 to 155. Payments to 30 June 1976 amounted to \$112.06 million including a payment of \$39 million in 1975-76 and it is estimated that a further \$26.5 million will be made available in 1976-77.

#### ECONOMIC SERVICES—INDUSTRY ASSISTANCE AND DEVELOPMENT

#### Softwood Forestry

Under the Softwood Forestry Agreements Act 1967 financial assistance was provided to all States for a program of increased planting of softwood forests over the five-year period ended on 30 June 1971. The assistance to each State was by way of interest-bearing loans repayable over twenty-five years, with repayments and the payment of interest to commence approximately ten years after the date of each advance. Total payments to the States under this Act amounted to \$17.7 million.

Under the Softwood Forestry Agreements Act 1972 financial assistance was provided for a further five-year planting program ending on 30 June 1976. As under the previous Agreement, the assistance was provided by way of interest bearing loans repayable over twenty-five years, with repayments and the payment of interest to commence approximately ten years after the date of each advance.

Total payments of \$29.26 million were made to the States under this Agreement to 30 June 1976, including \$7.94 million in 1975-76.

The Commonwealth agreed in May 1976 to the extension of assistance to the softwood forestry program for a further year up to a limit of \$6 million which will be allocated to the States in accordance with the principles applying to the previous agreements. In addition a further \$1.454 million will be provided to meet eligible expenditure up to 30 June 1976 under the 1972 Agreement.

The following table shows payments that have been made to the States for this purpose since 1972-73 and estimated payments in 1976-77:—

TABLE 56—ADVANCES	FOR	SOFTWOOD	FORESTRY
(\$	thous	ands)	

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1972–73	3 237	1 542	2 160	400	1 020	1 101	9 459
	2 000		1 535	252	416	672	4 875
	2 100	889	2 340	341	685	769	7 124
1975-76	2 456	900	2 250	566	864	901	7 937
	2 350	1 782	1 525	100	715	982	7 454

<sup>(</sup>a) Preliminary estimates only. No commitment to payment of these amounts is implied.

# Trawl and Danish Seine Fishery Assistance

The Commonwealth Government agreed in August 1974 to provide assistance to the New South Wales Government, on a dollar for dollar sharing basis, for the assessment of the trawl and Danish seine fisheries in the State with a view to formulating practical and constructive management policies. Assistance is being provided over the three years 1974-75 to 1976-77. An initial contribution of \$35 000 was paid in 1974-75, \$8547 was paid in 1975-76 and a further \$35 000 is expected to be paid in 1976-77.

#### Dairy Adjustment Program

The original scheme for this purpose was authorised by the Marginal Dairy Farms Agreement Act 1970, which enabled an amount of \$25 million to be made available to States, partly as grants and partly as loans, to assist in the reconstruction of dairy farms. The scheme aimed to assist low income dairy farmers to leave the industry by facilitating the sale of their farms, to make other holdings more profitable by assisting in the purchase of marginal dairy farms, and to encourage diversification of production into the most practicable economic land use on newly amalgamated holdings.

In April 1974, the Commonwealth Government announced a two-year \$28 million dairy adjustment assistance scheme, subsequently embodied in the *Dairy Adjustment Act* 1974, under which the original scheme was continued and broadened to remove limits on vendor participation, to encourage amalgamation by lifting restraints on farm size after build-up, to help diversification out of dairying, and to provide an extended range of assistance for those remaining in the industry. The widened program, which was to run to 30 June 1976, also embraced assistance to aid prospectively viable suppliers and factories to change over to refrigerated whole milk supply, and to help relocation of farmers who decide to leave the industry.

In June 1976 a further \$3.5 million was appropriated for the Dairy Adjustment Program through the *Dairy Adjustment Amendment Act* 1976. This Act enabled the Program to extend beyond 30 June 1976, widened the provisions for diversification assistance, and authorised carry-on loans (a form of assistance not previously available under the Program). States will match the amounts the Commonwealth contributes for the purpose of carry-on loans.

The following table shows payments that have been paid to the States for this purpose since 1972-73, and estimated payments in 1976-77:—

TABLE 57—PAYMENTS FOR DAIRY ADJUSTMENT PROGRAM
(\$ thousands)

			(*				
	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
		,	GRANTS			( <del></del>	
1972–73 1973–74 1974–75 1975–76 1976–77 (estimate)(a)	250 125 250 255 417	45 72 1 171 2 388 1 523	1 000 328 304 1 249 465	 100 88 99	138 70 185 496 222	15 12 34 167 311	1 448 607 2 044 4 643 3 037
			ADVANCES		•		
1972–73 1973–74 1974–75 1975–76 1976–77 (estimate)(a)	250 125 750 409 681	45 73 4 371 7 677 4 823	1 000 328 704 2 453 903	400 217 424	139  450 1 831 837	15 12 216 1 486 2 795	1 449 538 6 892 14 073 10 463
		To	TAL PAYME	NTS			
1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 (estimate)(a)	500 250 1 000 664 1 098	90 145 5 543 10 065 6 346	2 000 656 1 008 3 702 1 368	500 305 523	277 70 635 2 327 1 059	30 24 250 1 653 3 106	2 897 1 145 8 936 18 716 13 500

<sup>(</sup>a) The 1976-77 allocation by States is still subject to agreement. No commitment to the provision of these amounts is implied.

# Fruitgrowing Industry Reconstruction

In 1972 the States were offered \$4.6 million in financial assistance under the States Grants (Fruitgrowing Reconstruction) Act 1972 towards a scheme for the removal of fruit trees deemed to be surplus to long-term market requirements. The Act has been amended twice to extend the closing dates for lodgement of applications for assistance and for the removal of trees, and the Commonwealth Government will be introducing further amending legislation to increase the limit on assistance to \$5.6 million and to extend the closing date for applications to 31 December 1976 and for the removal of trees to 30 June 1977.

Payments to the States, including estimated payments in 1976-77, are shown in the following table:—

TABLE 58—GRANTS FOR FRUITGROWING RECONSTRUCTION
(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1972-73	140 500 	100 430 71 102 800	10  119 41 60	25 57 105 20 150	 18 32 29 40	100 650 750 200 330	375 1 655 1 077 392 1 500

## Apple Exports

In early 1974 the Commonwealth agreed to join with the Governments of Queensland, Western Australia and Tasmania, on a dollar for dollar matching basis, in underwriting the financial returns on apples exported 'at risk' during 1974 to the United Kingdom and Europe, and in December 1974 agreed to provide similar assistance in respect of the 1975 season, with the scheme being extended to include Victoria and South Australia.

In February 1976 the Commonwealth decided to provide up to \$500 000 to continue the matching assistance for the 1976 season, with the scheme including all States.

The following table shows payments under these schemes and estimates for 1976-77:—

TABLE 59—PAYMENTS FOR APPLE EXPORT ASSISTANCE
(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 (estimate) .	2	 65 35	8 14 5		516 259 113	1 590 572 343	2 114 910 500

# Eradication of Bovine Brucellosis and Tuberculosis

From January 1970 the Commonwealth Government has joined with the States in an intensified national campaign for the eradication of bovine brucellosis and tuberculosis. The Government has agreed to provide about \$11.2 million during 1976-77 as payments to the States for this purpose but the individual States' shares are yet to be determined by the Australian Agricultural Council.

From July 1973 the Commonwealth Government also joined the mainland States in a scheme to partially compensate owners of livestock slaughtered following positive reaction to bovine tuberculosis tests. The Government has

accepted the recommendation of the Industries Assistance Commission that this scheme be continued from 1 January 1976 and has decided to liberalise the basis for compensation payments after 1 July 1976. In addition, the Government has accepted the Commission's recommendation that a brucellosis slaughter compensation scheme be introduced from 1 July 1976. It is anticipated that \$6 million will be paid to the States for tuberculosis and brucellosis compensation in 1976-77.

The following table shows payments that have been made under these schemes since 1972-73 and payments estimated to be made in 1976-77:—

TABLE 60—GRANTS FOR CURRENT EXPENDITURES ON THE ERADICATION OF BOVINE BRUCELLOSIS AND TUBERCULOSIS

(\$ thousands)

<del></del> .	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1972–73	1 250	1 150	885	235	380	100	4 000
1973–74	1 952	1 681	470	551	343	137	5 134
1974–75	2 012	2 064	1 661	350	498	238	6 823
1975–76	2 186	2 459	2 190	637	601	423	8 496
1976–77 (estimate)(a)	4 906	5 113	3 768	1 931	1 265	214	17 197

<sup>(</sup>a) The 1976-77 allocation by States is still subject to agreement. No commitment to the provision of these amounts is implied.

# Exotic Animal Diseases Eradication

Under long-standing agreements between the Commonwealth Government and the States in respect of outbreaks of a number of exotic animal diseases, \$120 100 will be paid to Victoria in 1976-77 to cover the Commonwealth Government's share of the cost of eradicating an outbreak of fowl plague in Victoria during 1975-76.

#### Assistance to the Beef Industry

In 1975-76 the Commonwealth undertook to provide up to \$19.6 million under the States Grants (Beef Industry) Act 1976 to match State contributions for a joint scheme to provide carry-on finance, at concessional rates of interest, to specialist beef producers who, whilst judged to be viable under normal market conditions, lacked finance and were unable to obtain carry-on funds from normal

sources. Under the extension of the scheme the Commonwealth has agreed to finance approvals of up to \$15 million for the scheme in 1976-77.

TABLE 61—ADVANCES FOR BEEF INDUSTRY ASSISTANCE.
(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1975-76	2 892	1 164	6 374	289	479	100	11 298
1976-77 (estimate) (a)	3 840	1 545	8 463	383	636	133	15 000

<sup>(</sup>a) The 1976-77 allocation by States is still subject to agreement. No commitment to the provision of these amounts is implied.

# Canned Fruits Industry Assistance

In March 1976 the Commonwealth provided loans amounting to \$2 456 567 under the States Grants (Fruit Canneries) Act 1976 to the Governments of New South Wales, Victoria and South Australia. As in the case of earlier loans provided in the period 1970 to 1972, details of which are on page 208 of last year's document, these loans were for on-lending to the co-operative fruit canneries to enable acceleration of payments to growers for 1974-75 deliveries of apricots, peaches and pears. The liquidity problems of co-operative canneries, which have led to their difficulties in making payments to growers, have resulted from oversupply of fruit, declining export markets and rapidly rising costs.

The loans to the States are to be repaid in four equal half-yearly instalments, commencing on 31 December 1976, with interest at the rate of 10 per cent per annum.

#### Rural Reconstruction

In accordance with an agreement reached between the Commonwealth Government and the States in 1971, and extended in 1973, assistance was made available under the States Grants (Rural Reconstruction) Act 1971, partly as grants and partly as loans, for the purpose of a rural reconstruction scheme. The Act provided for the scheme to operate to 30 June 1976. The scheme embraced debt reconstruction, farm build-up and the rehabilitation of those farmers in necessitous circumstances who are obliged to seek alternative employment.

This scheme will be extended, as an interim measure pending the Government's consideration of an Industries Assistance Commission report, to 31 December 1976.

Payments to 30 June 1976 totalled \$189.3 million and a further \$27 million is being provided for payment in 1976-77.

The following table shows the payments that have been made to the States since 1972-73 and estimated payments in 1976-77:—

TABLE 62—PAYMENTS FOR RURAL RECONSTRUCTION
(\$ thousands)

			( w throughful	<u>,                                      </u>			
	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
			GRANTS	ı	,		
1972-73	3 375 2 625 3 000 1 812 2 550	3 392 1 900 1 658 1 675 975	1 825 1 842 929 1 475 975 ADVANCES	1 525 1 075 500 1 275 1 175	2 033 1 325 908 1 138 850	550 175 200 125 225	12 700 8 942 7 195 7 500 6 750
1 972–73	10 125 7 875 9 000 5 437 7 650	10 178 5 700 4 976 5 025 2 925	5 475 5 525 2 787 4 425 2 925	4 575 3 225 1 500 3 825 3 525	6 097 3 975 2 723 3 413 2 550	1 650 525 600 375 675	38 100 26 825 21 586 22 500 20 250
		To	TAL PAYMEN	TS			
1972–73	13 500 10 500 12 000 7 250 10 200	13 570 7 600 6 634 6 700 3 900	7 300 7 367 3 716 5 900 3 900	6 100 4 300 2 000 5 100 4 700	8 130 5 300 3 631 4 550 3 400	2 200 700 800 500 900	50 800 35 767 28 781 30 000 27 000

#### Agricultural Extension Services Grants

From 1948-49 annual grants have been made to the States to promote improved practices in the dairy industry and from 1952-53 further grants have been provided for expansion in the States of agricultural advisory services generally. In addition to the payments to the States, a small amount is expended directly by the Commonwealth Government on projects nominated by the States but of common interest.

The following table shows the payments to each State from 1972-73 and estimated payments in 1976-77:—

TABLE 63—GRANTS FOR AGRICULTURAL EXTENSION SERVICES(a)
(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1972–73	. 1 680	1 490	1 380	690	680	380	6 300
	. 1 797	1 601	1 525	760	771	348	6 802
	. 2 145	1 877	1 583	856	843	419	7 723
	. 2 359	2 022	1 826	944	958	517	8 625
	. 2 579	2 291	2 097	1 068	1 082	560	9 676

<sup>(</sup>a) Excludes expenditure incurred directly by the Commonwealth Government on projects common to a number of States.

# Minor Agricultural Research

Annual grants have been made to the States since 1960-61 to finance special investigation and extension projects of a new, short-term nature on a \$1 for \$1

matching basis with the States and/or industry. As with the extension services grants, some projects common to several States are financed by direct grants to industry bodies.

Grants that have been paid to the States since 1972-73 and estimated grants in 1976-77 are shown in the following table:—

TABLE 64—GRANTS FOR MINOR AGRICULTURAL RESEARCH(a)
(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1972-73	82 99 82 81 69	19 23 22 63 68	37 12 14 17 17	13 17 16 20 26			151 151 134 181 180

<sup>(</sup>a) Excludes expenditure incurred directly by the Commonwealth Government on projects common to a number of States.

# Bundaberg Irrigation Works

The Queensland Grant (Bundaberg Irrigation Works) Act 1970 provided for grants of up to \$17.2 million to Queensland for the construction of the Monduran Dam on the Kolan River and associated works to regulate the flows of both the Kolan and Burnett Rivers. All but \$11 336 of the \$17.2 million was paid by 30 June 1976; it is expected that the remaining amount will be paid in 1976-77.

# Lock to Kimba Pipeline

Under the South Australia Grant (Lock to Kimba Pipeline) Act 1973 grants of up to \$2.1 million were provided to South Australia towards the cost of constructing a pipeline on the Eyre Peninsula of South Australia. The purpose of the scheme was to provide water for stock and domestic use in the area between the towns of Lock and Kimba.

The full amount has been paid, including a final payment of \$305 000 in 1975-76. Annual payments from 1972-73 to 1975-76 are given in Appendix V.

# Tailem Bend to Keith Pipeline

The South Australia Grant (Tailem Bend to Keith Pipeline) Act 1969 provides for grants of up to \$6 million to South Australia for the construction of a pipeline and certain associated works, to carry water from Tailem Bend to Keith. Total payments to 30 June 1976 amounted to \$5.3 million, including a payment of \$3500 in 1975-76, and it is estimated that a further \$400 000 will be paid in 1976-77.

# Eton (Mackay) Irrigation Scheme

Under the Queensland Grant (Kinchant Dam) Act 1973 grants of up to \$5 million are being provided to Queensland towards the cost of construction of the Kinchant Dam—the main storage for the Eton (Mackay) Irrigation Scheme. Payments to 30 June 1976, including a payment of \$2 million in 1975-76, totalled \$4.2 million. It is estimated that the balance of \$0.8 million will be paid in 1976-77.

#### Clare Weir

Under the Queensland Grant (Clare Weir) Act 1974 grants of up to \$3 million are being provided to Queensland towards the cost of construction of the Clare Weir on the Burdekin River. Total payments to 30 June 1976 amounted to \$0.45 million, and it is estimated that further payments of \$2.55 million will be made in 1976-77.

# Ord River Irrigation Project

Details of the earlier legislation under which grants totalling \$12.2 million were made to Western Australia for Stage I of the Ord River Irrigation Project are given in Appendix IV of last year's document.

The Western Australia Agreement (Ord River Irrigation) Act 1968 provides for financial assistance of up to \$48.2 million to Western Australia for Stage II of the Ord River Irrigation Project. The financial assistance is on the basis of a grant for the construction of the dam, and interest-bearing loans for the irrigation works. Each loan is repayable over a period of fifteen years commencing approximately nine and a half years after the end of the financial year during which payment was made.

Financial assistance made available for Stage II to 30 June 1976 amounted to \$24.3 million which includes payments totalling \$111 000 in 1975-76. The payments to date comprise \$21.8 million in the form of grants for the construction of the dam and \$2.5 million in the form of loans towards the cost of construction of the irrigation works. It is estimated that \$50 000 will be paid in 1976-77 as part of the loan component of the financial assistance.

#### Dartmouth Dam

Under the Dartmouth Reservoir Agreement Act 1970 the Commonwealth is providing financial assistance to New South Wales, Victoria and South Australia by way of loans towards their shares of the cost of constructing the Dartmouth Reservoir. The reservoir is being constructed under the River Murray Waters Agreement, to which the three States and the Commonwealth are parties, and that Agreement provided for the cost of construction to be shared equally by the four parties.

The Dartmouth Reservoir Agreement provides that the Commonwealth make payments to the three States of amounts equal to one half of the amounts that each State is required from time to time to provide to the River Murray Commission in respect of the cost of the construction of the Dartmouth Reservoir. The total amount of the financial assistance is limited to \$8.8 million to each State.

Payments to the three States to 30 June 1976 amounted to \$20.8 million, which includes payments amounting to \$8.4 million in 1975-76. It is estimated that the balance of \$5.6 million will be paid in 1976-77.

#### Namoi River Weirs

The Commonwealth has offered a \$2 million grant as financial assistance to New South Wales as a contribution towards the cost of construction of three weirs on the Namoi River. The weirs are designed to improve the availability of water supplies for irrigated cotton growing. The 1976-77 Budget includes an allocation of \$1 million for this purpose.

#### Water Resources Assessment

In 1964-65 the Commonwealth Government agreed to provide grants to the States in order to accelerate their programs of surface water measurement and investigation of underground water resources. The surface water program is aimed at completing a basic network of stream gauges throughout Australia; the underground investigations involve a general speeding up of the work of locating and measuring underground water resources. From 1974 the assistance was increased to allow for assessment of the quality of water resources. The Commonwealth Government has agreed to support this program for a further three years (1976-77 to 1978-79) and to provide \$6.7 million in 1976-77. The following table shows payments made to the States since 1972-73 and estimates for 1976-77:—

TABLE 65—GRANTS FOR THE ASSESSMENT OF WATER RESOURCES (\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1972-73	1 779	453	563	161	710	71	3 736
	1 182	762	770	371	1 300	71	4 455
	1 467	850	878	413	1 667	135	5 410
	1 499	891	932	468	1 981	140	5 911
	1 630	1 136	952	727	2 000	213	6 658

#### Water Hyacinth

The Commonwealth has decided to participate with New South Wales, Victoria and South Australia in a two-year plan to control the water hyacinth infestation in the Gingham watercourse in the Gwydir River System in New South Wales. In 1976-77 a Commonwealth grant of \$35 000 will be made to New South Wales for the purpose. The Commonwealth will provide further assistance by an acceleration of the CSIRO research program into the biological control of water hyacinth.

# Flood Mitigation

Under the New South Wales Grant (Flood Mitigation) Act 1971 grants were provided to New South Wales over the seven-year period ending 30 June 1976 towards the cost of flood mitigation works on various coastal rivers in the State. Assistance of \$8 million was previously provided under the New South Wales Grant (Flood Mitigation) Act 1964 (see Appendix IV of last year's document).

The grants were to assist in financing the cost of a program of additional works on the rivers covered under the previous legislation and of flood mitigation works on the Bellinger, Manning, Hawkesbury, Moruya and Hastings Rivers and the Cudgen, Cudgera and Mooball Creeks. Payments to 30 June 1976 amounted to \$9 million, including a final payment of \$2 million in 1975-76.

In addition, during 1974-75, the Commonwealth provided a grant of \$120 000 to Queensland for restoration of levees along the Proserpine River damaged as a result of severe flooding early in 1974. Under legislation expected to be passed this year, the Commonwealth Government will provide a grant of \$374 000 to Queensland towards the cost of construction of a flood mitigation scheme on the Proserpine River. The grant is conditional on the State Government and the Proserpine River Improvement Trust matching the Commonwealth Government's contribution. It is estimated that \$148 000 will be paid in 1976-77 and the balance over the following two years.

# Soil Conservation

The States Grants (Soil Conservation) Act 1974 provided for an interim two-year program of financial assistance to the States for soil conservation programs. Commencing in 1974-75 an amount of \$2.5 million was made available over the two years. New South Wales did not participate in the scheme.

In 1976-77 the balance of the funds provided under the Act remains available to reimburse the States for expenditure incurred on approved programs undertaken prior to 30 June 1976.

The following table shows grants paid since 1974-75 and estimated grants payable in 1976-77:—

TABLE	66—GRAN	TS FOR S (\$ thousan		ERVATION	ſ
 New South	Victoria	Queens-	South	Western	Toom

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1974–75		129 467 64	623 237	25 42 43	 74 136	 25 . 10	154 1 231 490

# Brigalow Lands Development Scheme

The Brigalow Lands Agreement Act 1962 approved an agreement with Queensland for the provision of financial assistance to that State for the development of 11 176 000 acres described as Areas 1, 2 and 3 in the Fitzroy River Basin. The principal purpose of the assistance is to increase the production of beef cattle.

The Act provides for assistance, subject to an overall limit of \$23 million, to finance expenditure incurred by the State on specified works during the thirteen years ending 30 June 1975. The assistance is in the form of interest-bearing loans repayable over twenty years. There is provision for the 'capitalisation' of interest payments—that is, for interest accruing in a year to be added to the amount of principal outstanding rather than paid to the Commonwealth. Amounts of such 'capitalised' interest are included in the relevant tables in this document as interest payments notionally made to the Commonwealth, with equivalent amounts advanced to the State. Payments, on this basis, have totalled \$18.39 million to 30 June 1976 (of which \$1.64 million represents capitalised interest). Not all eligible expenditure has yet been reimbursed to the State and it is estimated that a total of \$0.75 million will be paid in 1976-77.

# West Indian Dry-wood Termite Eradication

Following the discovery of an infestation of West Indian dry-wood termites in Maryborough, Queensland, the Commonwealth Government agreed in 1973 to share, on a \$1 for \$1 basis with the Queensland Government, the cost of the fumigation program recommended by a joint Commonwealth/State committee set up to investigate the matter. Because of circumstances beyond its control, the Queensland Government could not fully implement the type of fumigation program envisaged and the offer ceased to apply on 1 July 1975. An amount of \$8517 was paid to Queensland in 1975-76, as the Commonwealth's share of the fumigation program undertaken by the State authorities.

# Tourism Development

Grants for this program were initiated in 1972 on the basis of a \$1 for \$1 matching of State expenditures on the development of tourist attractions—such as Australiana and pioneer settlements, the preservation of historic sites and buildings, fauna sanctuaries and the like—considered to have particular appeal to overseas visitors. The scheme was amended in 1973 to remove the matching requirement and the criterion of appeal to overseas visitors and to cover, inter alia, such things as pioneer settlements, information and interpretative centres, visitor facilities, marinas, jetties and other basic infrastructure necessary for the development of tourist attractions.

The Government has decided to terminate this scheme. The amounts provided in 1976-77 relate to expected expenditure on outstanding commitments from previous years.

The following table shows payments made under this program and estimated payments for 1976-77:—

TABLE 67—CAPITAL GRANTS FOR DEVELOPMENT OF TOURIST ATTRACTIONS (\$ thousands)

			(W CITO GOGITA	,			
	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1972–73	228 543 74	50 236 511 59	 188 140 147	50  172 177 312	 10 46 313 50	38 210 145 191	50 98 1 081 1 829 833

# ECONOMIC SERVICES—LABOUR AND EMPLOYMENT

Coal Mining Industry—Long Service Leave

In those States where coal-miners have been awarded long service leave by industrial tribunals, the State Governments reimburse employers the cost of this leave. The Commonwealth Government, in turn, reimburses the States for the amounts paid and the administrative costs incurred by them in giving effect to these arrangements.

The funds required for these purposes are obtained from an excise imposed on coal production under the Coal Excise Act 1949. The rate is currently 4.4

cents per tonne. Amounts equivalent to the proceeds of the excise collections are appropriated to a Trust Fund under the States Grants (Coal Mining Industry Long Service Leave) Act 1949. Payments are made to the States from the Trust Fund.

The following table shows payments to the States since 1972-73 and estimated payments in 1976-77:—

TABLE 68—GRANTS FOR COAL MINING INDUSTRY LONG SERVICE LEAVE (\$ thousands)

	 		(# tilousanu.	·/			
	 New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1972–73 1973–74 1974–75 1975–76 1976–77 (estimate)	 I 604 I 782 2 478 2 779 3 250		316 410 429 454 525	  	90 139 161 167 190	2 16 5 6 5	2 012 2 347 3 073 3 407 3 970
(		• •	323		170		3 7 10

## Apprenticeship Training

The Commonwealth Government and the States agreed late in 1971-72 to collaborate in a scheme to improve supervision and advisory services in relation to the training of apprentices in industry. Provision of \$0.2 million is made in 1976-77 to subsidise the employment by the States of apprenticeship training supervisors. In addition, provision of \$4.36 million is also made in 1976-77 to meet costs incurred by the States in employing an estimated 850 apprentices, surplus to requirements, in establishments where training facilities are available.

A notional distribution of payments to the States for 1976-77 is included in the following table; no commitment to the provision of these amounts is implied.

TABLE 69—GRANTS FOR APPRENTICESHIP TRAINING
(\$ thousands)

		New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1972–73 .	:		72	25	19	11	2	129
1973–74 .		108	92	52	44	44	11	351
1974–75 .		161	227	212	93	65	41	799
1975–76		757	852	471	159	455	79	2 773
.1976–77 (estimate		1 570	1 297	580	431	546	136	4 560

#### GENERAL PUBLIC SERVICES

### Law, Order and Public Safety

# Legal Aid

The Commonwealth Government established a legal aid service, operated by the Australian Legal Aid Office, in July 1973. In addition to direct involvement in legal aid in that form, the Commonwealth Government has, in the period 1973-74 to 1975-76, made grants totalling \$4.481 million to the States to assist the functioning of existing legal aid schemes in the States.

The way in which legal aid will be provided in the States in the future is at present the subject of consideration between the Commonwealth and State Governments. Meanwhile, and without prejudice to the results of that review, the 1976-77 budget estimates have been prepared on the basis of maintaining the current level of staffing and activity. As part of these costs, an amount of \$1 million is allowed for as payments to the States in 1976-77. It has been notionally assumed that the State by State allocation of the total amount will be the same as in 1975-76, but there is no commitment in that respect.

The following table shows the grants to the States from 1973-74 and notional estimates for 1976-77:—

TABLE 70—RECURRENT GRANTS FOR LEGAL AID (\$ thousands)

	_	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1973–74. 1974–75. 1975–76. 1976–77(a)	•	732 404 331 331	557 408 276 276	296 161 131 131	187 273 89 89	166 164 124 124	62 71 49 49	2 000 1 481 1 000 1 000

<sup>(</sup>a) Notional estimates only and no commitment to the provision of these amounts is implied; see text above.

#### Family Law

The Family Law Act 1975, which came into operation on 5 January 1976, provides for Family Courts to be established in each State, either by the Commonwealth or by the State where it wishes to do so. Only Western Australia has chosen to establish its own Court and, under the provisions of the Act, Commonwealth assistance will be provided for its establishment and operation. An amount of \$760 000 was provided in 1975-76 and it is estimated that \$960 000 will be paid to Western Australia in 1976-77.

# Promotion of Road Safety Practices

In each year from 1947-48 grants have been made to the States to assist in the financing of public education programs for the promotion of road safety practices. Since 1970-71 the annual grants to the States have totalled \$150,000 and the distribution between States has also remained constant. The amounts are set out in the following table:—

TABLE 71—ANNUAL GRANTS FOR THE PROMOTION OF ROAD SAFETY PRACTICES 1970–71 TO 1976–77

(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
Each year 1970-71 to 1976-77	37	30	28	19	25	11	150

#### Research Grants

Since 1965-66 the Commonwealth has made grants to the States for research projects on the recommendation of the Australian Research Grants Committee. An outline of developments over the period 1965 to 1975 was given in Appendix IV of last year's document.

From 1976-77 onwards, the previous fixed triennial funding arrangements are to be replaced by the introduction of a three year rolling program.

An amount of \$11.2 million will be made available to the States in 1976-77 to finance research projects. This includes \$2.1 million to reimburse the universities for expenditure incurred on the Commonwealth's behalf in 1975-76.

The following table shows grants made since 1972-73 and estimates for 1976-77:—

TABLE	72—GRANTS	FOR	RESEARCH	<b>PROJECTS</b>
	. (\$	thous	ands)	

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1972–73 . 1973–74 . 1974–75 . 1975–76 . 1976–77 (estimate)(	2 11 2 09 2 58 2 2 34 3 4 37	1 540 1 821 1 553	641 700 853 706 1 319	851 955 1 369 950 1 776	370 410 470 320 599	172 204 227 130 243	5 767 5 901 7 324 6 000 11 214

<sup>(</sup>a) The State distribution is notional only; it assumes that the proportional distribution will be the same as for 1975-76, but there is no commitment in that regard.

#### ASSISTANCE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT

Commencing in 1976-77 local government authorities will participate, with the States, in a new scheme of tax sharing. Details of this scheme as well as other schemes of assistance, insofar as they affect local government authorities, are given in Chapter V.

# ASSISTANCE FOR NATURAL DISASTER RELIEF

When natural disasters causing damage and destruction occur in a State, the Commonwealth stands ready to join with the State Government concerned on a \$1 for \$1 basis in meeting expenditure on the immediate relief of personal hardship and distress, except where such expenditure is of a very minor nature. Such expenditures may cover provision of food, clothing, shelter and repair of homes to make them habitable and secure.

In respect of 'major' disasters, the Commonwealth also assists with expenditures on other agreed relief and restoration measures when the expenditures are considered to be beyond the capacity of the State concerned to meet from its own resources. In specific terms, the Commonwealth meets all expenditures by a State

in a year on agreed measures necessitated by major disasters in excess of a certain base amount set for that State. The annual base amount which has applied for each State since 1971 is as follows:—

		\$	million
New South Wales			5.0
Victoria			3.5
Queensland .	•		2.0
South Australia .			1.5
Western Australia			1.5
Tasmania			0.6

For these purposes, 'major' disasters are regarded as those necessitating expenditures on agreed relief and restoration measures in excess of one-tenth of the State's base annual expenditure.

The relief and restoration measures for each disaster are agreed having regard to the particular circumstances applying. However, assistance for the following measures has been applicable when warranted in respect of the types of disasters indicated:—

- (a) relief of personal hardship and distress (cyclones, floods, storms, bushfires);
- (b) grants for the restoration of Government, local and semi-government authority assets and facilities; semi-government and local authorities are expected to bear a proportion of the cost of restoring their assets—generally one-quarter of the expenditure involved up to the first \$100,000 for each authority (as in (a));
- (c) loan assistance on concessional terms to primary producers to enable them to get back into operation where finance is not available from other sources and where they can, with such assistance, continue to operate successfully (drought, floods, bushfires);
- (d) rail rebates for primary producers for certain purposes and free carriage of food, clothing, etc. (as in (c));
- (e) subsidies on road transport of fodder and stock (as in (c));
- (f) loans on concessional terms to small business enterprises (floods); and
- (g) loans on concessional terms to churches, sporting bodies and other non-profit voluntary organisations (floods).

The Commonwealth usually does not provide grant assistance for the repair or restoration of private assets damaged or destroyed as a result of a natural disaster. Major exceptions have been where widespread damage has occurred; e.g. bushfires in Tasmania in 1967 and flooding in Queensland in the early part of 1974.

Table 121 in Appendix III shows payments that have been made to each State since 1972-73 in respect to various types of disaster (drought, flood, storm and cyclone and bushfires. Reflecting the differing incidence of disasters, the amounts vary considerably from one State to another and from one year to another.

In 1974-75, the Commonwealth provided a record \$53.2 million as natural disaster relief assistance to affected States, mainly for floods in New South Wales, Victoria and Queensland. In the following year all mainland States received assistance. Recently the Commonwealth has agreed to support Victoria and Western Australia in the provision of drought relief but, on the basis of present estimates, no assistance would be payable to Victoria in 1976-77 because expenditures by the State are not expected to exceed the State's base amount of \$3.5 million.

The following table shows payments to the States from 1972-73, including estimated payments in 1976-77. Details of payments for natural disaster relief and restoration purposes in previous years are included in Table 120 in Appendix III. Table 122 gives a more detailed breakdown of payments in 1973-74 to 1975-76.

TABLE 73—PAYMENTS FOR NATURAL DISASTER RELIEF AND RESTORATION 1972-73 TO 1976-77(a)

(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
		GRANTS FO	OR RECURRE	NT PURPOSE	s	·	<del></del>
1972–73.		40	32				72
1973–74.	19	. 22	3 990				4 031
1974–75.	622	355	113				1 090
1975–76.	637	35	52		83		807
1976-77 (estimate) .	115	• •	75	l	1 000		1 190
		PAYMENTS	FOR CAPIT	AL PURPOSES	5		
1972–73.			-74		1	-3	-77
1973–74	281		23 869		1	-3	24 147
1974–75	15 822	9 452	26 721	114			52 109
1975–76	13 268	6 215	6 400	108	4 264	-7	30 248
1976-77 (estimate) .	8 385		10 625		5 000	., `	24 010
		T	OTAL PAYM	ENTS			
1972–73		40	- 42	ı	1	-3	-5
1973–74.	300	22	27 859		1	-3	28 178
1974–75	16 444	9 807	26 834	114		1 [	53 199
1975–76	13 905	6 250	6 452	108	4 347	-7	31 055
1976-77 (estimate) .	8 500		10 700		6 000	1 1	25 200

<sup>(</sup>a) Excludes the cost of emergency services provided by the Defence Force and Commonwealth contributions to official disaster relief appeals in the States. The latter totalled \$600 000 in 1973-74. Figures are after allowing for refunds received in year in respect of payments in previous years; for an explanation see the schedule of refunds following Table 120 in Appendix III.

# CHAPTER V—PAYMENTS TO OR FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES

Local government authorities in Australia are established under Acts of the State Parliaments for the purpose of providing certain public services within defined geographical boundaries. The functions of these authorities, which are generally prescribed by State legislation, differ significantly between States and, indeed, within States.

Prior to 1973 no Commonwealth assistance was provided specifically for local government. Successive Commonwealth Governments had taken the view that as local authorities were constituted and functioned under State laws, it was the responsibility of the State Governments to assess and provide for the needs of local government in the light of local government's overall responsibilities and the revenue raising resources available to it. The Commonwealth, for its part, provided general purpose funds to the States to assist in the financing of all the States' expenditure responsibilities, including this particular area.

(There were, however, over this period, a number of Commonwealth programs—mostly of a relatively minor kind—under which local authorities were among the bodies eligible for assistance either directly or through the States. Details of these programs are included later in this Chapter.)

The major developments concerning Commonwealth assistance for local government in recent years are summarised below.

While the borrowing arrangements of local government authorities do not involve Commonwealth payments to or for such authorities, this Chapter includes material on such funds because of their relevance in the general context of Commonwealth/State/Local Government financial relations.

Then follows an outline of various Commonwealth programs involving payments to or for local government authorities. The Chapter ends with a summary of the various forms of such payments.

# DEVELOPMENTS OVER THE PERIOD 1972-1975

General Purpose Assistance Provided on Advice of the Grants Commission. The Labor Government which was elected in December 1972 took the view that the Commonwealth should be involved in the provision of financial assistance specifically for local government and put forward a number of proposals designed to achieve this objective.

Most important of these was a proposal that the Commonwealth provide general purpose funds for local government bodies and that these funds be provided in such a way as to promote financial equality between local authorities and regional groupings of such authorities.

In 1973 the Commonwealth Parliament passed the *Grants Commission Act* 1973 repealing the *Grants Commission Act* 1933. The Act, inter alia, laid down procedures for regional organisations of local government to apply for financial assistance from the Commonwealth and for such applications to be the subject of inquiry and report by the Grants Commission.

After consideration of written and oral submissions and evidence from interested parties, the Commission recommended grants for local government totalling \$56 345 000 in 1974-75 and \$79 908 000 in 1975-76, and further recommended that the grants be paid without conditions attached to their use by local government authorities. The Commonwealth accepted the Grants Commission's recommendations in both years. The payments were made in the first instance to State Governments for transmission to individual local government authorities in the amounts specified. The payments made to each State are set out in Table 74 below.

## Proposals for Constitutional Change

Following discussions in the Australian Constitutional Convention, the then Prime Minister proposed at a Heads of Government meeting in October 1973 that the Financial Agreement be amended to allow local government representation on the Loan Council and to allow the Commonwealth to borrow on behalf of local government authorities and to provide the funds so obtained direct to those bodies. The States would not agree to these proposals.

Subsequently, on 18 May 1974, two proposals aimed at enabling the Commonwealth to borrow on behalf of, and to provide assistance direct to, local authorities were put to referendum at the Commonwealth's initiative. Both proposals were defeated.

Proposals for Constitutional change in regard to local government continue to be under consideration in the context of the Constitutional Convention.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ASSISTANCE UNDER THE NEW TAX SHARING ARRANGEMENTS As noted in Chapter II, the sharing of personal income tax between the Commonwealth, the States and local government represents a central element in the Government's Federalism policies.

Following discussions at the February and April 1976 Premiers' Conferences as to how local government might share in the proceeds of personal income tax and the consideration of reports by the Grants Commission and a committee of Commonwealth and State officers, agreement was reached at the June 1976 Premiers' Conference on a new scheme of general purpose assistance for local government.

#### Under this scheme:-

- an amount of \$140 million (an increase of 75.2 per cent on the amount provided in 1975-76 under the previous scheme) will be provided to the States in 1976-77 for distribution to local government;
- a percentage figure would be determined by relating the amount of \$140 million to personal income tax collections in 1975-76;
- in 1977-78 and each subsequent year the amounts of general purpose assistance to local government will be determined by applying a percentage to Commonwealth personal income tax collections in the immediately preceding year (excluding the effects of any Commonwealth or State surcharges or rebates);

- the total amount of \$140 million in 1976-77 will be distributed among the States on the basis of a percentage distribution recommended by the Grants Commission (see Table 74 below);
- each State will be required to devote a minimum of 30 per cent of each years' assistance to 'element A' grants which are to be distributed among all local authorities in the State on a basis which takes into account the population within the borders of each authority but may also take into account area, population density or other factors as may be proposed by a State and agreed to by the Commonwealth. However, each State is to be free to devote more than 30 per cent of the assistance to 'element A' grants if it wishes; and
- the remaining assistance within each State is to be devoted to 'element B' grants to be distributed among local authorities, having regard to their respective financial needs, on the recommendation of State Grants Commissions.

The States have agreed to Commonwealth proposals that State Grants Commissions should be established, by legislation, as independent tribunals and that their reports should be public documents. However, it was recognised that there would not be time for all States to establish such bodies this year. In addition, some States wished to operate for a period under less formal arrangements so that legislation might be drawn up in the light of experience.

The Commonwealth agreed that, for the current year and the next, the States will be able to operate Grants Commissions under administrative arrangements with legislative arrangements applying thereafter.

At the June 1976 Premiers' Conference the Commonwealth expressed the view that it would be desirable if the distribution of assistance in each State could be such that no individual authority received a lesser amount of assistance in 1976-77 than it did under the previous scheme in 1975-76. The States agreed that this would be an objective.

One matter which is being further examined is whether the percentage distribution of the total local government assistance between the States which is to apply in 1976-77 should also apply in subsequent years (subject to the overall review of the tax sharing arrangements as a whole which is to take place before the end of 1980-81) or whether the matter should be further examined by the Commonwealth Grants Commission.

The following table shows the amount of assistance paid to each State in 1974-75 and 1975-76, and the amount to be paid in 1976-77, for on-passing as general purpose assistance to local government authorities.

TÄBLE 74—GRANTS TO STATES FOR ON-PASSING AS GENERAL PURPOSE ASSISTANCE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES

(\$ thousands)

	_		New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1974–75(a) 1975–76(a) 1976–77(b)		•	21 359 29 257 51 289	14 630 20 242 35 398	8 954 13 808 24 222	4 774 6 785 11 925	4 959 7 524 13 162	1 669 2 292 4 004	56 345 79 908 140 000

(a) Amounts recommended by the Grants Commission.

#### BORROWING ARRANGEMENTS FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES

As explained in Chapter III, the borrowings of Commonwealth and State Government authorities, including those of local government authorities, come within the purview of the Loan Council under the 'Gentlemen's Agreement' originating in 1936. The Loan Council determines maximum interest rates and other terms and conditions of loans raised by authorities and also approves annual overall programs for 'larger' authorities (at present those borrowing more than \$800 000 in a year) in each State. These borrowings are arranged by the individual authorities, with guarantees and other assistance being provided in some cases by the State Governments.

# Borrowings by Local Government Authorities in 1975-76 and 1976-77

The table below shows aggregate borrowings by all 'larger' and 'smaller' authorities in 1975-76 and the amounts borrowed within these aggregates by local government authorities, together with corresponding estimates for 1976-77. (Figures for earlier years are given in Appendix II.) It will be seen that a considerable proportion of, but not all, borrowings in the 'smaller' authorities category are made by local government authorities. It will be seen also that the amounts of borrowings by local government authorities vary markedly between the States (after taking account of differences in population). This reflects a number of factors including, importantly, variations between the States in the range of functions allocated to local government. As an example, the particularly high figures for Queensland reflect, in part, large borrowings by the Brisbane City Council, which carries out a number of functions (e.g., metropolitan omnibus services and sewerage) which in other States are undertaken by semi-government authorities.

<sup>(</sup>b) Allocation between States based on a percentage distribution recommended by the Grants Commission.

# TABLE 75—NEW MONEY BORROWINGS BY COMMONWEALTH AND STATE AUTHORITIES

(\$ thousands)

	]									
	'Larger' A	uthorities(a)	'Smaller' A	All Local						
	Total	Local Government Authorities	Total	Local Government Authorities	Government Authorities(c)					
,										
	1975-76 ACTUAL									
Commonwealth Government .	74 597	597			597					
New South Wales Victoria Queensland South Australia Western Australia Tasmania  Total States  Grand Total  Victoria  Total States  Grand Total	(d)303 720 256 692 (d)149 769 38 120 38 264 23 107 809 672	(e)104 220 21 835 76 169 5 300 5 175 8 007 220 706	65 439 63 281 54 739 18 201 33 890 9 116 244 666	(e)59 627 41 208 25 928 11 531 22 670 6 496 167 460	(e)163 847 63 043 102 097 16 831 27 845 14 503 388 166 388 763					
_			TIMATES(f)							
Commonwealth Government .	483 768	1 268	• • •	1	1 268					
New South Wales	360 108 304 351 177 575 45 200 45 369 27 397	(e)121 108 20 200 80 400 4 300 8 050 9 826	78 130 79 000 62 576 25 000 41 930 12 500	(e)65 000 49 000 34 213 17 500 27 500 8 500	(e)186 108 69 200 114 613 21 800 35 550 18 326					
Total States	960 000	243 884	299 136	201 713	445 597					
Grand Total	1 443 768	245 152	299 136	201 713	446 865					

<sup>(</sup>a) In 1975-76 'larger' authorities were those borrowing more than \$700 000; in 1976-77 they are those borrowing more than \$800 000. The aggregate of these borrowings in each State is subject to approval by the Loan Council. All borrowings by Commonwealth Government authorities, whatever their magnitude, are however, included in the 'larger' authorities category.

(b) In 1975-76 'smaller' authorities were those borrowing \$700 000 or less; in 1976-77 they are those borrowing \$800 000 or less. No aggregate limit on these borrowings is imposed by the Loan Council. See footnote (a).

(d) Includes special permanent addition to the State's larger authorities' borrowing program.

(e) Includes borrowing by County Councils.

# COMMONWEALTH PAYMENTS MADE DIRECT TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES

There are no Commonwealth programs of direct payments to local government authorities designed for the specific purpose of providing financial assistance to these authorities.

There are, however, a number of programs under which local government authorities are among bodies that are eligible for, and that have received, Commonwealth assistance paid direct to them. The programs concerned are summarised

<sup>(</sup>c) The total of borrowings by local government authorities in both the 'larger' and 'smaller' authorities categories.

<sup>(</sup>f) Amounts shown for borrowings by all 'larger' authorities are the programs approved at the June 1976 meeting of the Loan Council. Other amounts shown are tentative estimates made by the Commonwealth and State Treasuries.

below. Wide variations between the States in the amounts paid for particular programs reflect, amongst other things, differences in the extent to which the activities concerned are carried out by local government bodies rather than by private organisations or by State Government departments or agencies.

#### Pre-school and Child Care Services

Under the Childhood Services Program grants are made direct to local government authorities and community organisations towards the cost of the establishment and operation of a range of care and associated services for children, including educational services for young children.

In 1975-76 grants paid directly to local government authorities under the Childhood Services Program totalled \$6.4 million. It was not possible at the time this document was prepared to provide useful estimates of the amounts which might be made available to local government authorities in 1976-77.

Grants made direct to local government authorities in the years 1973-74 to 1975-76 are shown in the following table:—

TABLE 76—PRE-SCHOOL AND CHILD CARE SERVICES
GRANTS DIRECT TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES
(\$ thousands)

<u> </u>			New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
			·		RECURRENT		!		
1973-74		. 1	1		i	٠	. 4	l i	4
1974-75		.	68	44	25		12	138	287
1975–76	•	.	187	202	18		189	177	773
					CAPITAL				
1973-74			149	76	37	] 3	90	86	441
1974-75		. [	584	491	471	155	369	108	2 178
1975–76	•	.	1 458	2 194	472	580	436	455	5 595
					Total				
1973-74		. 1	149	76	37	1 3	94	86	445
1974-75			652	535	496	155	381	247	2 465
1975-76		.	1 645	2 396	490	580	625	632	6 368

### Nursing Homes

In 1974-75 the Commonwealth Government introduced a scheme under which religious, charitable and other non-profit organisations conducting nursing homes may receive assistance from the Commonwealth Government in meeting deficits incurred in running the homes. Local government authorities operating nursing homes on a non-profit basis are eligible to participate in this scheme.

Only one local government authority—in Western Australia—is participating in the scheme so far. That authority received \$121 000 in 1975-76 in respect of a new 30 bed nursing home it opened in October 1975. It is estimated that an amount of \$173 000 will be provided to meet the home's operating deficit in 1976-77.

#### Home Nursing

Under the *Home Nursing Subsidy Act* 1956 organisations (other than profit making bodies and bodies conducted or controlled by a State Government) conducting home nursing services are eligible for annual subsidies depending on the numbers of nurses employed on home nursing duties. The amount of Commonwealth Government assistance cannot exceed the amount received by the organisation from a State Government or a local government authority.

Local government authorities in Tasmania and New South Wales have received assistance under this scheme. The only local government authorities expected to participate in 1976-77, however, are in New South Wales. The amounts of grants that have been paid to such authorities since 1972-73 and estimates for 1976-77 are shown in the following table:—

TABLE 77—GRANTS MADE DIRECT TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES FOR HOME NURSING

	1972–73	1973–74	1974–75	1975–76	1976-77 (estimate)
New South Wales	72 1	89 2	139 2	163	199
Total	73 -	91	141	163	199

(\$ thousands)

#### Aged or Disabled Persons Homes

Under the Aged or Disabled Persons Homes Act 1954 local government authorities, along with religious, charitable and certain other organisations, are eligible to receive assistance for the capital and operating costs associated with the provision of certain kinds of accommodation for the aged.

The Act was amended in 1957 to put the assistance on a \$2 for \$1 basis, and in 1967 it was amended to include local government authorities as eligible organisations for purposes of the scheme (organisations conducted or controlled by the Commonwealth or State Governments remain ineligible).

The rate of subsidy was increased to \$4 for \$1 in December 1974 up to a maximum subsidy of \$7800 for a single unit and \$9000 for a double unit. Earlier this year the Government decided to reduce the subsidy rate to \$2 for \$1 while increasing the maximum subsidy limit to \$10 200 for a single unit and \$11 850 for a double unit.

In 1969 the Act was amended to provide for the payment of personal care subsidies of \$20 a month in respect of persons aged eighty years and over resident in accommodation provided by an approved organisation. The subsidy is presently \$60 a month. In 1973 the subsidy was also extended to persons aged less than eighty years.

No personal care subsidies have yet been paid to local government authorities, but it is expected that \$128 000 will be paid to such authorities in 1976-77 out of total estimated payments of \$11 million.

The greater part of the capital grants under this Act is paid to organisations other than local government authorities. In 1975-76 local government authorities received \$2.8 million out of total capital grants of \$34.7 million. For 1976-77 it is estimated that local government authorities will receive \$3.3 million out of total estimated payments under the Act of \$20 million.

The following table shows the grants that have been paid to local government authorities in each State since 1972-73 together with estimates for 1976-77:—

TABLE 78—GRANTS DIRECT TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES FOR EXPENDITURE ON AGED OR DISABLED PERSONS HOMES

(\$ thousand	ls)
--------------	-----

-	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
			RECURRENT	r			
1976-77 (estimate) .	13	105	6	4	i	1	128
			CAPITAL				
1972-73	124 304 43 290 848	427 380 672 877 450	20 22 61 91 269	175 57 367 1 008 1 670	21 369 37	68 125 41	746 763 1 232 2 760 3 315
•			Total				
1972–73	124 304 43 290 861	427 380 672 877 555	20 22 61 91 275	175 57 367 1 008 1 674	21 369 37	68 125 41	746 763 1 232 2 760 3 443

#### Aged Persons Hostels

Under the Aged Persons Hostels Act 1972, local government authorities, along with religious, charitable and other organisations, are eligible to receive assistance for the capital costs associated with the provision of hostel accommodation for the aged.

Subject to certain conditions, the Commonwealth Government meets the cost of providing hostel accommodation by eligible organisations up to a maximum of \$15 300 a person. The Government also pays an additional grant of up to \$2400 a person for the purchase of land; a further \$250 a person is available for furnishings.

1975-76 was the first year in which local government authorities received assistance under the Act. The following table shows grants paid to local government authorities in 1975-76 together with estimates for 1976-77:—

TABLE 79—GRANTS DIRECT TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES UNDER THE AGED PERSONS HOSTELS ACT

(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1975-76		284 1 300	77 140				361 1 440

#### Delivered Meals Subsidy

Under the *Delivered Meals Subsidy Act* 1970 eligible organisations—which include local government authorities but not Commonwealth and State Government Departments or agencies—can receive assistance for the provision of what are known as 'meals on wheels' services. Since 1974 assistance has been at the rate of 30 cents for meals with an approved vitamin C supplement and 25 cents for meals without such a supplement.

The table below shows grants that have been paid to local government authorities under this scheme since 1972-73 and estimated grants in 1976-77. The lack of grants to local government authorities in some States reflects, in part, a greater degree of activity by private, voluntary bodies in those States. In 1975-76 total payments under the Act were \$1.8 million, of which \$0.5 million was paid to local government authorities. For 1976-77 it is estimated that local government bodies will receive \$0.7 million out of total estimated payments under the Act of \$2.0 million.

TABLE 80—GRANTS MADE DIRECT TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES FOR DELIVERED MEALS

(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1972-73	58 104 126 130 138	124 287 366 341 500			7 24 30 40 38		189 415 522 511 676

#### Handicapped Persons Assistance

The Handicapped Persons Assistance Act 1974 replaced the Sheltered Employment (Assistance) Act and the Handicapped Children (Assistance) Act.

Under the Act, local government authorities and voluntary non-profit bodies are eligible to receive assistance for the accommodation and employment and training of disabled people. Capital grants are provided on a \$4 for \$1 basis; assistance with rent is also on a \$4 for \$1 basis and assistance for staffing is on a \$1 for \$1 basis.

In addition a training fee of \$500 is paid to eligible sheltered workshops for each former employee who, after completing more than six months sheltered employment, graduates to, and retains normal employment for 12 months or more.

Only one local government authority, in New South Wales, has received assistance under the scheme. Payments to date and estimated payments for 1976-77 are shown in the following table:—

### TABLE 81—GRANTS MADE DIRECT TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES FOR HANDICAPPED PERSONS

(\$	thousands	)
-----	-----------	---

-			Recurrent	Capital	Total
197273 .			 4	14	18
1973–74 .			4	1	5
1974–75 .			3	1	4
1975–76 .			9	33	42
1976-77 (estin	nate)	٠.	46	48	94

#### Regional Employment Development Scheme

This scheme, first introduced in September 1974, provided more than 81 000 separate jobs of varying duration.

The aim of the scheme was to provide for financial assistance towards expenditures by local government authorities, State Government Departments, semi-government authorities, and non-government bodies such as community, sporting and recreational organisations and charitable bodies on projects of economic and/or social benefit providing employment for persons who would have otherwise remained out of work.

In 1975-76 payments to local government authorities in the States under the scheme amounted to \$94.0 million out of total expenditures during the year of \$123.4 million. The scheme has now ceased but it is estimated that there will be a carry over in 1976-77 of \$350 000 in respect of expenditure incurred in 1975-76 for which claims have not yet been lodged. Of this amount, it is expected that payments to local government authorities in the States will total \$339 000. Details are set out in the following table:—

TABLE 82—PAYMENTS UNDER THE REGIONAL EMPLOYMENT DEVELOPMENT SCHEME (\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1974-75— Payments to State Government	-						
Departments and Semi-							
Government Authorities Payments to Local		4 292	1 916	1 113	608	534	8 463
Government Authorities .	21 278	4 435	7 523	3 596	4 895	1 841	(b)43 567
Payments to Other Bodies(a)	6 434	279	543	138	315	646	8 354
Total	27 712	9 006	9 982	4 846	5 817	3 020	(b)60 384
1975-76— Payments to State Government Departments and Semi-	•						
Government Authorities Payments to Local	207	5 404	2 781	3 294	1 840	1 521	15 047
Government Authorities	42 830	14 210	17 322	6 363	7 283	5 986	93 994
Payments to Other Bodies(a)	7 734	1 722	1 923	1 048	539	1 396	14 362
Total	50 771	21 336	22.026	10 704	9 663	8 903	123 403
1976-77 (estimate)— Payments to State Government Departments and Semi-							
Government Authorities Payments to Local		2		1	1		4
Government Authorities Payments to Other	25	6	300	3	3	2	339
Bodies(a)	5	1		1			7
Total	30	9	300	5	4	2	350

(a) That is, non-government bodies.

<sup>(</sup>b) Excludes \$13 000 paid to local government authorities in the Northern Territory.

#### Homeless Persons Assistance

Under the *Homeless Persons* (Assistance) Act 1974 capital grants are made to voluntary agencies, local and statutory authorities, over a three-year period, for approved projects to upgrade and replace existing inadequate accommodation, and to build new facilities, for homeless men and women. Assistance is also provided towards the cost of accommodation and meals, and to meet half the salaries of welfare officers performing approved services for homeless persons.

In 1975-76 a grant of \$102 000 was made to a local government authority in Victoria. In 1976-77 it is expected that a grant of \$4000 will be made to the same local government authority.

#### Aboriginal Advancement

The Commonwealth provides direct grants to local government authorities (and also Aboriginal Councils) under its Special Works Projects Scheme for the employment and/or training of Aboriginals. It also makes grants for other purposes from time to time on an ad hoc basis. Local government authorities have also received portions of grants which the Commonwealth has made to the States for Aboriginal advancement (see below).

Grants for Aboriginal advancement made direct to local government authorities in 1973-74, 1974-75 and 1975-76 and estimates for 1976-77 are shown in the following table. Payments in 1972-73 totalled only \$9000.

TABLE 83—GRANTS DIRECT TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES FOR ABORIGINAL ADVANCEMENT

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1973-74 Special Works Projects Other.	1 223 94	175	904 166	296	411	30	3 039 260
Total	1 317	175	1 070	296	411	30	3 299
1974-75 Special Works Projects Other	1 608 17	196	1 939 95	225	594		4 562 112
Total	1 625	196	2 034	225	594		4 674
1975-76— Special Works Projects . Other .	576 48	359	1 437	270	768		3 410 48
Total	624	359	1 437	270	768		3 458
1976-77 (estimate)— Special Works Projects Other(a)	395	130	511	24	350		1 410
Total	395	130	511	24	350		1 410

<sup>(</sup>a) This assistance is provided on an ad hoc basis. No estimates for the year ahead can be made.

#### Arts

Local government authorities are eligible to receive assistance for community arts activities under a program administered by the Community Arts Committee of the Australia Council. Grants in 1973-74, 1974-75 and 1975-76 to local government authorities are shown in the following table. As these grants depend on the consideration of applications made during the course of a year, no estimate of grants likely to be paid to local government authorities in 1976-77 can be made at this stage.

TABLE 84—GRANTS DIRECT TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES FOR COMMUNITY ARTS ACTIVITIES

(\$	thousa	nds)
-----	--------	------

		 New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1973–74 1974–75 1975–76	•	14 34 46	8 23 46	5		4		22 66 101

#### Aerodrome Local Ownership Plan

Assistance is provided to local government authorities and to other bodies under the Aerodrome Local Ownership Plan to establish, develop and maintain local aerodromes on their own initiative and to take over aerodromes owned by the Commonwealth. Funds are provided on a \$1 for \$1 basis by the Commonwealth for both developmental and maintenance works proposals which meet the relevant criteria. Where an authority takes over a Government owned aerodrome, the Commonwealth meets 100 per cent of the cost of any approved 'pre-transfer' works necessary to bring the aerodrome up to an acceptable standard. The following table shows the payments made to local authorities in each State under the Aerodrome Local Ownership Plan since 1972-73 and estimated payments in 1976-77:—

### TABLE 85—GRANTS DIRECT TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES FOR AERODROMES

(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
	1		RECURRE	NT	I	1	
1972-73	230 240 259 361 405	53 68 77 97 130	149 163 221 236 244	12 10 16 39 35	33 51 47 105 110	9 8 12 15 17	486 541 632 854 941
			Саріта	L			
1972–73 1973–74 1974–75 1975–76 1976–77 (estimate)	101 244 404 166 188	25 24 34 93 104	178 84 83 216 218	25 7 21 21	46 18 20 47 65	7 14 7 7 4	382 383 555 550 600
			TOTAL				
197273	331 484 663 527 593	78 92 111 190 234	327 247 304 452 462	37 10 23 60 56	79 69 67 152 175	16 22 19 22 21	868 924 1 187 1 404 1 541

#### Water Supplies—Townsville

In 1967 the Commonwealth Government agreed to provide advances to the Townsville City Council to assist in the provision of additional reservoirs and water mains in order to ensure adequate water supplies to the defence housing and barracks complex at West Townsville. Advances totalling \$1 255 000 were made during 1967-68 and 1968-69. Interest of \$303 000 accruing during the first five years was capitalised. The loan is repayable over 40 years and bears interest at the long term bond rate prevailing when the advances were made. Loan repayments commenced in 1973-74.

#### PAYMENTS TO STATES FOR ON-PASSING TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES

As explained above, the funds provided by the Commonwealth as general purpose assistance for local government take the form of payments to the State Governments for on-passing to individual local authorities. There are also other programs of payments to the States under which portions of the funds provided are passed on to local government authorities. However, it should be noted that the degree of influence exerted by the Commonwealth over the particular amounts paid to local authorities varies considerably among different programs as does the availability of information relating to those amounts. In some cases (for example, employment grants) the amounts passed on to local government authorities are wholly at the discretion of the State Governments.

Each of the programs concerned is summarised, in general terms, in Chapter IV. The purpose of this section is to outline the way in which local government is involved and to provide available details of the amounts paid to the States for on-passing to local government authorities. As with the programs of direct payments, differences between the States in the amounts of payments in this category which have been made to local government authorities reflect, in part, differences in the extent to which the functions concerned are undertaken by local government authorities rather than by State Government departments or agencies or private bodies.

It is emphasised that the payments referred to in this Section are included in the totals of payments to the States shown in this document.

Because of the lag, in some cases, between payment of the funds concerned to the States and their allocation by the States, the amounts of funds paid to the States for local government authorities under a particular program in any year are not necessarily precisely equal to the amounts paid to authorities in that year. The figures provided below generally relate to payments made to the States for local government authorities but, in some cases, they relate to amounts paid by the States to authorities.

#### Special Assistance to Exmouth Shire

As mentioned in Chapter IV the Western Australian Government sought financial assistance towards the operational costs of Exmouth Shire which was established with the main purpose of servicing the United States Naval Communications Station at North West Cape. An amount of \$150 000 was paid to the Western Australian Government on a \$1 for \$1 basis for on-passing to the Shire in 1975-76 from Department of Defence Appropriations. This grant was additional to that provided to the Shire as a result of Grants Commission recommendations. Provision has been made for a further payment of \$140 000 in 1976-77 under similar conditions.

#### Pre-school and Child Care Services

Commonwealth Government assistance for services for children is outlined in Chapter IV and earlier in this Chapter in the section on 'Commonwealth Payments Made Direct to Local Government Authorities'. Briefly, the position is that, in addition to direct grants to local government and private bodies, grants will continue to be made to the States. Some of the grants to the States are for

on-passing to local government authorities. At the time this document was prepared, it was not possible to provide useful estimates of the amounts which might be made available to local government authorities in this way in 1976-77.

The following table shows payments made in the years 1973-74 to 1975-76 for these purposes:—

TABLE 86-PRE-SCHOOL AND CHILD CARE SERVICES-GRANTS TO STATES FOR ON-PASSING TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES

(\$ thousands)

	 	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia.	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1973–74 1974–75 1975–76	•	 547 1 674	284 2 758 5 468	 41 		 166 870		284 3 512 8 094

#### Home Care Services and Senior Citizens Centres

Grants for these purposes are provided under the States Grants (Home Care) Act 1969. Local government authorities are amongst the bodies eligible for assistance. Of the total grants of \$9.9 million paid to the States under this Act in 1975-76, \$5.6 million, or about 57 per cent, were for local government authorities. Assistance under the Act is not available to State Government Departments or agencies.

Grants that have been provided since 1972-73 to each State Government for on-passing to local government authorities in respect of home care services, together with estimates for 1976-77, are shown in the following table:—

TABLE 87-HOME CARE SERVICES-GRANTS TO STATES FOR ON-PASSING TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES (\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1972–73	330	390 370 441 2 125 1 700	973	475	 6 27	253	390 370 2 478 2 158 1 700

The grants that have been paid since 1972-73 to each State for on-passing to local government authorities in respect of senior citizens centres, and estimates for 1976-77 are shown in the following table:—

TABLE 88—SENIOR CITIZENS CENTRES—GRANTS TO STATES FOR ON-PASSING TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES

(\$ thousands)

			(* ************************************	<del>-,</del>			
	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
			RECURRENT	r			
1972-73	226 263 290	16 35 51 175 258	3 18 11 	 16 7 28	5 15 15 18 49		29 72 319 463 635
			CAPITAL				
1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 (estimate)	102 242 349 941 1 100	223 158 146 1 132 1 400	3 30 113 	132 47 363 567 300	67 123 28 304 470	28 13 154 2 20	555 613 1 153 2 946 3 590
			TOTAL				
1972-73	103 246 575 1 204 1 390	239 193 197 1 307 1 658	6 48 124 	136 47 379 574 328	72 138 43 322 519	28 13 154 2 20	584 685 1 472 3 409 4 225

#### Employment Grants

As outlined in Chapter IV the Commonwealth Government has made assistance available to the States for the purposes of assisting employment during the period December 1971 to November 1975. Portions of these grants were passed on, at the discretion of the States, to local government authorities.

The following table gives details of the grants passed on to local government from 1972-73 to 1975-76:—

TABLE 89—EMPLOYMENT—GRANTS TO THE STATES PASSED ON TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES

	_		New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1972–73.			18 631	7 020	11 224	5 720		2 692	45 287
1973-74.			4 164	4 340	2 102	3 659		390	14 655
1974-75.		.	7 668	1 330	3 503	1 373	421	549	14 844
1975-76.			6 068	3 170	3 018	1 802	481	350	14 889

#### Aboriginal Advancement

Grants to the States for Aboriginal advancement are for specific projects and programs approved by the Commonwealth Government; some of these projects have been undertaken by local government authorities. The following table shows payments made since 1972-73. No payments are expected to be made in 1976-77.

TABLE 90—ABORIGINAL ADVANCEMENT—GRANTS TO STATES FOR ON-PASSING TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES

(\$	thousands)

_			New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1972–73 1973–74 1974–75	•		890 	37 112	1 155 	140 10	691 16 152		2 913 138 152
1975–76	•	-	11	353	237				601

#### Growth Centres

Payments have been made since 1973-74 to New South Wales and Victoria for on-passing to local government authorities in the Albury-Wodonga area and since 1974-75 to New South Wales for on-passing to authorities in the Bathurst-Orange area.

The payments were in respect of expenditures in those years on the construction and up-grading of certain specific facilities such as roads, bridges, drainage, water supply, sewerage, parks and reserves. The financial assistance was provided two-thirds by way of loans and one-third by way of grants.

The following table shows the amounts on-passed to local government authorities from 1973-74 to 1975-76. Further payments are expected to be made in 1976-77 but estimates are not available at this stage.

TABLE 91—GROWTH CENTRES—PAYMENTS TO THE STATES FOR ON-PASSING TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES

		1973–74	1974–75	1975–76
	ALB	URY-WODON	IGA	
New South Wales Victoria	:	200 100	923	1 <b>5</b> 66 736
	Ват	HURST-ORAN	IGE	
New South Wales	. 1	1	593	1 355
		TOTAL		
New South Wales Victoria		200 100	1 516 1 020	2 921 736
Total .	.	300	2 536	3 657

#### Area Improvement Program

This program commenced in 1973-74 with assistance for the western regions of Sydney and Melbourne and was expanded in 1974-75 to cover 13 regions. The assistance has been used by State and local government authorities for a wide variety of purposes (see Chapter IV).

The following table shows grants on-passed to local government authorities by the States since 1973-74 together with estimates for 1976-77. Almost all of the grants provided since 1973-74 have been for capital purposes and this is expected to be the case again in 1976-77.

TABLE 92—AREA IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM—GRANTS TO STATES FOR ON-PASSING TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES

(\$ thousand:	s)
---------------	----

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 (estimate) .	4 420 5 500 6 111 120	2 065 4 608 4 896 18	2 500 2 492 468	 427 653	741 843	  	6 485 13 776 14 996 606

#### Urban Flood Mitigation

#### -Victoria

The Commonwealth Government agreed during 1974-75 to provide assistance to Victoria for flood mitigation works at Seymour. The total grant of \$100 000 paid to the State in 1975-76 was passed on to local government. The same amount is to be made available for the same purpose in 1976-77.

#### —Queensland

An amount of \$2.1 million provided to Queensland in 1975-76 to assist with the construction of certain flood mitigation works on various creeks in the Brisbane metropolitan area was all passed on to the Brisbane City Council. An amount of \$1.84 million is provided in the 1976-77 Budget for the same purpose.

#### National Sewerage Program

This program commenced in 1973-74 to assist the States in the elimination of backlog sewerage works in principal urban areas and was extended in 1974-75 to include smaller cities and research, training, monitoring and planning activities. For further details *see* Chapter IV.

The following table shows amounts for 1973-74 to 1975-76 which have been passed on by the States to local government authorities to undertake capital works projects approved under the program. Estimates for 1976-77 are not yet available.

TABLE 93—NATIONAL SEWERAGE PROGRAM—PAYMENTS TO STATES PASSED ON TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES FOR CAPITAL WORKS PURPOSES(a)

(\$ thousands)

			New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1973-74					2.000				• • • •
1974-75	•	•	5 500	4 500	2 000	•••			2 000
	•	•			12 800	• •	550	2 200	25 550
1975–76	•	.	5 200	4 150	13 800			2 000	25 150
To	tal .		10 700	8 650	28 600		550	4 200	52 700

<sup>(</sup>a) Details of amounts passed on to local government authorities from payments to the States for recurrent purposes (see Table 44) are not available.

#### Community Facilities—Townsville

To assist the integration into the community of West Townsville of servicemen stationed with their families in this area, the Commonwealth Government agreed, in July 1972, to provide a loan towards the cost of developing community facilities in the area. The loan is being paid as advances carrying an interest rate equivalent to the long-term bond rate at the time of payment of each advance and repayable over thirty years. Interest accruing from the date of the first advance on 28 June 1973 until 15 December 1975 has been capitalised and treated as a further advance. The loan is being made to the Queensland Government for on-lending to the Townsville City Council. By 30 June 1975, \$428 000 had been advanced to the Queensland Government and, in accordance with the loan agreement, further advances may be approved by the Treasurer in respect of escalation costs incurred in providing the facilities. Repayments of principal and payment of interest commenced during 1975-76.

#### Capital Assistance for Leisure Facilities

Payments to the States under this program (see Chapter IV) have included payments for on-passing to local government authorities in respect of community leisure facilities sponsored by those authorities. Of the total grants of \$9.5 million which are expected to be paid to the States in 1976-77, \$5.5 million is estimated to be for on-passing to local government authorities. The following table provides details of payments since 1973-74, together with estimates for 1976-77:—

TABLE 94—CAPITAL ASSISTANCE FOR LEISURE FACILITIES—GRANTS TO STATES FOR ON-PASSING TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES

(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1973-74	346 1 656 1 990	311 695 1 597 1 730	213 676 340	292 694 410	102 202 482 630	231 408 400	413 1 979 5 513 5 500

#### National Estate

National Estate projects supported from funds provided to the States under the Urban and Regional Development (Financial Assistance) Act 1974 have included many projects undertaken by local government authorities. Assistance provided to the States from the 1975-76 National Estate program for projects undertaken by local government authorities is estimated to be approximately \$0.76 million out of a total program of \$3.0 million. To the extent that funds are required in 1976-77 to complete these projects provision will be made in the estimate of \$1.35 million for that year.

#### Roads Assistance Program

The Commonwealth provides grants to the States for expenditure on the construction and maintenance of roads, including roads which are the responsibility of local government authorities. Although the relevant Commonwealth legislation does not determine any particular amount which the State must provide to local government, in each State amounts determined by the State are passed on to the local government authorities for expenditure on roads which are the responsibility of those authorities. Comprehensive details of the amounts that local government authorities have received from the States are not available.

#### Urban Public Transport

The only amounts under this program which have been passed on to local government authorities were \$138 667 in 1974-75 and \$614 912 in 1975-76 out of payments to the Queensland Government. These amounts were passed on to the Brisbane City Council for the acquisition of buses. A further \$66 421 is to be made available for this purpose in 1976-77.

#### Tourism Development

As noted in Chapter IV, Commonwealth Government grants under the scheme of assistance for the development of tourist attractions have been terminated. The following table provides details of payments since 1973-74 and estimated payments in 1976-77 on outstanding commitments to be made to States for onpassing to local government authorities.

TABLE 95—DEVELOPMENT OF TOURIST ATTRACTIONS—GRANTS TO STATES FOR ON-PASSING TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES (\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 (estimate) .	100 100	50 236 173 59	  43 25	 58 134 60		 3 33 	50 397 599 144

#### Regional Organisations Assistance Program

Amounts of \$312 000 and \$138 000 were provided in 1974-75 and 1975-76 respectively for a program of payments to the States to provide assistance to regional organisations of local government; the assistance was made available to meet basic administrative costs and other approved regional purposes. This program is to be discontinued as from 1976-77. The following table shows amounts provided to individual States in 1974-75 and 1975-76:—

TABLE 96—GRANTS TO THE STATES FOR ON-PASSING AS ASSISTANCE FOR REGIONAL ORGANISATIONS OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT
(\$ thousands)

	_		New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1974-75 1975-76	:	•	100 44	76 29		66 24	46 32	24	312 138

#### PAYMENTS UNDER THE AUSTRALIAN ASSISTANCE PLAN

The Australian Assistance Plan was introduced on a pilot basis in 1973-74. Regional Councils for Social Development were established in all States, composed of representatives of Commonwealth, State and local Governments, voluntary bodies engaged in social welfare activities and employer and trade union organisations.

Considerable evaluation of the Plan has been carried out and the Government believes that it is a worthwhile experiment in social planning and local action in determining welfare priorities.

In the context of its Federalism policies the Government has decided that this program is appropriate for administration and financing at the State or local government level.

It was recognised, however, that it would be unreasonable to expect State and local Governments to make the necessary arrangements to take over the scheme immediately. To give time for arrangements to be worked out, the Commonwealth Government will continue to finance, at the present grant levels, all 37 Regional Councils for Social Development and their staffs for a maximum period of 12 months from 1 July 1976. Commitments on projects already approved but not totally financed will also be met.

Grants are being made for four purposes:

- (i) to encourage bodies to work towards the establishment of a Regional Council in their area;
- (ii) to meet the staffing and other general administrative expenses of the Councils;
- (iii) for the Councils to meet the costs of welfare projects, as approved by the Commonwealth Government on the recommendation of the Councils. These grants are limited to a total of \$2 per head of population residing in the area covered by the Council concerned; and
- (iv) to meet costs associated with the employment of community development officers by the Regional Councils.

Grants for the third and fourth purposes may be made to local government authorities, although in all cases such grants are made by the Regional Councils out of funds they have received from the Commonwealth Government.

Payments to Regional Councils which have subsequently been passed on to local government authorities from 1973-74 to 1975-76, and estimates of such payments for 1976-77, are shown in the following table:—

TABLE 97—PAYMENTS TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES UNDER THE AUSTRALIAN ASSISTANCE PLAN

2	th	^1	usa	nd	le۱

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
			RECURRENT	r	,	,	
1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 (estimate)	 89 44 14	60 103 90 50	 4 24	  	1	12	60 208 159 64
			CAPITAL				
1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 (estimate)		4 33 93 9	 	·· ·· ··	35		4 33 128 9
			TOTAL				
1973-74	89 44 14	64 136 183 59	4 24		36	12	64 241 287 73

PAYMENTS TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES IN THE NORTHERN TERRITORY Two local government authorities have been established under the Northern Territory Local Government Ordinance—the Corporation of the City of Darwin in 1957 and the Corporation of the Municipality of Alice Springs in 1971. The relationship between the Commonwealth Government and these authorities corresponds with that between the State Governments and their local government authorities, and Commonwealth Government assistance to these two authorities can be regarded as the equivalent of assistance received by other local government authorities from the State Governments. This assistance is, therefore, of quite a different character from other forms of assistance referred to earlier in this Chapter.

Initial establishment grants were provided to both Corporations. Continuing operational subsidies are provided to the Corporations to meet the difference between income from ratepayers and the cost of providing municipal services at what are regarded as reasonable standards. These subsidies are subject to quinquennial review.

Capital assistance is also provided to the Corporations and takes the form of matched and unmatched grants for capital works generally.

Additional financial assistance was given to the Corporation of the City of Darwin in 1974-75 to meet the cost of emergency services provided by the Corporation following Cyclone Tracy. The two authorities have also received assistance under various specific programs (e.g. for Aboriginal advancement). These forms of assistance are not included in the table which follows.

Payments made since 1972-73 and estimated payments in 1976-77 are shown in the following table:—

TABLE 98—PAYMENTS TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES IN THE NORTHERN TERRITORY
(\$ thousands)

		 		Operating Subsidies	Capital Grants	Total
1972-73 .				503	844	1 347
1973-74 .				491	1 127	1 618
1974-75 .				547	439	986
1975-76 .				455	1 291	1 746
1976-77 (esti	mate)			510	1 490	2 000

### SUMMARY OF VARIOUS FORMS OF COMMONWEALTH GOVERNMENT PAYMENTS TO OR FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES

The following table gives a summary of the various forms of Commonwealth Government payments made to or for local government authorities between 1972-73 and 1975-76 together with estimates for 1976-77. The amounts shown in this table need to be interpreted very carefully, in the light of the comments provided in the foregoing text.

TABLE 99—SUMMARY OF COMMONWEALTH GOVERNMENT PAYMENTS
TO OR FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES

(\$ thousands)

	(\$ thousand	ls)			
Program	1972–73	1973-74	1974–75	1975–76	1976-77 (estimate)
General Purpose Assistance for Local Govern	n-				
ment			56 345	79 908	140 000
Direct Payments—		1			
Pre-Schools and Child Care	.	445	2 465	6 368	(a)
Nursing Homes		1		121	173
Home Nursing	. 73	91	141	163	199
Aged or Disabled Persons Homes .	. 746	763	1 232	2 760	3 443
Aged Persons Hostels		1		361	1 440
Delivered Meals Subsidy	. 189	415	522	511	676
Handicapped Persons Assistance .	. 18	5	4	42	94
Regional Employment Development Schen	ne	l	43 567	93 994	339
Homeless Persons Assistance				102	4
Aboriginal Advancement	. 9	3 299	4 674	3 458	1 410
Arts		22	66	101	(a)
Aerodrome Local Ownership Plan .	. 868	924	1 187	1 404	1 541
Water Supplies, Townsville	. 303				
	2 206	5 964	53 858	109 385	(a)17 420
Other Payments through States(b)—					(4)17 720
Assistance for Exmouth Shire	. }	l		150	140
Pre-Schools and Child Care		284	3 512	8 094	(a)
Home Care Services	. 390	370	2 478	2 158	1 700
Senior Citizens Centres	. 584	685	1 472	3 409	4 225
Employment Grants	. 45 287	14 655	14 844	14 889	
Aboriginal Advancement	. 2 913	138	152	601	
Growth Centres		300	2 536	3 657	(a)
Area Improvement Program		6 485	13 776	14 996	606
Urban Flood Mitigation		0.05	13.70	2 200	1 940
Sewerage National Program		2 000	25 550	25 150	(a)
Community Facilities, Townsville .	. 60	301	67	25 150	(4)
Capital Assistance for Leisure Facilities .	"	413	1979	5 513	5 500
National Estate			925	760	(a)
Roads(c)	. na	na	na	na	na na
Urban Public Transport			139	615	66
Tourism Development		50	397	599	144
Regional Organisations Assistance Program			312	138	
	(d)49 234	(d)25 681	(d)68 139	(d)82 929	(a)(d)35770
Australian Assistance Plan		64	241	287	73
Northern Territory(e)	1 347	1 618	986	1 746	2 000
Total	. (d)52 787	(d)33 327	(d)179 569	(d)274 255	(a) 195 263

<sup>(</sup>a) In respect of the individual items indicated, the Departments/agencies concerned have not been able to make estimates for 1976-77. The aggregate figure shown represents rough Commonwealth Treasury estimates.

(c) It is not possible to show amounts under this heading. See text.

(d) Not including assistance for roads-See foonote (c).

<sup>(</sup>b) General purpose assistance to local government is paid, in the first instance, to the States but is shown as a separate category in this table because of its particular importance.

<sup>(</sup>e) Payments set out in Table 98 only. Does not include payments under various specific programs (e.g. Aboriginal advancement).

#### APPENDIX I—SUMMARY TABLES

#### TABLE NO.

#### SUBJECT

- 100 Payments to or for the States and State Government Loan Council Borrowing Programs, 1975-76.
- 101 Payments to or for the States and State Government Loan Council Borrowing Programs, Estimates 1976-77.
- 102 Summary of Payments to or for the States, State Government Loan Council Programs and Payments made direct to Local Government Authorities, 1972-73 to 1976-77.
- 103 Summary of Payments to or for the States, State Government Loan Council Programs and Payments made direct to Local Government Authorities Per Head of Population, 1972–73 to 1976–77.
- 104 Total Payments to or for the States and State Government Loan Council Programs—Dissection between Funds for Recurrent and Capital Purposes, 1972-73 to 1975-76.
- 105 Total Payments to or for the States and State Government Loan Council Programs—Dissection between Funds for Recurrent and Capital Purposes Per Head of Population, 1972-73 to 1976-77.
- 106 Total Payments to or for the States and State Government Loan Council Programs—Dissection between Grants and Loans—1972-73 to 1976-77.
- Functional Classification of Payments to or for the States and State Government Loan Council Programs and Payments made direct to Local Government Authorities—Net Basis, 1964-65 to 1976-77.

### TABLE 100—COMMONWEALTH GOVERNMENT PAYMENTS TO THE STATES AND LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS (a), 1975-76

		(# 1110	iusanus)				
	New South Wales	Victoria	Queensland	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
	<del>`</del>	GENERAL R	EVENUE FUND	5			
Financial Assistance Grants	946 660	706 389	536 792 36 300	363 091 2 500	363 031 	156 816	3 072 780 38 800
Total General Revenue Funds	946 660	706 389	573 092	365 591	363 031	156 816	3 111 580
<u> </u>	Gı	NERAL PURPO	SE CAPITAL FU	NDS(b)			
itate Government Loan Council Borrowing Programs	274 114 137 057	217 744 108 871	114 919 57 459	112 950 56 475	80 197 40 099	60 743 30 372	860 667 430 333
Total	411 171	326 615	172 378	169 425	120 296	91 115	1 291 000
	Specific )	PURPOSE PAYM	ENTS—RECURE	ENT PURPOSES			
Payments under Financial Agree-							
ment— Interest on State Debt	5 835 9 900	4 254 7 500	2 192 3 900	1 408 4 000	947 2 800	534 2 100	15 170 30 200
Reimbursement	298	119	269	1 488 8		480 53	1 961 741 150
Assistance for Exmouth Shire Universities Colleges of Advanced Education Fechnical and Further Education Schools Pre-schools and Child Care Child Migrant Education Educational Research	168 831 69 089 17 652 125 395 9 030 2 720 253	110 717 111 307 9 653 100 354 11 452 3 559 431	57 185 33 999 4 643 46 162 5 356 195 190	43 107 28 838 3 770 27 452 5 025 514 116	150 32 891 36 522 3 322 23 194 4 390 233 59	13 658 7 011 1 087 9 327 1 720 149	426 38 286 76 40 12 331 88 36 97 7 37 1 06
Medibank—Public Hospital Running Costs Community Health Fuberculosis Control School Dental Scheme Health Education Blood Transfusion Services Health Planning Agencies Home Dialysis Scheme	317 177 19 284 3 030 1 845 222 1 357 200 187	229 570 7 712 4 604 1 351 160 1 009 20 29	102 820 3 643 1 822 998 132 547 70 48	92 367 1 976 685 2 549 69 567 75 40	96 745 1 738 647 2 271 88 330 110 23	31 000 1 265 548 1 547 23 94 25	869 67 35 61 11 33 10 56 69 3 90 50
Control of Arboencephalitis  Home Care Services  Senior Citizens Centres  Paramedical Services  Assistance for Deserted Wives  Employment Grants	3 717 369  2 344 11 700	2 178 222 233 2 016 8 200	1 693  1 935 5 000	653 30 167 1 509 2 400	87 27 1 459 2 000	340 10 458 700	5 66 64 41 9 72 30 00
Regional Employment Development Scheme Social Policy Planning Units Aboriginal Advancement Housing Area Improvement Sewerage Leisure and Recreation Tasman Bridge Disaster Apple Export Assistance	207 45 2 860 2 292 537 487 127	5 404 22 875 1 679 557 164 219	2 781 2 952 753 177 251 118	3 294 56 2 167 1 093 51 136 98	1 840 36 8 034 771 113 155 104	1 521 32 61 388  4 170 1 400 572	15 04 19 16 94 6 97 1 43 1 19 83 1 40
Bovine Brucellosis and T.B. Eradication Agricultural Extension Services Minor Agricultural Research Trawl and Danish Seine Fishery	2 186 2 359 81 9	2 459 2 022 63	2 190 1 826 17	637 944 20	601 958	423 517	8 49 8 60 11
Locust Control	377		21 9	::		650	6
Leave Apprenticeship Training Legal Aid Family Courts Road Safety Practices Research Grants Assistance for Local Government Assistance for Local Government Regional Organisations Assistance Natural Disaster Relief	2 779 757 331  2 340 29 257 44 637	852 276 30 1 553 20 242 29 35	454 471 131  28 706 13 808  52	159 89  19 950 6 785 24	167 455 124 760 25 320 7 524 32 83	6 79 49  11 130 2 292 8	3 4 2 7 1 0 7 1 6 0 79 9
Total Specific Purpose Pay- ments—Recurrent	815 187	653 251	299 558	235 335	232 394	80 456	2 316 1

TABLE 100—COMMONWEALTH GOVERNMENT PAYMENTS TO THE STATES AND LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS (a), 1975-76—continued

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queensland	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
	Specific	C PURPOSE PA	YMENTS—CAPIT	AL PURPOSES			
Iousing for Servicemen	18 005	6 082	7 500	1 725	698	160	1 24.45
Jniversities	21 754	9 516	6 453	3 421	5 094	160 2 589	34 17 48 82
Colleges of Advanced Education	23 716	34 313	9 181	6 886	7 344	5 313	86 75
echnical and Further Education	8 9 1 9	7 376	3 334	1 208	2 876	887	24 60
re-Schools and Child Care	45 886 3 165	49 285	22 363	11 056	10 564	4 477	143 63
Child Migrant Education	405	1 345 943	2 584	1 498	1 441	1 764	11 79
lospitals	37 700	27 280	15 280	275 12 900	9 11 900	45	1 67
lursing Homes	l		925	12 300	11 900	2 090	107 15
uboroulogie Control	5 146	3 151	1 778	1 864	1 139	689	13 76
chool Dental Scheme	2 1 1 5	2	203	30		4	13,72
lood Transfusion Services	2 115 34	2 044 75	5 299	825	2 855	317	13 45
Disposal of Ships Garbage	34	29	29	6	12	5	16
enior Citizens Centres	964	1 292	392	566	47 344		1
wellings for Pensioners	6 858	2 827	1 133	1 124	614	3 560	3 50
ehabilitation Centre—Hobart			.,			214	13 11
boriginal Advancement lousing	5 321	482	7 205	3 558	5 273	216	22 05
rban Flood Mitigation	123 411	98 159	31 010	56 360	33 440	22 220	364 60
rowth Centres	44 510	100 22 541	2 060	1 504	***		2 16
rea Improvement	5 574	4 339	2 315	602	474 730	506	69 53
and Acquisition	11 754	15 654		19 935	7 089	::	13 56 54 43
Voolloomooloo Redevelopment ir Quality Monitoring	5 813		,				5 81
	33 890	33	33	33	33	25	19
ewerage	42 800	35 400	13 767				89
eisure and Cultural Facilities	1 762	1 560	1 060	5 700 625	12 400	1 984	112 05
lature Conservation	445	35	88	579	445 35	430 86	5 88
lational Estate	946	550	567	506	523	795	1 26
sond Hohom Daides	136 232	91 989	90 049	41 484	62 225	20 097	442 07
ailway Projects	• •	• •				63	1.20.
ailways - Intersystem Passenger		• •		4 960	• •		4 96
Vehicles	12						l .
rban Public Transport	5 694	9 529	8 986	6 757	66 750	2 380	74.00
ing Island Harbour Works						242	34 09 24
asman Bridge Disaster					.,	16 300	16 30
oss River Dam	1 164	• •					1 16
rban Water Supply		• •	1 402	8 931			1 40
ladstone Power Station		• •	39 000	0 931	• •	• •	8 93
oftwood Forestry	2 456	900	2 250	566		901	39 00
airy Adjustment Program ruit Growing Industry	664	10 065	3 702	305	2 327	1 653	7 93 18 71
	338	102	41	20	29	200	39
eef Industry Assistance	2 892	1 706	2224	413			2 45
ural Reconstruction	7 250	1 164 6 700	6 374 5 900	289	479	100	11 29
undaberg Irrigation Works		0 700	2 500	5 100	4 550	500	30 00
ock-Kimba Pipeline			2300	305		• •	2 50
ailem Bend Pipeline				4		• •	30
on (Mackay) Irrigation Scheme			1 999	1		• •	1 99
rd River Project		• •	349				34
artmouth Dam	2 800	2 800	'	2 800	111		11
ater Resources Assessment	1 499	891	932	468	1 981		8 40
ood Mitigation	1 966			-700	1 291	140	5 91
oil Conservation		467	623	42	74	25	1 96 1 23
Diriem Davidonment	543		2 200				2 20
atural Disaster Relief	13 268	511 6 215	140	177	313	145	1 82
ļ.	15 200	0 213	6 400	108	4 264	<b>-7</b> .	30 24
Total Specific Purpose Pay-							
ments—Capital	594 706	457 452	307 417	205 515	183 394	88 118	1 836 60
		TOTAL	PAYMENTS(c)			00 110	1 030 00.
	2 493 610	1 925 963	1 237 526	862.016	919.010		
				862 916	818 918	355 762	7 694 69
·	77			~			
	TOTAL PAY	MENTS AND I	LOAN COUNCIL	BORROWINGS			
eneral Purpose	1 357 831	1 033 004	745 470		483 327	247 931	4 402 50
eneral Purposeeeific Purpose			1	535 016 440 850	483 327 415 788	247 931 168 574	4 402 580 4 152 780

 <sup>(</sup>a) Commonwealth payments to States and State Governments' Loan Council borrowing programs. Excludes payments made direct to local government authorities, details of which are given in Chapter V.
 (b) See Chapter III, under heading 'Treatment of Loan Council Programs in this and other Budget Documents'.
 (c) Comprises all the amounts shown above, with the exception of the Loan Council borrowing programs. See reference in footnote (b).

### TABLE 101—COMMONWEALTH GOVERNMENT PAYMENTS TO THE STATES AND LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS (a), ESTIMATES 1976-77(b)

		(4 111	ousanus)				
	New South Wales	Victoria	Queensland	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
		GENERAL I	REVENUE FUND	s			
Personal Income Tax Entitlement	1 145 500	852 500	646 500 27 000	438 300	444 000	189 400 	3 716 200 27 000
Total General Revenue Funds	1 145 500	852 500	673 500	438 300	444 000	189 400	3 743 200
	GEN	ERAL PURPOS	E CAPITAL FUN	ids(c)			
State Government Loan Council	202015	229 706	120 705	118 63 <i>7</i>	84 235	63 802	904 000
Borrowing Programs Capital Grants	287 915 143 958	228 706 114 354	120 705 60 352	59 318	42 117	31 901	452 000
Total	431 873	343 060	181 057	177 955	126 352	95 703	1 356 000
	Specific P	URPOSE PAYME	nts—Recurre	NT PURPOSES			
Payments under Financial Agree-					1		
ment— Interest on State Debt	5 835 10 500 354	4 254 8 000 274	2 192 4 200 273	1 408 3 900 27	947 3 000 64	534 2 000 78	15 170 31 600 1 070 140
Assistance for Exmouth Shire Universities Colleges of Advanced Education Technical and Further Education	196 639 86 805 15 593	132 538 136 310 12 830	69 626 46 644 4 523	50 665 36 859 4 663	140 40 946 44 379 3 647 31 183	15 666 8 251 1 087 10 304	506 080 359 248 42 343 394 393
Schools Education — Allowance for Cost Escalation Pre-Schools and Child Care	143 487 n.a. n.a.	n.a. n.a.	54 801 n.a. n.a.	32 722 n.a. n.a.	n.a. n.a.	n.a. n.a.	45 000 44 000 147
Child Migrant Education Educational Research Medibank—Public Hospital Running	90 314	359	192	135	48	28	1 076
Costs	278 000 26 460 1 362 2 117 208	180 000 9 380 2 111 2 285 148	97 000 4 300 1 161 2 159 128 734	69 000 4 200 344 2 268 65 662	84 000 2 900 356 2 745 81 398	22 000 1 900 530 1 458 45 100	49 140 5 864 13 032 675 4 730
Blood Transfusion Services Health Planning Agencies Home Dialysis Scheme Control of Arboencephalitis	1 659 230 804 10	1 176 24 784 55	84 156	62 85 5	120 75 200	40 15 200	560 1 918 - 70 7 000
Home Care Services Senior Citizens Centres Paramedical Services Assistance for Deserted Wives Regional Employment Development	1 200 327 2 600	1 700 258 270 2 400	1 900 28 2 300	1 800 38 290 1 700	1 300	13 400	700 57: 10 700
Scheme Aboriginal Advancement Housing Sewerage Leisure and Recreation	2 778 1 848 290 118	1 236 1 347 420 118	3 533 1 318 320 94	2 722 941 220 94	8 166 627 340 94	69 314 110 84 750	18 50- 6 39: 1 70- 60: 75:
Tasman Bridge Disaster Apple Export Assistance Bovine Brucellosis and T.B. Eradication	4 906	35 5 113	3 768	1 931	113	343 214	17 19 12
Exotic Diseases Eradication Agricultural Extension Services Minor Agricultural Research Trawl and Danish Serine Fishery  Manual Manual Control	2 579 69 35 35	2 291 68	2 097 17	1 068 26	1 082	560	9 67 18 3
Water Hyacinth Control Coal Mining Industry—Long Service Leave Apprenticeship Training Legal Aid		1 297 276	525 580 131	431	190 546 124	5 136 49	3 97 4 56 1 00
Road Safety Practices Research Grants Assistance for Local Government Natural Disaster Relief	37 4 374 51 289	30 2 903 35 398	28 1 319 24 222 75	19 1 776 11 925	960 25 599 13 162 1 000	11 243 4 004	96 15 11 21 140 00 1 19
Total Specific Purpose Payments—Recurrent		n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	2 483 96

#### TABLE 101-COMMONWEALTH GOVERNMENT PAYMENTS TO THE STATES AND LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS(a), ESTIMATES 1976-77(b)—continued

		(ψ ιι	- usanus)				
	New South Wales	Victoria	Queensland	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
	Specific	PURPOSE PA	yments—Capit	AL PURPOSES	1		1
Housing for Servicemen	15 200	4.070	1	1	1	1	1
Universities	15 280 11 060	4 270 4 980	13 300 6 115	2 107	1 230	13	36 200
Colleges of Advanced Education	25 089	31 341	10 814	4 855 7 354	6 245 5 731	1 007 1 406	34 262 81 735
Technical and Further Education	12 767	8 820	4 071	3 723	4 023	2 257	35 661
Schools	53 525	45 139	24 079	14 323	13 550	4 238	154 854
Education—Allowance for Cost Escalation							1
Pre-Schools and Child Care	n.a. n.a.	п.а. п.а.	n.a. n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	15 000
Child Migrant Education	7	5	11.4.	n.a. 31	n.a.	n.a.	10 300
Hospitals	36 000	27 000	17 000	13 000	12 000	3 000	108 000
Nursing Homes Community Health	2 940		652				652
Tuberculosis Control	2 940	5 820 140	3 100	900	2 400	600	15 760
School Dental Scheme	3 878	986	2 429	 3 044	1 241	479	157
Blood Transfusion Services	134	68	36	23	23	4/9	288
LUSDOSAL Of Shine Garbage	1 1				8		200
Senior Citizens Centres  Dwellings for Pensioners	1 100	1 400	700	300	470	30	4 000
Dobobilises' Control XX 1	2 352	3 419	2 023	1 473	1 288	280	10 835
Aboriginal Advancement	3 330	165	3 455		3 145	600	600
Housing	123 411	98 159	37 410	56 360	35 440	75 24 220	10 893 375 000
Growth Centres(e) Area Improvement	7 758	n.a.		982	26	70	32 897
Area Improvement	120	18	468				606
Urban Flood Mitigation Land Acquisition	4 361	100	1 840	10.505			1 940
Woolloomooloo Redevelopment	10 328	5 230	]	10 725	4 923	263	25 503
Captains Flat Project	1 200				• • •	• • •	10 328 1 200
Sewerage	19 700	17 100	1 000	1 000	9 000	500	48 300
Leisure and Cultural Facilities Nature Conservation	2 680	1 730	870	2 750	800 i	650	9 480
National Estata	600	1 250 687	400	300	250 215	510	3 310
Roads	140 300	93 200	91 900	246 39 400	55 900	20 800	1 350 441 500
Second Hobart Bridge			71,700	39 400	33 900	650	650
Railway Projects	1			2 000	225		2 225
Urban Public Transport Newcastle Dry Dock	29 432	16 056	11 040	5 580	1 692	800	64 600
Tasman Bridge Disaster	350		•••		1	10.500	350
Ross River Dam		::	1 158		•••	13 750	13 750 1 158
Urban Water Supply	1	:: 1		9 420	::	• •	9 420
Gladstone Power Station Softwood Forestry	9		26 500			::	26 500
	2 350	1 782	1 525	100	715	982	7 454
Fruitgrowing Industry	1 098 120	6 346 800	1 368 60	523 150	1 059	3 106	13 500
Reef Industry Assistance	3 840	1 545	8 463	383	40 636	330 133	1 500 15 000
Rural Reconstruction	10 200	3 900	3 900	4 700	3 400	900	27 000
Bundaberg Irrigation Works			11				11
Tailem Bend Pipeline				400	• • •		400
Clare Weir	::	• • •	814 2 551	• • •		• • •	814
Ston (Mackay) Irrigation Scheme Clare Weir Ord River Project	::		2 331		50	• •	2 551 50
Partmouth Dam	1 875	1 875	:: 1	1 875	30	• • •	5 625
Namoi River Weirs	1 000			[			1 000
Vater Resources Assessment Tood Mitigation	1 630	1 136	952	727	2 000	213	6 658
oil Conservation	::	64	148 237	43		10	148 490
rigalow Lands Development Scheme		04	750	43	130	10	750
ourism Development	74	59	147	312	50	191	833
Vatural Disaster Relief	8 385		10 625		5 000		24 010
Total Specific Purpose Pay-							
ments—Capital	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	1 709 165
		TOTAL PA	AYMENTS(d)			<u>-</u>	
	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	8 388 334
	TOTAL PAY	MENTS AND LO	AN COUNCIL B	ORROWINGS	<u> </u>		
eneral Purpose	1 577 373	1 195 560	854 557	616 255	570 352	285 103	5 099 200
pecific Purpose	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	4 193 134
Decific Purpose  Total	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	9 292 334

<sup>(</sup>a) Commonwealth payments to States and State Governments' Loan Council borrowing programs. Excludes payments made direct to local government authorities, details of which are given in Chapter V.
(b) Important qualifications attach to some of the figures shown in this table. See text.
(c) See Chapter III, under heading 'Treatment of Loan Council Programs in this and other Budget Documents'.
(d) Comprises all the amounts shown above with the exception of the Loan Council borrowing programs. See reference in footnote (c).
(e) See footnote (b) to Table 41.

# TABLE 102—SUMMARY OF PAYMENTS TO OR FOR THE STATES, STATE GOVERNMENT LOAN COUNCIL PROGRAMS AND PAYMENTS MADE DIRECT TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES, 1972–73 TO 1976–77

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total				
PAYMENTS TO OR FOR THE STATES AND STATE LOAN COUNCIL PROGRAMS											
		GENE	RAL REVENU	E FUNDS							
1972-73	536 963	396 087	281 946	202 430	196 369	87 098	1 700 893				
1973–74	593 433	443 624	332 473	227 582	225 243	101 100 140 204	1 923 455 2 513 495				
1974–75	756 163 946 660	562 266 706 389	449 671 573 092	318 287 365 591	286 903 363 031	156 816	3 111 580				
	1 145 500		673 500		l .		3 743 200				
1970 77 (00000000)			URPOSE CAPI	TAL FUNDS	(a)						
1972–73	312 336	250 520	124 181	134 628	91 716	68 619	982 000				
1972–73	269 629	220 527	115 223	117 212	80 393	64 016	867 000				
1974–75	334 309	272 179	153 567	146 188	100 247	80 929	1 087 419				
1975–76	411 171	326 615	172 378	169 425 177 955	120 296 126 352	91 115 95 703	1 291 000				
1976–77	431 873	343 060	•	•		1 95 705	1 350 000				
		TOTAL G	ENERAL PUR								
1972–73	849 299	646 607	406 127	337 058	288 085	155 717 165 116	2 682 893 2 790 455				
1973–74	863 062 1 090 472	664 151 834 445	447 696 603 238	344 794 464 475	305 636 387 150	221 133	3 600 914				
1974–75	1 357 831	1 033 004	745 470	535 016	483 327	247 931	4 402 580				
1976–77 (estimate)		1 195 560	ľ	616 255	570 352	285 103	5 099 200				
•	S	PECIFIC PUR	POSE PAYMEN	rts—Recuri	RENT						
1972–73	1 136 001	106 211	57 270	38 125	35 084	17 305	389 998				
1973–74	203 303	177 755	84 862	63 903	57 866	22 211	609 898				
1974–75	422 088	352 710	164 380	122 879	116 288	43 142 80 456	1 221 486 2 316 184				
1975–76	815 187	653 251	299 558 n.a.	235 335 n.a.	232 394 n.a.	n.a.	2 483 969				
1976–77 (estimate)	n.a.	n.a.		,	•	111.41	, =				
			RPOSE PAYM			. 00.007	. 641 400				
1972–73	160 793	112 046	113 744 185 206	53 059 118 399	78 613 109 087	23 237 38 209	541 490 960 243				
1973–74	300 380 564 297	208 964 437 370	297 349	196 705	176 133	73 590	1 745 445				
1974–75	594 706	457 452	307 417	205 515	183 394	88 118	1 836 602				
1976-77 (estimate)	L	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	1 709 165				
		TOTAL SP	ECIFIC PURP	OSE PAYMENT	rs	•					
1972-73	296 794	218 257	171 014	91 184	113 697	40 542	931 488				
1973–74	1	386 719	270 068	182 302	166 953	60 420	1 570 141				
1974–75	986 385	790 080	461 729	319 584	292 421 415 788	116 732 168 574	2 966 931 4 152 786				
1975–76	1 409 893	1 110 703 n.a.	606 975 n.a.	440 850 n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	4 193 134				
1976–77 (estimate)	n.a.	•	•	,	1		•				
			OTAL PAYME		1 222 270	145 007	1 2 880 920				
1972–73		677 749 901 132	484 389 639 528	327 688 447 509	333 279 418 002	145 007 182 069	3 771 903				
1973–74		F	957 512	684 798	611 503	282 913	5 826 304				
1975–76	2 493 610	1 925 963	1 237 526	862 916	818 918						
1976-77 (estimate)	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	8 388 334				
	TOTAL PAY	ments and I	Loan Counc	IL Borrowi	ng Progra	MS(c)					
1 <b>972-</b> 73	1 146 093										
1973-74	1 366 745				472 589						
1974-75	2 076 857			784 059 975 866	679 571 899 115		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1				
1975–76	2 767 724 n.a.	2 143 707 n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	9 292 334				
1710-11 (cammate)	,		,		•						

#### TABLE 102—SUMMARY OF PAYMENTS TO OR FOR THE STATES, STATE GOVERNMENT LOAN COUNCIL PROGRAMS AND PAYMENTS MADE DIRECT TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES, 1972-73 TO 1976-77-continued

(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
DAVME	ATTER A FARDE	DIDECT					
	NTS MADE				IENT AUT	HORITIES	
1972-73	604	629	650	212	94		2 206
1973-74	2 466	1 018	1 376	366	598	140	5 964
1974-75	24 564	6 338	10 423	4 366	5 992	2 177	53 858
1975-76	46 297	18 805	19 869	8 286	9 362	6 765	109 385
1976-77 (estimate)	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	17 420
GE 1 EE T C 1 2 7 C 1 2 7 C	TOTAL	PAYMEN	TS TO OR	FOR THE S	STATES,		
STATE LOAN C	OUNCIL B	ORROWIN	G PROGRA	AMS AND	PAYMENT	S MADE D	IRECT
	TO LOCA	L GOVER	NMENT AU	<b>THORITIE</b>	ES (GROSS)	ı	
1972-73	1 146 697	865 493	577 791	428 454	401 876	196 276	3 616 587
1973-74	1 369 211	1 051 888	719 140	527 462	473 187	225 676	4 366 560
1974-75	2 101 421	1 630 863	1 075 390	788 425	685 563	340 042	6 621 703
1975-76	2 814 021	2 162 512	1 372 314	984 152	908 477	423 270	8 664 751
1976-77 (estimate)	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	9 309 754
		RE	PAYMENT	'S (d)			
1972-73	52 873	38 7.64	25 339	21 531	17 273	l 8 976	164 758
1973-74	57 333	42 155	26 748	23 120	18 253	12 495	180 105
1974-75	61 076	54 353	28 456	24 854	19 260	10 227	198 226
1975-76	64 220	45 608	30 254	25 120	19 507	13 541	198 252
1976-77 (estimate)	88 942	50 263	32 850	25 462	21 406	13 623	232 546
						•	•
	TOTAL	L PAYMEN	TS TO OR	FOR THE	STATES.		
STATE LOAN C	OUNCIL B	ORROWIN	G PROGRA	MS AND	PAYMENT	S MADE D	RECT
	TO LOC	AL GOVER	RNMENT A	UTHORIT	IES (NET)		201
1972-73	1 093 824	826 729	552 452	1 406 923	384 603	187 300	3 451 829
1973-74	1 311 878	1 009 733	692 392	504 342	454 934	213 181	4 186 455
1974-75	2 040 345	1 576 510	1 046 934	763 571	666 303	329 815	6 423 477
1975-76	2 749 801	2 116 904	1 342 060	959 032	888 970	409 729	8 466 499
1976-77 (estimate)	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	9 077 208
	<u> </u>		<u> </u>				

(a) See Chapter III, under heading 'Treatment of Loan Council Programs in this and other Budget Documents'.
(b) Comprises all the amounts shown above, with the exception of the borrowing program component of general purpose capital funds. See reference in footnote (a).
(c) Total payments to or for the States and State Loan Council borrowing programs on a net basis (i.e., excluding payments made direct to local government authorities) are given in Appendix IV, Table 131.
(d) That is, repayments of Commonwealth advances to the States and local government authorities and sinking fund payments on State Loan Council borrowings. See Appendix IV. Repayments of Commonwealth advances made direct to local government authorities (not included in Appendix IV) were \$16 000, \$17 000, \$18 000 and are estimated to be \$19 000 in 1973-74 to 1976-77 respectively.

# TABLE 103—SUMMARY OF PAYMENTS TO OR FOR THE STATES, STATE GOVERNMENT LOAN COUNCIL PROGRAMS AND PAYMENTS MADE DIRECT TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES, 1972–73 TO 1976–77(a)

#### \$ Per Head of Population

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
PAYMENTS T	' ' '		TEG AND	erare io	' NANI COLIN	SCIL PROG	RAMS
PAYMENTS T	O OR FOR				JAN COUL	TCIE TROO	***************************************
			AL REVENUE		184.52	220.56	132.61
1972–73	114.35	110.67   122.60	148.66 170.97	169.31 187.94	207.65		148.02
1973–74	157.96	153.32	226.24	258.35	257.54	346.87	190.53
1975–76	196.32	191.17	285.12	294.52	319.09		233.69 277.58
1976-77 (estimate)	234.77	228.20	330.88	349.05	380.79	458.48	277.58
		GENERAL ]	PURPOSE CA	PITAL FUNDS	S		
1972–73	66.51	70.00	65.48	112.60			76.56
1973-74		60.94	59.25	96.80	74.12	160.44	66.72
1974–75	. 69.84	74.22	77.26		89.99 105.74	200.22	82.43 96.96
1975–76		88.39 91.83					100.55
1976–77	1 66.51		•		•	•	
			eneral Pur			1 204 22 1	200 17
1972–73						394.32 413.82	209.17 214.73
.1973–74		183.54 227.54	230.22 303.50	284.74 377.01	281.77	547.09	272.96
1974–75	227.79 281.59	279.57		431.01	424.83	606.19	330.65
1975–70 1976–77 (estimate)	1				489.15	690.15	378.13
,	Spr	CIEIC PURB	ose Paymen	rsR FCURR	ENT		
1050 50						43.82	30.41
1972–73		49.12	1				46.93
1974–75		96.18		99.74		1	92.59
1975–76			149.03	189.59	204.27 n.a.	196.71 n.a.	173.95
1976-77 (estimate)	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	ı ıı.a.	1 11.4.	104.20
		SPECIFIC PU	RPOSE PAYM	ENTS—CAPIT	TAL		
1972–73	34.24						42.22
1973–74							132.31
1974–75		119.27 123.80	149.60 152.94			1	137.93
1975-76			n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	126.74
1970 77 (cstimate).	,						
			CIFIC PURPO			102.66	72.62
1972–73						1	120.83
1973–74		106.87					224.90
1975–76	202 20	300.60		1	365.46		311.89
1976-77 (estimate)		n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	310.94
		-	TOTAL PAYM	ENTS			
1072 72	1 194.39				313.17	1 367.20	
1972–73	1	249.03	1		385.36	456.31	290.26
1974–75	386.43	392.59	481.74	555.84	548.93		441.65
1975–76		521.24			719.80 n.a.	869.83 n.a.	622.04
1976-77 (estimate)	,	n.a.	n.a.	l n.a.	'	•	, 022.01
	TOTAL PAY	MENTS AND	Loan Coun	CIL BORROW			
1972-73							281.80
1973–74							497.86
1974–75	672.00						642.54
1975–76		580.16 n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	689.07
19/0-// (estimate).	. , 11.a.	, 11.a.	l. 11.00.	,		*	

# TABLE 103—SUMMARY OF PAYMENTS TO OR FOR THE STATES, STATE GOVERNMENT LOAN COUNCIL PROGRAMS AND PAYMENTS MADE DIRECT TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES, 1972–73 TO 1976–77—continued

\$ Per Head of Population

New South Wales					- P water our							
1972-73		South	Victoria				Tasmania	Total				
1972-73			ı	1	I							
1973-74		TS MADE	DIRECT 1	O LOCAL	GOVERNI	MENT AU	<b>THORITIES</b>					
1974-75						0.09	0.04	0.17				
1975-76	1973–74											
1976-77 (estimate) n.a. n.a. n.a. n.a. n.a. n.a. n.a.	1075 76											
TOTAL PAYMENTS TO OR FOR THE STATES,  STATE LOAN COUNCIL BORROWING PROGRAMS AND PAYMENTS MADE DIRECT TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES (GROSS)  1972-73						8.23						
STATE LOAN COUNCIL BORROWING PROGRAMS AND PAYMENTS MADE DIRECT TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES (GROSS)  1972-73   244.20   241.82   304.65   358.36   377.63   497.03   281.97   1973-74   289.02   290.70   369.81   435.60   436.24   565.60   336.02   1974-75   438.98   444.72   541.05   639.96   615.41   841.27   501.94   1975-76   583.58   585.25   682.74   792.84   798.52   1034.89   650.75   1976-77 (estimate)   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   690.36      REPAYMENTS	1976–77 (estimate)	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	1.29				
1973-74	STATE LOAN COUNCIL BORROWING PROGRAMS AND PAYMENTS MADE DIRECT TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES (GROSS)											
1973-74	1972–73	244.20	241.82	304.65	358.36	377.63	497.03	281.97				
1975-76				369.81	435.60			336.02				
REPAYMENTS   1972-73   11.26   10.83   13.36   18.01   16.23   22.73   12.85   1973-74   12.10   11.65   13.76   19.09   16.83   31.12   13.86   1974-75   12.76   14.82   14.32   20.17   17.29   25.30   15.03   1975-76   13.32   12.34   15.05   20.24   17.15   33.11   14.89   1976-77 (estimate)   18.23   13.45   16.14   20.28   18.36   32.98   17.24   17.27   17.29   18.28   18.28   18.29   18.28   18.36   32.98   17.24   18.23   13.45   16.14   20.28   18.36   32.98   17.24   1972-73   232.94   230.99   291.29   340.35   361.40   474.30   269.12   1973-74   276.91   279.05   356.06   416.50   419.41   534.29   322.16   1974-75   426.22   429.89   526.73   619.78   598.12   815.97   486.92   1975-76   570.26   572.91   667.69   772.60   781.37   1001.78   635.86   1976-77 (estimate)   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   (673.12   1976-77 (estimate)   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   073.12   1976-77 (estimate)   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   073.12   1976-77 (estimate)   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   073.12   1976-77 (estimate)   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   073.12   1976-77 (estimate)   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   073.12   1976-77 (estimate)   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   073.12   1976-77 (estimate)   n.a.   n.a.   073.12   1976-77 (estimate)   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   073.12   1976-77 (estimate)   n.a.   n.a.   073.12   1976-77 (estimate)   0.3.	1974–75					615.41	841.27	501.94				
REPAYMENTS  1972-73	1975–76			682.74	792.84	798.52	1 034.89	650.75				
1972-73	19/6-// (estimate)	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	690.36				
1972-73			R	EPAYMEN	ITS							
1973-74	1972–73	11 26 1				16 22	22 72 1	12 05				
1974-75 12.76 14.82 14.32 20.17 17.29 25.30 15.03 1975-76 13.32 12.34 15.05 20.24 17.15 33.11 14.89 1976-77 (estimate) 18.23 13.45 16.14 20.28 18.36 32.98 17.24  TOTAL PAYMENTS TO OR FOR THE STATES,  STATE LOAN COUNCIL BORROWING PROGRAMS AND PAYMENTS MADE DIRECT TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES (NET)  1972-73 232.94 230.99 291.29 340.35 361.40 474.30 269.12 1973-74 276.91 279.05 356.06 416.50 419.41 534.29 322.16 1974-75 426.22 429.89 526.73 619.78 598.12 815.97 486.92 1975-76 570.26 572.91 667.69 772.60 781.37 1001.78 635.86 1976-77 (estimate) n.a. n.a. n.a. n.a. n.a. 673.12	1050 54											
1975-76												
1976-77 (estimate) 18.23 13.45 16.14 20.28 18.36 32.98 17.24  TOTAL PAYMENTS TO OR FOR THE STATES,  STATE LOAN COUNCIL BORROWING PROGRAMS AND PAYMENTS MADE DIRECT TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES (NET)  1972-73 232.94 230.99 291.29 340.35 361.40 474.30 269.12 1973-74 276.91 279.05 356.06 416.50 419.41 534.29 322.16 1974-75 426.22 429.89 526.73 619.78 598.12 815.97 486.92 1975-76 570.26 572.91 667.69 772.60 781.37 1001.78 635.86 1976-77 (estimate) n.a. n.a. n.a. n.a. n.a. n.a. 673.12	1975–76	13.32										
TOTAL PAYMENTS TO OR FOR THE STATES, STATE LOAN COUNCIL BORROWING PROGRAMS AND PAYMENTS MADE DIRECT TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES (NET)  1972-73 232.94 230.99 291.29 340.35 361.40 474.30 269.12 1973-74 276.91 279.05 356.06 416.50 419.41 534.29 322.16 1974-75 426.22 429.89 526.73 619.78 598.12 815.97 486.92 1975-76 570.26 572.91 667.69 772.60 781.37 1001.78 635.86 1976-77 (estimate) n.a. n.a. n.a. n.a. n.a. n.a. 673.12	1976-77 (estimate)	18.23										
STATE LOAN COUNCIL BORROWING PROGRAMS AND PAYMENTS MADE DIRECT TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES (NET)           1972-73         232.94         230.99         291.29         340.35         361.40         474.30         269.12           1973-74         276.91         279.05         356.06         416.50         419.41         534.29         322.16           1974-75         426.22         429.89         526.73         619.78         598.12         815.97         486.92           1975-76         570.26         572.91         667.69         772.60         781.37         1 001.78         635.86           1976-77 (estimate).         n.a.         n.a.         n.a.         n.a.         n.a.         n.a.         673.12			'		'		,					
TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES (NET)  1972-73   232.94   230.99   291.29   340.35   361.40   474.30   269.12   1973-74   276.91   279.05   356.06   416.50   419.41   534.29   322.16   1974-75   426.22   429.89   526.73   619.78   598.12   815.97   486.29   1975-76   570.26   572.91   667.69   772.60   781.37   1001.78   635.86   1976-77 (estimate)   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   n.a.   673.12	STATE LOAN CO	TOTAL	raymeni Oppowini	DE TO OR	FOR THE	STATES,	CC MADE	DIDECE				
1973-74      276.91     279.05     356.06     416.50     419.41     534.29     322.16       1974-75      426.22     429.89     526.73     619.78     598.12     815.97     486.92       1975-76      570.26     572.91     667.69     772.60     781.37     1 001.78     635.86       1976-77 (estimate)     n.a.     n.a.     n.a.     n.a.     n.a.     n.a.     673.12	TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES (NET)											
1974-75      426.22     429.89     526.73     619.78     598.12     815.97     486.92       1975-76      570.26     572.91     667.69     772.60     781.37     1 001.78     635.86       1976-77 (estimate)     n.a.     n.a.     n.a.     n.a.     n.a.     n.a.     673.12	1972–73			291.29	340.35	361.40	474.30	269.12				
1975-76					416.50	419.41	534.29	322.16				
1976–77 (estimate) n.a. n.a. n.a. n.a. n.a. 673.12	1974–75											
	1975-76				772.60							
	19/6-/7 (estimate)	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	673.12				
			<u> </u>		l							

<sup>(</sup>a) See footnotes to previous table.

## TABLE 104—TOTAL PAYMENTS TO OR FOR THE STATES AND STATE GOVERNMENT LOAN COUNCIL PROGRAMS—DISSECTION BETWEEN FUNDS FOR RECURRENT AND CAPITAL PURPOSES, 1972–73 TO 1976–77(a)

(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total				
Funds for Recurrent Purposes											
1972-73	672 964	502 298	339 216 1	240 555	231 453	104 403	2 090 891				
1973-74	796 736	621 379	417 335	291 485	283 109	123 311	2 533 353				
1974-75	1 178 251	914 976	614 051	441 166	403 191	183 346	3 734 981				
1975–76	1 761 847	1 359 640	872 650	600 926	595 425	237 272	5 427 764				
1976-77 (estimate)	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	6 227 169				
		Funds I	FOR CAPITAL	Purposes							
1972-73	473 129	362 566 l	237 925	187 687 1	170 329	91 856	1 523 490				
1973-74	570 009	429 491	300 429	235 611	189 480	102 225	1 827 243				
1974-75	898 606	709 549	450 916	342 893	276 380	154 519	2 832 864				
1975–76	1 005 877	784 067	479 795	374 940	303 690	179 233	3 127 602				
1976-77 (estimate)	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	3 065 165				

<sup>(</sup>a) Gross basis, i.e. before deducting repayments of Commonwealth advances to the States and sinking fund payments on State Loan Council borrowings. Note that this table also excludes payments made direct to local government authorities. See footnotes to previous tables in this Appendix.

## TABLE 105—TOTAL PAYMENTS TO OR FOR THE STATES AND STATE GOVERNMENT LOAN COUNCIL PROGRAMS—DISSECTION BETWEEN FUNDS FOR RECURRENT AND CAPITAL PURPOSES, 1972–73 TO 1976–77(a)

#### \$ Per Head of Population

	New South Wales	th Victoria land Australia		South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total					
Funds for Recurrent Purposes												
1972-73	143.31	140.34	178.85	201.20	217.49	1 264.38 1	163.02					
1973-74	168.18	171.72	214.61	240.72	261.00	309.05	194.95					
1974–75	246.13	249.50	308.94	358.09	361.93	453.60	283.12					
1975–76	365.38	367.97	434.15	484.11	523.36	580.13	407.64					
1976-77 (estimate)	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	461.77					
		Funds i	FOR CAPITAL	Purposes								
1972-73	100.76	101.30	125.45	156.98	160.05	232.61	118.78					
1973-74	120.32	118.69	154.49	194.58	174.68	256.20	140.61					
1974–75	187.71	193.49	226.86	278.32	248.10	382.28	214.74					
1975–76	208.60	212.20	238.70	302.05	266.93	438.22	234.89					
1976-77 (estimate)	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	227.30					

<sup>(</sup>a) See footnotes to previous tables in this Appendix.

## TABLE 106—TOTAL PAYMENTS TO OR FOR THE STATES AND STATE GOVERNMENT LOAN COUNCIL PROGRAMS—DISSECTION BETWEEN GRANTS AND LOANS, 1972–73 TO 1976–77

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total				
Commonwealth Government Payments—Grants											
1972-73	875 812	660 941	460 246	320 981	323 376	140 704	2 702 060				
1973-74	1 070 362	824 332	581 830	396 521	394 196	140 704	2 782 060				
1974-75	1 633 464	1 263 474	856 693	592 102	547 012	164 715	3 431 952				
1975–76	2 252 576	1 742 859	1 132 569	764 157	763 215	251 907 329 010	5 144 655				
1976-77 (estimate)	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.				6 984 391				
2270 77 (estimate)	ıı.a.	11.a.	ıı.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	7 785 202				
	Соммони	EALTH GOVE	ERNMENT PA	YMENTS—LO	ANS (GROSS)	)					
1972-73	36 996	16 808	24 143	6 707 1	9 903	4 303	98 860				
1973-74	113 305	76 800	57 698	50 988	23 806	17 354	339 951				
1974-75	216 397	176 242	100 819	92 696	64 491	31 006	681 649				
1975–76	241 033	183 104	104 957	98 759	55 704	26 752	710 308				
1976-77 (estimate)	n.a.	n.a.	92 816	84 375	57 813	29 431	603 132				
TOTAL COMMO	NWEALTH G	OVERNMENT	Loans and	Loan Counc	cil Borrow	INGS (GROSS	)(a)				
1972-73	270 281	203 923	116 895	107 261	78 406	55 555	832 321				
1973-74	296 383	226 538	135 934	130 575	78 393	60 821	928 644				
1974-75	443 393	361 051	208 274	191 957	132 559	85 958	1 423 190				
1975–76	515 147	400 848	219 876	211 709	135 901	87 495	1 570 975				
1976-77 (estimate)	n.a.	n.a.	213 521	203 012	142 048	93 233	1 507 132				
				205 012	112 040	75 255	1 307 132				

<sup>(</sup>a) Figures on a net basis are given in Appendix IV, Table 130.

### TABLE 107—FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION OF PAYMENTS TO OR FOR THE STATES, STATE GOVERNMENT LOAN COUNCIL PROGRAMS, AND PAYMENTS MADE DIRECT TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES (NET BASIS(a)), 1964-65 TO 1976-77 (\$ thousands)

					(\$ thou	isan <u>as)</u>							
Functional Classification	1964-65	1965–66	1966–67	1967–68	1968-69	1969–70	1970–71	1971–72	1972–73	1973–74	1974–75	1975–76	1976–77 (Est.)
Defence Education Health Social Security and Welfare Housing Urban and Regional Develop-	12 272 61 179 13 997 22 93 719	7 024 63 625 19 329 22 107 194	7 488 76 825 17 740 23 109 167	6 787 99 143 17 238 251 110 903	6 532 105 344 18 555 1 335 115 216	9 045 144 828 18 876 3 512 121 698	8 761 174 951 17 811 10 067 131 320	6 522 204 892 18 045 43 637 -6 703	5 608 259 427 20 982 127 408 7 455	7 174 622 977 51 760 34 165 222 811	26 499 1 328 754 107 794 119 979 390 868	34 386 1 461 159 1 082 786 182 431 362 882	36 670 1 738 459 956 482 43 689 363 128
ment n.e.c. and the Environment	380	750	1 952	417 		59	584 	_1 	963	55 765 1 802	234 778 12 759	263 284 11 974	123 511 14 840
Economic Services— Transport Water Supply and Electricity Industry Assistance and	157 615	175 797 	182 298	198 633 5 903	206 829 3 852	218 099 9 700	233 840 3 211	259 249 2 500	288 735 15 803	322 608 23 602	418 523 38 691	494 762 46 260	518 177 33 965
Development Labour and Employment Other Economic Services	10 068 1 023	13 979 893	14 976 922	41 079 1 344 	23 667 1 338	30 238 1 050	50 374 1 205	79 781 1 613	94 329 2 165 	70 586 2 722 278	83 021 4 052 65	109 559 6 180	100 181 8 530
Total Economic Services	168 706	190 669	198 196	246 959	235 686	259 087	. 288 630	343 143	401 032	419 796	544 352	656 761	660 853
General Public Services Outlays Not Allocated to Function—	100	1 478	2 154	3 270	2 995	3 562	4 320	4 491	5 917	8 051	8 955	7 910	13 324
General Revenue Funds State Government Loan Council Borrowing Pro-	713 069	799 121	877 435	956 946	1 049 585	1 189 219	1 480 198	1 537 178	1 700 893	1 923 455	2 503 495	3 111 580	3 722 700
grams	400 342	405 497 	436 895	460 003	483 531	517 875	366 383 200 000	549 620 219 100	601 266 248 539	447 910 278 307	592 141 345 878	708 668 430 333	744 450 452 000
Debts Assistance for Local Govern-	31 816	32 931	34 121	35 557	36 789	38 441	51 224	64 501	77 661	90 578	103 612 56 657	47 338 80 046	46 770 140 000
ment Natural Disaster Relief	100	21 740	21 073	27 954	19 729	10 777	14 998	2 152	-5 322	21 904	46 956	24 961	20 332
Total Not Allocated to Function	1 145 327	1 259 289	1 369 524			i				·		4 402 926	
Grand Total	1 495 702	1 649 380	1 783 069	1 965 428	2 075 297	2 316 979	2 749 247	2 986 577	3 451 829	4 186 455	6 423 477	8 466 499	19 077 208

<sup>(</sup>a) That is, net of repayments of Commonwealth advances and sinking fund contribution on State Government Loan Council borrowings.

#### APPENDIX II—TABLES OF GENERAL PURPOSE CAPITAL FUNDS

TABLE No.

#### SUBJECT

- 108 General Purpose Capital Funds for State Governments, 1972-73 to 1976-77.
- 109 Semi-Government and Local Authority Borrowings, 1972-73 to 1976-77.
- 110 Semi-Government and Local Authority Borrowings, per Head of Population, 1972-73 to 1976-77.
- General Purpose Capital Funds for State Governments, and State Semi-Government and Local Authority Borrowings, 1972-73 to 1976-77.
- 112 General Purpose Capital Funds for State Governments, and State Semi-Government and Local Authority Borrowings, per Head of Population, 1972-73 to 1976-77.
- 113 Borrowings by Local Government Authorities, 1972-73 to 1976-77.
- 114 Summary of the Financing of State Government Loan Council Programs, 1971-72 to 1975-76.
- 115 Details of the Financing of State Government Loan Council Programs, 1971-72 to 1975-76.

#### TABLE 108—GENERAL PURPOSE CAPITAL FUNDS FOR STATE GOVERNMENTS 1972-73 TO 1976-77(a)

		New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total				
Approved Loan Council Borrowing Programs												
1972–73 1973–74 1974–75 1975–76 1976–77( <i>b</i> )		233 285 183 078 226 996 274 114 287 915	187 115 149 738 184 809 217 744 228 706	92 752 78 236 107 455 114 919 120 705	100 554 79 587 99 261 112 950 118 637	68 503 54 587 68 068 80 197 84 235	51 252 43 467 54 952 60 743 63 802	733 461 588 693 741 541 860 667 904 000				
	CAPITAL GRANTS											
1972–73 1973–74 1974–75 1975–76 1976–77(b)		79 051 86 551 107 313 137 057 143 958	63 405 70 789 87 370 108 871 114 354	31 429 36 987 46 112 57 459 60 352	34 074 37 625 46 927 56 475 59 318	23 213 25 806 32 179 40 099 42 117	17 367 20 549 25 977 30 372 31 901	248 539 278 307 345 878 430 333 452 000				
		То	TAL GENERA	AL PURPOSE	CAPITAL FU	INDS						
1972–73		312 336 269 629 334 309 411 171 431 873	250 520 220 527 272 179 326 615 343 060	124 181 115 223 153 567 172 378 181 057	134 628 117 212 146 188 169 425 177 955	91 716 80 393 100 247 120 296 126 352	68 619 64 016 80 929 91 115 95 703	982 000 867 000 1 087 419 1 291 000 1 356 000				

 <sup>(</sup>a) For an explanation of the amounts shown in this table, see Chapter III, particularly under the heading 'Treatment of Loan Council Programs in This and Other Budget Documents'.
 (b) Amounts approved at the June 1976 meeting of the Loan Council.

TABLE 109—SEMI-GOVERNMENT AND LOCAL AUTHORITY BORROWINGS 1972-73 TO 1976-77

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tas- mania	Total States	Com- mon- wealth Govern- ment	Total			
Borrowings by Larger Authorities(a)												
1972–73( <i>b</i> ) 1973–74 1974–75 1975–76 1976–77( <i>c</i> )	175 485 199 949 244 767 303 720 360 108	168 717 182 667 213 907 256 692 304 351	93 822 106 609 138 495 149 769 177 575	25 050 26 850 31 768 38 120 45 200	34 159 33 233 37 887 38 264 45 369	15 193 15 679 19 256 23 107 27 397	512 426 564 987 686 080 809 672 960 000	29 915 78 157	557 702 594 902 764 237 884 269 1 443 768			
		Bor	ROWINGS	BY SMALL	er Autho	ORITIES(a)						
1972–73(b)	42 477 46 948 52 921 65 439 78 130	30 927 35 817 44 313 63 281 79 000	26 128 32 117 39 854 54 739 62 576	7 039 9 461 11 817 18 201 25 000	20 556 25 470 25 920 33 890 41 930	3 645 3 025 5 100 9 116 12 500	130 772 152 838 179 926 244 666 299 136		130 772 152 838 179 926 244 666 299 136			
	Borrowi	NGS BY A	LL SEMI-C	GOVERNME	NT AND L	OCAL AU	THORITIES					
1973–74 1974–75 1975–76	217 962 246 897 297 688 369 159 438 238	218 484 258 220 319 973	119 950 138 726 178 349 204 508 240 151	32 089 36 311 43 585 56 321 70 200	54 715 58 703 63 807 72 154 87 299		643 198 717 825 866 006 1 054 338 1 259 136	29 915 78 157 74 597	688 474 747 740 944 163 1 128 935 1 742 904			

<sup>(</sup>a) See Chapter III under the heading 'Borrowing Programs for State Authorities'.
(b) Following a decision of the Loan Council in March 1973 to increase the borrowing programs of the larger authorities by \$27.5 million, a number of smaller authorities were permitted to borrow in excess of \$400 000. This excess was charged against the increase of \$27.5 million and is included in the borrowings of the larger authorities in 1972-73.
(c) Borrowing programs approved by the Loan Council in June 1976.
(d) Tentative estimates by State Treasuries.

TABLE 110-SEMI-GOVERNMENT AND LOCAL AUTHORITY BORROWINGS, 1972-73 TO 1976-77, PER HEAD OF POPULATION(a)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total					
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$					
Borrowings by Larger Authorities												
1972–73	37.37 42.21 51.13 62.99 73.80	47.14 50.48 58.33 69.47 81.47	49.47 54.82 69.68 74.51 87.24	20.95 22.17 25.79 30.71 36.00	32.10 30.64 34.01 33.63 38.91	38.47 39.30 47.64 56.50 66.32	39.95 43.48 52.01 60.81 71.19					
	)	Borrowings	BY SMALLE	r Authoriti	ES							
1972-73	9.95 9.91 11.05 13.57 16.01	8.64 9.90 12.08 17.13 21.15	13.78 16.52 20.05 27.23 30.74	5.89 7.81 9.59 14.66 19.91	19.32 23.48 23.27 29.79 35.96	9.23 7.58 12.62 22.29 30.26	10.20 11.76 13.64 18.38 22.18					
. Во	RROWINGS I	BY ALL SEMI	-Governmen	NT AND LOCA	AL AUTHORI	TIES .						
1972-73	46.42 52.12 62.19 76.56 89.82	55.78 60.38 70.41 86.60 102.62	63.24 71.34 89.73 101.75 117.98	26.84 29.99 35.38 45.37 55.91	51.41 54.12 57.28 63.42 74.87	47.70 46.88 60.26 78.78 96.58	50.15 55.24 65.65 79.18 93.37					

<sup>(</sup>a) See footnotes to Table 109.

### TABLE 111—GENERAL PURPOSE CAPITAL FUNDS FOR STATE GOVERNMENTS AND STATE SEMI-GOVERNMENT AND LOCAL AUTHORITY BORROWINGS, 1972–73 TO 1976–77

(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total						
	GENERAL PURPOSE CAPITAL FUNDS FOR STATE GOVERNMENTS(a)												
1972–73	312 336	250 520	124 181	134 628	91 716	68 619	982 000						
1973-74	0.00.000	220 527	115 223	117 212	80 393	64 016	867 000						
1974–75	001000	272 179	153 567	146 188	100 247	80 929	1 087 419						
1975–76	1 444 454	326 615	172 378	169 425	120 296	91 115	1 291 000						
1976-77	421 072	343 060	181 057	177 955	126 352	95 703	1 356 000						
B6 1972-73	246 897 297 688 369 159	199 644 218 484 258 220 319 973 383 351	119 950 138 726 178 349 204 508 240 151	32 089 36 311 43 585 56 321 70 200	54 715 58 703 63 807 72 154	18 838 18 704 24 357 32 223	643 198 717 825 866 006 1 054 338 1 259 136						
Total of G	NERAL PURPO STATE			STATE GOVER LOCAL AUT		Borrowine	GS BY						
1972-73	.   530 298	450 164	244 131	166 717	146 431	87 457	1 625 198						
1973-74	. 516 526	439 011	253 949	153 523	139 096	82 720	1 584 825						
1974–75	. 631 997	530 399	331 916	189 773	164 054	105 286	1 953 425						
1975–76	. 780 330	646 588	376 886	225 746	192 450	123 338	2 345 338						
1976-77 (estimate).	. 870 111	726 411	421 208	248 155	213 651	135 600	2 615 136						

<sup>(</sup>a) See footnotes to Table 108.

## TABLE 112—GENERAL PURPOSE CAPITAL FUNDS FOR STATE GOVERNMENTS AND STATE SEMI-GOVERNMENT AND LOCAL AUTHORITY BORROWINGS, PER HEAD OF POPULATION, 1972–73 TO 1976–77

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total					
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$					
GENERAL PURPOSE CAPITAL FUNDS FOR STATE GOVERNMENTS												
1972-73	66.51	70.00	65.48	112.60	86.18	173.76	76.56					
1973–74	<b>5</b> 6.91	60.94	59.25	96.80	74.12	160.44	66.72					
1974–75	69.84	74.22	77.26	118.66	89.99	200.22	82.43					
1975–76	85.27	88.39	85.76	136.49	105.74	222.78	96.96					
1976-77 (estimate)	88.51	91.83	88.95	141.72	108.36	231.67	100.55					
BORROWINGS BY STATE SEMI-GOVERNMENT AND LOCAL AUTHORITIES												
1972-73	46,42	55.78	63.24	26.84	51.41	47.70	50.15					
1973–74	52.12	60.38	71.34	29.99	54.12	46.88	55.24					
1974–75	62.19	70.41	89.73	35.38	57.28	60.26	65.65					
1975–76	76.56	86.60	101.75	45.37	63.42	78.78	79.18					
1976-77 (estimate)	89.82	102.62	117.98	55.91	74.87	96.58	93.37					
Total General P			FOR STATE (			E SEMI-GOVE	RNMENT					
1972–73	112.93	125.78	128.72	1 139.44	1 137.47	221.47	126.71					
1973–74	109.03	121.32	130.59	126.78	128.23	207.32	121.96					
1974–75	132.02	144.63	166.99	154.04	147.27	260.48	148.08					
1975–76	161.83	174.99	187.51	181.86	169.16	301.56	176.14					
1976-77 (estimate)	178.33	194.45	206.93	197.62	183.23	328.25	193.92					
• • • •				1	1	1						

<sup>(</sup>b) See footnotes to Table 109.

TABLE 113-BORROWINGS BY LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES(a) 1972-73 TO 1976-77

	New South Wales(b)	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Six State Total	Northern Territory	Tatal
			'Large	r' Autho	RITIES(c)				
1972–73 1973–74 1974–75 1975–76 1976–77 (est.)(d)	60 385 65 449 85 217 104 220 121 108	20 939 18 600 22 238 21 835 20 200	56 913 60 434 83 516 76 169 80 400	5 309 4 598 6 000 5 300 4 300	5 289 4 550 4 575 5 175 8 050	4 810 5 874 7 295 8 007 9 826	153 645 159 505 208 841 220 706 243 884	426 515 516 597 1 268	154 071 160 020 209 357 221 303 245 152
			'SMALLI	er' Autho	RITIES(e)				
1972–73 1973–74 1974–75 1975–76 1976–77 (est.)(d)	34 906 39 091 47 586 59 627 65 000	20 019 22 374 27 950 41 208 49 000	14 478 17 038 19 288 25 928 34 213	4 389 6 221 7 617 11 531 17 500	13 754 16 270 17 265 22 670 27 500	3 124 2 717 3 416 6 496 8 500	90 670 103 711 123 122 167 460 201 713		90 670 103 711 123 122 167 460 201 713
				TOTAL					
1972–73 1973–74  1974–75  1975–76  1976–77 (est.)(d)	95 291 104 540 132 803 163 847 186 108	40 958 40 974 50 188 63 043 69 200	71 391 77 472 102 804 102 097 114 613	9 698 10 819 13 617 16 831 21 800	19 043 20 820 21 839 27 845 35 550	7 934 8 591 10 710 14 503 18 326	244 315 263 216 331 961 388 166 445 597	426 515 516 597 1 268	244 741 263 731 332 477 388 763 446 865

TABLE 114—SUMMARY OF THE FINANCING OF STATE GOVERNMENT LOAN COUNCIL PROGRAMS, 1971-72 TO 1975-76(a)

	Amounts Met from Publi Loan Raisings and Overseas Borrowings		isings and	Amounts Met from Consolidated Revenue F					
	Total Programs		Percentage		Capital Grants Met	Total			
			Amount	of Total Programs	Special Loans	Direct from Consolidated Revenue Fund	Amount	Percentage of Total Programs	
1972-73 1973-74		\$'000 (b)892 000 (b)982 000 (b)867 000 (b)1 087 419	857 000 867 000	per cent 96 87 100	\$'000 31 670 91 000	\$'000  34 000	\$'000 31 670 125 000	per cent 4 13	
1975–76	• •	(b)1 291 000	793 190 1 291 000	73 100	274 969	19 260	294 229	27	

<sup>(</sup>a) For further details of the financing of State Government Loan Council programs, including the derivation of the amounts shown above for those years, see following table.
(b) Includes capital grants of \$219.1 million in 1971-72, \$248 539 000 in 1972-73, \$278 307 000 in 1973-74, \$345 878 000 in 1974-75 and \$430 333 000 in 1975-76.

<sup>(</sup>a) On the interpretation of the figures shown in this table, see Chapter V, under the heading 'Borrowing Arrangements for Local Government Authorities'.
(b) Includes County Councils.
(c) That is, borrowings by local government authorities from within the totals approved for larger authorities. See footnote (a) to Table 75.
(d) Estimates supplied by State Treasuries; tentative only.
(e) That is, borrowings by local government within the smaller authorities category. See footnote (b) to Table 75.

## TABLE 115—DETAILS OF THE FINANCING OF STATE GOVERNMENT LOAN COUNCIL PROGRAMS, 1971–72 TO 1975–76(a)

	1971–72	1972–73	1973-74	197475	1975–76
SPECIAL LOANS APPLIED TO B	ORROWING P	OGRAMS AN	n Housing	ADVANCES	1
Commonwealth Government Subscriptions		t CORAMB AI	, HOUSING	ADVANCES	
to Special Loans	61 670	91 000	260 000	477 000	
Government— for advances for welfare housing for War Service Land Settlement and			• • •	(b)-130 365	••
other purposes for redemptions	-30 000		-260 000	-416 -71 250	• •
(A)	31 670	91 000		274 969	
LOAN RAISINGS APPLIED TO B	ORROWING PI	ROGRAMS AN	D Housing	ADVANCES	
Public Loans raised in Australia-	1		1	]	ì
Cash loans	753 013	779 392	(c) 1155 460	(c)646 034	1 676 610
Special Bonds/Savings Bonds	139 178				1 362 443
State Domestic Raisings		68 440			5 91
Overseas Loans applied direct to Borrowing Programs and Housing Advances		27 878		42 278	197 47
Total Loan Raisings Less Amounts Used—	942 834	984 899	1 658 165	1 052 446	3 242 447
for redemptions	112 325	<b>—115 507</b>		l	
by Australian Government (War Service	l		(d)		(e
Land Settlement, Other)	-6 961	5 104	<b>-6136</b>	2 <b>5</b> 93	335 56
for capital grant for government schools	6 660	-13 340		-2 393	333 30
for capital grant for works program		-208 486		٠٠.	-430 33
for advances for welfare housing				(b)-168 833	-364 600
Less—Amounts carried forwarded		• •	(c) - 68 100		••
(B)	641 230	642 461	588 693	466 572	860 667
	CAPITAL GRA	NTS			
Capital Grants—	1 1	ı	1	۱ .	
Financed from proceeds of Treasury Note	1				
issue	43 442	6 053		326 618	
Financed from other loan proceeds	175 658	208 486	278 307		430 333
Financed direct from Consolidated Re-			l		
venue Fund		34 000		19 260	••
(C)	219 100	248 539	278 307	345 878	430 333
· T	OTAL PROGR	AMS			
Total Programs (A + B + C)		982 000	867 000	1 087 419	1 291 000
·	<u> </u>		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	

<sup>(</sup>a) See Chapter III under heading 'Financing of State Borrowing Programs and the Capital Grants' for an outline of the arrangements for financing the States' Loan Council programs.
(b) Advances for welfare housing also financed from proceeds of Treasury Note issue (\$10 802 000 and direct from Consolidated Revenue Fund (\$75 400 000).
(c) Includes \$68 100 000 proceeds of cash loan held in Loan Fund to finance the approved Loan Council borrowing program for 1974-75.
(d) Includes \$337 773 000 proceeds of cash loan applied to redemption of Treasury Notes.
(e) Includes \$965 267 000 cash proceeds applied to the redemption of Treasury Notes.

#### APPENDIX III—TABLES OF SPECIFIC PURPOSE PAYMENTS

#### TABLE No.

#### SUBJECT

- 116 Schools, Grants for, 1972-73 to 1976-77.
- 117 Aboriginal Advancement, Payments for, by Function, 1972-73 to 1976-77.
- 118 Growth Centres and Related Projects, Details of Payments for, 1973-74 to 1976-77.
- 119 Land Acquisition and Development, Payments for, 1973-74 to 1976-77.
- 120 Natural Disasters, Payments for, 1972–73 to 1976–77.
- Natural Disasters, Payments for by type of Disaster, 1972-73 to 1976-77.
- 122 Natural Disaster Relief, Further Details of Assistance for, 1973-74 to 1975-76.

TABLE 116—GRANTS FOR SCHOOLS, 1972-73 TO 1976-77

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
l		NTC EOD		NT DUDD	l Defe	1 !	
	GKA		RECURKE	NT PURPO	JSES		
1973–74	7 108 1	9 455		2 695	2 176	527	26 749
1974–75	44 019	35 859	17 410	10 913 17 985		2 333 6 429	117 876 186 663
1975–76 1976–77 (estimate)	71 860   77 676	51 855 63 895	24 355 26 635		14 179 16 508		210 832
		Non-Go	OVERNMENT S	Schools			
1972–73	15 046	13 337	6 250	2 529	2 9 ( 3	914	40 979
1973–74 1974–75	20 144 36 407	18 083 31 798	8 317 15 916	3 480 6 185	3 832 8 608	1 321 2 797	55 177 101 711
1975-76 1976-77 (estimate)(a)	45 808 57 279	42 175 51 236	19 161 24 410	7 085 10 368	7 335 12 218	2 068 3 302	123 632 158 813
1970-77 (estimate)(a)	31219				12 210	. 5502 .	130 013
1973–74	895	Jo 1 587	INT PROGRA	мs I 289	1 381	110	3 735
1974–75	4 323	4 456	2 278	1 919	1 234	782	14 992
1975-76 1976-77 (estimate)(a)	7 727 8 532	6 324 6 765	2 646 3 756	2 382 2 243	1 680 2 457	830 995	21 589 24 748
,			TOTAL		•		
1972–73	15 046	13 337	6 250	2 529	2 903	914	40 979
197374	28 147 84 749	29 125 72 113	13 578 35 604	6 464 19 017	6 389 17 184	1 958 5 912	85 661 234 579
1975–76	125 395	100 354	46 162	27 452	23 194	9 327	331 884
1976-77 (estimate)(a)	143 487	121 896	54 801	32 722	31 183	10 304	394 393
	GF	RANTS FO	R CAPITA	L PURPOS	ES		
1000 00	. 0.406		ERNMENT SCI		1 2 420	1 474	26.242
1972–73 1973–74	8 406 25 788	7 346 12 647	3 082 6 346	3 505 8 556	2 430 5 566	1 474 2 087	26 243 60 990
1974–75 1975–76	61 886	50 368 38 279	22 575	17 353 9 735	12 644 7 929	5 190 3 958	170 016 113 786
1975–76 1976–77 (estimate)	35 587 41 844		18 298 19 824		1		
		Non-G	OVERNMENT	Schools	•		
1972–73	2 231	2 140	1 284			234	
1973–74 1974–75	4 420 9 450	5 364 8 071	2 644 5 320	874 1 731	1 244 3 014	440 807	14 986 28 393
1975–76	10 083	10 779	3 847	1 102	2 472	466	28 749
1976-77 (estimate)	11 561	10 135	4 133	1 740	2 035	545	30 149
1074 75	. 271		INT PROGRA	_	. 121	. 04	959
1974–75 1975–76	216	227	218	219	163	53	1 096
1976-77 (estimate)(a)	120	127	122	122	91	29	611
			TOTAL			1	
1972–73 1973–74	10 637 30 208	9 486 18 011	4 366 8 990	3 805 9 430	3 017 6 810	1 708 2 527	33 019 75 976
1974–75	71 707	58 652	27 970	19 159	15 789	6 091	199 368
1975-76 1976-77 (estimate)(a)	45 886 53 525	49 285 45 139	22 363 24 079	11 056 14 323	10 564 13 550	4 477 4 238	143 631 154 854
(	1			1		1	

<sup>(</sup>a) Includes certain unallocated programs which, for the purposes of this document, have been apportioned between States on a pro-rata basis.

TABLE 117—PAYMENTS FOR ABORIGINAL ADVANCEMENT, BY FUNCTION 1972-73 TO 1976-77 (Estimated)

				····			
	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
,			EDUCATION	ON			
		Re	current Pay	ments			
1972–73	229 482 546 904 892	167 275 262 212 626	293 193 361 866 857	279 489 614 990 1 236	193 732 1 582 1 979 2 039	6 4 3 27 32	1 167 2 174 3 367 4 978 5 682
		C	apital Paym	ents			
1972–73	98 101 	 67	981 988 249	156 625 108	425 505 799		1 720 2 218 1 224
1975-76	505	87 25	971 108	377 221	25 281	1	1 966 63 <b>5</b>
1972–73	327	227	otal Payme 1 274	nts   43 <i>5</i>	618	<b>4</b> 1	2 887
1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 (estimate)	583 546 1 408 892	275 329 298 651	1 180 610 1 837 964	1 113 722 1 367 1 457	1 237 2 381 2 005 2 320	6 4 3 28 32	4 392 4 591 6 944 6 316
<u>_</u>				<u> </u>		1	<del></del>
			HEALTH				
		Rec	urrent Payn				
1972-73	369 802 1 142 1 538	27 51 96 220	465 754 1 285 1 746	155 356 785 880	292 1 330 3 452 5 188	7 11 22 14	1 315 3 304 6 780 9 586
1970=77 (estimate)	1 660	360	2 536	1 121	5 330	16	11 023
1070 70			pital Payme			•	
1972–73	164 155 160 120	2 33 54 22 15	764 1 489 723 1 847 868	105 627 241 250 30	638 2 726 2 608 2 180 1 144	   5	1 531 5 038 3 780 4 464 2 177
		Т	otal Payme	nts			•
1972-73	391 965 1 297 1 698 1 780	29 84 150 242 375	1 229 2 243 2 007 3 593 3 404	260 983 1 026 1 130 1 151	930 4 056 6 059 7 368 6 474	7 11 22 19 16	2 846 8 342 10 561 14 050 13 200
	so	CIAL SEC	URITY AN	D WELFA	RE		. ^ .
			urrent Paym				
1972–73	1 331 394 469 313 226	137 32 137 444 250	1 511 28 55 340 140	260 158 82 295 365	892 572 2 063 867 797	36 9 9 8 21	4 167 1 192 2 816 2 267 1 799

TABLE 117—PAYMENTS FOR ABORIGINAL ADVANCEMENT, BY FUNCTION 1972-73 TO 1976-77 (Estimated)—continued

				7			
<del></del>	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
				-	I	· [	
		c	apital Paym	ents			
1972–73	77			9	386	5	477
1973–74   1974–75	210 83	• •	85	235	1 078	::	1 608 550
1975–76	38	••	132		185		355
1976-77 (estimate)	••	٠	25	30	17		72
		ŋ	Total Payme	ents			
1972-73	1 408	137	1 511	269	1 278	41	4 644
1973–74	604	32	113	393	1[650	9	2 800
1974-75	552 351	137 444	55 472	82 295	2 530 1 052	9 8	3 366 2 622
1976-77 (estimate)	226	250	165	395	814	21	1 871
	<u></u>		<u> </u>		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<del></del>
		Re	HOUSING current Pays				
1974-75	159			1 20		1	179
1975–76			• • •			12	12
1976–77 (estimate)		I	••		••		••
•		C	apital Paym	ents			
1972–73	2 624	357	3 003	690	4 000	60	10 734
1973-74	3 000	557	4 820	2 158	4 000	119 204	14 654 17 456
1974–75 1975–76	5 187 4 615	1 514 373	6 964 2 200	3 587 2 932	2 882	210	13 212
1976-77 (estimate)	3 200	125	954	443	1 703	75	6 500
• •		Т	otal Payme	nts			
1972–73	2 624	357	3 003	690	4 000	60	10 734
1973–74	3 000	557	4 820	2 158	4 000	119	14 654
1974–75 1975–76	5 346 4 615	1 514 373	6 964 2 200	3 607 2 932	2 882	204 222	17 636 13 224
1976-77 (estimate).	3 200	125	954	443	1 703	75	6 500
	I					1	
URBAN ANI	REGION		OPMENT		D THE EN	IVIRONME	NT
1975–76	105	1		[	1	1	105
1976-77 (estimate)			••			1	• •
		Ca	pital Paymo	ents			
1972-73		20	683			40	
1973–74 1974–75	250 50		1 601- 724	51 122	148	13	2 063 896
1974-75	3	::	2 054		::	::	2 057
1976-77 (estimate)	10		1 500		1	·	1 510
		т	otal Payme	nts			•
1972-73	ا ا	20	683	86	60	40	889
1973–74	250 50		1 601 724	51 122	148	13	2 063 896
1974–75	108	• •	2 054		••	::	2 162
1976-77 (estimate)	10	••	1 500			1	1 510

# TABLE 117—PAYMENTS FOR ABORIGINAL ADVANCEMENT, BY FUNCTION 1972-73 TO 1976-77 (ESTIMATED)—continued

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
		TOTAL	—ALL FUI	NCTIONS			
			current Payr				•
1972-73	1 929 1 678 2 316 2 860 2 778	331 358 494 875 1 236	2 269 975 1 701 2 952 3 533	694 1 003 1 501 2 167 2 722	1 377 2 634 7 096 8 034 8 166	49 23 34 61 69	6 649 6 670 13 142 16 949 18 504
		Ci	apital Payme	ents			
1972-73	2 821 3 725 5 474 5 321 3 330	439 590 1 636 482 165	5 431 8 982 8 661 7 205 3 455	1 046 3 696 4 058 3 558 724	5 509 8 457 3 874 5 273 3 145	105 131 204 216 75	15 351 25 580 23 907 22 055 10 893
		т	otal Paymer	its .			
1972-73	4 750 5 402 7 791 8 180 6 108	770 948 2 130 1 358 1 401	7 700 9 957 10 362 10 157 6 987	1 740 4 699 5 558 5 725 3 446	6 886 11 090 10 970 13 307 11 310	154 154 238 277 144	22 000 32 250 37 049 39 004 29 396

## TABLE 118—DETAILS OF PAYMENTS FOR GROWTH CENTRES AND RELATED PROJECTS(a)

		****		1973–74	1974–75	1975–76	1976-77 (estimates)
			Albu	JRY-WODONG	A		
To New South Wales-			- 1	1			]
Grants— Studies and Investigat	ione			430			
Local Councils Assista			::	67	308	522	
Loans—							
Land Acquisition	• •	• •		• •	16 165 85	9 400 2 625	
Development Works Studies and Investigat	ions	• •	::	::	558	439	
Running Expenses					272	551	<u> </u>
Major Headworks						754	
Dwelling Construction			- • •	• •		257 279	1
Office and Commercia Local Councils Assist		nopment		133	615	1 044	
			-				
Total of Above	• •	• •		630	18 003	15 871	
Capitalised Interest(b)	• •	• •		••	474	2 620	.]
Total				630	18 477	18 493	(c)
To Victoria—							
Grants—	_						
Studies and Investigat		• •		412	340	245	
Local Councils Assist Loans—	ance	,		33	340	243	ļ
Land Acquisition				988	21 859	11 517	
Development Works				• •	571	2 262	
Studies and Investigat		• •	• • •	••	283	515	1
Running Expenses Major Headworks		• •		• •	477	708 842	
Dwelling Construction			- ::	• • •		697	
Office and Commercia	al Deve					1 851	Ì
Contribution to State Local Councils Assist		icity Aut	hority	67	680	135 491	
m . 1 . C . 1			-	1.500	24.210	10.262	
Total of Above Capitalised Interest(b)		• •	• •	1 500	24 210 609	19 263 3 278	
Capitalised Interest(o)	• •	• •				3 270	ļ
Total	• •	• •		1 500	24 819	22 541	(c)
Total Payments including Capita			donga 	2 130	43 296	41 034	24 060
	M	ACARTHU	ir (Sydn	vey South-W	EST SECTOR)		1
To New South Wales— Grants—			1		1	1	
Land Aquisition						800	
Loans—				• •			
Land Acquisition	• •	• •		• •	4 103	7 435	
Development Works Studies and Investiga	ions	• •		••	2 278	6 533	
Running Expenses		• •		• •	300	895	
_ •			Į.				
Total of Above	• •	• •	• •	• •	6 682	15 718	(d)2 000
Capitalised Interest(b)	• •	• •	•••	• •	19	1 328	2 408
			l'		1		

### TABLE 118—DETAILS OF PAYMENTS FOR GROWTH CENTRES AND RELATED PROJECTS(a)—continued

(\$ thousands)

			1973–74	1974–75	1975–76	1976-77 (estimates)
, <u>, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , </u>		Ватн	JRST-ORANGE			-
To New South Wales—						1
Grants—						
Land Acquisition						1
Local Councils Assistance				198	452	1
Loans						
Land Acquisition				4 420	4 919	f
Development Works					1 782	
Running Expenses				[	286	
Local Councils Assistance				395	903	
						· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Total of Above				5 013	8 342	(d)2000
Capitalised Interest(b)				- 17	629	1 350
					2.054	
Total	• •	• • •	• •	5 030	8 971	3 350
		M	ONARTO			-
Γο South Australia—		141	ONARIO			
Grants—					•	
Land Acquisition			181	300 1	105	1
Development Works			13	455		
Studies and Investigations			118	42		
Establishment Contribution			43	45		
Loans—	• •		73	73	• •	
Land Acquisition			4 058	2 473	16	
Development Works				134	37	i
	• •		• • •	906	505	
Studies and Investigations	• •	•••	•••			
Running Expenses	• •	• •	••	1 018	• •	
Total of Above			4 413	5 373	663	
C : !! !! !!!	• •	•••	1 1	447	841	982
Capitalised Interest(b)	• •	••		77/		702
Total	••		4 414	5 819	1 504	982
Γο Western Australia—		j				
Grants—						
Moore River Study				i	474	26
Moore River Study	• •		••	•••		20
Total					474	26
To Tasmania—			į			-
Grants—			ا م	212	40.5	
Strategic Development Stud		• • •	35	312	496	
Tamar Open Space Land	• •		••	88	10	70
Total of Above			35	400	506	70
TOTAL PAY	MENITS-	-Grount		RELATED PRO	IPCTS	
Grants	. MENTIO	-GROW 11	1 332	2 088 I	3 104	1.
Loans (including Capitalised I	nterest		5 247	59 158	66 431	
(merading Capitansea I.						
Total			6 579	61 246	69 535	(d)32 897

(a) For purposes of this document all payments to the States for growth centres and related projects are treated as being of a capital nature.

(c) Split of the estimated payments and capitalised interest between New South Wales and Victoria not available.

(d) Estimates of the grants and loans components are not yet available.

<sup>(</sup>b) Capitalised Interest: These amounts represent interest payments which have been deferred and added to the amount of principal outstanding and on which interest thus accrues. Amounts of capitalised interest are shown in this and other Budget documents as interest payments notionally made by the State concerned to the Commonwealth and advances notionally made by the Commonwealth to the State.

#### TABLE 119—PAYMENTS TO THE STATES FOR LAND ACQUISITION AND DEVELOPMENT

			(\$ th	ousands)			
	_			1973–74	1974–75	1975–76	1976-77 (estimates) (b
			1	'	'		•
			New S	OUTH WALES		27	
Grants—Land Acquisitio	n	• •		• •	۱ ۰۰	27	
Loans—					820	8 612	
Land Acquisition Development Works	• •	• •		• •		2 378	
Running Expenses	• • •		::1	••		142	
Rulling Expenses	••	• •	···  -				-
Total of Above					820	11 159	2 922
Capitalised Interest(a)						595	1 439
			-		000	11 754	4 361
Total	• •	• •		••	820	11 /34	4 301
,			v <sub>1</sub>	CTORIA	'		
Grants-Land Acquisitio	n		j		993	3 417	1
Loans—					}		1
Land Acquisition				. 3 500	7 703	4 486	
Development Works						5 807	
Running Expenses						768	
			-	2.500	0.000	14 478	2 752
Total of Above	• •.	• •		3 500 31	8 696 307	1 176	2 478
Capitalised Interest(a)	• •	• •	[	31	307	1170	2 478
Total				3 531	9 003	15 654	5 230
			Covere	Australia			
Grants-Land Acquisitio				AUSTRALIA	1 933 1	500	1
Loans—Land Acquisitio		• •	1	••	1,555		
Land Acquisition				8 000	15 109	5 614	
Development Works					1 100	9 600	
Running Expenses					435	1 191	1
			j <del>-</del>		10.670	16.005	6 000
Total of Above	• •	• •		8 000	18 578 975	16 905 3 030	4 725
Capitalised Interest(a)	• •	• •		••	913	3 030	4 123
Total			[	8 000	19 553	19 935	10 725
•			.  -		'		
Grants-Land Acquisitio	n ·		WESTER	N Australia	1886	956	1
Loans—Land Acquisition	и	• •		• •	1 000	,,,	
Land Acquisition					9 800	1 745	
Development Works						3 213	
Running Expenses					30	163	
			-		44.546		2.175
Total of Above		• •	• •	• •	11 716	6 077	3 175 1 748
Capitalised Interest(a)		• •		• •	3	1 012	1 /40
Total					11 720	7 089	4 923
·			- ·		· <u>—</u>		
Loans-Land Acquisition				ASMANIA 	1		250
Capitalised Interest(a)		• •		• • •			13
- upitalisea interest(u)	•••		· ·  -		<u> </u>		-
Total	••	••					263
			TOTAL	PAYMENTS	'		•
Grants Loans (including Capitali	sed Inter	 rest)		11 531	4 813 36 282	4 900 49 <b>5</b> 31	
Total			-	11 531	41 095	54 432	25 503
I Utai		··-	!	11.551			

 <sup>(</sup>a) For an explanation of Capitalised Interest—see footnote (b) to the previous Table "Details of Payments for Growth Centres and Related Projects".
 (b) Estimates of the grants and loans components and of loans by purpose are not available.

TABLE 120—PAYMENTS FOR NATURAL DISASTERS 1972-73 TO 1976-77(a) (\$ thousands)

New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
•	PAYMENTS O	of a Recur	RENT NATU	RE		
	40	(b)32			۱	1 72
19	22	(d)3990				4 031
622	355	113	:			1 090
637	35	52		83		807
115	••	75		1 000		1 190
Pa	YMENTS OF A	CAPITAL N	ature—Gr	ANTS		
1		(b)-74	1		(c)-3 l	- 77
						20 275
13 840	8 983				(6)	48 446
12 596	5 937				(7)-7	29 150
7 565	••	10 285	.,		"	17 850
Pa	YMENTS OF	A CAPITAL	Nature—Lo	DANS		
1	1	1	i		1	
			1			3 872
	469		ŧ		1	3 663
						1 098
820		340		5 000	::	6 160
	T	OTAL PAYME	NTS			
1	40 (	(b)-42			(c) = 3	-5
300	22			• •		28 178
16 444	9 807	26 834			(6) 3	53 199
13 905	6 250				(f)-7	31 055
8 500		10 700		(g)6 000	,	25 200
	PA  216 1 982 672 820  300 16 444 13 905	PAYMENTS OF A 19	Payments of a Recurs   19	Payments of a Recurrent Nature   19	Payments of a Recurrent Nature	Payments of a Recurrent Nature   1

<sup>(</sup>a) Excludes the cost of emergency services provided by the Defence Force.

Certain refunds of payments to the States for natural disaster relief and restoration measures have been received in financial years subsequent to the disasters to which they relate. These refunds have been taken into account in the financial years in which they have been received from the States, as indicated below:

Year Refund Received		From Stat	e 	Disaster to which Refunds are Related and Original Purpose	Amount of Refund Received
(b) 1972-73		Queensland		Drought relief in 1971-72—  Recurrent grants (net reimbursement) Flood relief in 1971-72—(Capital grants) Cyclone relief in 1971-72—  Recurrent grants	76 000
(c) 1972–73 (d) 1973–74		Tasmania Queensland		Capital grants (net reimbursement)  Bushfire relief in 1967-68—Capital grants  Drought, flood and cyclone relief in 1971-72—	3 000
(e) 1973-74 (f) 1975-76 (g) 1976-77		Tasmania Tasmania Western	••	Recurrent grants (net reimbursement) Capital grants Bushfire relief in 1967-68—Capital grants Bushfire relief in 1967-68—Capital grants Cyclone relief in 1975-76—Capital grants	-1 000 48 000 3 000 7 000

TABLE 121—PAYMENTS FOR NATURAL DISASTERS, BY TYPE OF DISASTER, 1972–73 TO 1976–77(a)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
	•		DROUGHT			•	
1972-73	38 114	,  	  		··· ·· ·· 6 000		46 38 114  6 000
		FLOOD,	STORM AND	CYCLONE			
1972-73	262 15 586 13 318 8 330	40 22 9 807 6 250	-88 27 859 26 834 6 452 10 700	114 108	  4 347 		-48 28 143 52 341 30 475 19 030
	•	,	Bushfire	٠.			
1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 (estimate)	744 587 170					-3 -3  -7	-3 -3 744 580 170
		ALL :	Natural D	ISASTERS			
1972-73 1973-74 1974-75 1975-76 1976-77 (estimate)	300 16 444 13 905 8 500	40 22 9 807 6 250	-42 27 859 26 834 6 452 10 700	114	 4 347 6 000	$\begin{array}{c c} -3 \\ -3 \\ \cdots \\ -7 \\ \end{array}$	-5 28 178 53 199 31 055 25 200

<sup>(</sup>a) Excludes the cost of emergency assistance provided by the Defence Force. Amounts shown are payments made in each financial year less refunds made within the same financial year; refunds made in subsequent years are deducted in the year in which they were received (also see footnotes to Table 120).

TABLE 122—FURTHER DETAILS OF NATURAL DISASTER RELIEF ASSISTANCE TO THE STATES 1973 -74 TO 1975-76 (\$ thousands)

	New South Wales			Victoria			Queensland	i	South Aus- tralia(h) Western Aus- tralia(j)			Total		
	1973–74	1974–75	1975–76	1973–74	1974–75	1975-76	1973-74	1974–75	1975–76	197475	1975-76	1973–74	1974–75	1975–76
Expenditures by States in Year(a) Personal hardship and distress Housing repair and rebuilding Rail and road freight subsidies Fodder airdrop subsidies Loans to primary producers Loans to small business Loans to sporting clubs Assistance to surf lifesaving clubs Assistance to surf lifesaving clubs Restoration of State, local and semi- government assets Emergency protection works and repairs to essential services Assistance to local government authori- ties for fire fighting costs Assistance to tertiary education insti- tutions(b)	922 828 581 31  4 978 380	670 153 2 490 110 24 14 37 16 299 585 214	852  65 947  22 -1  13 794 608 53	(e)58	479 7 643 	25 28 425  9 441 175	5 287 5 120  161 3 495  17 443	122 6825  662 615 29  19 484	70    63  7 534	1 134	120     4 587	6 267 5 120 828 742 3 526  22 421 380	1 271 6 825 160 3 795 725 53 14 37 48 590 1,329 214	1 067 29 65 1 514  85 -1  35 429 794 53
Total	7 720	20 620	16 341	58	12 958	10 094	31 612	28 261	7 815	1 722	4 717	39 390	63 561	39 137
Expenditure in Year attributable to States(c)  Expenditure in Year to be reimbursed in subsequent years(d)  Refunds of overpayments in respect of previous years	5 000	5 048 2 618	5 003	29	3 500 (f) -342	3 500 2 342	2 000 1706 47	2 000	2 000 481 15	1 500	1 500 (f) 1 130	7 029 5 203 (k)50	12 048 3 517	12 003 -426 (k)364
Amounts paid in Year in respect of previous years  Payments to States in Year	1 070	3 490 16 444	2 618		9 807	6 250	(g)27 859	1 706 26 834	1 133		4 347	1 070 (k)28 178	5 203 53 199	3 859 (k)31 055

(a) Preliminary estimates by State Treasuries of expenditures on measures agreed between the Commonwealth and State Governments in respect of eligible disasters. Subject to revision. (b) This assistance was administered, in part, by the Universities Commission and the Commission on Advanced Education but was paid through State Treasury accounts.

(c) The amounts shown represent the base-line amounts, except that for Victoria for 1973-74 which represents half the cost of the relief of personal hardship and distress. See Chapter IV for

explanations.

(d) For unavoidable administrative reasons payments to the States in a year are not equal to the amounts payable to them in respect of that year.

(e) Final cost of relief of personal hardship and distress to those affected by flooding in the State in early 1973 for which the Commonwealth agreed to provide assistance on a dollar for dollar

(f) Refers to overpayment to State in year concerned, adjusted in subsequent year.
(g) The Commonwealth and State Governments provided \$600,000 and \$500,000 respectively as donations to official disaster appeal funds. These amounts are not shown in this table. The Commonwealth's contribution was paid direct to the funds and did not take the form of payments to the State.

No expenditure on approved measures in 1973-74 or 1975-76. Paid to South Australia in 1975-76.

(1) Page to South Australia in 1975-76. (2) No expenditure on approved measures in 1973-74 or 1974-75. (k) Includes refunds received from Tasmania of \$2,900 in 1973-74; \$6 765 in 1975-76 and from South Australia of \$127 in 1975-76.

## APPENDIX IV—ADVANCES, DEBT CHARGES, NET ADVANCES, NET PAYMENTS AND STATE GOVERNMENT DEBT OUTSTANDING

TABLE No.

#### SUBJECT

Advances to States, Debt Charges on Advances and Net Advances, 1972-73 to 1976-77:

123	Six States Combined
124	New South Wales
125	Victoria
126	Queensland
127	South Australia
128	Western Australia
129	Tasmania
130	Total Commonwealth Government Loans to States and State Government Loan Council Borrowings—Net Basis, by States, 1972–73 to 1976–77.
131	Payments to the States and Loan Council Borrowings—Net Basis.

- Payments to the States and Loan Council Borrowings—Net Basis, by States, 1972–73 to 1976–77.
- 132 State Government Debt Outstanding, 1972 to 1976.

## TABLE 123—SIX STATES COMBINED—ADVANCES, DEBT CHARGES ON ADVANCES AND NET ADVANCES

	•		1972–73	1973–74	1974–75	1975-76	1976–77 (Est.)
			Advances(	2)	1	1	-I
Loan Council Borrowings			733 461	588 693	741 541	860 667	904 000
Commonwealth Government Loan	s—						
Special Budgetary Assistance	-		15 000		١	١	l
Housing for Servicemen			6 163	7 766	26 805	34 170	36 200
Housing(b)		• • •	6 550	218 650	385 400	364 600	375 000
Growth Centres				5 247	59 158	66 431	32 801
Land Acquisition			``	11 531	36 282	49 531	25 503
Captains Flat Project						178	240
Sewerage				27 905	84 678	78 463	33 810
Community Facilities-Towns			60	301	67		
Railway Projects			1 546	359	326	1 488	732
Railways-Intersystem Passen	ger Veh		784	1 081	1 244	78	
King Island Harbour Works			557			121	l
***					1 309		
Julius Dam			[		2 000		1
Urban Water Supply					4 400	6 252	6 594
Gladstone Power Station			14 000	26 607	32 449	39 000	26 500
Blowering Reservoir					198		l
Softwood Forestry			9.459	4 875	7 124	7 937	7 454
Dairy Adjustment Program			1 449	538	6 892	14 073	10 463
Canned Fruit Industry			1 902			2 457	
Beef Industry Assistance						11 298	15 000
Rural Reconstruction			38 100	26 825	21 586	22 500	20 250
Ord River Project			409	1 405	313	33	. 50
Dartmouth Dam			2 025	2 850	7 500	8 400	5 625
W.A. Water Supply			158				
Brigalow Lands Development	Scheme		698	139	651	2 200	750
Natural Disasters	••			3 872	3 663	1 098	6 160
Total Commonwealth Go	vernmer	nt					
Loans	• •		98 860	339 951	681 649	710 308	603 132
TOTAL ADVANCES			832 321	928 644	1 423 190	1 570 975	1 507 132

# TABLE 123—SIX STATES COMBINED—ADVANCES, DEBT CHARGES ON ADVANCES AND NET ADVANCES—continued

	1972–73	1973–74	1974-75	1975–76	(Est.)					
Repayments of Advances										
Sinking Fund Payments on Loan Counc	il									
Borrowings(c)	. 132 195	140 783	149 400	151 999	159 550					
Repayments of Commonwealth Governmer Loans—	nt	'								
Special Budgetary Assistance .	.		10 000		20 500					
Housing for Servicemen	. 555	592	631	681	740					
	. 19	19	18	19	20					
*	. 16 721	17 367	19 157	21 918	24 767					
	.				1'					
~			6	99	438					
Community Facilities-Townsville .				24	4					
	. 14	14	9	19	14					
^	. 570	570	570	570	576					
	. 3 839	4 030	4 857	3 948	4 131					
Railways—Intersystem Passenger	.	,								
	. 146	153	181	185	234					
		37	37	37	4:					
	.:   ::		44	87	8					
	287	187	175	95	l i					
	۱ ۵۵	98	98	98	9					
		53	53	53	5					
		66	69	73	7					
	1 4 0 0 0	1 875	1 875	1 875	1 87					
7 11 55			141	66	7.7					
	•   ••	• • •	ì	00	3					
	• •	2 989	• • •	2 989	2 98					
	•   • •		259	712	1 30					
	·   .· _	42			1 50					
,,	. 7	22	65	572						
		1 801	889	525	94					
	. 2 045	2 147	2 254	2 367	2 48					
			183	1 937	3 52					
		5	18	60	9					
	. 293	304	316	328	34					
				42	150					
Brigalow Lands Development Scheme		661	661	762	93					
Natural Disasters	5 317	6 274	6 243	6 094	4 86					
					<u> </u>					
Total Repayments of Commonwealt		l								
Government Loans	. 32 563	39 306	48 809	46 235	72 97					
	.									
TOTAL SINKING FUND PAY			,							
MENTS AND REPAYMENT			100 000	100.00	200.00					
OF LOANS	. 164 758	180 089	198 209	198 234	232 52					
(Ad	NET ADVANCI									
	1	ĺ	1		1					

Loan Council Borrowings Commonwealth Government Loans	 601 266 66 297	447 910 300 645	592 141 632 840	708 668 664 073	744 450 530 155
TOTAL NET ADVANCES	 667 563	748 555	1 224 981	1 372 741	1 274 605

### TABLE 123—SIX STATES COMBINED—ADVANCES, DEBT CHARGES ON ADVANCES AND NET ADVANCES—continued

(\$ thousands)

			1972–73	1973–74	1974–75	1975–76	1976–77 (Est.)
	1:	NTER	est on Ad	VANCES			
Interest on Loan Council Borrow	rings(e)		567 067	603 771	662 809	694 689	822 000
Interest on Commonwealth Loans—	Governme	ent					
Special Budgetary Assistan	? ce'		650	1 578	2 463	1 813	1 813
Housing for Servicemen	· · ·	::	4 007	4 501	5 775	8 300	11 850
Aboriginal Advancement			16	16	18	17	11 030
Housing			73 343	77 282	88 146	105 032	119 338
Growth Centres				11 202	1 566	8 698	13 804
Land Acquisition	• •	••	• •	31	1 285	5 813	10 404
Community Facilities—To	vnevilla	• •	••			19	39
Exmouth Township .	WIISVIIIC		23	22	13	26	19
Captains Flat Project				22	13	20	11
o		••	• • •	• • •	2 257	10 791	
Beef Cattle Roads		[	279	251	2237	10 /91	19 771
Railway Projects		• •	5 795	5 682	5 487		165
Railways—Intersystem Pas	· ·	• •	3 193	3 082	3 40 /	4 256	4 192
Vehicles	senger		247	257	216	222	271
King Island Harbour Work			1		316	322	371
King Island Shipping Service		• •	• •	34	33 59	31	40
Coal Loading Facilities	ce	• •	38	24		118	118
Northern Harbours.	• •	• •		24 38	14	6	2
Danley Letter			43 17	36 14	33	28	23
Weipa Development				1	12	9	7
Natural Gas	• •	• •	163	160	156	152	149
Julius Dam		• •	858	747	636	526	415
		• •	• •		107	182	175
Urban Water Supply		• •		1.450		418	1 256
Hydro-electricity		• •	1 492	1 452	1 311	1 264	1 077
Blowering Reservoir		••	1 072	1 072	1 062	1 041	997
Dairy Adjustment Program		• •	141	450	524	543	647
Canned Fruit Industry		•••	578	392	295	230	261
Sugar Industry	• •		976	874	817	654	536
Rural Reconstruction		•••	1 958	4 196	5 881	7 150	8 036
Ord River Project		• •	29	110	172	187	192
Dartmouth Dam	• •	• •	··	74	264	781	1 578
Chowilla Reservoir		• •	77	77	_77	64	72
W.A. Water Supply			705	707	707	706	701
War Service Land Settleme		• •	928	917	905	893	882
Brigalow Lands Developme	ent Scheme	;   _	664	670	648	610	829
Total Interest on Con	mmonweal	lth		ļ			
Government Loans			94 099	101 629	121 261	160 873	199 786
TOTAL INTEREST ( COUNCIL BORROW COMMONWEALTH MENT LOANS		D	661 166	705 400	784 070	855 562	1 021 786

(e) Includes interest on the States' domestic raisings.

<sup>(</sup>a) For purposes of these tables advances comprise the State Government's Loan Council borrowing programs and Commonwealth Government loans to the States. See Chapter I of this document and footnote (d) belov. Important qualifications attach to the 1976-77 estimates in some cases; see relevant sections of the text.
(b) Comprising special housing advances totalling \$6 550 000 made in 1972-73 and advances from 1973-74 under the Housing Agreement 1973. Does not include advances for housing for servicemen.
(c) Includes sinking fund contributions on State debt made by the Commonwealth Government, which are included in this document as payments for the States. Amounts shown equal total receipts of the Sinking Funds on the States' Debts controlled by the National Debt Commission. For details of these receipts, see Table No. 5 in the Annual Report of the Commission for the year ending 30 June 1976.
(d) Figures derived from those shown above by subtracting sinking fund payments from Loan Council borrowings and repayments of Commonwealth Government loans from the amounts of those loans each year. As explained in Chapter I, national accounting estimates of Commonwealth Government outlays published by the Treasury and by the Australian Bureau of Statistics show advances (including the State Governments' Loan Council borrowing programs) on a net basis. The figures shown in some of the other sections of this document are on a gross basis—that is, before deducting repayments.

### TABLE 124—NEW SOUTH WALES—ADVANCES, DEBT CHARGES ON ADVANCES AND NET ADVANCES

(\$	thousands)	

		<del></del>	\$ thousand	<del></del>			1976-77
•			1972–73	1973–74	1974–75	1975–76	(Est.)
			Advances(a	)			
Loan Council Borrowings			233 285	183 078	226 996	274 114	287 91
Loan Council Borrowings	••	••	233 263	103 076	220 000	_,,,,,,	20,72
Commonwealth Government Loan			15000				
Special Budgetary Assistance			15 000		16 350	18 005	15 28
Housing for Servicemen	• •	•••	3 539	4 539 86 000	123 411	123 411	123 41
Housing(b)	• •		3 500	133	29 702	42 736	(e)n.a
Growth Centres	• •	• •	• • •		820	11 727	4 36
Land Acquisition	• •	• •	• • •	• • •	820	178	24
Captains Flat Project	٠.		• • •	11 200	29 400	29 960	13 79
Sewerage	• •	Vahialaa	• •	267	580	12	
Railways—Intersystem Passen			• •	207	<b>–198</b>		
Blowering Reservoir	• •	• •	3 237	2 000	2 100	2 456	2 35
Softwood Forestry	• •	• • •	250	125	750	409	68
Dairy Adjustment Program Canned Fruit Industry	٠.		670			338	
Beef Industry Assistance	• •	• •	970	]		2 892	3 84
Rural Reconstruction			10 125	7 875	9 000	5 437	7 65
Dartmouth Dam		::	675	950	2 500	2 800	1 87
Natural Disasters	• •			216	1 982	672	820
reactiful Disasters	• •						
Total Commonwealth Go			36 996	113 305	216 397	241 033	n.a.
Loans	• •	• •	30 990	113 303			
TOTAL ADVANCES			270 281	296 383	443 393	515 147	n.a.
			MENTS OF AL				
Sinking Fund Payments on Loan (	Cour	REPAY	MENTS OF AI	DVANCES	50 096	51 517	54 938
Sinking Fund Payments on Loan ( rowings(c)	Cour	REPAYE	t.		50 096	51 517	54 938
Sinking Fund Payments on Loan ( rowings(c) Repayments of Commonwealth	Cour	REPAYE	MENTS OF AI	DVANCES	50 096	51 517	54 938
Sinking Fund Payments on Loan ( rowings(c) Repayments of Commonwealth Loans—	Cour  Gov	REPAYE	MENTS OF AI	DVANCES	50 096	51 517	
Sinking Fund Payments on Loan C rowings(c) Repayments of Commonwealth Loans— Special Budgetary Assistance	Cour  Gov	REPAYE	MENTS OF AL	46 903	50 096	51 517	20 500
Sinking Fund Payments on Loan C rowings(c)	Cour  Gov e	REPAYI	44 100	46 903 209			20 500 274
Sinking Fund Payments on Loan Crowings(c)  Repayments of Commonwealth Loans—  Special Budgetary Assistance Housing for Servicemen Housing	Gov e	REPAYN	MENTS OF AL	46 903	224	247	20 500 274 8 671
Sinking Fund Payments on Loan ( rowings(c)  Repayments of Commonwealth Loans— Special Budgetary Assistance Housing for Servicemen Housing Growth Centres	Gov e	REPAYN	44 100	46 903 209	224	 247 7 690	20 500 274 8 671 11
Sinking Fund Payments on Loan ( rowings(c)  Repayments of Commonwealth Loans— Special Budgetary Assistance Housing for Servicemen Housing Growth Centres Sewerage	Gov e	REPAYN	44 100	46 903 209	224 6 780	 247 7 690	20 500 274 8 671 11
Sinking Fund Payments on Loan Corowings(c)  Repayments of Commonwealth Loans—  Special Budgetary Assistance Housing for Servicemen Housing Growth Centres Sewerage Railway Projects	Gov	REPAYE	44 100 192 5 854	209 6 092	224 6 780	 247 7 690  36 96	20 500 274 8 671 11
Sinking Fund Payments on Loan ( rowings(c)  Repayments of Commonwealth Loans— Special Budgetary Assistance Housing for Servicemen Housing Growth Centres Sewerage	Gov	REPAYE	44 100 192 5 854	209 6 092	224 6 780	247 7 690  36 96	20 500 274 8 671 163 96
Sinking Fund Payments on Loan Corowings(c)  Repayments of Commonwealth Loans— Special Budgetary Assistance Housing for Servicemen Housing Growth Centres Sewerage Railway Projects Railways—Intersystem Passe	Gov e	REPAYE	44 100  192 5 854 96	209 6 092	224 6 780  96 44 162	247 7 690  36 96 45 81	20 500 274 8 671 163 96
Sinking Fund Payments on Loan ( rowings(c)	Gov	REPAYN  cil Bor-  crnment	44 100  192 5 854 96 37	209 6 092  96	224 6 780  96	247 7 690 36 96 45 81 712	20 500 274 8 671 163 96 62
Sinking Fund Payments on Loan ( rowings(c)  Repayments of Commonwealth Loans— Special Budgetary Assistance Housing for Servicemen Housing Growth Centres Sewerage Railway Projects Railways—Intersystem Passe Vehicles Coal Loading Facilities	Gov ee	REPAYN	44 100  192 5 854 96 37 273	209 6 092  96 37	224 6 780  96 44 162	247 7 690  36 96 45 81	20 500 274 8 671 163 96 62 1 303 81
Sinking Fund Payments on Loan ( rowings(c)	Gov ee	REPAYI	44 100  192 5 854 96 37 273	209 6 092  96 37	224 6 780  96 44 162 259	247 7 690  36 96 45 81 712 52	20 500 277 8 671 163 96 62 1 303 81 85
Sinking Fund Payments on Loan Crowings(c)	Gov e	REPAYE	44 100  192 5 854 96 37 273	209 6 092  96 37 174 42	224 6 780  96 44 162 259	247 7 690  36 96 45 81 712 52	20 500 277 8 671 163 96 62 1 303 81 85 1 032
Sinking Fund Payments on Loan Crowings(c)  Repayments of Commonwealth Loans— Special Budgetary Assistance Housing for Servicemen Housing Growth Centres Sewerage Railway Projects Railways—Intersystem Passe Vehicles Coal Loading Facilities Blowering Reservoir Dairy Adjustment Program Canned Fruit Industry Rural Reconstruction Chowilla Reservoir	Gov Gov e 	REPAYE	44 100  192 5 854 96 37 273	209 6 092  96 37 174 42  536	224 6 780  96 44 162 259 	247 7 690 36 96 45 81 712 52	20 500 277 8 671 163 96 62 1 303 81 83 1 032
Sinking Fund Payments on Loan Crowings(c)  Repayments of Commonwealth Loans— Special Budgetary Assistance Housing for Servicemen Housing Growth Centres Sewerage Railway Projects Railways—Intersystem Passe Vehicles Coal Loading Facilities Blowering Reservoir Dairy Adjustment Program Canned Fruit Industry Rural Reconstruction Chowilla Reservoir War Service Land Settlemen	Gov Gov e 	REPAYN	96 37 273	209 6 092  96 37 174 42  536  5	224 6 780  96 44 162 259 	247 7 690  36 96 45 81 712 52  612 60 159	20 500 274 8 671 163 96 62 1 303 85 1 032 9165
Sinking Fund Payments on Loan Crowings(c)  Repayments of Commonwealth Loans—  Special Budgetary Assistance Housing for Servicemen Housing Growth Centres Sewerage Railway Projects Railways—Intersystem Passe Vehicles Coal Loading Facilities Blowering Reservoir Dairy Adjustment Program Canned Fruit Industry Rural Reconstruction Chowilla Reservoir	Gov Gov e 	REPAYN  ncil Bor-  ernment	44 100  192 5 854 96 37 273	209 6 092  96 37 174 42  536	224 6 780  96 44 162 259 	247 7 690 36 96 45 81 712 52	20 500 274 8 671 163 96 62 1 303 85 1 032 9165
Sinking Fund Payments on Loan Crowings(c)	Gov e   t	REPAYN  acil Bor-  ernment	96 37 273	209 6 092  96 37 174 42  536  5	224 6 780  96 44 162 259  183 18 153 3 061	247 7 690 36 96 45 81 712 52 612 60 159 2 913	20 500 274 8 671 17 163 96 62 1 303 81 85 1 032 99 165 1 456
Sinking Fund Payments on Loan Crowings(c)	Gov e   t	REPAYN  acil Bor-  ernment	96 37 273	209 6 092  96 37 174 42  536  5	224 6 780  96 44 162 259 	247 7 690  36 96 45 81 712 52  612 60 159	54 938 20 500 274 8 671 17 163 96 62 1 303 81 85 1 032 99 165 1 456
Sinking Fund Payments on Loan Crowings(c)  Repayments of Commonwealth Loans— Special Budgetary Assistance Housing for Servicemen Housing Growth Centres Sewerage Railway Projects Railways—Intersystem Passe Vehicles Coal Loading Facilities Blowering Reservoir Dairy Adjustment Program Canned Fruit Industry Rural Reconstruction Chowilla Reservoir War Service Land Settlement Natural Disasters  Total Repayments of Com	Gov Gov t t	REPAYE	96 37 273 	96 37 174 42  536  5 147 3 092	224 6 780  96 44 162 259  183 18 153 3 061	247 7 690 36 96 45 81 712 52 612 60 159 2 913	20 500 274 8 671 163 96 62 1 303 81 85 1 032 99 165 1 456
Sinking Fund Payments on Loan Crowings(c)  Repayments of Commonwealth Loans— Special Budgetary Assistance Housing for Servicemen Housing  Growth Centres Sewerage Railway Projects Railways—Intersystem Passe Vehicles Coal Loading Facilities Blowering Reservoir Dairy Adjustment Program Canned Fruit Industry Rural Reconstruction Chowilla Reservoir War Service Land Settlemen Natural Disasters  Total Repayments of Com Government Loans	Gov e t	REPAYN  acil Bor-  ernment	96 37 273 	96 37 174 42  536  5 147 3 092	224 6 780  96 44 162 259  183 18 153 3 061	247 7 690 36 96 45 81 712 52 612 60 159 2 913	20 500 274 8 671 17 163 96 62 1 303 81 85 1 032 99 165 1 456

## TABLE 124—NEW SOUTH WALES—ADVANCES, DEBT CHARGES ON ADVANCES AND NET ADVANCES—continued

		1972-73	1973–74	1974–75	1975–76	1976–77 (Est.)
	N	ET ADVANCE	es(d)			
(4	Advan	ces less Rep	ayments)			
Loan Council Borrowings	• •	189 185	136 175	176 900	222 597	232 97
Commonwealth Government Loans	• •	28 223	102 875	205 417	228 330	n.a.
TOTAL NET ADVANCES		217 408	239 050	382 317	450 927	n.a.
	Inte	REST ON AD	VANCES		'	
Interest on Loan Council Borrowings		186 481	198 106	216 934	231 187	270 000
Interest on Commonwealth Govern Loans—	ment					
Special Budgetary Assistance			928	1 813	1 813	1 813
Housing for Servicemen		1 448	1 673	2 542	4 045	5 81:
Housing		25 292	27 095	30 849	36 459	41 200
Growth Centres				510	4 579	n.a.
Land Acquistion					595	1 439
Captains Flat Project						11
Sewerage		:. [		617	4 197	7 478
Railway Projects		191	186	181	176	171
Railways—Intersystem Passenger				i	1	
Vehicles		65	63	79	77	115
Coal Loading Facilities		33	20	11	3	
Blowering Reservoir		1 072	1 072	1 062	1 041	997
Dairy Adjustment Program			44	65	74	84
Canned Fruit Industry			30		[	34
Rural Reconstruction		730	1 274	1 785	2 246	2 548
Dartmouth Dam			25	88	260	526
Chowilla Reservoir		77	77	77	64	72
War Service Land Settlement		450	445	439	433	428
Total Interest on Commonwe	alth					
Government Loans		29 358	32 932	40 118	56 062	n.a.
TOTAL INTEREST ON LO						
AND COMMONWEAL			ŀ	1		
GOVERNMENT LOANS		215 839	231 038	257 052	287 249	n.a.
CO. ERITABLIT BOATTO	•••	~15 059	231 030	201002	20127	n.a.

<sup>(</sup>a), (b), (c) and (d) See corresponding footnotes to Table 123. (e) Not available. See the relevant section of Chapter IV.

### TABLE 125—VICTORIA—ADVANCES, DEBT CHARGES ON ADVANCES AND NET ADVANCES

	1972–73	1973–74	1974–75	1975–76	197677 (Est.)
	Advances(	a)			
Loan Council Borrowings	. 187 115	149 738	184 809	217 744	228 70
Commonwealth Government Loans—					
Housing for Servicemen	. 2 019	2 691	4 193	6 082	4 27
Housing(b)	. 1 500	53 500	98 159	98 159	98 15
Growth Centres	<b>I</b>	1 055	24 479	22 296	(e) n.a.
Land Acquisition	1	3 531	8 010	12 237	5 23
Sewerage	1 .	9 300	28 196	24 780	11 97
Softwood Forestry			889	900	. 1 78
Dairy Adjustment Program	46	73	4 371	7 677	4 82
	040			1 706	
			.,	1 164	1 54
Beef Industry Assistance	10 170	5 700	4 976	5 025	2 92
Rural Reconstruction	675	950	2 500	2 800	1 87
Dartmouth Dam	1		469	278	
Natural Disasters					
Total Commonwealth Governmen			174040	102 104	
Loans	. 16 808	76 800	176 242	183 104	n.a.
TOTAL ADVANCES	. 203 923	226 538	361 051	400 848	n.a.
		34 688	36 427	36 565	39 02
Borrowings(c)	. 32 416	34 688	36 427	36 565	39 02
Borrowings(c)	. 32 416	34 688		36 565	39 02
Borrowings(c) Repayments of Commonwealth Governmen Loans—	32 416 t		10 000		
Borrowings(c)  Repayments of Commonwealth Government Loans— Special Budgetary Assistance	32 416	34 688  184	10 000 198	211	
Borrowings(c)  Repayments of Commonwealth Government Loans— Special Budgetary Assistance Housing for Servicemen	32 416 t		10 000	211 6 580	 22 7 36
Borrowings(c)  Repayments of Commonwealth Government Loans— Special Budgetary Assistance Housing for Servicemen Housing	32 416 t 172 5 204	184	10 000 198	211 6 580 35	 22 7 36 14
Borrowings(c)  Repayments of Commonwealth Government Loans—  Special Budgetary Assistance Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage	32 416 t 172 5 204	184	10 000 198	211 6 580	 22 7 36 14
Borrowings(c)  Repayments of Commonwealth Government Loans— Special Budgetary Assistance Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects	32 416 t	 184 5 389	10 000 198 5 855	211 6 580 35	 22 7 36 14 9
Borrowings(c)  Repayments of Commonwealth Government Loans— Special Budgetary Assistance Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects Dairy Adjustment Program	32 416 t	 184 5 389	10 000 198 5 855	 211 6 580 35 96	 22 7 36 14 9
Borrowings(c)  Repayments of Commonwealth Government Loans— Special Budgetary Assistance Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects Dairy Adjustment Program Canned Fruit Industry	32 416  t	184 5 389 96	10 000 198 5 855	211 6 580 35 96 314	 22 7 36 14 9 83 76
Borrowings(c)  Repayments of Commonwealth Government Loans— Special Budgetary Assistance Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects Dairy Adjustment Program Canned Fruit Industry Rural Reconstruction	32 416  t  172 5 204 96	184 5 389 96	10 000 198 5 855	211 6 580 35 96 314 525	22 7 36 14 9 83 76
Borrowings(c)  Repayments of Commonwealth Government Loans— Special Budgetary Assistance Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects Dairy Adjustment Program Canned Fruit Industry	32 416  t  172 5 204 96	184 5 389 96	10 000 198 5 855  96	211 6 580 35 96 314 525 388	22 7 36 14 9 83 76 85
Borrowings(c)  Repayments of Commonwealth Government Loans— Special Budgetary Assistance Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects Dairy Adjustment Program Canned Fruit Industry Rural Reconstruction War Service Land Settlement Natural Disasters	32 416  t  172 5 204 96	184 5 389 96 916	10 000 198 5 855  96  889	211 6 580 35 96 314 525 388 169	22 7 36 14 9 83 76 85
Borrowings(c)  Repayments of Commonwealth Government Loans— Special Budgetary Assistance Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects Dairy Adjustment Program Canned Fruit Industry Rural Reconstruction War Service Land Settlement	32 416  t  172 5 204 96	184 5 389 96 916	10 000 198 5 855  96  889	211 6 580 35 96 314 525 388 169	22 7 36 14 9 83 76 85 17
Borrowings(c)  Repayments of Commonwealth Government Loans— Special Budgetary Assistance Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects Dairy Adjustment Program Canned Fruit Industry Rural Reconstruction War Service Land Settlement Natural Disasters  Total Repayments of Common wealth Government Loans	32 416  t  172 5 204 96 151 725 6 348	184 5 389 96 916  157 725	10 000 198 5 855 96  889 	211 6 580 35 96 314 525 388 169 725	22 7 36 14 9 83 76 85 17
Borrowings(c)  Repayments of Commonwealth Government Loans— Special Budgetary Assistance Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects Dairy Adjustment Program Canned Fruit Industry Rural Reconstruction War Service Land Settlement Natural Disasters  Total Repayments of Common wealth Government Loans  TOTAL SINKING FUND PAY	32 416  t  172 5 204 96 151 725 6 348	184 5 389 96 916  157 725	10 000 198 5 855 96  889 	211 6 580 35 96 314 525 388 169 725	22 7 36 14 9 83 76 85 17
Repayments of Commonwealth Government Loans— Special Budgetary Assistance Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects Dairy Adjustment Program Canned Fruit Industry Rural Reconstruction War Service Land Settlement Natural Disasters  Total Repayments of Commonwealth Government Loans  TOTAL SINKING FUND PAY MENTS AND REPAYMENTS	32 416  t  172 5 204 96 151 725 6 348	184 5 389 96 916 157 725	10 000 198 5 855 96 889 163 725	211 6 580 35 96 314 525 388 169 725	22 7 36 14 9 83 76 85 17 78
Borrowings(c)  Repayments of Commonwealth Government Loans—  Special Budgetary Assistance Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects Dairy Adjustment Program Canned Fruit Industry Rural Reconstruction War Service Land Settlement Natural Disasters  Total Repayments of Common wealth Government Loans  TOTAL SINKING FUND PAY	32 416  t  172 5 204 96 151 725 6 348	184 5 389 96 916  157 725	10 000 198 5 855 96  889 	211 6 580 35 96 314 525 388 169 725	222 7 366 14 9 83 766 85 17 78
Repayments of Commonwealth Government Loans—  Special Budgetary Assistance Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects Dairy Adjustment Program Canned Fruit Industry Rural Reconstruction War Service Land Settlement Natural Disasters  Total Repayments of Common wealth Government Loans  TOTAL SINKING FUND PAY MENTS AND REPAYMENTS OF LOANS	32 416  t  172 5 204 96 151 725 6 348	184 5 389 96 916 157 725 7 467 42 155	10 000 198 5 855 96 889 163 725	211 6 580 35 96 314 525 388 169 725	222 7 366 144 9 83 766 85 17 78
Borrowings(c)  Repayments of Commonwealth Government Loans—  Special Budgetary Assistance Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects Dairy Adjustment Program Canned Fruit Industry Rural Reconstruction War Service Land Settlement Natural Disasters  Total Repayments of Common wealth Government Loans  TOTAL SINKING FUND PAY MENTS AND REPAYMENTS OF LOANS	32 416  t  172 5 204 96 151 725 6 348 38 764  NET ADVANCE ances less Rep	184 5 389 96 916 157 725 7 467 42 155 s(d) ayments)	10 000 198 5 855 96 889 163 725 17 926	211 6 580 35 96 314 525 388 169 725 9 043	39 02 22 7 36 14 9 83 76 85 17 78 11 23
Borrowings(c)  Repayments of Commonwealth Government Loans—  Special Budgetary Assistance Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects Dairy Adjustment Program Canned Fruit Industry Rural Reconstruction War Service Land Settlement Natural Disasters  Total Repayments of Common wealth Government Loans  TOTAL SINKING FUND PAY MENTS AND REPAYMENTS OF LOANS  (Adv	32 416  172 5 204 96 151 725 6 348 38 764  NET ADVANCE ances less Rep	184 5 389 96 916 157 725 7 467 42 155 s(d) ayments)	10 000 198 5 855  96  889  163 725 17 926 54 353	211 6 580 35 96 314 525 388 169 725 9 043 45 608	222 7 36 14 9 83 76 85 17 78 11 23 50 26
Repayments of Commonwealth Government Loans—  Special Budgetary Assistance Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects Dairy Adjustment Program Canned Fruit Industry Rural Reconstruction War Service Land Settlement Natural Disasters  Total Repayments of Common wealth Government Loans  TOTAL SINKING FUND PAY MENTS AND REPAYMENTS OF LOANS	32 416  t  172 5 204 96 151 725 6 348 38 764  NET ADVANCE ances less Rep	184 5 389 96 916 157 725 7 467 42 155 s(d) ayments)	10 000 198 5 855 96 889 163 725 17 926	211 6 580 35 96 314 525 388 169 725 9 043	22 7 36 14 9 83 76 85 17 78

### TABLE 125—VICTORIA—ADVANCES, DEBT CHARGES ON ADVANCES AND NET ADVANCES—continued (\$ thousands)

		1972–73	1973–74	1974–75	1975–76	1976–77 (Est.)
	Inte	rest on Adv	'ANCES			
Interest on Loan Council Borrowings		139 711	149 034	163 993	175 627	210 000
Interest on Commonwealth Govern Loans—	ment					
Special Budgetary Assistance		650	650	650		
Housing for Servicemen	l	1 140	1 378	1 588	1 908	2 51:
Housing		20 920	21 735	24 342	28 750	32 53
Growth Centres				609	3 278	n.a.
Land Acquisition			31	307	1 176	2 47
Sewerage				608	3 882	6 580
Railway Projects		191	186	181	176	17
Dairy Adjustment Program			12	17	21	11
Canned Fruit Industry		578	340	295	230	18
Rural Reconstruction		358	975	1 374	1 654	1 77:
Dartmouth Dam			25	88	260	52
War Service Land Settlement		478	472	466	460	454
Total Interest on Commonwealth						
Government Loans		24 315	25 804	30 525	41 795	n.a.
TOTAL INTEREST ON LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS A COMMONWEALTH	ND					
GOVERNMENT LOANS		164 026	174 838	194 518	217 422	n.a.

<sup>(</sup>a), (b), (c) and (d) See corresponding footnotes to Table 123. (e) Not available. See the relevant section of Chapter IV.

## TABLE 126—QUEENSLAND—ADVANCES, DEBT CHARGES ON ADVANCES AND NET ADVANCES

			•				
			1972-73	1973–74	1974–75	1975–76	1976-77 (Est.)
			Advances(a	)		·	
Loan Council Borrowings			92 752	78 236	107 455	114 919	120 70
Commonwealth Government Loans	s—						
Housing for Servicemen			400	200	5 200	7 500	13 300
Housing(b)			350	17 400	43 810	31 010	37 410
Sewerage				2 007	9 599	9 664	700
Community Facilities—Towns	ville		60	301	67		
Julius Dam			"		2 000		
~			14 000	26 607	32 449	39 000	26 50
a a			2 160	1 535	2 340	2 250	1 52
			1 000	328	704	2 453	90
		• •	1 i	526	704	6 374	8 46
Rural Reconstruction	• •	• •	5 475	5 525	2 787	4 425	2 92
	Cabama	• •					
Brigalow Lands Development S Natural Disasters			698	139 3 656	651 1 212	2 200 81	750 340
Tidedidi Disastols	• •	• •		3 030	1212		
Total Commonwealth Gov	vernmen	t					
Loans	• •	• •	24 143	57 698	100 819	104 957	92 810
TOTAL ADVANCES	• •		116 895	135 934	208 274	219 876	213 521
	R	REPAY	MENTS OF A	OVANCES			
Sinking Fund Bouncasts of La	C	21					
Sinking Fund Payments of Low Borrowings(c)	an Cou	ncıi 	16 815	17 907	19 097	19 828	21 22
Borrowings(c)	• •	• •	10 613	17 907	19 091	19 626	21 22.
Repayments on Commonwealth Loans—	Governn	nent					
77			141	147	154	164	179
		• •	19	19	18	19	20
·-	• •	• •	1 491	1 545	1 684	1 978	2 22
	• •	• •	! !	1			3
Sewerage		٠.		• • • •	• •	8	31
Community Facilities—Town		• •				24	
		• •	570	570	570	570	570
	• •	• •	1 501	1 585	1 673	1 767	1 86:
	• •	• •	13	13	13	13	1.
	• •		63	66	69	73	7
Julius Dam			[		141	66	7.
Dairy Adjustment Program				5	38	46	26:
Sugar Industry		٠.	2 045	2 147	2 254	2 367	2 48
Rural Reconstruction			1			484	62:
Brigalow Lands Developme	ent Sche	eme	661	661	661	762	93
			2 020	2 067	2 067	2 067	2 23
T (1)		1.1					
Total Repayments of Com Government Loans	imonwea	aitn 	8 524	8 825	9 342	10 408	11 60
Government Loans	• •	• •	0 324				
TOTAL SINKING FUNI	)		i				
PAYMENTS AND RE	PAY-		i i				
MENTS OF LOANS			25 339	26 732	28 439	30 236	32 83
	(A		ET ADVANCES nces <i>less</i> Repa				
C 2 D 1			75.037	60.330	00 250	05 001	00.40
	• •	• •	75 937	60 329	88 358	95 091	99 482
Commonwealth Government Loa	ins	• •	15 619	48 873	91 477	94 549	81 201
							180 690

# TABLE 126—QUEENSLAND—ADVANCES, DEBT CHARGES ON ADVANCES AND NET ADVANCES—continued (\$ thousands)

	1972–73	1973÷74	197475	1975–76	1976-77 (Est.)
Interi	est on Adv	/ANCES			
Interest on Loan Council Borrowings(e)	72 930	77 206	84 025	87 147	106 000
Interest on Commonwealth Government					
Housing for Servicemen	1 041	1 061	1 206	1 806	2 710
Aboriginal Advancement	16	16	18	17	16
Housing	6 102	6 337	7 360	9 097	10 400
Sewerage			155	943	1 869
Community Facilities—Townsville				19	39
Beef Cattle Roads	279	251	222	193	165
Railway Projects	1 417	1 333	1 245	1 151	1 053
Coal Loading Facilities	5	4	3	3	2
Weipa Development	163	160	156	152	149
Julius Dam			107	182	175
Dairy Adjustment Program	117	348	408	405	383
Sugar Industry	976	874	817	654	536
Rural Reconstruction	396	775	1 150	1 315	1 385
Brigalow Lands Development Scheme	664	670	648	610	829
Total Interest on Commonwealth Government Loans	11 176	11 829	13 495	16 547	19 711
TOTAL INTEREST ON LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS AND COMMONWEALTH GOVERNMENT LOANS	84 106	89 035	97 520	103 694	125 71

(a), (b), (c), (d) and (e) See corresponding footnotes to Table 123.

## TABLE 127—SOUTH AUSTRALIA—ADVANCES, DEBT CHARGES ON ADVANCES AND NET ADVANCES

		1972–73	1973–74	1974–75	1975–76	1976-77 (Est.)
		Advances(a	·)			
Loan Council Borrowings		100 554	<b>7</b> 9 587	99 261	112 950	118 63
Commonwealth Government Loans—	]	-				
Housing for Servicemen	]	43		130	1 725	2 10
Housing(b)		500	32 750	56 360	56 360	56 36
Growth Centres			4 059	4 978	1 399	98
Land Acquisition			8 000	17 620	19 435	10 72
Sewerage			1 598	4 025	3 990	70
Railway Projects		131	60	237	1 488	60
Railways-Intersystem Passenger Vel	nicles		94	205		
Urban Water Supply				4 400	6 252	6 59
Softwood Forestry		400	252	341	566	10
Dairy Adjustment Program				400	217	42
Canned Fruit Industry		383			413	
Beef Industry Assistance					289	38
Rural Reconstruction		4 575	3 225	1 500	3 825	3 52
Dartmouth Dam	{	675	950	2 500	2 800	1 87
Total Commonwealth Govern	ment					
Loans		6 707	50 988	92 696	98 759	84 37
TOTAL ADVANCES	[	107 261	130 575	191 957	211 709	203 01:
Sinking Fund Payments on Loan Co	uncil					
Borrowings(c)		17 158	18 311	19 477	20 137	19 72
Repayments of Commonwealth Govern Loans—	ment					
Housing for Servicemen		12	12	13	13	1
Housing		2 054	2 139	2 398	2 797	3 21
Sewerage					5	2
Railway Projects		350	352	1 006		
Railways—Intersystem Passenger Ve	hicles	13	13	16		
Natural Gas		1 875	1 875	1 875	1 875	1 87
Urban Water Supply			<b>I</b>			10/
Dairy Adjustment Program				••	87	3
Canned Fruit Industry			349		87	3:
Canned Fruit Industry Rural Reconstruction				••	 87  137	3: 4: 10:
Canned Fruit Industry		••		••		3: 4: 10: 36:
Canned Fruit Industry Rural Reconstruction Natural Disasters			349	••		3 4 10 36
Canned Fruit Industry Rural Reconstruction			349	••		3 4 10 36 6 5 73
Canned Fruit Industry Rural Reconstruction Natural Disasters  Total Repayments of Commonw Government Loans	ealth	  69	349  69	  69	137 69	3 4 10 36 6
Canned Fruit Industry Rural Reconstruction Natural Disasters  Total Repayments of Commonw Government Loans  TOTAL SINKING FUND I	ealth	  69	349  69	  69	137 69	3 4 10 36 6
Canned Fruit Industry Rural Reconstruction Natural Disasters Total Repayments of Commonw Government Loans	ealth	  69	349  69	  69	137 69	3 4 10 36 6
Canned Fruit Industry Rural Reconstruction Natural Disasters  Total Repayments of Commonw Government Loans  TOTAL SINKING FUND F MENTS AND REPAYME	ealth  'AY- NTS	69 4 373	349 69 4 809 23 120	69 5 377	137 69 4 983	3 4 10 36 6
Canned Fruit Industry Rural Reconstruction Natural Disasters  Total Repayments of Commonw Government Loans  TOTAL SINKING FUND F MENTS AND REPAYME OF LOANS	ealth  'AY- NTS  NE	69	349 69 4 809 23 120	69 5 377	137 69 4 983	3 4 10 36 6
Canned Fruit Industry Rural Reconstruction Natural Disasters  Total Repayments of Commonw Government Loans  TOTAL SINKING FUND F MENTS AND REPAYME OF LOANS  (	ealth 'AY- NTS 'NE	69 4 373 21 531 21 ADVANCE: less Repair	349  69 4 809 23 120 s(d) ayments)	5 377	137 69 4 983 25 120	3 4 10 366 6 5 733
Canned Fruit Industry Rural Reconstruction Natural Disasters  Total Repayments of Commonw Government Loans  TOTAL SINKING FUND F MENTS AND REPAYME OF LOANS  ( Loan Council Borrowings	ealth PAY- NTS NE Advance	69 4 373 21 531 ET ADVANCE less less Repr	349 69 4 809 23 120 s(d) ayments)	5 377 24 854	137 69 4 983 25 120	3 4 10 36 6 5 73 25 46 98 91
Canned Fruit Industry Rural Reconstruction Natural Disasters  Total Repayments of Commonw Government Loans  TOTAL SINKING FUND F MENTS AND REPAYME OF LOANS  (	ealth 'AY- NTS 'NE	69 4 373 21 531 21 ADVANCE: less Repair	349  69 4 809 23 120 s(d) ayments)	5 377	137 69 4 983 25 120	3 4 10 36 6

## TABLE 127—SOUTH AUSTRALIA—ADVANCES, DEBT CHARGES ON ADVANCES AND NET ADVANCES—continued

		1972–73	1973–74	1974–75	1975–76	1976-77 (Est.)
	Intei	rest on Ad	VANCES			
Interest on Loan Council Borrowing	74 163	79 372	87 403	85 973	105 000	
Interest on Commonwealth G Loans—	overnment					
Housing for Servicemen .		44	46	48	80	265
Housing		11 081	11 751	13 391	15 898	18 100
Growth Centres		17.001	î	447	841	n.a.
Land Acquisition		::		975	3 030	4 725
Sewerage				75	647	. 952
Railway Projects		941	925	921	35	186
Railways—Intersystem Passer		· · ·				
Vehicles		23	22	28		
Natural Gas		858	747	636	526	415
Titue William Orangla					418	1 256
Dairy Adjustment Program .		i	10	2	8	15
			22			41
		157	421	565	714	866
D			25	88	260	526
Total Interest on Com	nonwealth					
Government Loans .		13 104	13 970	17 176	22 457	n.a.
AND COMMON	OWINGS WEALTH	27.247	02.242	104 570	109 420	
GOVERNMENT LO	ANS	87 267	93 342	104 579	108 430	n.a.

<sup>(</sup>a), (b), (c), (d) and (e) See corresponding footnotes to Table 123.

## TABLE 128—WESTERN AUSTRALIA—ADVANCES, DEBT CHARGES ON ADVANCES AND NET ADVANCES

		197273	197374	1974–75	1975–76	1976–7' (Est.)
		Advances(a	1)			
Loan Council Borrowings		68 503	54 587	68 068	80 197	84 23
Commonwealth Government Loans—						
Housing for Servicemen		161	191	784	698	1 23
Housing(b)		400	13 000	37 440	33 440	35 44
Land Acquisition				9 833	6 133	4 92
Sewerage			3 800	11 715	8 680	6 30
Railway Projects		735	299	89		13
Railways-Intersystem Passenger Ve	hicles	784	720	459	66	
Softwood Forestry		1 020	416	685	864	71
Dairy Adjustment Program		139		450	1 831	83
Beef Industry Assistance			.,		479	63
Rural Reconstruction		6 097	3 975	2 723	3 413	2 55
Ord River Project		409	1 405	313	33	2.3.
W.A. Water Supply		158		_	33.	-
Matural Diseases		ſ	• • •		67	5.00
Natural Disasters	• •	• •	• •	• •	67	5 00
Total Commonwealth Govern	nment					
Loans		9 903	23 806	64 491	55 704	57 81
TOTAL ADVANCES		78 406	78 393	132 559	135 901	142 04
Sinking Found Boundary I C		MENTS OF AI	OVANCES	1	1	
Sinking Fund Payments on Loan C Borrowings(c)	ouncu	13 754	14505	15 336	14 831	1601
Borrowings(c)		13 /34	14 565	15 330	14 651	15 81
Repayments of Commonwealth Govern	nment	. 13 734	14 363	15 550	14 631	15 81
Repayments of Commonwealth Govern			·			
Repayments of Commonwealth Govern Loans— Housing for Servicemen		36	38	40	43	- 4
Repayments of Commonwealth Govern Loans— Housing for Servicemen Housing		36 1 491	38 1 546	40 1 671	43 1 928	- 4 2 18
Repayments of Commonwealth Govern Loans— Housing for Servicemen Housing W.A. Water Supply		36 1 491	38	40 1 671	43 1 928 42	- 4 2 18 15
Repayments of Commonwealth Govern Loans—  Housing for Servicemen  Housing  W.A. Water Supply  Sewerage		36 1 491	38 1 546	40 1 671 	43 1 928 42 14	2 18 15 5
Repayments of Commonwealth Govern Loans—  Housing for Servicemen  Housing  W.A. Water Supply  Sewerage  Exmouth Township		36 1 491  14	38 1 546 	40 1 671  6 9	43 1 928 42 14	2 18 2 15 5 1
Repayments of Commonwealth Govern Loans— Housing for Servicemen Housing		36 1 491	38 1 546	40 1 671 	43 1 928 42 14	2 18 2 15 5
Repayments of Commonwealth Govern Loans— Housing for Servicemen Housing W.A. Water Supply Sewerage Exmouth Township Railway Projects Railways—Intersystem Passenger	   Ve-	36 1 491  14 1 724	38 1 546   14 1 818	40 1 671  6 9 1 903	1 928 42 14 19 1 989	2 18 2 18 15 5 1 2 07
Repayments of Commonwealth Govern Loans— Housing for Servicemen Housing W.A. Water Supply Sewerage Exmouth Township Railway Projects Railways—Intersystem Passenger hicles	   Ve-	36 1 491  14 1 724	38 1 546   14 1 818	40 1 671  6 9 1 903	1 43 1 928 42 14 19 1 989	4 2 18 15 5 1 2 07
Repayments of Commonwealth Govern Loans— Housing for Servicemen Housing W.A. Water Supply Sewerage Exmouth Township Railway Projects Railways—Intersystem Passenger hicles Northern Harbours	   Ve-	36 1 491  14 1 724 96 98	38 1 546  14 1 818 104 98	40 1 671  6 9 1 903 121 98	1 928 42 14 19 1 989 140 98	2 18 15 5 1 2 07
Repayments of Commonwealth Govern Loans— Housing for Servicemen Housing W.A. Water Supply Sewerage Exmouth Township Railway Projects Railways—Intersystem Passenger hicles Northern Harbours Derby Jetty	   Ve-	36 1 491  14 1 724 96 98 53	38 1 546  14 1 818 104 98 53	40 1 671  6 9 1 903 121 98 53	1 928 42 14 19 1 989 140 98 53	2 18 2 18 15 5 1 2 07 17 9
Repayments of Commonwealth Govern Loans— Housing for Servicemen Housing W.A. Water Supply Sewerage Exmouth Township Railway Projects Railways—Intersystem Passenger hicles Northern Harbours Derby Jetty Dairy Adjustment Program	   Ve-	36 1 491  14 1 724 96 98	38 1 546  14 1 818 104 98	40 1 671  6 9 1 903 121 98	43 1 928 42 14 19 1 989 140 98 53 53	4 2 18 15 5 1 2 07 17 9 5
Repayments of Commonwealth Govern Loans— Housing for Servicemen Housing W.A. Water Supply Sewerage Exmouth Township Railway Projects Railways—Intersystem Passenger hicles Northern Harbours Derby Jetty	   Ve-	36 1 491  14 1 724 96 98 53	38 1 546  14 1 818 104 98 53	40 1 671  6 9 1 903 121 98 53	1 928 42 14 19 1 989 140 98 53	4 2 18 15 5 1 2 07 17 9 5
Repayments of Commonwealth Govern Loans— Housing for Servicemen Housing W.A. Water Supply Sewerage Exmouth Township Railway Projects Railways—Intersystem Passenger hicles Northern Harbours Derby Jetty Dairy Adjustment Program Rural Reconstruction	Ve	36 1 491  14 1 724 96 98 53 7	38 1 546  14 1 818 104 98 53 17	40 1 671  6 9 1 903 121 98 53 23	43 1 928 42 14 19 1 989 140 98 53 53	4 2 18 15 5 1 2 07 17 9 5
Repayments of Commonwealth Govern Loans— Housing for Servicemen Housing W.A. Water Supply Sewerage Exmouth Township Railway Projects Railways—Intersystem Passenger hicles Northern Harbours Derby Jetty Dairy Adjustment Program	Ve	36 1 491  14 1 724 96 98 53 7	38 1 546  14 1 818 104 98 53 17	40 1 671  6 9 1 903 121 98 53 23	43 1 928 42 14 19 1 989 140 98 53 53	4 2 18 15 5 1 2 07 17 9 5 18 54
Repayments of Commonwealth Govern Loans— Housing for Servicemen Housing W.A. Water Supply Sewerage Exmouth Township Railway Projects Railways—Intersystem Passenger hicles Northern Harbours Derby Jetty Dairy Adjustment Program Rural Reconstruction  Total Repayments of Com wealth Government Loans	Ve-	36 1 491  14 1 724 96 98 53 7	38 1 546  14 1 818 104 98 53 17	40 1 671  6 9 1 903 121 98 53 23	43 1 928 42 14 19 1 989 140 98 53 53 297	4 2 18 15 5 1 2 07 17 9 5 18 54
Repayments of Commonwealth Govern Loans— Housing for Servicemen Housing W.A. Water Supply Sewerage Exmouth Township Railway Projects Railways—Intersystem Passenger hicles Northern Harbours Derby Jetty Dairy Adjustment Program Rural Reconstruction  Total Repayments of Com wealth Government Loans  TOTAL SINKING FUND 1	Ve-	36 1 491  14 1 724 96 98 53 7	38 1 546  14 1 818 104 98 53 17	40 1 671  6 9 1 903 121 98 53 23	43 1 928 42 14 19 1 989 140 98 53 53 297	4 2 18 15 5 1 2 07 17 9 5 18 54
Repayments of Commonwealth Govern Loans— Housing for Servicemen Housing W.A. Water Supply Sewerage Exmouth Township Railway Projects Railways—Intersystem Passenger hicles Northern Harbours Derby Jetty Dairy Adjustment Program Rural Reconstruction  Total Repayments of Com wealth Government Loans  TOTAL SINKING FUND I MENTS AND REPAYME	Ve-	36 1 491  14 1 724 96 98 53 7	38 1 546  14 1 818 104 98 53 17 	40 1 671  6 9 1 903 121 98 53 23 	43 1 928 42 14 19 1 989 140 98 53 53 297	2 1 1 1 2 0 1 1 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
Repayments of Commonwealth Govern Loans— Housing for Servicemen Housing W.A. Water Supply Sewerage Exmouth Township Railway Projects Railways—Intersystem Passenger hicles Northern Harbours Derby Jetty Dairy Adjustment Program Rural Reconstruction  Total Repayments of Com wealth Government Loans  TOTAL SINKING FUND I MENTS AND REPAYME OF LOANS	Ve mon PAY- ENTS	36 1 491  14 1 724 96 98 53 7	38 1 546  14 1 818 104 98 53 17  3 688	40 1 671  6 9 1 903 121 98 53 23	43 1 928 42 14 19 1 989 140 98 53 53 297	2 18 2 18 5 5 1 2 07 17 9 5 18 54
Repayments of Commonwealth Govern Loans— Housing for Servicemen Housing W.A. Water Supply Sewerage Exmouth Township Railway Projects Railways—Intersystem Passenger hicles Northern Harbours Derby Jetty Dairy Adjustment Program Rural Reconstruction  Total Repayments of Com wealth Government Loans  TOTAL SINKING FUND I MENTS AND REPAYME OF LOANS	Ve Ve mon PAY- ENTS	36 1 491  14 1 724 96 98 53 7  3 519 17 273	38 1 546  14 1 818 104 98 53 17  3 688 18 253	40 1 671  6 9 1 903 121 98 53 23  3 924	43 1 928 42 14 19 1 989 140 98 53 53 297 4 676	4 2 18 15 5 1 2 07 17 9 5 18 54 5 5 21 40
Repayments of Commonwealth Govern Loans— Housing for Servicemen Housing W.A. Water Supply Sewerage Exmouth Township Railway Projects Railways—Intersystem Passenger hicles Northern Harbours Derby Jetty Dairy Adjustment Program Rural Reconstruction  Total Repayments of Com wealth Government Loans  TOTAL SINKING FUND I MENTS AND REPAYME OF LOANS	Ve mon PAY- ENTS	36 1 491 14 1 724 96 98 53 7 3 519	38 1 546  14 1 818 104 98 53 17  3 688	40 1 671  6 9 1 903 121 98 53 23 	43 1 928 42 14 19 1 989 140 98 53 53 297	4 2 18 15 5 1 2 07 17 9 5 18 54

### TABLE 128—WESTERN AUSTRALIA—ADVANCES, DEBT CHARGES ON ADVANCES AND NET ADVANCES—continued

			1972–73	1973–74	1974–75	1975–76	1976–77 (Est.)
						<u> </u>	(ESt.)
		Inte	REST ON AD	VANCES			
Interest on Loan Council Borrov		53 979	57 531	63 561	68 077	81 000	
Interest on Commonwealth Gove	ernment						
Loans-							
Housing for Servicemen			325	334	370	425	493
Housing			6 215	6 449	7 352	8 953	10 30
Land Acquisition					3	1 012	1 74
Sewerage					796	1 011	2 63
Exmouth Township			23	22	13	26	1:
Railway Projects			2 942	2 908	2 820	2 718	2 61
Railways-Intersystem Pas	senger						
Vehicles			159	171	209	245	25
Northern Harbours			43	38	33	28	. 2
Derby Jetty			17	. 14	12	9	
Dairy Adjustment Program			24	31	30	29	4
Rural Reconstruction			302	652	871	1 052	1 25
Ord River Project			29	110	172	187	19
W.A. Water Supply			705	707	707	706	70
Total Interest on Comm	onweal	th					
Government Loans			10 784	11 436	13 388	16 401	20 28
TOTAL INTEREST O	N LOA	N					
COUNCIL BORROY							
COMMONWEALTH			1			1	
MENT LOANS			64 763	68 967	76 949	84 478	101 28

<sup>(</sup>a) (b), (c), (d) and (e) See corresponding footnotes to Table 123.

## TABLE 129—TASMANIA—ADVANCES, DEBT CHARGES ON ADVANCES AND NET ADVANCES

			1972–73	1973-74	1974–75	1975–76	1976–77 (Est.)
	·		Advances(4	r)			
Loan Council Borrowings	••		51 252	43 467	54 952	60 743	63 802
Commonwealth Government Loan Housing for Servicemen	-			145	149	160	13
Housing (b)		• •	300	16 000	26 220	22 220	24 220
Land Acquisition		• •	300	- 1	20 220	22 220	24 220
Sewerage			• • •	.,	1 743	1 389	3 <b>5</b> 0
Railway Projects		• •	680			1 307	330
King Island Harbour Works			557	•••	• •	121	• •
King Island Shipping Service		• •	331		1 309	121	• •
		• •	1 101	672	769	901	982
Softwood Forestry Dairy Adjustment Program	• •	• •	1 101		216	1 486	2 795
Beef Industry Assistance	• •	• •	13	12	210	100	133
	• •	• •					
Rural Reconstruction	• •	• •	1 650	525	600	375	675
Total Commonwealth Go	vernmen	ıt					
Loans		••	4 303	17 354	31 006	26 752	29 431
TOTAL ADVANCES	• •		55 555	60 821	85 958	87 495	93 233
Sinking Fund Payments on Loan (	Council						
Borrowings(c)	••	• •	7 952	8 409	8 967	9 121	8 818
Repayments of Commonwealth	Governn	nont	i			ľ	
Loans—							
_ : :::::			2	2	2	2	2
Housing for Servicemen			627	2 655	2 771	2 946	_
Housing for Servicemen Housing	••		2 627	655	2 771	2 946	1 109
Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage	••		627	655 	771	946	1 109
Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects				655  83	771	946 1 	1 109 12
Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects King Island Harbour Works	  S		627	655 	771  83 37	946 1  37	1 109 12  45
Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects King Island Harbour Works King Island Shipping Service	  S		627	 83 37	771	946 1  37 87	1 109 12  45 87
Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects King Island Harbour Works King Island Shipping Service Hydro-electricity	  S		627  72 	655  83	771  83 37	946 1  37 87 2 989	1 109 12  45 87 2 989
Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects King Island Harbour Works King Island Shipping Service Hydro-electricity Rural Reconstruction	 S e		627	 83 37	771  83 37 44	946 1  37 87 2 989 18	1 109 12  45 87 2 989 111
Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects King Island Harbour Works King Island Shipping Service Hydro-electricity Rural Reconstruction Dairy Adjustment Program	 S e		627 72 	 83 37  2 989	771  83 37 44 	946 1  37 87 2 989 18 20	1 109 12  45 87 2 989 111 130
Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects King Island Harbour Works King Island Shipping Service Hydro-electricity Rural Reconstruction	 S e		627  72 	 83 37	771  83 37 44	946 1  37 87 2 989 18	2 1 109 12  45 87 2 989 111 130 320
Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects King Island Harbour Works King Island Shipping Service Hydro-electricity Rural Reconstruction Dairy Adjustment Program	 3 e  		627 72 	 83 37  2 989	771  83 37 44 	946 1  37 87 2 989 18 20	1 109 12  45 87 2 989 111 130
Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects King Island Harbour Works King Island Shipping Service Hydro-electricity Rural Reconstruction Dairy Adjustment Program Natural Disasters	 3 e  		627 72 	 83 37  2 989	771  83 37 44 	946 1  37 87 2 989 18 20	1 109 12  45 87 2 989 111 130 320
Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects King Island Harbour Works King Island Shipping Service Hydro-electricity Rural Reconstruction Dairy Adjustment Program Natural Disasters  Total Repayments of Com Government Loans  TOTAL SINKING FUNI	s e mmonwea		627 72 	83 37  2 989 	771  83 37 44   3 320	946 1  37 87 2 989 18 20 320	1 109 12  45 87 2 989 111 130 320
Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects King Island Harbour Works King Island Shipping Service Hydro-electricity Rural Reconstruction Dairy Adjustment Program Natural Disasters  Total Repayments of Com Government Loans  TOTAL SINKING FUNI PAYMENTS AND RE	s e mmonwea		627 72 	83 37  2 989 	771  83 37 44   3 320	946 1  37 87 2 989 18 20 320	1 109 12  45 87 2 989 111 130 320
Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects King Island Harbour Works King Island Shipping Service Hydro-electricity Rural Reconstruction Dairy Adjustment Program Natural Disasters  Total Repayments of Com Government Loans  TOTAL SINKING FUNI PAYMENTS AND RE	s e mmonwea		627 72 	83 37  2 989 	771  83 37 44   3 320	946 1  37 87 2 989 18 20 320	1 109 12  45 87 2 989 111 130 320 4 805
Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects King Island Harbour Works King Island Shipping Service Hydro-electricity Rural Reconstruction Dairy Adjustment Program Natural Disasters Total Repayments of Com Government Loans  TOTAL SINKING FUNI PAYMENTS AND RE	on on wear of the party of the		627 72 	655 83 37 2 989 320 4 086	771 83 37 44 3 320	946 1  37 87 2 989 18 20 320	1 109 12  45 87 2 989 111 130 320 4 805
Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects King Island Harbour Works King Island Shipping Service Hydro-electricity Rural Reconstruction Dairy Adjustment Program Natural Disasters  Total Repayments of Com Government Loans  TOTAL SINKING FUNI PAYMENTS AND RE	  e    mnmonwea  D PAY-		627 72 	655 83 37 2 989 320 4 086	771 83 37 44 3 320	946 1  37 87 2 989 18 20 320	1 109 12  45 87 2 989 111 130
Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects King Island Harbour Works King Island Shipping Service Hydro-electricity Rural Reconstruction Dairy Adjustment Program Natural Disasters  Total Repayments of Com Government Loans  TOTAL SINKING FUNI PAYMENTS AND RE	  e    mnmonwea  D PAY-		323 1 024 8 976	655 83 37 2 989 320 4 086	771 83 37 44 3 320	946 1  37 87 2 989 18 20 320	1 109 12  45 87 2 989 111 130 320 4 805
Housing for Servicemen Housing Sewerage Railway Projects King Island Harbour Works King Island Shipping Service Hydro-electricity Rural Reconstruction Dairy Adjustment Program Natural Disasters  Total Repayments of Com Government Loans  TOTAL SINKING FUNI PAYMENTS AND RE MENTS OF LOANS	on the second of		323  1 024  8 976  ET ADVANCES ces less Repa	655 83 37 2 989 320 4 086  12 495  so(d) ayments)	771 83 37 44 3 320 1 260	946 1 37 87 2 989 18 20 320 4 420	1 109 12  45 87 2 989 111 1300 320 4 805

# TABLE 129—TASMANIA—ADVANCES, DEBT CHARGES ON ADVANCES AND NET ADVANCES—continued (\$ thousands)

		1972-73	1973-74	1974-75	1975–76	1976-77 (Est.)
I	NTE	rest on Adv	ANCES			
Interest on Loan Council Borrowings (e)		39 793	42 522	46 892	46 678	50 000
Interest on Commonwealth Government						
Loans-				20	ا مر ا	53
Housing for Servicemen	• •	9	2 2 1 5	22	36 5 874	6 800
Housing	• •	3 734	3 915	4 851	3 8 / 4	13
Land Acquisition	• •	• •		٠٠ ؍ ا		257
Sewerage	• •			6	110	
Railway Projects	• •	113	144	139		40
King Island Harbour Works		• • •	34	33	31	118
King Island Shipping Service.	• •			59	118	
Hydro-electricity		1 492	1 451	1 311	1 264	1 077
Dairy Adjustment Program	• •		5	2	6	8
Rural Reconstruction	• •	15	99	136	169	207
Total Interest on Commonwealth						
Government Loans	• •	5 363	5 657	6 559	7 608	8 573
TOTAL INTEREST ON LOAN						
COUNCIL BORROWINGS		·				
AND COMMONWEALTH		45 156	48 179	53 451	54 286	58 573
GOVERNMENT LOANS						
GOVERNMENT LOANS	••					

<sup>(</sup>a), (b), (c), (d) and (e) See corresponding footnotes to Table 123.

# TABLE 130—TOTAL COMMONWEALTH GOVERNMENT LOANS TO THE STATES AND LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS—NET BASIS

(\$ thousands)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1972–73	217 408	165 159	91 556	85 730	61 133	46 579	667 563
	239 050	184 383	109 202	107 455	60 140	48 326	748 555
	382 317	306 698	179 835	167 103	113 299	75 731	1 224 981
	450 927	355 240	189 640	186 589	116 394	73 954	1 372 741
	n.a.	n.a.	180 690	177 550	120 642	79 610	1 274 605

# TABLE 131—TOTAL COMMONWEALTH GOVERNMENT PAYMENTS TO THE STATES AND LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS—NET BASIS(a)

	New South Wales	Victoria	Queens- land	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
1972-73	1 093 220	826 100	551 802	406 711	384 509	187 283	3 449 623
1973-74	1 309 412	1 008 715	691 032	503 976	454 336	213 041	4 180 507
1974-75	2 015 781	1 570 172	1 036 528	7 <b>59 205</b>	660 311	327 638	6 369 636
1975-76	2 703 504	2 098 099	1 322 209	950 746	879 608	402 964	8 357 132
1976-77 (estimate)	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	n.a.	9 059 807

<sup>(</sup>a) Comprises amounts of net Commonwealth Government loans to the States, Loan Council borrowings and grants to the States, both for current and capital purposes.

### TABLE 132—STATE GOVERNMENT—DEBT OUTSTANDING(a)

(\$ thousands)

As	s at 30 .	June	New South Wales	Victoria	Queensland	South Australia	Western Australia	Tasmania	Total
			Sec	curities on	Issue on Beh	IALF OF STA	res(b)		
1972 1973 1974 1975 1976			3 359 428 3 528 573 3 654 352 3 503 752 3 721 001	2 488 348 2 632 910 2 746 611 2 654 272 2 834 042	1 355 720 1 427 778 1 485 983 1 444 116 1 538 731	1 332 003 1 409 675 1 473 280 1 421 319 1 389 513	981 377 1 029 879 1 070 881 1 025 539 1 090 467	709 921 751 990 787 618 764 762 753 797	10 226 797 10 780 804 11 218 725 10 813 759 11 327 551
			Соммон	WEALTH GO	VERNMENT L	OANS OUTST	anding(c)		
1972 1973 1974 1975 1976			734 650 762 789 865 457 1 070 503 1 298 280	593 711 603 647 671 890 829 383 1 002 404	269 516 284 989 333 520 424 439 518 649	298 001 300 335 346 514 433 833 527 609	238 472 244 786 264 793 325 183 375 815	117 873 121 152 134 420 164 166 186 498	2 252 223 2 317 696 2 616 591 3 247 501 3 909 246
					TOTAL OF ABO	OVE			
1972 1973 1974 1975 1976	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •		4 094 078 4 291 362 4 519 809 4 574 255 5 019 656	3 082 059 3 236 557 3 418 501 3 483 655 3 836 446	1 625 236 1 712 767 1 819 503 1 868 555 2 057 380	1 630 004 1 710 010 1 819 794 1 855 152 1 916 472	1 219 849 1 274 665 1 335 674 1 350 722 1 466 507	827 794 873 142 922 038 928 928 940 345	12 479 020 13 098 550 13 835 316 14 061 260 15 236 797

(a) The figures shown in this table need to be interpreted carefully. Three points particularly need to be borne in mind. First, that considerable portions of the amounts of debt shown would, as a result of State Government loans to semi-government or local authorities or to private businesses, voluntary bodies or individuals, in turn be owed by such bodies or individuals to the States. Secondly, the amounts of debt outstanding would, to some extent, be 'offset' by State Government holdings of securities and other financial assets. Thirdly, the amounts shown do not include the debt of State semi-government or local authorities, or State Government debt taking forms other than securities on issue or loans outstanding to the Commonwealth Government.

(b) Figures taken directly from the Budget Paper 'Securities on Issue 30 June 1976'. The difference between the value of securities on issue at the end of one year and the value at the end of the previous year is approximately equal to net Loan Council borrowings in that year as shown in Table 123 (that is, borrowings less sinking fund payments) but is not exactly equal to that magnitude for two reasons. First, redemption and repurchase of securities outstanding on behalf of the States from the States' sinking funds in any year do not coincide precisely with the total amounts of sinking fund contributions in that year—that is, the balances of the sinking funds may increase or fall in the year. Secondly, the value of securities on issue overseas is affected by currency revaluations (See 'Securities on Issue 30 June 1976', page 6.) Additionally, in 1974–75 and 1975–76, the figures are affected by the take-over from the States by the Commonwealth of liability in respect of debt totalling \$1,186.5 million under the 1976 amendments to the Financial Agreement and Railways Agreements with South Australia and Tasmania.

(c) The difference between loans outstanding at the end of one year and those outstanding at the end of the previous year is equal to net Commonwealth Govern

# APPENDIX V—COMMONWEALTH PAYMENTS TO OR FOR THE STATES AND STATE GOVERNMENT LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS, 1972-73 TO 1976-77

Table No.	
133	Six States Combined.
134	New South Wales.
135	Victoria.
136	Queensland.
137	South Australia.
138	Western Australia.
139	Tasmania.

## TABLE 133—SIX STATES—COMMONWEALTH PAYMENTS AND LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS, 1972–73 TO 1976–77(a)

			1972–73	1973–74	1974–75	1975–76	1976-77 (Est.)(b)
	(	Genei	RAL REVENUI	Funds			
Financial Assistance Grants/Pe Tax Entitlement(c) Special Grants Special Revenue Assistance	rsonal Inco	ome 	1 647 293 38 600 15 000	1 859 905 38 550 25 000	2 373 811 64 684 75 000	3 072 780 38 800	3 716 200 27 000 
Total			1 700 893	1 923 455	2 513 495	3 111 580	3 743 200
	GENER	RAL P	URPOSE CAPI	TAL FUNDS	d)		1
State Government Loan Cour	cil Borro	wing					
Programs			733 461	588 693	741 541	860 667	904 000
Capital Grants		• •	248 539	278 307	345 878	430 333	452 000
Total			982 000	867 000	1 087 419	1 291 000	1 356 000

# TABLE 133—SIX STATES—COMMONWEALTH PAYMENTS AND LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS, 1972–73 TO 1976–77(a)—continued

	(	/			
	1972-73	1973–74	1974-75	1975–76	1976-77 (Est.)(b)
Specific Purpo	ose Payments—	RECURRENT	Purposes		1
Payments Under Financial Agreement—	T -	T	1	1	1
Interest on State Debt	15 170	(e)15 053	(e)15 287	15 170	15 170
Sinking Fund on State Debt	27 979	29 509	30 805	30 200	31 600
Debt Charges Assistance	34 512	46 016	57 520		
S.A. and Tas. Railway Sinking Fu	ı		1.		
Reimbursement State Emergency Services	•••	•••	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1 968	
4		• • •	325	747	. 1 070
Universities	80 826	200 042	377 990	150 426 389	140
Colleges of Advanced Education	26 655	124 808	239 249	286 766	506 080 359 248
Technical and Further Education	20 033	10 268	24 622	40 127	42 343
Schools	40 979	85 661	234 579	331 884	394 393
Education—Allowance for Cost Escalation			1	331 004	45 000
Pre-school and Child Care		4 096	20 377	36 973	44 000
Child Migrant Education	3 956	6 014	9 845	7 370	147
Educational Research	275	406	786	1 062	1 076
Medibank—Public Hospital Running Cos	ts		1	869 679	730 000
Community Health		5 2.70	16 190	35 618	49 140
Tuberculosis Control	10 805	11 247	13 570	11 335	5 864
School Dental Scheme		3 761	6 221	10 561	13 032
Health Education	469	742	834	695	675
Blood Transfusion Services  Health Planning Agencies	1 170	1 870	2 428	3 905	4 730
II Dia ioni	•• ••	376	435	500	560
Comercial at Automore 1 1111			310	327	1 918
Home Care Services	916	1 218	151 3 100	58	7.000
Senior Citizens Centres	34	74	319	5 668 648	7 000
Paramedical Services	77	164	362	410	573
Assistance for Deserted Wives	9 748	7 654	6 932	9 721	10 700
Employment Grants	103 821	12 000	40 003	30 000	10 700
Regional Employment Development Schei			8 463	15 047	4
Social Policy Planning Units		120	190	191	
Aboriginal Advancement	6 649	6 670	13 142	16 949	18 504
Housing	6 892	6 874	6 989	6 976	6 395
Area Improvement		439	1 132	1 436	۱
Sewerage			851	1 196	1 700
Leisure and Recreation		218	70	837	600
Perth Underground Railway Study	•••	188	89		
Fasman Bridge Disaster	••		456	1 400	750
Fisheries Development Cattle Tick Control		168			
Cattle Tick Control	484	• •			
Desides Discoults to top point at at	4 000	5 134	2 114	910	500
Exotic Diseases Eradication	1		6 823	8 496	17 197
A	6 300	6 802	7 723	8 625	120 9 676
Minan Anninula at D	151	151	134	181	180
Fraud and Danish Cains Eisham			35	9	35
Apple, Pear and Canning Fruit Industries		327	33		33
A dissassance A colores to Co		1 500			• •
Count Control			396	398	• •
Most Indian Day Wand Transita				.9	
Water Hyacinth Control					35
				650	
Coal Mining Industry—Long Service Leav	e   2012	2 347	3 073	3 407	3 970
	129	351	799	2 773	4 560
Burdekin River Regional Study		153	34		
1 4 • 1		125	31		
Legal Aid		2 000	1 481	1 000	1 000
Family Courts				760	960
) to C 4	150	150	150	150	150
Assistance for I seel Comment	. 5 767	5 901	7 324	6 000	11 214
Assistance for Local Government	••   ••	[	56 345	79 908	140 000
Johnson Discorton Delief	··   ··		312	138	
vaturai Disaster Relief ,.	72	4 031	1 090	807	1 190
Total Specific Purpose Payments—Recurrent	389 998	609 898	1 221 486		2 483 969

# TABLE 133—SIX STATES—COMMONWEALTH PAYMENTS AND LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS, 1972–73 TO 1976–77(a)—continued (\$ thousands)

	1972–73	1973–74	1974–75	1975–76	1976–77 (Est.)(b)
Specific Puri	POSE PAYMENTS-	-Capital Pu	URPOSES		
Housing for Servicemen	6 163	7 766	26 805	34 170	36 200
Universities	26 464	48 966	65 990	48 827	34 262
Colleges of Advanced Education	31 390	40 112	109 916	86 753	81 735
Technical and Further Education	12 976	18 381	20 375	24 600	35 661
Schools	33 019	75 976	199 368	143 631	154 854
Education—Allowance for Cost Escalati					15 000
Pre-schools and Child Care		2 416	17 123	11 797	10 300
Child Migrant Education		995	1 478	1 670	43
Mental Health Institutions	3 430	2 249			
Hospitals		2 365	30 306	107 150	108 000
Nursing Homes	1 019	658	368	925	652
Community Health		10 541	13 692	13 767	15 760
Tuberculosis Control	388	441	131	241	157
School Dental Scheme		3 776	12 372	13 455	12 056
Blood Transfusion Services				160	288
Disposal of Ships Garbage	782	31	85	76	8
Senior Citizens Centres	736	651	1 197	3 561	4 000
Dwellings for Pensioners	6 470	5 002	6 048	13 117	10 83:
Rehabilitation Centre-Hobart				214	600
Aboriginal Advancement	15 351	25 580	23 907	22 055	10 893
Housing	6 550	218 650	385 400	364 600	375 000
Growth Centres		6 579	61 246	69 535	32 891
Area Improvement		6,961	12,644	13 560	606
Urban Flood Mitigation				2 160	1 940
Land Acquisition		11 531	41 095	54 432	25 503
Woolloomooloo Redevelopment				5 813	10 328
Air Quality Monitoring				191	••.
Captains Flat Project				890	1 200
Sewerage	.,	27 905	116 862	112 051	48 300
Community Facilities—Townsville	60	301	67		
Exmouth Township	28				••
Leisure and Cultural Facilities		1274	5 580	5 881	9 480
Nature Conservation				1 268	3 310
National Estate		288	7 043	<b>3</b> 887	1 35
Roads	279 000	316 800	368 037	442 076	441 500
Roads—Safety Improvements		3 000	••		• • •
Beef Cattle Roads	7750	5 168	279	• •	· · ·
Eyre and Barkly Highway Maintenance	64	64		• • •	
Eyre Highway—Sealing	625	625	••		
Second Hobart Bridge				63	650
Railway Projects	2 962	827	1 060	4 960	2 22:
Railways—Intersystem Passenger Vehicles	s   784	1 081	1 244	78	
Urban Public Transport		• •	45 259	34 096	64 60
King Island Harbour Works	1 113		• • •	· 242	•••
W.A.—Darwin Shipping Service	2 500	1 000		••	
King Island Shipping Service		• •	1 309		
Newcastle Dry Dock		• •	2 018	1 164	350
Tasman Bridge Disaster			5 544	16 300	13 75
Julius Dam			2 000	1 ::	
Ross River Dam	1 500		1	1 402	1 15
Urban Water Supply		.:	4 400	8 931	9 420
Gladstone Power Station	14 000	26 607	32 449	39 000	26 50

#### TABLE 133—SIX STATES—COMMONWEALTH PAYMENTS AND LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS, 1972-73 TO 1976-77(a)—continued

(\$	thousands	)
-----	-----------	---

			1972–73	1973–74	1974–75	1975–76	1976–77 (Est.)(b)
Softwood Forestry			9 459	4 875	7 124	7 937	7 45
Dairy Adjustment Program	ı						
Fruitgrowing Industry	•	• • •				1	
Canned Fruit Industry			1 000	1	10//		1 500
Beef Industry Assistance		• • •				2 457	1
Rural Reconstruction		• •	50.000	25 767	20.701	11 298	15 000
Copeton Dam	• •	, ,		1		30 000	27 000
Cressy-Longford Irrigation	Wante.	• •	4 000		132	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	1
King River Dam		• •	101		1	• • •	
Bundaberg Irrigation Work	• •		36	,	20	1	
	s .,	• •	4 425	3 114		2 500	1
Lock-Kimba Pipeline	• •		420	1		305	
Tailem Bend Pipeline	• •	• •	756	14	12	4	400
Millewa Pipeline		• •	600	800	600	1	
Fairbairn Dam			1 988	622	315	1	
Blowering Reservoir			]		-198	1	
Glenlyon Dam					879	1	1
Lower Dawson River Weirs	·	•		95	455	1	
Eton (Mackay) Irrigation			1	387	1 799	1 999	814
Clare Weir			1	1	100	349	2 551
Ord River Project			748	1 443	348	111	50
Dartmouth Dam			2 025	2 850	7 500	8 400	5 62
W.A. Water Supply		• •	158		1		3 02.
Namoi River Weirs			150	• • •	1		1 000
Water Resources Assessmen	ıt		3 736	4 455	5 410	5 911	6 658
Salinity Reduction		• • •	33	7 7 7	11	3 911	0 030
Flood Mitigation		• • •	1 212	1 484		1000	
Soil Conservation			1 212	1 404	2 437	1 966	_ 148
Brigalow Lands Developmen	nt Schame	• •	698		154	1 231	490
Fourism Development		• •	50	139	651	2 200	750
Migrant Centres	• •	• • •	24	98	1 081	1 829	833
Natural Disaster Relief	• •	• • •	1	24	180		
vatural Disaster Rener	••	• •	-77	24 147	52 109	30 248	24 010
Total Specific Purpo	ose Payme	ents					
Capital	• •	• •	541 490	960 243	1 745 445	1 836 602	1 709 165
		То	TAL PAYMEN	rts(f)			
			2 880 920	3 771 903	5 826 304	7 694 699	8 388 334
	OTAL PAYN	MENTS A	2 880 920 AND LOAN C			7 694 699	8 388 33
deneral Purpose(g)			2 682 893	2 790 455	3 600 914	4 402 580	5 099 200
pecine rurpose		• • •	931 488	1 570 141	2 966 931	4 152 786	4 193 134
Total	• •		3 614 381	4 360 596	6 567 845	8 555 366	9 292 334

<sup>(</sup>a) That is, Commonwealth payments to State Governments and the State Governments' Loan Council borrowing programs. Excludes Commonwealth payments made direct to local government authorities, details of which are given in Chapter V.
(b) Important qualifications attach to the 1976-77 estimates in some cases. See relevant sections of the text.
(c) Financial assistance grants up to 1975-76; the States' personal income tax sharing entitlements in 1976-77.
(d) See Chapter III, under the heading 'Treatment of Loan Council Programs in This and Other Budget Documents'.
(e) A short payment was made to South Australia in 1973-74 which was adjusted for in 1974-75.
(f) Comprising general revenue funds, specific purpose payments and the general purpose capital grants—that is, all amounts shown above with the exception of the Loan Council borrowing programs. See footnote (d).
(g) Comprising general revenue funds, Loan Council borrowings and general purpose capital grants. See footnote (d)

## TABLE 134—NEW SOUTH WALES—COMMONWEALTH PAYMENTS AND LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS, 1972–73 TO 1976–77(a)

(	(\$ thousand	is)			
	1972–73	1973–74	1974-75	1975–76	1976–77 (Est.)(b)
Gener	RAL REVENU	E FUNDS			
Financial Assistance Grants/Personal Income Tax Entitlement(c) Special Revenue Assistance	521 963 15 000	585 507 7 926	737 522 18 641	946 660	1 145 500
Total	536 963	593 433	756 163	946 660	1 145 500
General P	URPOSE CAPI	ITAL FUNDS	(d)	1	
State Government Loan Council Borrowing Programs	233 285 79 051	183 078 86 551	226 996 107 313	274 114 137 057	287 915 143 958
Total	312 336	269 629	334 309	411 171	431 873

TABLE 134—NEW SOUTH WALES—COMMONWEALTH PAYMENTS AND LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS, 1972–73 TO 1976–77(a)—continued

	1972–73	1973–74	1974–75	1975–76	1976–77 (Est.)(b)
SPECIFIC PURPOSE	PAYMENTS-	RECURRENT	Purposes		
Payments Under Financial Agreements—					
Interest on State Debt	5 835	5 835	5 835	5 835	5 835
Sinking Fund on State Debt	9 197	9 675	10 079	9 900	10 500
Debt Charges Assistance	11 399	15 199	18 999		
State Emergency Services			188	298	354
Universities	32 155	79 572	149 997	168 831	196 639
Colleges of Advanced Education	5 525	28 935	62 122	69 089	86 805
Technical and Further Education		5 801	10 333	17 652	15 593
Schools	15 046	28 147	84 749	125 395	143 487
Education—Allowance for Cost Escalation					n.a.
Pre-schools and Child Care		1 281	5 417	9 030	n.a.
Child Migrant Education Educational Research	1 521	2 238	3 890	2 720	90
	91	97	151	253	314
Medibank—Public Hospital Running Costs Community Health				317 177	278 000
Tuboroules - Cantul		. 1 808	9 371	19 284	26 460
School Dantal Schome	3 609	3 347	3 923	3 030	1 362
Health Education	163	658 227	979	1 845	2 117
Blood Transfusion Commisses	267	588	284 590	222	208 1 659
Health Planning Agencies		180	116	1 357 200	230
Home Dialysis Scheme			75	187	804
Control of Arboencephalitis	''		16	3	10
Home Care Services	212	296	611	717	1 200
Senior Citizens Centres	1	4	226	369	327
Assistance for Deserted Wives	2 290	1 769	1 879	2 344	2 600
Employment Grants	37 220	4 530	15 100	11 700	2 000
Regional Employment Development Scheme				207	
Social Policy Planning Units		20	20	45	
Aboriginal Advancement	1 929	1 678	2 316	2 860	2 778
Housing	2 292	2 292	2 292	2 292	1 848
Area Improvement		347	389	537	
Sewerage			113	487	290
Leisure and Recreation	••	20	9	127	118
Cattle Tick Control	484			• • •	
Bovine Brucellosis and T.B. Eradication Apple Export Assistance	1 250	1 952	2 012	2 186	4 906
A company to a second s					2
Minor Agricultural Deservat	1 680	1 797	2 145	2 359	2 579
Frawl and Danish Seine Fishery	82	. 99	82	81	69
Apple, Pear and Canning Fruit Industries		5	35	9	35
Adjustment Assistance to Canneries	••	136	• • •	• •	• •
Locust Control			• • •	377	• •
Water Hyacinth Control		• •	• •	311	35
Coal Mining Industry—Long Service Leave	1 604	1 782	2 478	2 779	3 250
Apprenticeship Training.	7 004	108	161	757	1 570
Legal Aid	:: I	732	404	331	331
Road Safety Practices	37	37	37	37	37
Research Grants	2 112	2 092	2 584	2 340	4 374
Assistance for Local Government			21 359	29 257	51 289
Regional Organisations Assistance			100	44	
Natural Disaster Relief		19	622	637	115
-			-		
Total Specific Purpose Payments—			1	İ	
Recurrent	136 001	203 303	422 088	815 187	n.a.

# TABLE 134—NEW SOUTH WALES—COMMONWEALTH PAYMENTS AND LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS, 1972–73 TO 1976–77(a)—continued (\$ thousands)

<del></del>		1972-73	1973–74	197475	1975–76	1976–77 (Est.) (b)
Specif	ic Purpo	SE PAYMENTS	-CAPITAL P	URPOSES		
Housing for Servicemen .		3 539	4 539	16 350	18 005	15 280
		. 10 522	16 889	22 526	21 754	11 06
Colleges of Advanced Education		. 9 691	7 644	41 197	23 716	25 089
Technical and Further Education		. 5 040	6 873	5 859	8 919	12 76
Schools		. 10 637	30 208	71 707	45 886	53 52
Education—Allowance for Cost Es			1			n.a.
			160	4 819	3 165	n.a.
			90	475	405	·
•		. 873			••	l .:
		.	689	8 830	37 700	36 00
Nursing Homes				108		l ∵
			3 616	4 9 1 6	5 146	2 94
		. 50		34	2	1 1
School Dental Scheme		·.	685	3 214	2 115	3 87
Blood Transfusion Services .		.			34	13
		.   102		349	964	1 10
Dwellings for Pensioners .		. 2 705		3 000	6 858	2 35
Aboriginal Advancement .		. 2 821		5 474	5 321	3 33
Housing		. 3 500		123 411	123 411	123 41 (g)7 75
Growth Centres			630	30 208	44 510	(g) / /3
			4 653	5 111	5 574 11 754	4 36
Land Acquisition				820		10 32
Woolloomooloo Redevelopment .				• •	5 813	10 32
Air Quality Monitoring .				• •	33 890	1 20
Captains Flat Project		.		42,000	42 800	19 70
		.	11 200	42 000	1 762	2 68
		.	••	1 217	445	60
		.	• ••	1 612	946	"
	•		00 270	115 792	136 232	140 30
		. 85 590	98 270 1 080	113 /92	130 232	
		.	267	580	12	
Railways—Intersystem Passenger				14 863	5 694	29 43
Urban Public Transport .		.	• • •	2 018	1 164	35
		3 237	2 000	2 100	2 456	2 35
				1 000	664	1 09
,,		1 140	1			12
			1	::	338	
			·	::	2 892	3 84
		13 500	10 500	12 000	7 250	10 20
				132		l
ooption want .		•		198		
		I	1	439		
		675	950	2 500	2 800	1 87
			1	l		1 00
		1 779	1 182	1 467	1 499	1 63
		1 212		2 317	1 966	
			1	228	543	7
		. 10	2			
·			281	15 822	13 268	8 38
Total Specific Purpose P	ayments-	-	****	564.005	504 704	n.a.
. <del>-</del> .		160 793	300 380	564 297	594 706	n.a.

### TABLE 134—NEW SOUTH WALES—COMMONWEALTH PAYMENTS AND LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS, 1972-73 TO 1976-77(a)-continued (\$ thousands)

-	<del></del>	<del></del> .	<u>.</u>	1972–73	1973-74	1974-75	1975–76	1976–77 (Est.) (b)
		·	То	TAL PAYME	NTS(e)			
	•		•	912 808	1 183 667	1 849 861	2 493 610	n.a.
	То	TAL PAY	MENTS A	and Loan (	Council Bo	RROWINGS		1
General Purpose(f) Specific Purpose	••			849 299 296 794	863 062 503 683	1 090 472 986 385	1 357 831 1 409 893	1 577 373 n.a.
Total		••	• •	1 146 093	1 366 745	2 076 857	2 767 724	n.a.

<sup>(</sup>a) That is, Commonwealth payments to State Governments and the State Governments' Loan Council borrowing programs. Excludes Commonwealth payments made direct to local government authorities, details of which are given in Chapter V.

(b) Important qualifications attach to the 1976-77 estimates in some cases. See relevant sections of the text.

(c) Financial assistance grants up to 1975-76; the States' personal income tax sharing entitlements in 1976-77.

(d) See Chapter III, under the heading 'Treatment of Loan Council Programs in This and Other Budget Documents'.

(e) Comprising general revenue funds, specific purpose payments and the general purpose capital grants—that is, all amounts shown above with the exception of the Loan Council borrowing programs. See footnote (d).

(f) Comprising general revenue funds, Loan Council borrowings and general purpose capital grants. See footnote (d).

(g) See footnote (b) to Table 41.

## TABLE 135—VICTORIA—COMMONWEALTH PAYMENTS AND LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS, 1972–73 TO 1976–77(a)

				1972-73	1973–74	1974–75	1975–76	1976–77 (Est.)(b)
			GENE	RAL REVENUE	E FUNDS			
Financial Assistance C Income Tax Entitler Special Revenue Assis	ment(c)	Personal		396 087	437 604 6 020	548 405 13 861	706 389	852 500
Total		••		396 087	443 624	562 266	706 389	852 500
		Gen	ERAL P	URPOSE CAPI	TAL FUNDS(	d)		
State Government Lo Programs Capital Grants	an Cou	ncil Borr	owing 	187 115 63 405	149 738 70 789	184 809 87 370	217 744 108 871	228 706 114 354
Total		• •	• •	250 520	220 527	272 179	326 615	343 060

# TABLE 135—VICTORIA—COMMONWEALTH PAYMENTS AND LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS, 1972–73 TO 1976–77(a)—continued (\$ thousands)

	1972–73	1973–74	197475	1975–76	1976–77 (Est.) (b)
Specific Purpose	Payments—I	RECURRENT ]	Purposes		
Payments Under Financial Agreement—					 
Interest on State Debt	4 254	4 254	4 254	4 254	4 254
Sinking Fund on State Debt	6 809	7 195	7 525	7 500	8 000
Debt Charges Assistance	8 348	11 131	13 914	/ 300	8 000
State Emergency Services	0 540			119	274
Universities	21 896	53 468	99 798	110 717	132 538
Colleges of Advanced Education	10 443	46 711	86 119	111 307	136 310
Technical and Further Education	10 115	1 772	6 794	9 653	12 830
Schools	13 337	29 125	72 113	100 354	121 896
Education—Allowance for Cost Escalation		27 123	,2113	100 334	n.a.
Pre-schools and Child Care		1 226	6 660	11 452	n.a.
Child Migrant Education	1 819	2 732	4 482	3 559	44
Educational Research	87	142	227	431	359
Medibank-Public Hospital Running Costs			LL,	229 570	180 000
Community Health		1 462	2 883	7 712	9 380
Tuberculosis Control	3 322	3 628	4 128	4 604	2 111
School Dental Scheme		550	916	1 351	2 285
Health Education	100	125	174	160	148
Blood Transfusion Services	367	506	642	1 009	1 176
Health Planning Agencies			52	20	24
Home Dialysis Scheme	1		140	29	784
Control of Arboencephalitis	1		120	55	55
Home Care Services	390	370	441	2 178	1 700
Senior Citizens Centres	16	36	51	222	258
Paramedical Services	61	131	242	233	270
Assistance for Deserted Wives	2 861	1 574	1 256	2 016	2 400
Employment Grants	25 670	2 647	11 200	8 200	
Regional Employment Development Scheme			4 292	5 404	2
Social Policy Planning Units	l l	20	20	22	l
Aboriginal Advancement	331	358	494	875	1 236
Housing	1 679	. 1 679	1 679	1 679	1 347
Area Improvement		92	268	557	
Sewerage			243	164	420
Leisure and Recreation		20	29	219	118
Fisheries Development		88			
Apple Export Assistance				65	35
Bovine Brucellosis and T.B. Eradication	1 150	1 681	2 064	2 459	5 113
Exotic Diseases Eradication	1				120
Agricultural Extension Services	1 490	1 601	1 877	2 022	2 291
Minor Agricultural Research	19	23	22	63	68
Apple, Pear and Canning Fruit Industries		50			
Adjustment Assistance to Canneries		1 117			
Locust Control			.44		
Apprenticeship Training	72	92	227	852	1 297
Legal Aid	· ·	557	408	276	276
Road Safety Practices	30	30	30	30	30
Research Grants	1 620	1 540	1 821	1 553	2 903
Assistance for Local Government			14 630	20 242	35 398
Regional Organisations Assistance			76	29	
Natural Disaster Relief	40	22	355	35	
Total Specific Purpose Payments—					
Recurrent	106 211	177 755	352 710	653 251	n.a.

# TABLE 135—VICTORIA—COMMONWEALTH PAYMENTS AND LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS, 1972–73 TO 1976–77(a)—continued (\$ thousands)

		1972–73	1973–74	1974–75	1975–76	1976–77 (Est.)(b)
Specific	: Purpose	Payments—	-Capital Pu	JRPOSES	•	
IIi C Convicemen		2 019	2 691	4 193	6 082	4 270
Housing for Servicemen	• •	7 327	14 128	17 330	9 516	4 980
Universities		9 275	13 680	32 452	34 313	31 34
Colleges of Advanced Education		3 350	5 500	6 585	7 376	8 820
Technical and Further Education		9 486	18 011	58 652	49 285	45 139
Schools  Education—Allowance for Cost Esca			10011	50 052	.,	n.a.
<del></del>		• •	288	2 637	1 345	n.a.
Pre-schools and Child Care	• • •	• •	550	709	943	11.00.
Child Migrant Education		831	237	10)	743	•
Mental Health Institutions	• •	831		7 330	27 280	27 000
Hospitals	• •		150	112		27 000
Nursing Homes	• •	149	512	2 093	3 151	5 820
Community Health			2 924			140
Tuberculosis Control	• •	16		10	2 2 2 4 4	
School Dental Scheme			794	3 181	2 044	986
Blood Transfusion Services					75	68
Disposal of Ships Garbage		765	6	15	29	
Senior Citizens Centres		223	163	150	1 292	1 400
Dwellings for Pensioners		1 478	650	1 343	2 827	3 41
Aboriginal Advancement		439	590	1 636	482	16
Housing		1 500	53 500	98 159	98 159	98 159
Growth Centres			1 500	24 819	22 541	n.a.
Area Improvement			2 308	4 340	4 339	1:
Urban Flood Mitigation					100	100
Land Acquisition			3 531	9 003	15 654	5 23
Air Quality Monitoring					33	
Sewerage			9 300	38 587	35 400	17 10
Leisure and Cultural Facilities		l ::	478	810	1 560	1 73
Nature Conservation	• •		.,,,		35	1 25
			150	1 471	550	68
		57 240	65 720	75 951	91 989	93 20
Roads	• •		840		,,,,,,	, , , ,
Roads—Safety Improvements	• • •	• • •		18 867	9 529	16 05
Urban Public Transport	• • •	1 542	• • •	889	900	1 78
Softwood Forestry		_	145	5 543	10 065	6 34
Dairy Adjustment Program	• •	90		71	10 003	800
Fruitgrowing Industry	• •	100	430	/1	1 706	800
Canned Fruit Industry		849	• •	• • •	1 164	1 54
Beef Industry Assistance			_ ::.			
Rural Reconstruction		13 570	7 600	6 634	6 700	3 90
King River Dam		36	15	20		
Millewa Pipeline	• • •	600	800	600		
Dartmouth Dam		675	950	2 500	2 800	1 87
Water Resources Assessment		453	762	850	891	1 13
Salinity Reduction		33	7	11		
Soil Conservation				129	467	6
Tourism Development			50	236	511	5
Migrant Centres			4			
Natural Disaster Relief	• • •			9 452	6 215	
Total Specific Purpose Pay	ments					
	ments	112 046	208 964	437 370	457 452	n.a.
Capital	• • •	112 070	200 704	1, 5.0	·- / ·- <b>-</b>	1

#### TABLE 135-VICTORIA-COMMONWEALTH PAYMENTS AND LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS, 1972-73 TO 1976-77(a)—continued

		•		1972–73	1973–74	1974–75	1975–76	1976–77 (Est.)(b)
	· •		To	TAL PAYME	NTS(e)			
				677 749	901 132	1 439 716	1 925 963	n.a.
	To	TAL PAYM	IENTS A	nd Loan (	Council Bo	RROWINGS		
General Purpose(f) Specific Purpose		•••		646 607 218 257	664 151 386 719	834 445 790 080	1 033 004 1 110 703	1 195 560 n.a.
Total	••			864 864	1 050 870	1 624 525	2 143 707	n.a.

<sup>(</sup>a) That is, Commonwealth payments to State Governments and the State Governments' Loan Council borrowing programs. Excludes Commonwealth payments made direct to local government authorities, details of which are given in Chapter V.
(b) Important qualifications attach to the 1976-77 estimates in some cases. See relevant sections of the text.
(c) Financial assistance grants up to 1975-76; the States' personal income tax sharing entitlements in 1576-77.
(d) See Chapter III, under the heading 'Treatment of Loan Council Programs in This and Other Budget Documents'.
(e) Comprising general revenue funds, specific purpose payments and the general purpose capital grants—that is, all amounts shown above with the exception of the Loan Council borrowing programs. See footnote (d).
(f) Comprising general revenue funds, Loan Council borrowings and general purpose capital grants. See footnote (d).

# TABLE 136—QUEENSLAND—COMMONWEALTH PAYMENTS AND LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS, 1972-73 TO 1976-77(a) (\$ thousands)

(\$ thousands)											
			1972–73	1973–74	1974–75	1975–76	1976–77 (Est.)(b)				
			RAL REVENU	e Funds							
Financial Assistance Grants/Pers	onal Ir	come	1	1		Ī					
Tax Entitlement(c)			271 946	318 245	414 446	536 792	646 500				
Special Grants	• •	• •	10 000	10 000	24 750	36 300	27 000				
Special Revenue Assistance	• •	• •		4 228	10 475						
Total			281 946	332 473	449 671	573 092	673 500				
	GENE	RAL P	URPOSE CAPI	TAL FUNDS	d)						
State Government Loan Counci	l Borre	owing	1			l					
Programs			92 752	78 236	107 455	114 919	120 705				
Capital Grants	• •	• •	31 429	36 987	46 112	57 459	60 352				
Total			124 181	115 223	153 567	172 378	181 057				
			PAYMENTS—I	RECURRENT	Purposes						
Payments Under Financial Agree	ement-	_				)					
Interest on State Debt			2 192	2 192	2 192	2 192	2 192				
Sinking Fund on State Debt	• •	• •	3 636	3 844	4 012	3 900	4 200				
Debt Charges Assistance State Emergency Services	• •	• •	4 576	6 102	7 627						
Y T	• •	• •	10 664	26 169	114 49 876	269 57 185	273 69 626				
Colleges of Advanced Education	• •	• •	2 906	14 438	27 230	33 999	46 644				
Technical and Further Education				715	2.262	4 643	4 523				
Schools			6 250	13 578	35 604	46 162	54 801				
Education-Allowance for Cost I	Escalati						n.a.				
Pre-schools and Child Care				436	1 734	5 356	n.a.				
Child Migrant Education	• •		98	165	255	195	2				
Educational Research		g	60	109	296	190	192				
Medibank—Public Hospital Rur Community Health			••	734	1 891	102 820	97 000				
Tuberculosis Control	• •		1 932	2 247	2 979	3 643 1 822	4 300 1 161				
School Dental Scheme			1 752	278	629	998	2 159				
Health Education			75	155	118	132	128				
Blood Transfusion Services			212	304	416	547	734				
Health Planning Agencies				65	53	70	84				
Home Dialysis Scheme			••	••	30	48	156				
Home Care Services	• •	• •	248	312	1 245	1 693	1 900				
A	• •	• •	1 726	18	11	1,025	28				
T 1	• •	•••	1 736 16 400	1 346 2 353	1 179 5 600	1 935	2 300				
Regional Employment Developm	 ent Scl	neme		2 333	1 916	5 000 2 781	• •				
A. 115 11 51 51				20	20	2 /61	• •				
41			2 269	975	1 701	2 952	3 533				
YY !			669	. 651	766	753	1 318				
		]			159	177					
T - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 -	• •		••		60	251	320				
Amelon Tours and Assistances	• •		• •	20	6	118	94				
Apples Export Assistance Bovine Brucellosis and T.B. Erad	 !4:	• • •		470	8	14	2.769				
Agricultural Extension Services			885 1 380	1 525	1 661 1 583	2 190 1 826	3 768 2 097				
Minor Agricultural Decorreb			37	1 323	14	17	17				
Locust Control			"		349	21					
West Indian Dry Wood Termite						- 6					
Coal Mining Industry—Long Serv	vice Le	ave	316	410	429	454	525				
Apprenticeship Training		[	25	52	212	471	580				
Burdekin River Regional Study		• •		153	34						
Dond Cafeta Decesions	• •	••	20	296	161	131	131				
D	• •	••	28	28	28	28	28 1 210				
Research Grants Assistance for Local Government	• •	::	641	700	853 8 954	706 13 808	1 319 24 222				
Made and This is the first			32	3 990	113	52	75				
Total Specific Purpose I	)avmer	ts  -									
Th			57 270	84 862	164 380	299 558	n a.				
	•	•	3, 2,0	5.00 <b>2</b>	10.300	277 330	11 44				
					<u> </u>						

## TABLE 136—QUEENSLAND—COMMONWEALTH PAYMENTS AND LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS, 1972–73 TO 1976–77(a)—continued

(\$	thousan	ds)
( **	tirousuii	40,

	197	72-73	1973–74	1974–75	1975–76	1976–77 (Est.)(b)
Specific Pul	RPOSE PAY	MENTS	-Capital Pi	URPOSES		
Housing for Servicemen		400	200	5 200	7 500	. 13 300
Universities		2 545	5 624	9 821	6 453	6 11:
Colleges of Advanced Education		3 806	5 078	13 438	9 181	10 814
Technical and Further Education.		1 910	1 945	4 073	3 334	4 07
Schools		4 366	8 990	27 970	22 363	24 079
Education—Allowance for Cost Escalatio	n					n.a.
Pre-schools and Child Care			1 003	3 806	2 584	n.a.
Child Migrant Education			50	106	11	
Mental Health Institutions	•••	967	247		15 280	17 00
Hospitals			250	5 084	925	65
Nursing Homes		240	145	148	1 778	3 10
Community Health	• •		1 468	1 282	203	
Tuberculosis Control		27	22	56 2 352	5 299	2 42
School Dental Scheme	•••		192		29	3
Blood Transfusion Services	••	••	• • •			
Disposal of Ships Garbage	•••		55	153	392	70
Senior Citizens Centres	•••	184	1 331	1 314	1 133	2 02
Dwellings for Pensioners	•••	1 250	8 982	8 661	7 205	3 45
Aboriginal Advancement	•••	5 431 350	17 400	43 810	31 010	37 41
Housing	•••			2 341	2 315	46
Area Improvement	••		• •		2 060	1 84
Urban Flood Mitigation	•••		••	• •	33	
Air Quality Monitoring	•••		2 007	12 854	13 767	1 00
Sewerage			2 007	12 054	12.0	"
Community Facilities—	l	60	301	67		l
Townsville	• • •		238	766	1 060	87
Leisure and Cultural Facilities		• •	250	,,,,	88	40
Nature Conservation		• •	33	791	567	18
		52 110	59 830	75 372	90 049	91 90
Roads	::	JZ 110	435			
Beef Cattle Roads	::	5 500	4 187	279		
Barkly Highway Maintenance		14	14			
Urban Public Transport.	::	!		2 126	8 986	11 04
Julius Dam		1		2 000		
Ross River Dam		1 500			1 402	1 15
Gladstone Power Station		14 000	26 607	32 449	39 000	26 50
Softwood Forestry		2 160	1 535	2 340	2 250	1 52
Dairy Adjustment Program		2 000	656	1 008	3 702	1 36
Fruit Growing Industry		10	• •	119	41	6
Beef Industry Assistance				••	6 374	8 46
Rural Reconstruction		7 300	7 367	3 716	5 900	3 90
Bundaberg Irrigation Works		4 425	3 114	2 000	2 500	1
Fairbairn Dam		1 988	622	315		
Glenlyon Dam			• •	439		
Lower Dawson River Weirs			95	455		
Eton (Mackay) Irrigation System			387	1 799	1 999	81
Clare Weir				100	349	2 55
Water Resources Assessment		563	770	878	932	
Flood Mitigation		• •	• •	120		14
Soil Conservation					623	75
Brigalow Lands Development		698	139	651	2 200 140	14
Tourism Development				188	140	1
Migrant Centres	• •	14	18	163 26 721	6 400	10 62
Natural Disaster Relief		<b>—74</b>	23 869	20 /21	0 400	10 02
Total Specific Purpose Paymen	its—	10.744	195 207	207.240	307 417	n.a
Capital	1	13 744	185 206	297 349	30/41/	11.a

### TABLE 136—QUEENSLAND—COMMONWEALTH PAYMENTS AND LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS, 1972-73 TO 1976-77(a)—continued

	<del>-</del>			1972–73	1973-74	1974–75	1975–76	1976-77 (Est.) (b)
			To	TAL PAYMEN	its(e)			
				484 389	639 528	957 512	1 237 526	n.a.
	То	TAL PAYI	MENTS A	ND LOAN C	Council Bo	RROWINGS		
General Purpose(f) Specific Purpose				406 127 171 014	447 696 270 068	603 238 461 729	745 470 - 606 975	854 557 n.a.
Total		• •		577 141	717 764	1 064 967	1 352 445	n.a.

<sup>(</sup>a) That is, Commonwealth payments to State Governments and the State Governments' Loan Council borrowing programs. Excludes Commonwealth payments made direct to local government authorities, details of which are given in Chapter V.
(b) Important qualifications attach to the 1976-77 estimates in some cases. See relevant sections of the text.
(c) Financial assistance grants up to 1975-76; the States' personal income tax sharing entitlements in 1976-77.
(d) See Chapter III, under the heading 'Treatment of Loan Council Programs in This and Other Budget Documents'.
(e) Comprising general revenue funds, specific purpose payments and the general purpose capital grants—that is, all amounts shown above with the exception of the Loan Council borrowing programs. See footnote (d).
(f) Comprising general revenue funds, Loan Council borrowings and general purpose capital grants. See footnote (d).

TABLE 137—SOUTH AUSTRALIA—COMMONWEALTH PAYMENTS AND LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS, 1972–73 TO 1976–77(a)

		(† inousan	us)			
		1972–73	1973–74	1974–75	1975–76	1976-77 (Est.)(b)
	GENE	RAL REVENU	E FUNDS			<u></u>
Financial Assistance Grants/Person	al Income	1	1 2 1 1 1 2		 I	
Tax Entitlement(c)		181 430	204 918	261 737	363 091	438 300
Special Grants		21 000	19 900	39 934	2 500	
Special Revenue Assistance	• •		2 764	16 616		
Total		202 430	227 582	318 287	365 591	479 200
,		·	<del></del>		303 391	438 300
State Government Loan Council I	JENERAL P	URPOSE CAPI	TAL FUNDS	d)		
Programs	-	100 554	70.507			
Capital Grants		100 554 34 074	79 587 37 625	99 261 46 927	112 950 56 475	118 637 59 318
	•	<del></del>		40 927	30 473	39 318
Total		134 628	117 212	146 188	169 425	177 955
Specific	PURPOSE I	PAYMENTS-I	RECURRENT 1	PURPOSES		
Payments Under Financial Agreen		1 .			1	
Interest on State Debt Sinking Fund on State Debt	• ••	1 408	(e)1 290	(e)1 525	1 408	1 408
Dobt Charges Assistant		3 689	3 896	4 072	4 000	3 900
S.A. Railway Sinking Fund Reimb		4 487	5 982	7 478		
State Emergency Services .				• •	1 488	
Universities		7 898	 19 808	38 067	8 43 107	27 50 665
Colleges of Advanced Education .		2 638	13 518	24 531	28 838	50 665 36 859
Technical and Further Education.			889	2 639	3 770	4 663
Schools		2 529	6 464	19 017	27 452	32 722
Education—Allowance for Cost Es	calation					n.a.
Pre-schools and Child Care		i	690	3 233	5 025	n.a.
Child Migrant Education Educational Research		326	587	810	514	7
Educational Research  Medibank—Public Hospital Runni		13	18	58	116	135
		・・			92 367	69 000
Tuberculosis Control		011	597	820	1 976	4 200
School Dental Scheme		811	988 1 066	1 114	685	344
Health Education		52	76	1 700 88	2 549	2 268
Blood Transfusion Services		160	252	365	69 567	65 662
Health Planning Agencies			50	87	. 75	62
Home Dialysis Scheme				30	40	85
Control of Arboencephalitis				15		5
Home Care Services	• •	41	169	563	653	1 800
Senior Citizens Centres		9	2	16	30	38
Andreas Con Don 1 1777		14	30	112	167	290
E1		776	1 534	1 045	1 509	1 700
Employment Grants Regional Employment Development	t Scheme	9 660	941	3 600	2 400	
Social Policy Planning Units	· · ·		20	1 113	3 294	1
Aboriginal Advancement		694	1 003	59 1 501	56	
Housing		1 093	1 093	1 093	2 167 1 093	2 722 941
Area Improvement				44	51	941
Sewerage				256	136	220
Leisure and Recreation	, ,		105	. 8	98	94
Fisheries Development	• •		40			
Apple Export Assistance						4
Bovine Brucellosis and T.B. Eradic Agricultural Extension Services		235	551	350	637	1 931
Minon A!ItI D		690	760	856	944	1 068
Apple, Pear and Canning Fruit Ind	 Inetriae	13	17	16	20	26
Adjustment Assistance to Cannerie	s	• • •	15	•••	• • •	• •
Locust Control	•	[	247	4		• •
Apprenticeship Training		19	44	93	150	
Legal Aid			187	273	159 89	431 89
Road Safety Practices		19	. 19	19	19	19
Research Grants		851	955	1 369	950	1 776
Assistance for Local Government		• •		4 774	6 785	11 925
Regional Organisations Assistance	• •			66	24	
Total Specific Purpose Pa	vments					
D	ATTICITIES-	38 125	63 903			
Recurrent				122 879	235 335	n.a.

# TABLE 137—SOUTH AUSTRALIA—COMMONWEALTH PAYMENTS AND LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS, 1972-73 TO 1976-77(a)—continued (\$ thousands)

		1972-73	1973–74	1974–75	1975–76	1976–77 (Est.)(b)
Specific Pur	POSE ]	PAYMENTS-	-Capital Pi	URPOSES		
Housing for Servicemen	ī.	43		130	1 725	2 107
Universities		2 697	7 050	7 320	3 421	4 855
Colleges of Advanced Education		3 639	6 196	12 579	6 886	7 354
Technical and Further Education		1 130	2 063	2 800	1 208	3 723
Schools		3 805	9 430	19 159	11 056	14 323
Education—Allowance for Cost Escalation	n					n.a.
Pre-schools and Child Care			514	2 773	1 498	n.a.
Child Migrant Education		• •	165	92	275	31
Mental Health Institutions		453	344		40,000	12.000
Hospitals			441	3 236	12 900	13 000
Nursing Homes		465		1.507	 1 864	900
Community Health	••		1 195	1 597		900
Tuberculosis Control	• •	243	395	31 2 247	30 825	3 044
School Dental Scheme		• • •	895	2 241		23
Blood Transfusion Services			55	363	6 566	300
Senior Citizens Centres		132	146	193	1 124	1 473
Dwellings for Pensioners		380 1 046	3 696	4 058	3 558	724
Aboriginal Advancement		500	32 750	56 360	56 360	56 360
Housing	• •	300	4 414	5 829	1 504	982
Growth Centres	• •	• •	7 717	383	602	
Area Improvement Land Acquisition	• • •		8 000	19 553	19 935	10 725
Air Quality Monitoring	::		0 000	1, 333	33	
Sewerage	::		1 598	5 750	5 700	1 000
Leisure and Cultural Facilities	::		160	620	625	2 750
Nature Conservation	::				579	300
National Estate			45	981	506	246
Roads		28 000	31 000	31 888	41 484	39 400
Roads—Safety Improvements			300			
Beef Cattle Roads		350	• •			
Eyre Highway Maintenance		25	25			
Eyre Highway Sealing		625	625			
Railway Projects		556	319	909	4 960	2 000
Railways-Intersystem Passenger Vehicle	s		94	205	•:	
Urban Public Transport			• •	6 215	6 757	5 580
Urban Water Supply		••		4 400	8 931	9 420
Softwood Forestry		400	252	341	566	100 523
Dairy Adjustment Program				500	305	150
Fruitgrowing Industry		25	57	105	20 413	130
Canned Fruit Industry	• • •	383	•••	• • •	289	383
Beef Industry Assistance	• •		4 300	2 000	5 100	4 700
Rural Reconstruction	• •	6 100	540	835	305	4 700
Lock-Kimba Pipeline	•••	420 756	14	12	303	400
Tailem Bend Pipeline		675	950	2 500	2 800	1 875
Dartmouth Dam	•••	161	371	413	468	727
Water Resources Assessment	::	101		25	42	43
Tourism Development	::	50	::	172	177	312
Migrant Centres	::		::	17	*	
Natural Disaster Relief				114	108	
Tractal Disaster Rener					-	
Total Specific Purpose Paymen	ts—			1	1 .	-
Capital	[	53 059	118 399	196 705	205 515	n.a.
•	i		1	1	1	1 '

#### TABLE 137—SOUTH AUSTRALIA—COMMONWEALTH PAYMENTS AND LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS, 1972-73 TO 1976-77(a)—continued

				1972–73	1973–74	1974-75	1975–76	1976–77 (Est.) (b)
•			To	TAL PAYMEN	rts(f)			
				327 688	447 509	684 798	862 916	n.a.
	То	TAL PAY!	MENTS A	nd Loan C	Council Bos	RROWINGS		
General Purpose(g) Specific Purpose	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •			337 058 91 184	344 794 182 302	464 475 319 584	535 016 440 850	616 255 n.a.
Total		••		428 242	527 096	784 059	975 866	n.a.

<sup>(</sup>a) That is, Commonwealth payments to State Governments and the State Governments' Loan Council borrowing programs. Excludes Commonwealth payments made direct to local government authorities, details of which are given in Chapter V.

(b) Important qualifications attach to the 1976-77 estimates in some cases. See relevant sections of the text.

(c) Financial assistance grants up to 1975-76; the States' personal income tax sharing entitlements in 1976-77.

(d) See Chapter III, under the heading 'Treatment of Loan Council Programs in This and Other Budget Documents'.

(e) A short payment was made to South Australia in 1973-74 which was adjusted for in 1974-75.

(f) Comprising general revenue funds, specific purpose payments and the general purpose capital grants—that is, all amounts shown above with the exception of the Loan Council borrowing programs. See footnote (d).

(g) Comprising general revenue funds, Loan Council borrowings and general purpose capital grants. See footnote (d)

TABLE 138—WESTERN AUSTRALIA—COMMONWEALTH PAYMENTS AND LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS, 1972-73 TO 1976-77(a)

		(\$ thousan	<b>u</b> o,			
		1972-73	1973–74	197475	1975–76	1976-77 (Est.)(b)
		RAL REVENU	e Funds			
Financial Assistance Grants/Person Income Tax Entitlement(c)		196 369	222 388	279 830	363 031	444 000
Special Revenue Assistance	• •		2 855	7 073		
Total		196 369	225 243	286 903	363 031	444 000
State Government Loan Council B		URPOSE CAPI	TAL FUNDS	d)	·	
Programs		68 503	54 587	68 068	80 197	84 235
Capital Grants		23 213	25 806	32 179	40 099	42 117
Total		91 716	80 393	100 247	120 296	126 352
Specific	PURPOSE	Payments—1	RECURRENT 1	Purposes		
Payments Under Financial Agreem		0.47		2.4		
Interest on State Debt		947	947	947	947	947
Sinking Fund on State Debt Debt Charges Assistance		2 715	2 855 4 422	2 976	2 800	3 000
State Emergency Services		1 1		5 528	• •	64
Assistance for Exmouth Shire		•••	• •	• • •	150	140
[ ]minantito		5 683	14 610	27 978	32 891	40 946
Colleges of Advanced Education		4 015	17 247	32 359	36 522	44 379
Technical and Further Education		1 7015	974	2 168	3 322	3 647
Schools		2 903	6 389	17 184	23 194	31 183
Education—Allowance for Cost Esc			0.505		i	n.a
Pre-schools and Child Care			385	2 316	4 390	n.a.
Child Migrant Education		138	157	229	233	2
Educational Research		17	26	33	59	48
Medibank-Public Hospital Runn		''			96 745	84 000
Community Health	•		548	697	1 738	2 900
Tuberculosis Control		797	785	992	647	356
School Dental Scheme			391	758	2 271	2 745
Health Education		49	99	106	88	81
Blood Transfusion Services		134	183	358	330	398
Health Planning Agencies			81	127	110	120
Home Dialysis Scheme				30	23	75
Home Care Services		13	23	116	87	200
Senior Citizens Centres		5	15	15	27	49
Assistance for Deserted Wives		1 746	1 171	1 152	1 459	1 300
Employment Grants		8 901	882	3 400	2 000	
Regional Employment Developmer	t Scheme			608	1 840	1
Social Policy Planning Units			20	40	36	
Aboriginal Advancement		1 377	2 634	7 096	8 034	8 166
Housing		771	771	771	771	627
Area Improvement				272	113	
Sewerage				155	155	340
Leisure and Recreation			33	10	104	94
Perth Underground Railway Study	• •		188	89		
Apple Export Assistance				516	259	113
Bovine Brucellosis and T.B. Eradic	ation	380	343	498	601	1 265
Agricultural Extension Services	• •	680	771	843	958	1 082
Minor Agricultural Research			ا ہے ۰۰	••	• • •	• •
Apple, Pear and Canning Fruit Ind		00	7			100
Coal Mining Industry—Long Serv	-	90	139	161	167	190
Apprenticeship Training		11	44	65	455	546
Pilbara Feasibility Study Legal Aid			125	31		124
Daniella, Character			166	164	124 760	124 960
B 100 B		25	25	25	25	25
Road Safety Practices		370	410	470	320	23 599
Assistance for Local Government	• •			4 9 5 9	7 524	13 162
Regional Organisations Assistance			• • •	46	32	
Natural Disaster Relief			• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	40	83	1 000
Total Specific Purpose Pa	yments	<del></del>				
Recurrent		35 084	57 866	116 288	232 394	n.a.

TABLE 138—WESTERN AUSTRALIA—COMMONWEALTH PAYMENTS AND LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS, 1972–73 TO 1976–77(a)—continued (\$ thousands)

	1972–73	1973–74	1974–75	1975–76	1976–77 (Est.)(b)
Specific Purp	ose Payments	CAPITAL PI	URPOSES		
Housing for Servicemen	161	191	784	698	1 230
Universities	2 531		7 714	5 094	6 245
	3 554	7 222	7 281	7 344	5 731
Technical and Further Education	1 166	1 311	587	2 876	4 023
Schools	3 017	6 8 10	15 789	10 564	13 55C
Education—Allowance for Cost Escalation		1			n.a.
Pre-school and Child Care		166	1 911	1 441	n.a.
Child Migrant Education		100	89	-9	• •
	219	187			
		695	4 326	11 900	12 0G0
		1 096	3 306	1 139	2 400
	20		1		
		661	1 309	2 855	1 241
				12	23
	10		52	47	8
- 1	6		28	344	470
	519		198	614	1 288
	5 509		3 874	5 273	3 145
	1 40		37 440	33 440	35 440
			37 440	474	26
Growth Centres		•••	469	730	
Area Improvement	••   ••	• • •	11 720	7 089	4 923
Land Acquisition			1	33	7 723
Air Quality Monitoring	••   ••	3 800	15 450	12 400	9 000
Sewerage			. 13 430	12 400	, , ,
Exmouth Township	28		1 720	445	
Leisure and Cultural Facilities		219	1 728	35	250
Nature Conservation			1 156	523	215
National Estate		60	1 156	62 225	55 900
Roads	43 91		50 449		1
Roads—Safety Improvements		255	••		···
Beef Cattle Roads	190		• • •	•••	
Eyre Highway Maintenance	2				225
Railway Projects	1 25		151		223
Railways-Intersystem Passenger Vehicles	78	4 720	459	66	1.00
Urban Public Transport			2 829	750	1 692
W.A.—Darwin Shipping Service	2 50				··
Softwood Forestry	1 02		1	864	715
Dairy Adjustment Program	27	7   70		2 327	1 059
Fruit Growing Industry		18	32	29	40
Beef Industry Assistance				479	636
Rural Reconstruction	8 13			4 550	3 400
Ord River Project	74		348	111	50
Water Resources Assessment	71	0 1 300	1 667	1 981	2 000
Soil Conservation		1		74	136
W.A. Water Supply	15		1	1	
Tourism Development		10	46	313	50
Natural Disaster Relief				4 264	5 000
Total Specific Purpose Payments	s	400.000	157 100	102 204	
Capital	78 61	3 109 087	176 133	183 394	n.a.

#### TABLE 138—WESTERN AUSTRALIA—COMMONWEALTH PAYMENTS AND LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS, 1972-73 TO 1976-77(a)—continued

	_			1972–73	1973-74	1974–75	1975–76	1976-77 (Est.) (b)
			То	TAL PAYMEN	its(e)			
				333 279	418 002	611 503	818 918	n.a.
	To	TAL PAYN	MENTS A	nd Loan C	ouncil Bor	RROWINGS	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
General Purpose(f) Specific Purpose				288 085 113 697	305 636 166 953	387 150 292 421	483 327 415 788	570 352 n.a.
Total				401 782	472 589	679 571	899 115	n.a.

<sup>(</sup>a) That is, Commonwealth payments to State Governments and the State Governments' Loan Council borrowing programs. Excludes Commonwealth payments made direct to local government authorities, details of which are given in Chapter V.
(b) Important qualifications attach to the 1976-77 estimates in some cases. See relevant sections of the text.
(c) Financial assistance grants up to 1975-76; the States' personal income tax sharing entitlements in 1976-77.
(d) See Chapter III, under the heading 'Treatment of Loan Council Programs in This and Other Budget Documents'.
(e) Comprising general revenue funds, specific purpose payments and the general purpose capital grants—that is, all amounts shown above with the exception of the Loan Council borrowing programs. See footnote (d).
(f) Comprising general revenue funds, Loan Council borrowings and general purpose capital grants. See footnote (d)

### TABLE 139—TASMANIA—COMMONWEALTH PAYMENTS AND LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS, 1972–73 TO 1976–77(a)

	_			1972–73	1973–74	1974-75	1975–76	1976-77 (Est.)(b)
			GENER	RAL REVENU	E FUNDS		<u> </u>	!
Financial Assistance G	rants/Per	sonal In	come					
Tax Entitlement(c)				79 498	91 243	131 871	156 816	189 40
Special Grants				7 600	8 650			
Special Revenue Assis	tance				1 207	8 333		
							156.016	100 40
Total	<u>···</u>		• •	87 098	101 100	140 204	156 816	189 40
		GENE	RAL P	URPOSE CAPI	TAL FUNDS	d)		
State Government Lo	an Counc	il Borro	wing					
Programs			٠	51 252	43 467	54 952	60 743	63 80
Capital Grants				17 367	20 549	25 977	30 372	31 90
m 1				(0.610		90.020	01 115	05.70
Total	••		•••	68 619	64 016	80 929	91 115	95 70
·				PAYMENTS—I	RECURRENT	PURPOSES		
Payments under Finar					634	534	524	62.
Interest on State De		• •	• •	534	534	534	534	534
Sinking Fund on St			• •	1 934	2 044	2 141	2 100	2 000
Debt Charges Assistar		;	• •	2 385	3 180	3 975	100	• •
Tas. Railway Sinking		eimburse	ement		• •		480	
State Emergency Servi	ces	• •	• •	2.520		23	12 659	7: 15 66:
Universities	<b></b>	• •		2 530	6 415	12 274	13 658	8 25
Colleges of Advanced			• •	1 128	3 959	6 888	7 011	1 08
Technical and Further	Educati	on	• •		117	426	1 087	
Schools				914	1 958	5 912	9 327	10 30
Education—Allowance		t Escalat	ıon	•			1.700	n.a.
Pre-schools and Child		• •	• •		78	1 017	1 720	n.a.
Child Migrant Educat		• •	• •	53	135	179	149	2
Educational Research		• • •	_ ::	7	14	21	14	22 00
Medibank—Public Ho	-	_					31 000	22 60
Community Health	• •		• •		121	528	1 265	1 900
Tuberculosis Control	• •		• •	334	252	434	548	530
School Dental Scheme		• •	• •		818	1 239	1 547	1 45
Health Education		• •	• •	30	60	64	23	4:
Blood Transfusion Ser		• •	• •	30	37	57	94	10
Health Planning Agen		• •	• •	•••		5	25	4 1
Home Dialysis Schem		• •	• •		40	_		20
Home Care Services	• •	• •	• •	12	49	124	340 10	1
Paramedical Services	4 3375	• •	• •	2	3	8 421	458	40
Assistance for Deserte		• •	• •	338 5 970	260 647	1 103	700	40
Employment Grants	Danielan	6-		i	04/	534	1 521	• •
Regional Employment				•••	20	334	32	• •
Social Policy Planning		• •	• •	49	23	34	61	6
Aboriginal Advancem		• •	• •	388	388	388	388	31
Housing	• •	• •	• •		300	24	4	110
Sewerage	- • •	• •	• •		20	7	170	84
Leisure and Recreatio		• •			20	456	1 400	750
Fasman Bridge Disast		• •	• •	• • •	40	430	1 400	/ 5
Fisheries Developmen		• •		• • •	40	1 590	572	34
Apple Export Assistar		 		100	137	238	423	214
Bovine Brucellosis and			11	380	348	419	517	560
Agricultural Extension	ina Emili	i Tandaan	:	i	250		31,	
Apple, Pear and Cann		mausir.	ies		1	• •	650	• •
Assistance for A.P.P.M		oruiga T		2	16	5	6	• • • •
Coal Mining Industry-				2	11	41	79	13
Apprenticeship Traini	пВ	• •	• •	2	62	. 71	49	49
Legal Aid Poad Safety Practices	• •		• •	11	11	11	11	73 11
Road Safety Practices	• •	• •	• •	172	204	227	130	243
Research Grants			• •	i		1 669	2 292	4 004
Assistance for Local C Regional Organisation			• •			24	8	
•					<del></del>		<u> </u>	
Total Specific Recurrent	-	-		17 305	22 211	43 142	80 456	n.a.
				1 / 405	7.7.211	4.1 142	00430	11.21.

## TABLE 139—TASMANIA—COMMONWEALTH PAYMENTS AND LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS, 1972–73 TO 1976–77(a)—continued

(\$ thousands)	)	SÌ	nd	sa	u	10	th	\$	(
----------------	---	----	----	----	---	----	----	----	---

	PAYMENTS—  842 1 425 380 1 708 87 166 32	145 694 292 689 2 527  285 40 31 140	149 1 279 2 969 471 6 091  1 177 6	160 2 589 5 313 887 4 477  1 764 45	1 1 00 1 40 2 25 4 23 n.a. n.a.
  	842 1 425 380 1 708  87 	145 694 292 689 2 527 285 40 31 140	149 1 279 2 969 471 6 091  1 177	2 589 5 313 887 4 477  1 764 45	1 00 1 40 2 25 4 23 n.a. n.a.
  	1 425 380 1 708    87 	694 292 689 2 527  285 40 31 140	1 279 2 969 471 6 091  1 177 6	2 589 5 313 887 4 477  1 764 45	1 00 1 40 2 25 4 23 n.a. n.a.
 n	1 425 380 1 708    87 	292 689 2 527  285 40 31 140	2 969 471 6 091  1 177 6	5 313 887 4 477  1 764 45	1 40 2 25 4 23 n.a. n.a.
n	380 1 708   87 	689 2 527  285 40 31 140	471 6 091  1 177 6	887 4 477  1 764 45	2 25 4 23 n.a. n.a.
 n	1 708   87 	2 527  285 40 31 140	6 091 1 177 6	4 477  1 764 45	4 23 n.a. n.a.
n	    166	285 40 31 140	 1 177 6	1 764 45	n.a. n.a.
	 87  166	40 31 140		45	n.a.
	 87  166	40 31 140		45	
	 166 	31 140			• •
	 166 	140 	1 500	2 090	
			1 500	2 090	• • • • • •
					3 00
	32	0.40		•••	• •
	32	242	498	689	60
		2	• •	4	• •
		549	69	317	47
			• • •	5	
	7				• •
			154		3
	138	22			28
	••				60
	105				7
	300	16 000			24 22
	,	35	400	506	7
					26
					••
					50
		180	439		65
					51
					1
	12 150		18 585	20 097	20 80
		90		• • • • •	
				63	65
	1 156				
			359		80
	1 113		••	242	• •
					13 75
					98
					3 10
	100	650	750		33
			}		13
		700	800	500	90
				••	••.
	71	71	135		21
			••		1
		38	210	!	19
	-3	-3	••		• •
s—					
	23 237	38 209	73 590	88 118	n.a.
		28 138 105 300	28     13       138     22       105     131       300     16 000       16     35       180     180       12     150     13 950       11     90     90       11     113     113       11     113     113       11     672     110       100     650     100       101     71     71       11     71     71       11     38     -3	28     13     154       138     22        105     131     204       300     16 000     26 220       400         105     131     204       400         100     26 220        100     180        101     1032     18 585       100         110     13 950     18 585       100         110         110         110         110         100         101         101         101         101         101         101         101         101         101         101         101         101         101 <td< td=""><td>28     13     154     3       138     22      560       105     131     204     216       300     16 000     26 220     22 220        35     400     26 220     22 220           25        180     439     430     85         1032     795          63  </td></td<>	28     13     154     3       138     22      560       105     131     204     216       300     16 000     26 220     22 220        35     400     26 220     22 220           25        180     439     430     85         1032     795          63

### TABLE 139—TASMANIA—COMMONWEALTH PAYMENTS AND LOAN COUNCIL BORROWINGS, 1972-73 TO 1976-77(a)—continued

_				1972–73	1973–74	1974–75	1975–76	1976-77 (Est.)(b)
			То	TAL PAYMEN	TS(e)			
				145 007	182 069	282 913	355 762	n.a.
	To	TAL PAY	MENTS A	nd Loan C	ouncil Bor	ROWINGS		
General Purpose(f) Specific Purpose		• •		155 717 40 542	165 116 60 420	221 133 116 732	247 931 168 574	285 103 n.a.
Total				196 259	225 536	337 865	416 505	n.a.

<sup>(</sup>a) That is, Commonwealth payments to State Governments and the State Governments' Loan Council borrowing programs. Excludes Commonwealth payments made direct to local government authorities, details of which are given in Chapter V.
(b) Important qualifications attach to the 1976-77 estimates in some cases. See relevant sections of the text.
(c) Financial assistance grants up to 1975-76; the States' personal income tax sharing entitlements in 1976-77.
(d) See Chapter III, under the heading 'Treatment of Loan Council Programs in This and Other Budget Documents'.
(e) Comprising general revenue funds, specific purpose payments and the general purpose capital grants—that is, all amounts shown above with the exception of the Loan Council borrowing programs. See footnote (d).
(f) Comprising general revenue funds, Loan Council borrowings and general purpose capital grants. See footnote (d).

# **INDEX**

### INDEX

							PAGE
Aboriginal Advancement—							
Payments to States	• •	••	• •	• •	• •	• •	60
Grants to Local Authorities	• •	• •	• •	• •	• •	• •	109, 115
Advanced Education, Australian C				• •	• •	• •	40–41
Aerodromes, Grants to Local Auth	norities for	r		••		• •	110-111
Aged Persons Homes, Grants to Le	ocal Auth	orities for	r		• •	• •	104
Aged Persons Hostels				• •		• •	105
Agricultural Extension Services					• •	• •	87
Agricultural Research, Minor							87
Air Quality Monitoring							67
Albury-Wodonga							63
Apples, Export Guarantee							84
Apprenticeship Training							93
Arboencephalitis, Control of							54
Area Improvement							65, 116
Arts, Payments to Local Authoritie	es for						110
Assistance to Local Government—		ng Arran	gements				99–101
Australian Assistance Plan							120
·							
Beef Industry Assistance			• •				85
Betterment Factor in Grants Form	ıula						11
Blood Transfusion Services							53
Bovine Brucellosis, Eradication of							84
Brigalow Lands Development							91
Bundaberg Irrigation Works							88
Canned Fruits Industry Assistance				••		• •	86
Capital Grants			• •		• •		26, 27, 28
Captains Flat-pollution abatemen	nt works		• •		• •		68
Child Care—							
Grants to States			• •	• •	• •	• •	43–44
Grants for Local Authorities			• •		• •	10	3, 112–113
Child Migrant Education					• •		45
Clare Weir							89
Coal Mining Industry—Long Servi	ice Leave				• •	••	92
Colleges of Advanced Education							40-41
Community Health Facilities						• •	49–50
Community Facilities, Townsville					• •		117
Community Recreation					• •		70
Culture and Recreation							69–72
Dalma Adlantana A Barana							. 82–83
Dairy Adjustment Program	• •	• •	••	••	••	••	82–83
Dartmouth Dam	• •	••	• •	• •	• •	••	
Defence	A 41. 141		• •	••	• •	••	34–36
Delivered Meals, Grants to Local			• •	• •	••	••	106
•	•••	••	• •	••	••	• •	58–59
Dwellings for Aged Pensioners							58

				•				Pagi
Economic Services	••	••						73–93
Education	• •	• •					• • •	37–47
Education Research	• •							46-47
Emergency Services								35–36
<b>Employment Grants</b>								59
Eton (Mackay) Irrigatio	n Scheme				••			0.0
Exmouth Shire, Special							••	2.4
Exotic Animal Diseases	Eradicatio	n		••		• •	• •	85
Family Law								
			••	• •	• •	• •	• •	94
Federalism Policies, Oth			overnmei	nt's	• •	• •		24–25
Financial Agreement, Pa		ider	• •	• •	• •	• •		32–34
Financial Assistance Gra	ants	•.•	• •	• •	••			10–13
Flood Mitigation	• •	• •	• •	• •	• •			90-91
Flood Relief	••			• •				95–97
Fruit Growing Industry								83–84
Functional Classification	of Payme	ents		••				1–2, 9
Garbage—Disposal of C	verseas St	ine Garb	2000					
General Public Services	···		_	• •	• •	• •	• •	55
General Purpose Capital		• •	• •	• •	••	• •	• •	93–95
General Revenue Funds		••	••	• •	• •	• •	• •	26–30
		• •		• •	• •	• •	• •	10–25
'Gentlemen's Agreement	Semi-G		nt and Lo	ocal Auth	nority Loa	an Raisin	gs	28
Gladstone Power Station	1	• •	• •	• •	••			81
Grants Commission	••	• •	••	• •			21	-23, 98-101
Growth Centres and Rel	ated Proje	cts	• •	• •	• •			63-65, 115
Handicapped Persons								106
Health		••			••	• •	••	
Health Education	••			• •	• •	• •	• •	47–55
Health Planning Agencie			• •	• •	• •	• •	• •	52
Hobart Bridge—	·3 · ·	• .•	• •	• •	• •	• •	• •	53–54
Disaster Second Bridge	• •	••	• •	• •	• •	• •	• •	79–80
Home Care Program	• •	••	• •	• •	• •	• •	• •	76
	••	••	• •	• •	• •	• •	• •	56, 113
Home Dialysis Scheme		• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	• •	• •	• •	••	• •	54
Home Nursing, Grants t		uthorities	for	• •	• •	• •	• •	104
Homeless Persons Assista		• •	••		• •		• •	109
Hospitals Development I	Program	• •	• •	•.•				48–49
Housekeeper Services	• •	• •	• •		• •			56, 113
Housing	• •	• •		• •	• •			26, 61-62
Housing for Servicemen								34–35
Housing—Rental Losses	• • .	••	••	• •	••			61
Income Tax Sharing, Per	sonal—							
- with the States								13–21
- assistance to Local (				••	••	• •	••	99-101

							PAGE
Industry Assistance and De	velopment						81–92
Interest on State Debts, Co	ntributions t	0					32–34
Kinchant Dam-See Eton	(Macay) Irrig	ation Schen	ne				
King Island Harbour Work		••					79
Land Acquisition and Deve	elopment	• •	. :				6667
T 1 411							93–94
* 1				• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •			69–71, 117
				• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •		• • •	26–28, 29–30
Local Authority Borrowing		• • •	••				9–28, 101–102
Local Government Authori			••	• •			98–123
- Direct Payments .		15 10 01 101		••			102-111
- On passing Payments t		tates		• •			112–119
Local Government Authori				• •	• •		100
Local Government, Grants				 mission	• •	•	98–99
		ied by Gran	is Com		• •	•••	88
Lock to Kimba Pipeline .	• • • •		••	••	••	• •	00
Marginal Dairy Farms Rec	construction !	Scheme	• •	••	• •	• •	86–87
'Medibank'		• •	• •	••	• •	• •	47–48
Mental Health Institutions		• •	••	• •		• •	50
•							
Namoi River Weirs							90
National Debt Sinking Fur	nd	• •					33–34
· · · · · ·							72, 118
National Fitness Program							69
Natural Disaster Relief							95–97
Nature Conservation—Gra	ints for						71–72
							79
NY TT					٠٠.		49, 103
					•		·
							90
Ord River Irrigation Project		••	• •	• •	• •	• •	89
Other General Revenue As	ssistance	• •	••	••	• •	• •	23
Paramedical Services							57
Pensioners, Dwellings for					• •		58
Personal Income Tax Shar		States—					13-21
	.,						15–17
	••,	••					17–18
Review of Total Tax S							18–19
Pre-schools and Child Car		••			••	43-4	4, 103, 112–113
Pre-school Teachers College		ners Colleges		• •	••		40–41
Premiers' Conferences					• • •		14, 18, 24–25
Bublic Hospitals and Othe		itutione				• •	47_48

•								PAGE
Railway Construction I	Projects			• •				76–77
Railway—Reimbursement to South Australia and Tasmania						•••	••	34
Railways, Intersystem Passenger Vehicles						•••		77–78
Railways, Transfer from States Reimbursement to						••		34
Regional Employment 1	Developn	nent Sche	eme			••	• • •	59, 107–108
Regional Organisations,		ice for	• •			••	• • •	119
Rehabilitation Centre, I	Hobart					••		59
Research Grants						••		95
Road Safety Practices		• •				•••		94
Roads					• •			73–76, 118
Ross River Dam						••	•••	81
Rural Reconstruction						••	•••	86–87
						•	••	00-07
School Dental Scheme	'		• •					51–52
Schools	• •							42–43
Semi-Government Borro	wing Pro	grams	·				28	3-29, 101-102
Senior Citizen Centres	• •	• •						5–57, 113–114
Sewerage Program, Nati		••						68–69
Seymour (Victoria), Floo					• •		.:	66
Sheltered Employment, o	Grants to	Local A	uthoritie	s for				106–107
Shipping and Harbours	• •						••	79
Sinking Fund Contributi				• •		• •		33–34
Social Security and Welf	are			• •				55–59
Softwood Forestry							••	81-82
Soil Conservation						••	••	91
Special Grants						••		21–23
Special Revenue Assistan	ice (Gene	ral Reve	nue)			••		11, 23
Specific Purpose Paymen					.,			111, 112–119
State Authorities Borrow		rams					.,	28–29
State Debts, Assistance for							•••	32–34
State Emergency Services						••	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	35–36
State Government Loan						••		26–28
Statements attached to Budget Speech—Relationship with						••		1–2, 9
States' Proposals for Fina	ancial Ar	rangeme	nts				• • •	12,5
Surplus Revenue Act						••	••	32
<b>—</b>							••	32
Tailem Bend to Keith Pip	eline		• •					88
	• •	• •						76, 79–80
Tax Sharing, Personal Inc	come-							
<ul> <li>with the States</li> </ul>								13–21
- assistance to Local G								99-101
Teachers Colleges and Pre	e-school	Teachers	Colleges				• •	43–44
Technical and Further Ed	ucation			• •				41–42
Tertiary Education	• •			• •				37–41
Tourism							••	92, 118
Townsville—Community	Services					• •	••	72, 110

							ŀ	AGE
Transport			••		• •		7	3–80
Trawl and Danish Seine Fish	ery							82
Tuberculosis Control							5	0-51
Tuberculosis in Cattle, Eradica	ation of	••	• •	• •	• •	••	8	4-85
Universities						•	3	8–39
Universities Commission							• •	38
Urban and Regional Development and the Environment							6	2–68
Urban Flood Mitigation	••	••	• •	••	• •		66	116
Urban Public Transport			• •				78-79,	118
Urban Water Supply (South A	ustralia)	••	• •	••		••	••	81
Wages (Average)—Financial A	Assistance C	Grants Fo	rmula				1	1–13
Water Hyacinth Control							••	90
Water Resources—Assessment	·		••				••	90
Water Supplies—Townsville							••	111
Water Supply and Electricity							••	81
West Indian Dry Wood Termite Eradication							••	92
Woolloomooloo Redevelopme				• •			••	67